
 
PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AGENDA 
February 7, 2024 @ 9:30 a.m. 

Peace River Facility 
Water Quality & Training Center 

8998 SW County Road 769 (Kings Highway), Arcadia, FL 34269 
 

Additional information may be obtained by contacting the Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority, 9415 
Town Center Parkway, Lakewood Ranch, Florida 34202 or through the Authority’s website www.regionalwater.org.   
Persons with disabilities who need assistance may call (941) 316-1776 at least two business days in advance to make 
appropriate arrangements.  No Stenographic record by a certified court reporter is being made of this meeting.  
Accordingly, any person who may seek to appeal any decisions involving the matters noticed herein will be responsible for 
making verbatim record of the testimony and evidence at this meeting which may be necessary to appeal such decisions. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Commissioner Elton Langford, DeSoto County, Chairman 
Commissioner Joe Tiseo, Charlotte County  
Commissioner Jason Bearden, Manatee County 
Commissioner Mike Moran, Sarasota County 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
INVOCATION 
Commissioner Elton Langford 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Led by the Board 
 
WELCOME GUESTS 
 
HOST COUNTY REMARKS 
Mike Coates, Executive Director 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Any individual wishing to address the Board on an item on the Consent Agenda or Regular Agenda (“Voting Agenda 
Items”) or an issue that does not appear on the agenda should complete a ‘request to speak’ card and submit it to the 
Authority’s recording clerk prior to this Public Comments item.  Each person that submits a ‘request to speak’ card will 
have three (3) minutes to address the Board.   Fifteen (15) minutes is provided for this Public Comment item unless 
additional time is needed for individuals to address the Board on Voting Agenda Items.  If the time limit is exhausted and 
there are still individuals that want to address the Board on non-Voting Agenda Items, the Board will entertain any 
remaining comments near the end of the meeting.  Comments on Voting Agenda Items will be heard first. 
 

http://www.regionalwater.org/


P a g e  | 2 

ELECTION OF OFFICERS 

1. Election of Chairman and Vice-Chairman for 2024

CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Minutes of the December 6, 2023, Board of Directors Meeting
2. Year-End Financial Status and Semi-Annual Investment Reports for FY 2023
3. Novation of Two Contracts from Janicki Environmental to Environmental Science Associates (ESA)
4. Professional Services Contract for Information Technology Support and Management Services
5. Phase 3C Regional Interconnect Easement Agreements
6. Phase 2B Regional Interconnect Resolution of Necessity for Pipeline Easements
7. Treatment Trains 7 and 8 Rehabilitation Project – Phase 1 Work Orders
8. Phase 3C Regional Interconnect Resolution of Necessity 2022-03 – Amendment No. 3
9. Operating Protocol Agreement between the Authority and the Polk Regional Water Cooperative for

Water Supply Operations on the Peace River

REGULAR AGENDA 

1. Water Supply Conditions Report
2. FY 2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report and Independent Auditors’ Report
3. FY 2025 Budget - Schedule and Budget Considerations

GENERAL COUNSEL’S REPORT  *REVISED* 02/01/2024 

1. Update on PFAS settlement and case issues.
2. Clarification for FRS on Executive Director compensation.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 

1. Recognition of Commissioner Bill Truex
2. Recognition of Commissioner George Kruse

ROUTINE STATUS REPORTS 

1. Hydrologic Conditions Report
2. Check Registers for November and December 2023
3. Peace River Regional Reservoir No. 3 Project (PR3)
4. Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 2B Interconnect
5. Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 3C Interconnect
6. DeSoto Booster Pumping Station Project
7. Brackish Groundwater Reverse Osmosis Project at the Peace River Facility
8. Peace River Basin Report



P a g e  | 3 
 

Additional information may be obtained by contacting the Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority, 9415 
Town Center Parkway, Lakewood Ranch, Florida 34202 or through the Authority’s website www.regionalwater.org.   
Persons with disabilities who need assistance may call (941) 316-1776 at least two business days in advance to make 
appropriate arrangements.  No Stenographic record by a certified court reporter is being made of this meeting.  
Accordingly, any person who may seek to appeal any decisions involving the matters noticed herein will be responsible for 
making verbatim record of the testimony and evidence at this meeting which may be necessary to appeal such decisions. 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS (if necessary) 
Individuals who previously submitted a ‘request to speak’ card to the Authority’s recording clerk and there was inadequate 
time during the initial Public Comments item for them to speak on non-Voting Agenda Items, will be given three (3) minutes 
per person to speak on such item. 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Next Authority Board Meeting 
April 3, 2024 @ 9:30 a.m.  
DeSoto County Administration Building 
Commission Chambers, First Floor 
201 East Oak Street, Arcadia, Florida  
 
Future Authority Board Meetings 
June 5, 2024 @ 9:30 a.m. – Manatee County 
August 7, 2024 @ 9:30 a.m. – Sarasota County 
October 2, 2024 @ 9:30 a.m. – Charlotte County 
December 4, 2024 @ 9:30 a.m. – DeSoto County 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

AUTHORITY BOARD WORKSHOP 
(to convene immediately following the Board Meeting) 
 

 
 

Visit the Business page of our website www.regionalwater.org to access the Agenda Packet 

http://www.regionalwater.org/


PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 7, 2024 

ELECTION OF OFFICERS 

Election of Chairman and Vice-Chairman for 2024 
 

Presenter -  Doug Manson, General Counsel 
 
Recommended Action - Election of Officers 
 
In accordance with the Interlocal Agreement creating the Authority, the Authority Board is to elect one 
Director as Chairman and one Director as Vice-Chairman. The Chairman is to be elected for the term of 
one year. There are no term limits and current officers are eligible for re-election. The officers elected to 
Chairman and Vice-Chairman will assume the respective positions immediately following the election. 
 
 
Attachments: 
Authority Board of Directors Officers Historical Listing 



Term of Office Chairman County Vice Chairman County

02/26/82 - 08/24/83 Edward W. Chance Manatee Wayne Terry DeSoto

08/24/83 - 03/27/85 Col. Franz Ross Charlotte T. Mabry Carlton, Jr. Sarasota

03/27/85 - 02/26/86 T. Mabry Carlton, Jr. Sarasota Ed Johnson DeSoto

02/26/86 - 03/25/87 Ed Johnson DeSoto Edward W. Chance Manatee

03/25/87 - 03/30/88 Edward W. Chance Manatee Jack Hufnagel Charlotte

03/30/88 - 03/22/89 Jack Hufnagel Charlotte Mabry T. Carlton Sarasota

03/22/89 - 06/10/89 Mabry T. Carlton Sarasota Ed Johnson DeSoto

06/10/89 - 07/12/89 Ed Johnson DeSoto (vacant) (vacant)

07/12/89 - 04/04/90 Ed Johnson DeSoto Edward W. Chance Manatee

04/04/90 - 03/06/91 Edward W. Chance Manatee Jack Lotz Charlotte

03/06/91 - 03/04/92 Edward W. Chance Manatee Jack Lotz Charlotte

03/04/92 - 11/15/92 Jack Lotz Charlotte Charlie Richards Sarasota

11/16/92 - 12/09/92 (vacant) (vacant) Charlie Richards Sarasota

12/09/92 - 03/02/94 Charley Richards Sarasota RV Griffin DeSoto

03/02/94 - 11/02/94 Donald H. Ross Charlotte Patricia M. Glass Manatee

11/02/94 - 01/11/95 Patricia M. Glass Manatee (vacant) (vacant)

01/11/95 - 03/01/95 Patricia M. Glass Manatee Charlie Richards Sarasota

03/01/95 - 03/08/96 Patricia M. Glass Manatee Charlie Richards Sarasota

03/08/96 - 11/07/96 Patricia M. Glass Manatee Charlie Richards Sarasota

11/07/96 - 03/07/97 Patricia M. Glass Manatee (vacant) (vacant)

03/07/97 - 03/04/98 Barbara E. Smith DeSoto Raymond A. Pilon Sarasota

03/04/98 - 11/17/98 Barbara E. Smith DeSoto Raymond A. Pilon Sarasota

11/17/98 - 12/02/98 (vacant) (vacant) Raymond A. Pilon Sarasota

12/02/98 - 12/01/99 Raymond A. Pilon Sarasota Adam S. Cummings Charlotte

12/01/99 - 12/06/00 Adam S. Cummings Charlotte Robert R. Allen DeSoto

12/06/00 - 12/05/01 Patricia M. Glass Manatee Jerry Hill DeSoto

15/05/01 - 12/11/02 Jerry Hill DeSoto Shannon Staub Sarasota

12/11/02 - 12/03/03 Shannon Staub Sarasota Adam S. Cummings Charlotte

12/03/03 - 12/01/04 Adam Cummings Charlotte Patricia M. Glass Manatee

12/01/04 - 12/07/05 Patricia M. Glass Manatee Jerry Hill DeSoto

12/07/05 - 01/07/07 Jerry Hill DeSoto Shannon Staub Sarasota

01/17/07 - 01/17/08 Shannon Staub Sarasota Adam S. Cummings Charlotte

01/17/08 - 11/18/08 Shannon Staub Sarasota Jane von Hahmann Manatee

11/18/08 - 01/17/09 Shannon Staub Sarasota Dick Loftus Charlotte

01/17/09 - 01/14/10 Dick Loftus Charlotte Jerry Hill DeSoto

01/14/10 - 11/18/10 Jerry Hill DeSoto John Chappie Manatee

11/18/10 - 02/02/11 (vacant) (vacant) John Chappie Manatee

02/02/11 - 12/21/11 John Chappie Manatee Robert Skidmore Charlotte

12/21/11 - 11/19/12 Robert Skidmore Charlotte Jon Thaxton Sarasota

01/10/13 - 02/02/14 Nora Patterson Sarasota Elton Langford DeSoto

02/05/14 - 02/04/15 Elton Langford DeSoto John Chappie Manatee

02/14/15 - 01/28/16 John Chappie Manatee Christopher Constance Charlotte

01/28/16 - 02/01/17 Christopher Constance Charlotte Alan Maio Sarasota

02/17/17 - 04/03/19 Alan Maio Sarasota Elton Langford DeSoto

04/03/19 - 12/04/19 Elton Langford DeSoto Ken Doherty Charlotte

12/04/19 - 09/30/20 Ken Doherty Charlotte Priscilla Trace Manatee

09/30/20 - 12/02/20 Ken Doherty Charlotte Alan Maio Sarasota

12/02/20 - 12/01/21 Alan Maio Sarasota Elton Langford DeSoto

12/01/21 - 11/08/22 Alan Maio Sarasota Elton Langford DeSoto

11/08/22 - 11/29/23 Elton Langford DeSoto Bill Truex Charlotte

11/29/23 - 02/07/24 Elton Langford DeSoto (vacant) (vacant)

02/07/24 - xx/xx/xx

Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority

AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS OFFICERS

HISTORICAL LISTING



PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 7, 2024 

CONSENT AGENDA 
ITEM 1 

Minutes of December 6, 2023 Board of Directors Meeting 
 

Recommended Action - Motion to approve minutes of December 6, 2023, Board 
of Directors Meeting. 

 
 
Draft minutes of the December 6, 2023, Board of Directors Meeting are provided for Board approval. 
 
 
Attachments: 
Draft minutes of the December 6, 2023, Board of Directors Meeting 



Minutes of Board of Directors Meeting 
PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

DeSoto County Administration Building 
Commission Chambers, First Floor 
201 East Oak Street, Arcadia, FL 

 
Board Members Present: 
Commissioner Elton Langford, DeSoto County, Chairman 
Commissioner Joe Tiseo, Charlotte County 
Commissioner George Kruse, Manatee County 
Commissioner Mike Moran, Sarasota County  
 
Staff Present: 
Mike Coates, Executive Director  
Doug Manson, General Counsel 
Richard Anderson, Deputy Director 
Terri Holcomb, Director of Engineering 
Jim Guida, Director of Water Resources & Planning 
Ann Lee, Finance & Budget Sr. Manager 
Mike Knowles, Engineering & Projects Sr. Manager 
Rachel Kersten, Executive Assistant & Agency Clerk 
 
Others Present: 
A list of others present who signed the attendance roster for this meeting is filed with the permanent records 
of the Authority. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Commissioner Langford called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m. 
 
INVOCATION 
 
Commissioner Langford offered the invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Board led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States. 
 
WELCOME GUESTS  
 
Commissioner Langford offered host county remarks and welcomed guests to DeSoto County.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Public comment was made by Sarasota County resident, Chris Sharek. 
 
AWARDS / RECOGNITIONS 
 
1. Employee Service Awards 
 
Richard Anderson, along with the members of the Board, presented service recognition awards to the 
dedicated employees who achieved significant milestones in service with the Authority.  
 
 



Meeting Minutes Continued December 6, 2023 
 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

2 

2. Government Finance Officers Association Certificate of Achievement Award  
 
Mike Coates announced that for the fifth consecutive year, the Government Finance Officers Association 
of the United States and Canada (GFOA) has awarded the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in 
Financial Reporting to Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority for its Annual 
Comprehensive Financial Report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2022, and recognized Ms. Ann 
Lee and the Authority’s finance & budget department for their work in achieving this award. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. Approve Minutes of the October 4, 2023 Board of Directors Meeting 
2. Approve Board of Directors Meeting Schedule for CY 2024 
3. Approve Special District Public Facilities Report (December 2023) 
4. Approve CY 2024 Peace River Hydrobiological Monitoring Program (HBMP Work Order with 

Janicki Environmental) 
5. Approve Purchase of Replacement Air Compressor for Reservoir No. 2 
6. Approve Contract for ASR WF#1 Chemical Feed Improvements 
7. Approve Purchase and Installation of Construction Trailer for Temporary Water Resources 

Offices 
8. Approve Work Order for Site Remediation on RV Griffin Reserve 
9. Approve Reservoir No. 2 Trash Rack and Staff Gauge Refurbishment 
10. Approve Receive and file Hurricane Ian Damage Repair Update 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Moran, seconded by Commissioner Kruse, to approve the 
Consent Agenda. Motion was approved unanimously. 
 
Commissioner Tiseo asked for clarification on Consent Agenda Item 7, for the purchase and installation of 
construction trailer for temporary water resources offices due to hurricane damage. He stated that he did 
not see in the report if insurance was going to cover any part of the costs for this trailer. But then Consent 
Item 10 does discuss hurricane recovery and includes an element for roof repairs. Are these two items 
related?  
 
Mike Coates replied that on Consent Item 7, for the temporary construction trailer for the Water Resources 
staff and the damaged Water Resources building we currently occupy on the property is owned by the 
Southwest Florida Water Management District. SWFWMD did not have insurance coverage on the building 
at the time of the storm, so there will not be any insurance reimbursement that might be used for the 
construction trailer. Mr. Coates clarified that this is unrelated to Consent Item 10, which does include 
insurance reimbursement for hurricane related roof repairs on several Authority owned buildings located 
on the property, but not this SWFWMD owned building.  
 
Commissioner Tiseo questioned if our insurance policy didn’t have coverage for continuing operations or 
similar, something that might have covered some of these things? Ann Lee explained that we do have 
coverage for continuing operations, however that's only on Authority-owned property. As Mr. Coates 
mentioned, the ranch house building is owned by SWFWMD and therefore we cannot file a claim for this 
damage.  
 
Commissioner Tiseo asked if the Authority has a lease agreement with SWFWMD for this building? He 
stated that typically, even if it's non-monetary, this agreement would include provisions about who needs 
to have insurance coverage on the building and an agreement regarding liability. Who's responsible if 
something happens inside, a slip and fall or something of the sort. Ms. Lee replied that we do have a written 
agreement with SWFWMD that allows our use of that facility, but it is not a traditional lease agreement 
and does not include insurance details. Ms. Lee explained that even so, the Authority does have liability 



Meeting Minutes Continued December 6, 2023 
 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

3 

coverage for injuries. But coverage for the structure is different because coverage on that goes with the 
ownership of the property.  
 
Commssioner Tiseo thanked staff for clarifying his understanding on these items.  
 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 
1. Water Supply Conditions and Year-End Summary for CY 2023 
 
Richard Anderson presented the Water Supply Conditions at the Peace River Facility as of November 15, 
2023 and the Year-End Summary for CY 2023 for the Board’s information:  
 

 Water Supply Quantity: Excellent 
 Treated Water Quality: Excellent    

 
 

 
2. Construction Manager at Risk Contract with Archer Western for PR3 Project Components 
 
Terri Holcomb presented the Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) contract and Package 1A Scope and 
fee with Archer Western for the Peace River Regional Reservoir No. 3 (PR3) Project components.  
 
Ms. Holcomb reviewed that the current Board-approved water supply project to meet member demands is 
the Surface Water Supply Expansion Project (SWSEP), consisting of the Peace River Regional Reservoir 
No. 3 (PR3) Project and the PRF Expansion Project. The PR3 Project is comprised of a new 9-billion-gallon 
reservoir, a new 258 MGD river intake pump station, a new reservoir pump station, and conveyance piping 
connecting these new components to the Authority’s existing facilities.  
 
She stated that at the October 4, 2023, Board meeting, Archer Western Contractors, LLC was selected as 
the Construction Management at-risk (CMAR) Contractor to provide (1) Phase I Preconstruction Services, 
and (2) Phase II Construction Services for the PR3 Pumping and Conveyance Facilities. 
 
The PR3 Pumping and Conveyance Facilities – Phase 1 (Package 1A) Scope and Fee for preconstruction 
services are intended to provide the Authority with constructability reviews, value engineering evaluations, 
risk reviews, and schedule estimates for the PR3 Project.  In addition, the CMAR will develop conceptual 
cost estimates for the 30% designs of the PRF Expansion Project and the Brackish Groundwater Reverse 
Osmosis (BWRO) project, as well as develop a 30% cost model for the PR3 Project Components.  The 
Phase 1 (Package 1A) fee is $1,251,900.  The schedule for delivery of the Package 1A Services is 
approximately 5 months, through June 2024, with delivery of the cost estimates by March 11th, 2024. 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Tiseo, seconded by Commissioner Moran, to approve the 
Construction Agreement between the Authority and Construction Management At-Risk (CMAR) 
for the Peace River Regional Reservoir No. 3 (PR3) Pumping and Conveyance Facilities and 
authorize the Executive Director to make non-monetary edits to Agreement. Motion was approved 

November Water Demand 27.87 MGD 

November River Withdrawals 48.90 MGD 

Storage Volume: 
Reservoirs 

ASR 
Total 

 
 6.66 BG 
 8.72 BG 
15.38 BG 



Meeting Minutes Continued December 6, 2023 
 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

4 

unanimously. 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Tiseo, seconded by Commissioner Moran, to approve the Phase 
1 Preconstruction Services Package 1A Services in the amount of $1,251,900 with Archer Western 
Contractors, LLC to provide Preconstruction Services for the Peace River Regional Reservoir No. 3 
(PR3) Pumping and Conveyance Facilities Project. Motion was approved unanimously. 
 
3. Agreement Between the Florida Department of Environmental Protection and the Authority for 

Dam Safety Review by Independent Consultant 
 
Ms. Holcomb presented the Environmental Resource Permitting (ERP) for the Authority’s Peace River 
Reservoir No. 3 (PR3) Project. She explained that this permitting process requires consideration of 
environmental and safety regulations associated with the construction and operation of these facilities. The 
Environmental components of the permit application review are being conducted by SWFWMD.  
SWFWMD and Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) are entering into a coordination 
agreement for FDEP to review and provide comments to SWFWMD on embankment design and dam 
operation and safety aspects of the Authority’s PR3 ERP Application.   
 
Ms. Holcomb stated that to support FDEP’s review of its portion of the PR3 ERP application, the FDEP 
requires that the Authority provide and pay for the services of a qualified professional engineering 
consultant to assist the FDEP in their regulatory review of the PR3 design.  The agreement between the 
FDEP and the Authority for ‘Dam Safety Review by Independent Consultant’ identifies the need for those 
services and establishes that the Authority will make such services available.   
 
Authority staff recommended that Black and Veatch conduct these services for the FDEP.  Black and 
Veatch would be hired by the Authority through their existing continuing engineering services contract. 
Black and Veatch recently completed the 3rd Party Review for SWFWMD (required for cooperative 
funding) on the PR3 preliminary design, so they are very familiar with the project, and have the expertise 
necessary to support the FDEP in the dam safety review. Work Order No. 1 for the FDEP regulatory review 
by Black and Veatch is proposed at a cost not to exceed $56,492. Ms. Holcomb stated that any subsequent 
work orders associated with the Agreement will be provided for Board consideration in the future to support 
FDEP oversight of the reservoir project construction, filling, and initial operations. 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Moran, seconded by Commissioner Tiseo, to approve Agreement 
Between the Florida Department of Environmental Protection and the Authority for Dam Safety 
Review by an Independent Consultant and Authorize the Executive Director Approve de minimis 
changes if required by FDEP. Motion was approved unanimously. 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Tiseo, seconded by Commissioner Moran, to approve the hire of 
Black and Veatch under their continuing Engineering Services Contract to Conduct this Work and 
Authorize the Executive Director to Execute Work Order No. 1 with Black and Veatch to Provide 
Design Review for the Peace River Reservoir No. 3 Project on behalf of the FDEP in an amount not 
to exceed $56,492. Motion was approved unanimously. 
 
4. PR3 Project Mitigation and Future RV Griffin Land Use Considerations 
 
Jim Guida provided the Board with an update and overview of the latest estimate of anticipated wetland 
impacts, preliminary Onsite Permittee Responsible Mitigation and Mitigation Bank options, and RV Griffin 
future land use-related considerations. 
 
Mr. Guida stated that the Peace River Regional Reservoir No. 3 Project (PR3) will develop a new 9 BG 
off-stream reservoir on the RV Griffin Reserve. At the February 2022 meeting, the Board approved HDR 



Meeting Minutes Continued December 6, 2023 
 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

5 

to proceed with the preliminary design and permitting phase of the Project, which includes development and 
submittal of Environmental Resource Permit (ERP) application for State regulatory consideration and 
approval.  An ERP Application was submitted to the Southwest Florida Water Management District 
(SWFWMD) on September 15, 2023. 
 
Mr. Guida explained that in addition to review by the SWFWMD, the Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection (FDEP) will also be participating in review of the ERP Application regarding dam safety 
considerations.  A key consideration for the permit is wetland impacts and the need to compensate for 
resultant losses in functional wetland habitat. Mitigation options currently under consideration include 
wetland creation, restoration, and enhancement onsite at the RV Griffin Reserve (“Onsite Permittee 
Responsible Mitigation”), purchase of mitigation credits from wetland mitigation banks within 
corresponding watersheds (Peace and Myakka River Basins), or some combination thereof.  
 
Mr. Guida added that he will continue to provide the Board with updates and anticipated future 
presentations that will be provided to assist the Board in its ultimate selection of a preferred mitigation 
option for the PR3 Project.  
 
5. Brackish Groundwater Supply Project Update 
 
Mr. Guida presented the Board with an update on the Brackish Groundwater Supply Project, including the 
status of a WUP modification to increase authorized withdrawal quantities, the well drilling and testing 
program, and associated wellfield and water treatment plant design considerations.  
 
The Authority’s Water Use Permit (WUP) for the Peace River Facility was modified in October 2022 to 
authorize the withdrawal of up to 9 MGD of brackish groundwater from wells on the RV Griffin Reserve, 
which would yield an estimated 5 MGD average annual day of finished water for allocation to Customers.  
In September 2023, a WUP modification request was submitted to SWFWMD seeking an increase in the 
Authority’s authorized withdrawal quantities to increase the allocable finished supply capacity. Mr. Guida 
stated that he was pleased to announce that this WUP Modification was approved by SWFWMD’s 
Governing Board on November 14, 2023, and as a result, the Authority has received an increase in 
authorized withdrawal quantity that will take us from 5 MGD yield to an estimated 7.5 MGD annual average 
of allocable finished supply.  
 
Mr. Guida reviewed that on April 5, 2023, the Board approved the selection of Carollo Engineers to conduct 
the preliminary design and testing for the project, and the contract, scope, fee, and Work Order No. 1 were 
authorized by the Board on June 7, 2023. Under this contract, Work Order No. 1 for Preliminary Design 
and Testing Services will include well construction, aquifer, and groundwater quality testing, and 
preliminary design of 1) raw water mains and well sites; 2) injection well(s); and 3) brackish groundwater 
treatment facilities. He stated that the preliminary design and testing for the Brackish Groundwater Project 
is scheduled for completion in March 2024. 
 
Commissioner Tiseo asked for clarification on the WUP permit expiration date and if the approved 
modification has any effect on this date. Mr. Guida responded that the Authority holds a 50-year WUP 
permit, which has approximately 46 years left, and that the modification has no impact on this expiration 
date. 
 
On an issue related to the Brackish Groundwater Project, Doug Manson stated that as part of the permit 
application process that Mr. Guida discussed, there is a Certification of Financial Responsibility for Local 
Governments. And under this specific statute, Special Districts such as the Authority, are considered local 
governments and therefore must complete this certification form as part of this permit application. Mr. 
Manson asked the Board for a motion to approve the signature of this certification of financial responsibility 



Meeting Minutes Continued December 6, 2023 
 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

6 

for local government for the deep injection wells that would be required for the Brackish Groundwater 
Project.   
 
Commissioner Tiseo questioned if this was time-sensitive and stated that he thought items the Board makes 
a motion on had to be posted publicly on the agenda. He asked if they do a walk- on motion like this without 
having it properly noticed?  
  
Mr. Manson stated that we can do a walk-on motion as this item is before us on the agenda and was properly 
noticed. He explained that there is no expenditure here, and it is not a budget issue. This is just a matter of 
saying that the Authority is certifying that if the deep injection wells for the project are built, and if in the 
future they are no longer needed, the Authority will be responsible for a current estimated abandonment 
cost of $864,000 and it is because of this amount that he is requesting the motion. He explained that this 
issue is time-sensitive because we can’t submit the completed permit application for this project without 
this including form.  
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Kruse, seconded by Commissioner Moran, to approve and 
authorize signature of the certification of financial responsibility for local governments form as part 
of the FDEP UIC application for the Brackish Groundwater Supply Project. Motion was approved 
unanimously. 

 
6. Regional Integrated Loop Phase 2B Interconnect Project – Revised Interlocal Agreement and 

Guaranteed Maximum Price 
 
Mike Knowles presented the Board with this update on the Regional Integrated Loop Phase 2B Interconnect 
Project, which includes approximately 13.1 miles of 42-inch diameter pipe mostly within Charlotte County, 
bordering Sarasota County. Woodruff and Sons Design-Build Team was approved at the August 3rd Board 
meeting to deliver the Progressive Design Build Project. The Progressive Design-Build delivery method 
was chosen due to the compressed schedule to have the Project online to meet Charlotte County’s needs by 
March of 2026.   
   
Mr. Knowles stated that the Interlocal Agreement between the Authority and Charlotte County for the 
Regional Integrated Loop Phase 2B Pipeline Project was also approved by the Board in April of 2022. He 
explained the project cost has increased, He identified the reasons for that cost increase and discussed a 
revised interlocal agreement with Charlotte County that will cover the new upper limit cost of the project 
and also includes changes that allow Charlotte County to include utility improvements that are parallel to 
the Phase 2B Pipeline. 

    
Motion was made by Commissioner Tiseo, seconded by Commissioner Kruse, to approve the revised 
Interlocal Agreement for Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 2B Interconnect between the Peace 
River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority and Charlotte County and Authorize the 
Executive Director to approve de minimis changes if needed. Motion was approved unanimously. 
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Tiseo, seconded by Commissioner Kruse, to authorize the 
Executive Director and General Counsel to finalize and execute a contract amendment with 
Woodruff & Sons, Inc. to complete the design and construction of the Regional Integrated Loop 
Phase 2B Pipeline Project for a Guaranteed Maximum Price not to exceed $70,668,982.87.  Notice to 
Proceed will not be issued until Charlotte County approves the revised Interlocal Agreement to fully 
fund the project. Motion was approved unanimously. 
 
GENERAL COUNSEL’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Manson had no further update for the Board.  



Meeting Minutes Continued December 6, 2023 
 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

7 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Coates discussed the Board meeting schedule & timeframe for new Supply Project selection, indicating 
that a workshop is proposed during the Authority’s February 7th meeting to facilitate decisions on projects 
and master water supply contract revisions in April 2024, in order to deliver new supplies when Customers 
need them in 2028.   
 
ROUTINE STATUS REPORTS 
 
There were no Board comments on routine status reports. 
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

There were no additional Board Member comments. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
No additional public comments were made. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Next Authority Board Meeting 
February 7, 2024 @ 9:30 a.m.  
Peace River Facility  
Water Quality and Training Center 
8998 SW County Rd. 769, Arcadia, FL 
 
Future Authority Board Meetings 
April 3, 2024 - DeSoto County 
June 5, 2024 - Manatee County 
August 7, 2024 - Sarasota County 
October 2, 2024 - Charlotte County 
December 4, 2024 - DeSoto County 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting adjourned at 11:15 a.m. 
 
 
       _______________________________________ 
       Commissioner Elton Langford 

Chairman 



PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 7, 2024 

CONSENT AGENDA 
ITEM 2 

Year-End Financial Status and Semi-Annual Investment Reports for FY 2023 
 

Recommended Action - Motion to receive and file ‘Year-End Financial Status 
Report for FY 2023’. 
 
Motion to receive and file ‘Semi-Annual Investment 
Report’ [September 30, 2023]. 
 

 
Year-End Financial Status Report for FY 2023 
‘Year-end Financial Status Report for FY 2023' is provided for the Board to receive and file.   
 
Semi-Annual Investment Report [September 30, 2023] 
‘Semi-Annual Investment Report’ [September 30, 2023] is provided for the Board to receive and file. 
 
 
Budget Action – No action is required. 
 
Attachments: 
Tab A Year-End Financial Status Report for FY 2023 
Tab B Semi-Annual Investment Report [September 30, 2023] 



TAB A 
Year-End Financial Status Report for FY 2023 



 
MEMORANDUM 
 
February 7, 2024 
 
TO:      Board of Directors 
      Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority  
  
THRU:      Mike Coates 
      Executive Director 
 
FROM:      Ann Lee, MBA, CGFO 

Finance & Budget Senior Manager 
 

SUBJ:  Year End Financial Report for Fiscal Year 2023 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Revenues 
 
As of September 30, 2023, the Authority’s total revenues were $54 million, which is 53% of the 
$102 million allocated by the approved amended budget for FY23. Please note that these total 
revenues are not inclusive of budgeted fund transfers from reserve accounts and carry forward 
funds, which represent approximately $23 million of the revenues reflected in the FY23 approved 
amended budget. Water sale revenues were $36.82 million, which is 92% of the $40.16 million 
budgeted and represents an increase over the water sales from prior year of $2.07 million. In 
terms of average millions of gallons per day (MGD) of water sold, the Authority’s FY23 rolling 
year to date average is 30.09 MGD compared with a rolling year to date average of 28.84 for 
FY22.  



 
 
In terms of non- water revenues, the Authority earned just over $1.348 million in interest 
earnings, which is an increase of $1.113 million from the previous year for the same time period. 
The Authority has collected $432k in member fees, $475k in planning assessments and $2.2 
million of system wide benefit project contributions as budgeted. The Authority received $3.18 
million in grant reimbursement funds from the DEP and SWFWMD and have an additional $9.4 
million as a grant receivable for work completed through the fiscal year, bringing the total grant 
revenues to $12.6 million. Other Authority revenues collected through September 30, 2023 
include $94k in rental income from our tenants as well as $29k in miscellaneous revenues and $1 
million from Ian expense reimbursements.  
 
The following graphic represents the Authority’s revenues trends on a per revenue stream basis 
for the last five fiscal years. 

 
Expenditures 
 
As of September 30, 2023, the Authority’s total expenditures were $67.77 million, which is 66% 
of the $102 million allocated by the approved amended budget for FY23. Authority administrative 
expenditures were $547k, which is 104% of the budgeted amount of $525k. This amount is $124k 
more than expenditures incurred in the previous fiscal year for the same time period.  
 
Authority facility expenditures were $67.23 million, which is 66% of the budgeted amount of 
$101.43 million. The FY23 operations and maintenance expenditures were $23.63 million, which 
is 99% of the budgeted amount of $23.9 million and is $3.9 million more than the expenditures 
incurred FY22. Expenses (net) attributed to Hurricane Ian are $1.6 million, without the additional 
overtime/vacation time considerations from that event. Capital project expenditures totaled 
$25.94 million of the $50.2 million budgeted and renewal and replacement project expenditures 
totaled $4.252 million. 

 $-

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

 $30,000,000

 $35,000,000

 $40,000,000

Water Sales Interest Earnings Grants & Capital
Contribu�on

Member Fees Special Assessments Other

Revenues Trends FY19 - FY23: October - September 

FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23



 

 
 
The following graphic represents the Authority’s expense trends for the last five fiscal years. 
 

 
In summary, the Authority continues to maintain a strong financial position. Budgeted variances 
are as expected and are generally favorable.  
 
If you have any questions, I am at your disposal. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



TAB B 
Semi-Annual Investment Report [September 30, 2023] 



 

 

 

MEMORANDUM  
  

DATE:  February 7, 2024  
  

TO:       The Board of Directors Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority   
    

THRU:    Mike Coates       Execu ve Director  
  

FROM:       Ann Lee, MBA, CGFO                Finance & Budget Senior Manager  
  

SUBJECT:          Semi-Annual Investment Report for September 30, 2023  
______________________________________________________________________________  
  
In accordance with the Authority’s investment policy the following is a summary of the Peace River Manasota Regional 

Water Supply Authority’s investments as of September 30, 2023.    

  

As of September 30, 2023, the Authority’s por olio totaled $28,524,639 compared to $29,878,489 on March 31, 2023, 

which is $1,353,850 less than the last repor ng period. This amount is comprised of restricted construc on and reserve 

funds totaling $24.75 million and unrestricted funds totaling $3.77 million. Of the Authority’s total por olio, thirty (30%) 

percent of the por olio is in money market and interest-bearing checking accounts and seventy (70%) percent of total 

investments are held at the Florida Prime (SBA).   

  

Through September 30, 2023, the Authority earned $1,348,058 in interest from the SBA accounts and bank accounts. The 

investment earnings on these accounts is more than the prior years’ interest earnings for the same repor ng period by 

$1,113,218. This increase is reflec ve of the Feds con nued aggressive and frequent increases to interest rates throughout 

2023.  The Fed is expected to keep rates status quo for early 2024 and the Authority should con nue to see favorable 

earnings over the next year. The Authority earned interest at a rate of 5.59% in the SBA accounts for September 2023 as 

well as 3.06% in interest bearing checking accounts.  

  

According to the Authority’s investment policy, the por olio must be designed with the goal of annually exceeding the 

yield rates on the 90-day Treasury Bill and as of September 30, 2023, the 90-day Treasury Bill had a yield rate of 5.32%. The 

Authority’s earnings at the SBA are currently leading our target benchmark of the 90 Day T-Bill rate by roughly 30 basis 

points.    

  

The Authority’s investment policy has limita ons on investments beyond 24 months allowing liquidity for current 

expansion, new water resource development, and capital improvement projects.    

  

 •  Florida Prime maintains an AAAm ra ng from Standard and Poor’s and the fund is en rely liquid.  

  

If you have any ques ons, I am at your disposal.



  

Fund Balance & Investment Reports September 30, 2023  

  
    Budget Polices:    

    General Fund:      Policy to fund an operating reserve within the General Fund with an amount which shall be equal to the average monthly Operations & Maintenance Costs  

    R&R Reserve Fund:     Policy to maintain a minimum balance of $2 million at the end of each fiscal year  

    Rate Stabilization Fund:    Goal to maintain a balance of $1 million at the end of each fiscal year  

    Utility Reserve Fund:    Policy to maintain an uncommitted balance of 180 days of budgeted Operations & Maintenance Costs  

    Disaster Recovery Reserve:  Goal to maintain a balance of $1 million at the end of each fiscal year  
  

  

  

  

  

  



 

 



  

  

 



PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 7, 2024 

CONSENT AGENDA 
ITEM 3 

 
Novation of Two Contracts from Janicki Environmental to  

Environmental Science Associates (ESA) 
 

Recommended Action - Motion to approve novation of existing professional 
services contracts for (1) Peace River Hydrobiological 
Monitoring, and (2) General Environmental Services 
from Janicki Environmental Inc., to Environmental 
Science Associates. 

 
The Authority currently has two professional services contracts with Janicki Environmental Inc.: (1) a 
contract for the Peace River Hydrobiological Monitoring Program, and (2) a General Environmental 
Services Contract.  On January 10, 2024, the Authority was formally notified that Environmental Science 
Associates (ESA) had acquired Janicki Environmental, Inc.  The notification requested novation of both 
Authority contracts with Janicki Environmental Inc., to the new owner, Environmental Science Associates. 
 
The attached correspondence provides details on the acquisition and commits that the novation of the 
contracts to ESA will maintain continuity of service on Authority projects, and that all current obligations 
in the Janicki contracts will continue to be satisfied by ESA after the novation. Staff recommends Board 
approval of the novation of both contracts with Janicki Environmental, Inc. to Environmental Science 
Associates.   
 
Budget Action – No action is needed. 
 
Attachments: 
Two Novation Request Letters from Environmental Science Associates 



 

5404 Cypress Center Drive 

Suite 125 

Tampa, FL  33609 

813.207.7200 phone 

813.207.7201 fax 

 

esassoc.com 

 
January 10, 2024 
 
Mike Coates, Executive Director  
Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority 
8998 S.W. County Road 769 
Arcadia, FL 34269 
 
Subject:  Agreement for Environmental Services Related to the Peace River Hydrobiological Monitoring              

Program, dated September 30, 2020 -- Request for Contract Novation 
   
Dear Mr. Coates: 

On December 29, 2023, Environmental Science Associates (ESA) purchased Janicki Environmental, Inc. 
(Janicki).   As part of the transaction, all of Janicki Environmental’s employees continue to work for ESA.  Our 
long history of working together now brings one combined team with a deeper talent pool and level of resources. 

We are requesting a contract novation of the above referenced contract.  We are committing to you that the 
novation will not result in unauthorized personnel working on Authority projects nor interruption of continuity of 
service.  All of the contractual obligations will continue to be satisfied by ESA after the novation. 

Attached please find the new insurance information from ESA that was formerly provided by Janicki.  We 
appreciate the opportunity to work for the Authority.  We look forward to our ongoing excellent and productive 
relationship with the Authority.   If you need any additional information, please do not hesitate to reach out to 
either of us.    

   

Very truly yours,  

Julie Sullivan 
Senior Vice President 
jsullivan@esassoc.com 
(407) 748-2729 
 
 
 
 
Susan S. Janicki 
Environmental Scientist 

                                                                                            sjanicki@esssoc.com 
                                                                                            (727) 744-7221 

mailto:jsullivan@esassoc.com
mailto:sjanicki@esssoc.com


 

5404 Cypress Center Drive 

Suite 125 

Tampa, FL  33609 

813.207.7200 phone 

813.207.7201 fax 

 

esassoc.com 

 
January 10, 2024 
 
Mike Coates, Executive Director  
Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority 
8998 S.W. County Road 769 
Arcadia, FL 34269 
 
Subject:     Agreement for General Environmental Services, dated September 30, 2020 
 Request for Contract Novation  

Dear Mr. Coates: 

On December 29, 2023, Environmental Science Associates (ESA) purchased Janicki Environmental, Inc. 
(Janicki).   As part of the transaction, all of Janicki Environmental’s employees continue to work for ESA.  Our 
long history of working together now brings one combined team with a deeper talent pool and level of resources. 

We are requesting a contract novation of the above referenced contract.  We are committing to you that the 
novation will not result in unauthorized personnel working on Authority projects nor interruption of continuity of 
service.  All of the contractual obligations will continue to be satisfied by ESA after the novation. 

Attached please find the new insurance information from ESA that was formerly provided by Janicki.  We 
appreciate the opportunity to work for the Authority.  We look forward to our ongoing excellent and productive 
relationship with the Authority.   If you need any additional information, please do not hesitate to reach out to 
either of us.    

   

Very truly yours,  

Julie Sullivan 
Senior Vice President 
jsullivan@esassoc.com 
(407) 748-2729 
 
 
 
 
Susan S. Janicki 
Environmental Scientist 

                                                                                            sjanicki@esssoc.com 
                                                                                            (727) 744-7221 

mailto:jsullivan@esassoc.com
mailto:sjanicki@esssoc.com


PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 7, 2024 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA  

ITEM 4 
 

Professional Services Contract for Information Technology  
Support and Management Services 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommended Action -  Motion to approve the Professional Services Evaluation 

Committee recommendation and authorize the Executive 
Director to execute a professional services contract with 
Entech Computer Services, LLC for Information 
Technology Support and Management Services. 

 
In accordance with the Authority’s Procurement Policy, Statements of Qualifications (SOQ) were requested 
from respondents interested in providing Information Technology Support and Management Services.  Four 
(4) SOQs were timely received by the November 30, 2023, submittal deadline, and all four (4) SOQs were 
deemed responsive and were evaluated in accordance with the Authority’s Procurement Policy. 
 
On December 7, 2023, the Authority’s Professional Services Evaluation Committee (PSEC) held a Public 
Meeting and reviewed the SOQs based on the Evaluation Criteria.  At the conclusion of this meeting, the 
PSEC ranked Respondents with the results shown in the table below. 
 
Staff recommends that the Authority Board of Directors approve the PSEC ranking below and authorize 
the Executive Director to execute a Professional Services contract for Information Technology Support and 
Management Services with Entech Computer Services, LLC.  Work orders issued under the proposed 
contract will be negotiated on an as-needed basis.  This is a budgeted line item.  
 

Rank Firm Location 
1 Entech Computer Services. LLC Sarasota, FL 
2 Essential Net Solutions Melbourne, FL 
3 LanceSoft Herndon, VA 
4 Rolle IT Melbourne, FL 

 
Budget Action – No action is required. 
 
Attachments: 
Tab A Staff Memorandum including Selection Committee Tabulation and Notice of Intended Decision 
Tab B Professional Services Agreement for Information Technology Support and Management Services 

with Entech Computer Services, LLC, including fee schedule.  
 



TAB A 
Staff Memorandum, including Selection Committee Tabulation, 

and Notice of Intended Decision 



PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
Hon. Elton A. Langford Hon. Bill Truex Hon. George Kruse 

 

Hon. Mike Moran 

 DeSoto County Charlotte County Manatee County Sarasota County 

Mike Coates, P.G., Executive Director 

 

9415 Town Center Pkwy    Lakewood Ranch, FL 34202    Tel (941) 316-1776    Fax (941) 316-1772    regionalwater.org 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE:  October 27, 2023 

TO:  Ann Lee, Finance & Budget Senior Manager 

FROM: Mike Coates, Executive Director 

RE:  Information Technology Support & Management Services: Request for 
Statements of Qualifications - Professional Services Evaluation Committee 

 
Pursuant to the Authority’s procurement policy, Section 5.4, the following individuals are 
designated to serve on the Professional Services Evaluation Committee (PSEC) and PSEC 
Technical Advisor for the referenced project: 
 
Terri Holcomb  (PRMRWSA)   Chair of the PSEC 
Tyler Gregan     (PRMRWSA)   Committee Member 
Scott Cunningham  (PRMRWSA)   Committee Member 
Rachel Kersten (PRMRWSA)   Committee Member 
 
Rob Wilson   (PRMRWSA)   PSEC Technical Advisor (non-voting) 
 
Any questions concerning this Request for Statements of Qualifications (SOQ) must be presented 
in writing via email to procurement@regionalwater.org no later than 5:00 p.m. Eastern 
Standard Time on November 9, 2023, using “SOQ Question: IT Services Project” as the 
subject line.  Consultants are responsible for reviewing the Authority’s website for the 
Authority’s responses to any questions timely submitted. Statements of Qualifications are due 
from interested parties on November 30, 2023. The PSEC public meeting to review the SOQ will 
be held at the Authority’s Administrative offices located at 9415 Town Center Parkway, Lakewood 
Ranch, FL 34202 on December 7, 2023 at 10:00 am, EST.  





NOTICE OF INTENDED DECISION FOR AWARD OF CONTRACT – 
PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

FOR 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SUPPORT AND MANAGEMENT 

SERVICES 

Recommended Action - Motion to approve Professional Services Evaluation 
Committee recommendation and authorize the Executive 
Director to negotiate a contract, scope, and fee with Entech 
Computer Services, LLC for Information Technology 
Support and Management Services. 

In accordance with the Authority’s Procurement Policy, Statements of Qualifications (SOQ) were 
requested from respondents interested in providing I n f o r m a t i o n  T e c h n o l o g y  S u p p o r t  
a n d  M a n a g e m e n t  S e r v i c e s .  Four (4) SOQs were timely received by the November 30, 
2023 submittal deadline and all four (4) SOQs were deemed responsive and were evaluated in 
accordance with the Authority Procurement Policy. 

On December 7, 2023, the Authority’s Professional Services Evaluation Committee (PSEC) held 
a Public Meeting and reviewed the SOQs based upon the Evaluation Criteria. At the 
conclusion of this meeting, the PSEC ranked Respondents with the results shown in the table 
below.

Staff recommends that the Authority Board of Directors approve the PSEC ranking below, and 
authorize the Executive Director to negotiate a contract, scope, and fee for Information 
Technology Support and Management Services with Entech Computer Services, LLC for 
consideration at a future Board meeting. 

Rank Firm Location 
1 Entech Computer Services. LLC Sarasota, FL 
2 Essential Net Solutions Melbourne, FL
3 LanceSoft Herndon, VA
4 Rolle IT Melbourne, FL 

Failure to file a protest within the time prescribed in section 120.57(3), Florida Statues, or 
failure to post the bond or other security requirement by law within the time allowed for 
filing a bond shall constitute a waiver of proceeding under chapter 120, Florida Statutes. 

Posted: January 2, 2024



TAB B 
Professional Services Agreement for Information Technology Support and Management  

Services with Entech Computer Services, LLC, including fee schedule. 



 

Page 1 of 21  

Agreement for Professional Services for 
Information Technology Support & Management Services 

 
This Agreement for Professional Services for the Information Technology Support and 
Management Services (“Project”) is made by and between Peace River Manasota Regional Water 
Supply Authority, an interlocal government agency of the State of Florida existing under Sections 
163.01 and 373.713, Florida Statutes (the “Authority”), and Entech Computer Services, LLC,  
(“Consultant”), a corporation in the State of Florida and authorized to do business in the State of 
Florida.  
 

Background 
 

A. The Authority desires to retain Consultant to provide professional services for the 
Information Technology Support and Management Services Project to supplement the 
Authority’s own in-house IT capabilities as described in the Scope of Services provided in 
Exhibit A.   

 
B. The Authority will negotiate individual work orders with the consultant to meet Authority 

needs. 
 

C. The Authority has selected Consultant in accordance with the Authority’s procurement 
policy, and applicable provisions of Law. 

 
D. Consultant desires to provide the professional services required by the Authority as 

defined in this Agreement. 
 

Terms and Conditions 
 
1. Background, Exhibits, and Documents.  The background provided above and the following 

exhibits which are attached, are part of this Agreement.  The Information Package and 
Consultant’s submittals provided in response to the Request for Statements of Qualification 
for this Project are also part of this Agreement.  
 

Exhibit A – Scope of Services and Compensation 
Exhibit B – Consultant’s  Statement of Qualifications for Professional Services for the 

Information Technology Support and Management Services Project (“SOQ”) 
Exhibit C – Authority  Resolution 2018-01 Resolution Establishing Per Diem and Travel 

Expenses  
Exhibit D – Consultant’s Certificate of Insurance 
 
 

2. Definitions. The following terms used in this Agreement have the following meanings: 
 

1.1. Agreement – This written document, as it may be amended from time to time and all 
incorporated documents. 

1.2. Law – All laws, statutes, rules, regulations, ordinances, codes and/or orders applicable 



 

Page 2 of 21  

to the Services. 
 
1.3. Services – The services described in Exhibit A, as well as all obligations, duties and 

responsibilities required of Consultant under this Agreement. The term “Services” 
also includes all Additional Services which are subsequently authorized in writing by 
the Authority. 

 
1.4. Additional Services – Subject to paragraph 10 of this Agreement, any services that 

are authorized by the Authority in a written amendment after this Agreement is 
executed.  

 
1.5. Subconsultant – All contractors, subcontractors, consultants, subconsultants, suppliers, 

experts and other entities retained by Consultant to perform or provide any portion of 
the Services required hereunder. 

 
2. Effective Date and Term.  This  Agreement will become effective on the last date all the 

parties have executed it, as demonstrated by the date under the signatures on the signature page 
and will remain effective for a period of three (3) years with two (2) one (1) year renewal 
options unless it is sooner terminated in accordance with the procedures set forth in this 
Agreement. 
 

3. Compensation for Services and Expenses.  For the timely and proper performance of the 
Services, the Authority shall pay Consultant the compensation set forth in Exhibit A.   The 
Authority shall reimburse Consultant for expenses (other than expenses which are included  in 
lump sum payment items) consistent with Section 112.061, Florida  Statutes and Exhibit C, 
provided Consultant submits appropriate documentation substantiating the expense and 
certifies that such claimed expense is true and correct as to every material matter.  Consultant 
shall refund the Authority if the reimbursement is more than the limits imposed in Section 
112.061, Florida Statutes.   

 
4. Consultant’s Representations and Warranties.  Consultant represents and warrants to the 

Authority as follows: 
 
4.1. Conducting Business in Florida.  Consultant is duly authorized to conduct business in 

the State of Florida. 
 

4.2. Authority.  Consultant has the full power and authority to execute and deliver this 
Agreement and to incur and perform the obligations provided for herein, all of which 
have been duly authorized by all proper and necessary actions of the governing entity 
of Consultant. 

 
4.3. Accuracy of Response.  All information provided by Consultant in response to the 

solicitation for the Project was true and accurate when Consultant submitted it to the 
Authority and has not materially changed as of the Effective Date of this Agreement. 

 
4.4. Understanding of Agreement.  Consultant has familiarized itself with and understands 



 

Page 3 of 21  

this Agreement, the Project, the Services, the Law, the site, and all local conditions that 
may affect Consultant’s performance of this Agreement, including Consultant’s 
compensation and the performance or furnishing of the Services. 

 
4.5. Discrepancies.  Consultant has reviewed all available information and data shown or 

indicated in this Agreement and has given the Authority written notice of all conflicts, 
errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies that it has discovered and the Authority’s written 
resolution thereof, if any, is acceptable to Consultant. 

 
4.6. Expertise. Consultant has special expertise in the type of professional services to be 

provided under this Agreement and Consultant acknowledges that such representations  
were a material inducement to the Authority to enter into this Agreement with 
Consultant.  

 
4.7. Valid Agreement.  This Agreement is a valid, binding, and enforceable obligation of 

Consultant, and does not violate any law, rule, regulation, contract, or agreement 
otherwise enforceable by or against Consultant except as it may be limited by 
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, or other similar laws affecting the rights of 
creditors generally. 

 
4.8. Scrutinized Companies.   

Consultant certifies that it is in compliance with section 287.135, Florida Statutes.  
Consultant certifies that it is not on this list of Scrutinized Companies that Boycott 
Israel and is not engaged in a boycott of Israel.  The Authority may terminate this 
Agreement if Consultant is found to have been placed on the Scrutinized Companies 
that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in a boycott of Israel.  Consultant acknowledges 
the remedies provided in subsection 287.135(5), Florida Statutes against anyone found 
to have submitted a false certification including civil penalties.     

 
4.9. Public Entity Crimes.  Consultant understands the requirements of sections 287.132 

and 287.133, Florida Statutes and is not on the convicted vendor list for public entity 
crimes maintained by the Florida Department of Management Services.  Consultant is 
in full compliance with sections 287.132 and 287.133, Florida Statutes, will remain in 
compliance with them throughout the term of this Agreement, and will notify the 
Authority if it becomes non-compliant.   

 
4.10. Discriminatory Vendor List.  Consultant understands the requirements of subsection 

287.134(2)(a), Florida Statutes and is not on the discriminatory vendor list maintained 
by the Florida Department of Management Services.   Consultant is in full compliance 
with section 287.134, Florida Statutes, will remain in compliance with it throughout 
the term of this Agreement, and will notify the Authority if it becomes non-compliant.     

 
4.11. E-Verify.  Consultant is in compliance with section 448.095, Florida Statutes.  As 

required by subsection 448.095(2)(a), Florida Statutes, Consultant has registered with 
and uses the E-Verify System to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired 
employees.   The E-Verify Affidavit Consultant submitted with its response to the 



 

Page 4 of 21  

solicitation remains true and correct. 
 

5. Consultant’s Responsibilities.   
 
5.1. Performance of Services.  Consultant shall perform the Services upon the terms and 

conditions set forth in this Agreement and upon any terms required under any 
government funding agreement.   

 
5.2. Changes. Consultant shall immediately notify the Authority if anything changes 

regarding Consultant’s representations and warranties contained in this Agreement.  
 
5.3. Resources.  Consultant shall secure and maintain an adequate and competent staff of 

professionals and all facilities and equipment required to perform the Services.   
 

5.4. Key Personnel.  Consultant must not remove any key personnel or Subconsultants 
assigned to the Project without the prior written approval of the Authority. All key 
personnel will be available for the Project on a full-time basis, except as otherwise 
expressly approved in writing by the Authority. 
 

5.5. Objectionable Employees.  If at any time during the term of this Agreement the 
Authority notifies Consultant in writing that any of Consultant’s employees or the 
employees of any Subconsultant are objectionable to the Authority, Consultant shall 
remove or have the Subconsultant remove the objectionable employee from the Project 
and not reemploy the objectionable employee on any portion of the Services. 
 

5.6. Consultant’s Representative. Consultant shall designate in writing a single 
representative with the authority to transmit instructions, receive information, interpret, 
and deliver Consultant’s policy and decisions related to the Services and bind Consultant 
with respect to any matter arising out of or relating to this Agreement. 

 
5.7. Information Related to the Services.  Consultant shall obtain and review all 

information and data which relates to the Services or which Consultant may reasonably 
anticipate may affect cost, scheduling, progress, performance or furnishing of the 
Services, including, but not limited to, information and data related to the Project, work 
of others under separate contracts, to the extent that such work  may interface with the 
Services hereunder. 

 
5.8. Status Reports and Inspections.  Consultant shall routinely and continuously advise 

the Authority of the status of the Project, and the Services of Consultant.  Consultant 
shall maintain documents obtained or generated under this Agreement and make them 
available upon request by the Authority.  In addition to the documents and reports 
contemplated in a work order, Consultant shall, at no cost to the Authority, deliver to 
the Authority copies of all other Project documents and or reports under Consultant’s 
possession or control that the Authority may request from time to time. 

 
5.9. Coordination with Others.  Consultant assists the Authority with the coordination of 



 

Page 5 of 21  

those various projects, work, and consulting services retained by the Authority 
applicable to the Project.  Consultant shall review all information necessary to 
coordinate those various projects, work, and consulting services, and make 
recommendations to eliminate any problems where the projects, work or services 
interface with the Project or Services. 

 
5.10. Laws.  Consultant shall secure all licenses or permits required by Law for the 

performance of the Services and shall comply with all Laws in effect at the time of the 
execution of this Agreement and the time of performance of the Services. 

 
5.11. No Discrimination.  Consultant shall comply with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 

1964, as amended, and the Florida Civil Rights Act of 1992.  Consultant shall not 
discriminate in any form or manner against its employees or applicants for employment 
on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, age, handicap, or marital status.  
Further, Consultant shall comply with all applicable rules, regulations or executive 
orders promulgated to give effect to the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended.   

 
5.12. Standard of Care.  Consultant shall perform the Services in a professional manner in 

accordance with applicable professional standards consistent with that level of care and 
skill ordinarily exercised by other competent professionals with expertise in the type of 
services required in this Agreement practicing under similar conditions at the same time 
and locality of the Project. 

 
5.13. Notice of Claims.  Consultant shall immediately notify the Authority if it becomes 

aware of any circumstances which may reasonably give rise to any claim against the 
Authority for Services performed under or related to the Services performed under this 
Agreement. 

 
5.14. No Conflicts of Interest.  Consultant is not under contract and will not contract for or 

accept employment for the performance of any work or services with an individual, 
business, corporation, or government unit that would create a conflict of interest in the 
performance of its obligations under this Agreement.   

 
6. Authority’s Responsibilities.  

 
6.1. Applications for Payment.  The Authority shall review and consider, in a reasonably 

prompt and thorough fashion, all applications for payments, reports, schedules, estimates, 
drawings, proposals or other documents presented to the Authority by Consultant and shall 
inform Consultant of the Authority’s decisions or otherwise take appropriate action within 
a reasonable time to not unreasonably delay the Services of Consultant. 
 

6.2. Authority’s Representative.  The Authority shall designate in writing a single 
representative with authority to transmit instructions, receive information and interpret 
and deliver the Authority’s policy and decisions pertinent to the Services.  

 
6.3. Existing information.  Upon Consultant’s specific request, the Authority shall cooperate 



 

Page 6 of 21  

in providing to Consultant, all existing and available studies, reports, surveys, and other 
information and data regarding the Project to the extent such items are in the Authority’s 
possession and the Authority has actual knowledge of their existence and location.  
Despite any other provision of this Agreement, the Authority does not represent or warrant 
the accuracy or completeness of any such items, unless it is expressly  noted otherwise in 
writing on such item. 
 

7. Termination of Agreement. 
 
7.1. Termination for Convenience.  The Authority has the right to terminate this 

Agreement, in whole or in part  without cause upon written notice to Consultant.  In such 
event, Consultant’s sole and exclusive recovery against the Authority will be limited to 
that portion of Consultant’s compensation earned to the date of termination, together 
with any costs reasonably incurred by Consultant that are directly attributable to the 
termination. The Consultant shall not be entitled to any further recovery against the 
Authority, including, but not limited to, anticipated fees or profits on Services not 
required to be performed.  The Authority in its sole discretion shall determine that portion 
of the compensation earned for any incomplete Services based upon the ratio of  such 
part of the Services completed relative to the entire Services. Termination without cause 
shall be effective upon delivery of written notice to Consultant. 

 
7.2. Termination for Cause.  Consultant will be considered in material default of this 

Agreement and the Authority may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, for any 
of the following reasons: (a) failure to begin Services within the time specified in a Work 
Order, or (b) failure to timely and properly perform the Services required hereunder or 
as directed by the Authority, or (c) the bankruptcy or insolvency or a general assignment 
for the benefit of creditors by Consultant or by any of Consultant’s principals, partners, 
officers or directors, or (d) failure to obey any Law, or (e) failure or refusal to allow 
public access to all public record documents or other materials made or received by 
Consultant in conjunction with this Agreement, unless exempt under Florida law, or (f) 
any other material breach of  this Agreement. In any such event, the Authority may 
terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, by giving Consultant written notice. In the 
event of any such termination for cause, the Authority is not obligated to make any 
further payments to Consultant hereunder until such time as the Authority has 
determined all costs, expenses, losses and damages which the Authority may have 
incurred as a result of such default by Consultant, whereupon the Authority will be 
entitled to set off all costs, expenses, losses and damages so incurred by the Authority 
against any amounts due Consultant hereunder. Termination for cause will be effective 
upon 14 days written notice to Consultant.  

 
7.3. Violation by Authority.  If the Authority violates any provision of this Agreement, and 

if the violation continues for 60 days after Consultant has delivered written notice of  the 
violation, then Consultant may, without prejudice to any other right or remedy, terminate 
or cancel this Agreement by giving the Authority 14 days written notice of termination. 
In the event of any such termination by Consultant, Consultant’s sole and exclusive 
remedies against the Authority will be limited to those set forth  in paragraph 7.1 above. 



 

Page 7 of 21  

 
7.4. Notice and Cure.  Despite the provisions of paragraphs 7.2 and 7.3, this Agreement will 

not terminate for cause if the party receiving the notice begins, within seven days of 
receipt, to correct its failure and proceeds diligently to cure such failure within thirty 30 
days of receipt of the notice; provided, however, that if and to the extent such cause for 
termination cannot reasonably be cured within such 30 day period, and if such party has 
diligently attempted to cure the same and thereafter continues to diligently cure the same, 
then the cure period may be further extended by the party that provided the notice. 

 
7.5. Remedies if no Default.  If, after termination of this Agreement as provided for in 

paragraph 7.2 above, it is determined  for any reason that Consultant was not in default, 
or that its default was excusable or that the Authority otherwise was not entitled to the 
remedy against Consultant provided for in paragraph 7.2, then such termination for cause 
will be considered to be a termination for convenience as described in paragraph 7.1 and 
Consultant’s sole and exclusive rights and remedies against the Authority shall be the 
same as and limited to those afforded Consultant under paragraph 7.1 above. 

 
7.6. Delivery of material after termination.  Within 10 days after any termination of this 

Agreement, Consultant shall deliver to the Authority all records, papers, drawings, 
models, and other material prepared by and for Consultant with respect to the Project 
and Services.  

 
8. Acceptance of Final Payment.  Consultant’s acceptance of final payment constitutes a full 

waiver of all claims by Consultant against the Authority arising out of and relating to this 
Agreement or otherwise related to the Project, except those previously made in writing and 
identified by Consultant as unsettled at the time it submits its invoice for final payment. 
Neither the acceptance of the Services nor any payment by the Authority shall be deemed to 
be an acceptance of defective or incomplete Services or waiver of any of the Authority’s rights 
against Consultant. 

 
9. Additional Services. 

 
9.1. Notice to Authority.  If Consultant is of the opinion that any services the Authority 

directs it to perform are beyond the Scope of the Services under this Agreement, 
Consultant shall, within seven business days of such direction, notify the Authority in 
writing of its opinion. The Authority shall, within 10 business days after receipt of such 
notification, determine whether such service is beyond the scope of this Agreement 
and constitutes Additional Services.  If the Authority determines that such service does 
constitute Additional Services, it will provide extra compensation to Consultant based 
upon the rates and terms provided in Exhibit A.   

 
 

9.2. Claims against the Authority.  In the event of claims by others against the Authority 
in connection with the Project or the Services, Consultant shall provide the Authority 
with such technical assistance that the Authority may request. Such assistance shall 
constitute Additional Services, unless such claims are caused by the failure of 



 

Page 8 of 21  

Consultant, its agents, employees or Subconsultants to comply with the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement or otherwise perform their duties under this Agreement. 

 
9.3. Audit. If the Authority requires Consultant to provide it with an audit of its Project  

costs, such audit will not be considered Additional Services. 
 

10. Assignment and Subconsultants.  Consultant shall not sublet, assign, or transfer this 
Agreement or any Services without the prior written consent of the Authority, which consent 
may be withheld in the Authority’s sole discretion. Consultant shall be solely responsible for 
the employment, direction, supervision, compensation, and control of any and all 
Subconsultants. Consultant shall cause all Subconsultants to abide by the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement and all Laws. All agreements between Consultant and 
Subconsultants shall be in writing, with a copy of such agreements to be provided to the 
Authority upon its request for same. 

 
11. Indemnification.   Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless the Authority, and its 

officers and employees, from liabilities, damages, losses, and costs, including, but not limited 
to, reasonable attorneys’ fees, to the extent caused by the negligence, recklessness, or 
intentionally wrongful conduct of the Consultant and other persons employed or utilized by 
the Consultant in the performance of the contract. 

 
12. Consultant’s Insurance Requirements. 

 
12.1. Consultant must maintain during the entire term of this Agreement, insurance in the 

following kinds and amounts with a company or companies authorized to do business 
in the State of Florida and shall not commence work under this Agreement until the 
Authority has received an acceptable certificate of insurance showing evidence of such 
coverage. The amounts and types of insurance shall be appropriate for the services 
being performed by the Consultant, its employees or agents and must conform to the 
following minimum requirements. Consultant has provided the Certificate of Insurance 
contained in Exhibit D that meets the requirements of this paragraph 12: 

 
12.1.1. Workers Compensation. Coverage must apply for all employees and subcontractors 

with statutory limits in compliance with the applicable state and federal laws. In 
addition, the policy must include the following Employer’s Liability with a 
minimum limit per accident in accordance with statutory requirements. 
a. Notice of Cancellation and/or Restriction. The policy must be endorsed to 

provide Authority with thirty (30) days written notice of cancellation and/or 
restriction.  

b. Agent(s) must  be in compliance with all applicable state and federal workers’ 
compensation laws. 

 
12.1.2. Commercial or Comprehensive General Liability. Coverage must include: 

a. $1,000,000.00 combined limit per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury 
and property damage. 

b. Contractual coverage applicable to this specific contract, including any hold 



 

Page 9 of 21  

harmless and/or indemnification agreement, broad form property damage, 
explosion, collapse, and underground hazard coverage and independent 
contractor’s coverage. 

c. Additional Insured. Authority is to be specifically included as an additional 
insured. 

d. Notice of Cancellation and/or Restriction. The policy must be endorsed to 
provide Authority with thirty (30) days written notice of cancellation and/or 
restriction. 

 
12.1.3. Comprehensive Automobile Liability. Coverage must be afforded on a form no 

more restricted than the latest edition of the Comprehensive Automobile Liability 
Policy filed by the Insurance Services Office and must include: 
a. $1,000,000.00 combined single limit per accident for bodily injury and property 

damage. 
b. Owned Vehicle. 
c. Hired and Non-Owned Vehicles. 
d. Employee Non-Ownership. 
e. Additional Insured. Authority is to be specifically included as additional 

insured. 
f. Notice of Cancellation and/or Restriction. The policy must be endorsed to 

provide Authority with thirty (30) days written notice of cancellation and/or 
restriction. 

 
12.1.4. Watercraft/Aircraft Liability.  If Consultant’s provision of services involves 

utilization of watercraft or aircraft, watercraft and/or aircraft liability coverage 
must be provided to include bodily injury and property damage arising out of 
ownership, maintenance or use of any watercraft or aircraft, including owned, non-
owned and hired. 

 
12.1.5. Professional Liability. Coverage must include: 

a. Minimum limit of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence or claim of malpractice, 
negligence, error and omissions. 

b. Minimum limit of $1,000,000.00 in the aggregate for claims of malpractice, 
negligence, error and omissions. 

c. If a claims made form of coverage is provided, the retroactive date of coverage 
shall be no later than the inception date of claims made coverage, unless the 
prior policy was extended indefinitely to cover prior acts. 

d. Notice of Cancellation and/or Restriction. The policy must be endorsed to 
provide Authority with thirty (30) days written notice of cancellation and/or 
restriction. 

e. Professional liability insurance shall continue in force until the end of the fifth 
calendar year following the calendar year in which the Agreement is terminated. 
The current professional liability insurance policy, if not renewed, shall provide 
for an extended reporting period on the existing policy through said fifth 
calendar year. 

 



 

Page 10 of 21  

12.2. The required Certificates of Insurance not only shall name types of policies provided 
but also shall refer specifically to the Agreement. 

12.3. Insurance coverage shall be placed with insurers or self-insurance funds, satisfactory to 
the Authority, licensed to do business in the State of Florida and with a resident agent 
designated for the service of process. Consultant shall provide the Authority with 
financial information concerning any self-insurance fund insuring Consultant. At the 
Authority’s option, self-insurance fund financial information may be waived. 

12.4. All the policies of insurance so required of Consultant, except workers compensation 
and professional liability, shall be endorsed to include as additional insureds: the 
Authority, its directors, officers, employees and agents.  Such insurance policies shall 
include or be endorsed to include a cross liability clause so the additional insureds will 
be treated as if a separate policy were in existence and issued to them. If the additional 
insureds have other insurance, which might be applicable to any loss, the insurance 
required of Consultant shall be considered primary, and all other insurance shall be 
considered excess. The cross liability clause does not increase the limits of liability or 
aggregate limits of the policy. 

12.5. Deductible and self-insured retention amounts shall be subject to approval by the 
Authority, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. Consultant is 
responsible for the amount of any deductibles or self-insured retentions. 

12.6. Approval of the insurance by the Authority shall not relieve or decrease the liability of 
Consultant hereunder. Consultant acknowledges and agrees the Authority does not in 
any way represent the insurance (or the limits of insurance) specified in this Section 
14 is sufficient or adequate to protect Consultant’s interests or liabilities, but are 
merely minimums. 

12.7. All of the policies of insurance required to be purchased and maintained (or the 
certificates or other evidence thereof) shall contain a provision or endorsement that the 
coverage afforded will not be cancelled, materially changed, or renewal refused, until 
at least thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the Authority and 
Consultant by certified mail. Consultant shall give notice to the Authority within 
twenty-four (24) hours of any oral or written notice of adverse change, non-renewal or 
cancellation. If the initial insurance expires prior to completion of the work, renewal 
Certificates of Insurance shall be furnished thirty (30) days prior to the date of their 
expiration. 

12.8. All insurance required hereunder shall remain in full force and effect until final 
payment and at all times thereafter when Consultant may be observing the correction, 
removal or replacement of defective work. 

12.9. Professional liability insurance shall continue in force until the end of the fifth 
calendar year following the calendar year in which the Agreement is terminated. The 
current professional liability insurance policy, if not renewed, shall provide for an 
extended reporting period on the existing policy through said fifth calendar year. 



 

Page 11 of 21  

12.10. Consultant shall, upon request by the Authority, deliver to the Authority a copy of each 
insurance policy purchased by Consultant. 

12.11. All policies, except for workers’ compensation and professional liability, shall contain 
provisions to the effect that in the event of payment of any loss or damage the insurer 
will have no rights of subrogation against the Authority, its consultants, directors, 
officers, employees, representatives or agents. Nothing contained in these insurance 
requirements is to be construed as limiting the liability of Consultant or Consultant’s 
insurance carriers. 

12.12. The commercial (occurrence form) or comprehensive general liability (occurrence 
form) insurance shall include contractual liability insurance applicable to all of the 
Consultant’s obligations under the Agreement, including any indemnity or hold 
harmless provision.  

12.13. Consultant shall ensure that all Subconsultants procure and maintain, until the 
completion of that party's Services, insurance of the types and in the coverage amounts 
required to be carried by Consultant in this Agreement unless the Authority agrees in 
writing, in advance of Consultant’s employment of any such Subconsultant, to other 
types of coverage and/or lower coverage amounts. Provided however, that professional 
liability insurance shall not be required under this Agreement for Subconsultants, 
unless such party is a licensed professional. The preceding sentence does not preclude 
Consultant from requiring such insurance. Consultant is responsible for ensuring that 
all Subconsultants comply with all the insurance requirements contained herein relative 
to each such party. 

 
13. Standard of Performance.   Consultant shall perform and complete the Services in a 

timely manner and in accordance with the standard of care, skill, and diligence customarily 
provided by professionals with expertise and experience in the type of Services to be 
provided hereunder, and in accordance with sound professional principles and practices. 
Consultant acknowledges that it has represented to the Authority that Consultant has 
expertise and experience in the type of services to be rendered hereunder and that such 
representation was a material inducement to the Authority to enter into this Agreement 
with Consultant. 
 

14. Project Documents and Data. 
 

14.1. One (1) copy of all technical data and working papers regarding the Services, 
whether existing in the office of the Authority or in the office of Consultant, shall 
be made available to the other party to this Agreement without expense to such 
other party. Additional copies shall be made available at the expense of the 
requesting party. 
 

14.2. All Project documents, tracings, plans, specifications, maps, evaluations, reports, 
technical data, and computer application code, other than working papers prepared 
or obtained under this Agreement, are the property of the Authority without 
restriction or limitation of use, and shall be made available, upon request, to the 



 

Page 12 of 21  

Authority at any reasonable time. Consultant, at its own expense, may retain copies 
thereof for its files and internal use. Any use by the Authority of such materials 
obtained under this Agreement for any other Project or use of incomplete materials 
obtained from Consultant by the Authority shall be made at the risk of the 
Authority. However, this does not constitute a disclaimer of the professional 
liability of Consultant with respect to the original Services as used for the Project. 

 
14.3. All final plans and documents that are required by Florida Law to be endorsed and 

are prepared by Consultant in connection with the Services shall bear the 
endorsement of a person in the full employment of Consultant or duly retained by 
Consultant and duly licensed in the appropriate professional category. 

 
14.4. Consultant shall make any patentable product or result of the Services and all 

information, design, specifications, know-how, data, and findings available to the 
Authority without cost to the Authority. No material prepared in connection with 
this Project will be subject to copyright by Consultant, all such copyrights being 
the property of the Authority. the Authority shall have the right to publish, 
distribute, disclose, and otherwise use any material prepared by or for Consultant 
with respect to the Project. Any use of material or patents obtained by the Authority 
under this Agreement for any purpose not associated with this Project shall be at 
the risk of the Authority. In the Authority’s discretion, whenever any renderings, 
photographs of renderings, photographs of models or photographs of the Project 
are released by the Authority for publicity, proper credit may be given to 
Consultant, provided the giving of such credit is without cost to the Authority. 

 
14.5. Consultant must not make any statements, press releases or public releases 

concerning this Agreement or its subject matter or otherwise disclose or permit to 
be disclosed any of the data or any other information obtained or furnished in 
compliance with this Agreement, except at meetings where representatives of the 
Authority are present, without the Authority’s prior written consent. Consultant 
shall not publish, copyright, or patent any of the data furnished or developed with 
respect to the Project without first obtaining the Authority’s written consent, as all 
such rights are the property of the Authority. 

 
15. Public Records.  

 
15.1. Duty to Maintain and Provide Records. Consultant shall keep and maintain all 

public records required to perform services under this Contract as required by 
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes unless they are exempt under Florida law.  If 
Consultant believes any record it provides to the Authority is exempt from public 
records disclosure, it must specifically identify it and cite the applicable exempting 
law.  Consultant is solely responsible for defending any claimed exemption from 
disclosure under Chapter 119, Florida Statutes.  Consultant shall ensure that public 
records that are exempt from public records disclosure are not disclosed except as 
authorized by law during the term of this Agreement and following its completion 
if the Consultant does not transfer the records to the Authority.   



 

Page 13 of 21  

 
15.2. IF CONULTANT HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 

APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO 
THE CONSULTANT’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC 
RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT 
THE AUTHORITY’S CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS BY 
TELEPHONE AT (941) 316-1776, OR BY EMAIL AT 
PEACERIVER@REGIONALWATER.ORG, OR BY MAIL AT 
9415 TOWN CENTER PARKWAY, LAKEWOOD RANCH, 
FLORIDA 34202. 

 
15.3. Post Contract Responsibilities.  Upon completion of this contract, Consultant 

shall keep and maintain, at no cost, to the Authority, all public records produced 
under this Agreement in the possession of the Consultant or shall transfer them to 
the Authority.  If the Consultant transfers all public records to the Authority, 
Consultant shall destroy any duplicate public records.  If Consultant keeps and 
maintains public records after completion of the contract, the Consultant shall meet 
all legal requirements for retaining public records including the rules and retention 
schedules adopted by the Division of Library and Information Services of the 
Department of State under section 119.021(2)(a), Florida Statutes.  All records 
stored electronically must be provided to the Authority upon request from the 
Authority in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems 
of the Authority. 

 
16. Audit Rights.   Consultant shall keep all books, records, files, plans, drawings, and other 

documentation, including all electronically stored items, which concern or relate to the 
Services hereunder (collectively referred to herein as “Records”) for a minimum of three 
(3) years from the date of expiration or termination of this Agreement or as otherwise 
required by Law, which ever date is later.  The Authority, or any duly authorized agents or 
representatives of the Authority, shall have the right to audit, inspect and copy all or such 
Records as often as they deem necessary during any such period of time. This right to 
audit, inspect and copy the Records shall include all Records of Subconsultants. 
 

17. Miscellaneous Provisions. 
 

17.1. Entire Agreement.  This written document shall constitute the entire agreement 
between the parties hereto and the Agreement shall not be amended or modified 
except in writing duly executed by the party against whom such an amendment or 
modification is sought to be enforced. This Agreement shall govern the relationship 
between the Authority and Consultant on the Project. 
 

17.2. Successors.  the Authority and Consultant each hereby binds itself, its successors, 
assigns, and legal representatives to the other.  
 

17.3. No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  The rights and obligations in this Agreement shall 



 

Page 14 of 21  

inure solely to the parties hereto (their successors, assigns and legal 
representatives) and no other party shall have any rights or obligations under or by 
virtue of this Agreement. 

 
17.4. Applicable Law and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed 

under the laws of the State of Florida.  Venue for any action under state law arising 
under this Agreement shall be in the Twelfth Judicial Circuit of Florida.  Claims 
justiciable in federal court shall be in the Middle District of Florida.  

 
17.5. Notices.  All notices or other communications permitted or required under this 

Agreement must be in writing and must be sent to the party at that party’s address 
set forth below or at whatever other address the party specifies in writing.  Notices 
must be personally delivered, sent by certified or registered mail, or sent by 
overnight courier, postage prepaid.  

 
 

If to the Authority:   Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority 
9415 Town Center Parkway 
Lakewood Ranch, Florida 34202 
Attention: Mike Coates, Executive Director 
 

If to the Consultant: Entech Computer Services, LLC 
615 67th Street Circle East, Unit 101 
Bradenton, Florida 34208 
Attention: David Spire, Vice President 

 
17.6. No Construction Against Drafting Party.  Each party acknowledges that it has 

carefully reviewed and understands this Agreement and has had an opportunity to 
review it with counsel of its choosing.  This Agreement shall not be construed more 
strongly against any party, regardless of who drafted or prepared it.     

 
17.7. Communications. The Consultant’s communications with the Authority shall be 

limited to the Authority’s Executive Director and designated staff. 
Communications with the Authority’s Board Members are prohibited, except with 
the prior permission of the Authority’s Executive Director or at a duly noticed 
public board meeting.  Any such prohibitive communications shall be deemed to 
be a material breach of this Agreement by Consultant. This provision does not 
prohibit or limit contacts by or on behalf of the Authority Board Members with 
Consultant. 

 
17.8. Interpretation.  All words used herein in the singular shall extend to and include 

the plural, and the use of any gender shall extend to and include all genders. Unless 
the context requires otherwise:  The term “include” contemplates “including but not 
limited to.”  The terms “hereof,” “herein,” “hereunder” and similar terms in this 
Agreement refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular provision 
of this Agreement. 



 

Page 15 of 21  

 
17.9. Headings. The captions and headings herein are for convenience of reference only 

and in no way define  or limit the scope or content of this Agreement or in any way 
affect its provisions.  Unless otherwise indicated, references to paragraphs include 
all subparts. 

 
17.10. Time is of the Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each of its 

provisions. 
 

17.11. No Waiver.  Unless expressly stated in this agreement, non-enforcement of any 
provision of this Agreement by either party does not constitute a waiver of that 
provision, nor will it affect the enforceability of that provision for the remainder of 
the term of this Agreement. 

 
17.12. Contest of Authority Decisions. The Authority shall decide all questions, 

difficulties, and disputes of any nature whatsoever that may arise under or by 
reason of this Agreement, the prosecution and fulfillment of the Services called for 
hereunder, or the character, quality, amount, or value thereof. The decision of the 
Authority upon all such claims, questions or disputes shall be final and binding if 
not contested by Consultant in a written notice delivered to the Authority within 
seven days after Consultant’s receipt of written notice from the Authority 
concerning such decision.  Consultant shall not delay or postpone providing 
Services during the pendency of any dispute.   

 
17.13. Survival.  All express representations, indemnifications, or limitations made or 

given in this Agreement shall survive its completion or termination for any reason. 
 

17.14. Severability.  If any term of this Agreement is for any reason invalid or 
unenforceable, the rest of the Agreement remains fully valid and enforceable. 

 
17.15. Independent Contractor.  Consultant is retained by the Authority only for the 

purposes and to the extent set forth in this Agreement, and its relationship with the 
Authority shall, during the term of this Agreement, be that of an independent 
contractor. Consultant shall have the discretion, subject to the requirement that it 
perform the services required hereunder competently and professionally in 
accordance with the applicable professional standards and otherwise comply with 
the terms of this Agreement, to select the means and methods of performing such 
services. In this regard, Consultant shall be fully responsible for the employment, 
direction, supervision, compensation, and control of all persons employed or 
retained by Consultant. Neither Consultant nor Consultant’s contractors, 
subcontractors, consultants, subconsultants, suppliers, experts or other persons or 
organizations retained or utilized by Consultant for the services required hereunder 
(“Subconsultants”) shall be considered by reason of the provisions of this 
Agreement or otherwise as being an employee or agent of the Authority. Consultant 
shall comply with all workers’ compensation, employers’ liability and other 
Federal, State and county and municipal laws, ordinances and regulations required 



 

Page 16 of 21  

of an employer performing services as herein contemplated. Provided, however, in 
no event shall the Authority be obligated to pay Consultant any overtime or other 
premium pay compensation unless such overtime or premium compensation was 
expressly approved in writing and in advance by the Authority. Furthermore, 
Consultant is responsible for paying all income and employment taxes, and the 
Authority shall not be responsible for collecting or paying withholding, FUTA, 
FICA or any other state or federal taxes. 
 

17.16. Waiver of Jury Trial.  To the extent permitted by applicable law, Consultant and 
the Authority irrevocably waive any right to trial by jury in any legal proceeding 
arising out of or relating to this Agreement or any of the transactions contemplated 
by it. Neither the Authority nor Consultant or any successor thereof will seek a trial 
by jury in any action or proceeding (whether at law or in equity, whether direct or 
collateral, whether in contract or in tort) arising out of or related to this Agreement 
or the relationship created by it. Neither the Authority nor Consultant shall seek to 
consolidate any action or proceeding in which trial by jury has been waived with 
any other action or proceeding in which a jury trial cannot be or has not been 
waived.  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

[The remainder of this page is blank] 
  



 

Page 17 of 21  

The parties have caused their duly qualified representatives to execute this Agreement on the 
dates set forth below. 

 
Witness: 
 
____________________________________ 
Signature  
 
____________________________________ 
Print name 
 
____________________________________ 
Print title 
 
____________________________________ 
Date 
 

Consultant: 
 
____________________________________ 
Firm Name 
 
____________________________________ 
Signature  
 
____________________________________ 
Print name 
 
____________________________________ 
Print title 
 
____________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
 

Attest: 
 
__________________________________ 
Signature  
 
__________________________________ 
Print name 
 
__________________________________ 
Print title 
 
___________________________________ 
Date 
 
Approved as to legal sufficiency: 
 
__________________________________ 
Douglas P. Manson, General Counsel 
 

Peace River Manasota Regional Water 
Supply Authority: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Signature  
 
____________________________________ 
Print name 
 
____________________________________ 
Print title 
 
____________________________________ 
Date 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 18 of 21  

Exhibit A 
Scope of Services and Compensation 

 
Consultant will provide Information Technology Support and Management services to supplement 
the Authority’s in house capabilities.  Consultant will provide professional services needed to 
support the Authority’s IT servers, workstations, network hardware, backup systems and major 
software applications, as directed by Authority staff. Consultant will provide services in 
coordination with the Authority’s existing services including monitoring and virus protection.   
 
The attached Information Technology Service – 2024 Work Order will be invoiced on a monthly 
basis. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  



 

Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority 
Information Technology Service – 2024 Work Order 

 

Work Order Summary 

Infrastructure Co-Managed Services 
Navigating the intricacies of today's dynamic business landscape, our comprehensive Work Order outlines 

three key work items tailored to fortify and optimize your IT infrastructure. These Infrastructure Co-

Managed Services, Managed Cybersecurity Services, and Managed Data Protection Services work items are 

meticulously designed to provide collaborative support, proactive cybersecurity measures, and robust data 

protection.  

 

We understand the critical role these components play in your organization's success, and our commitment 

is to deliver resilient solutions that align seamlessly with your evolving needs. Additionally, our approach to 

ancillary unbundled services reflects our dedication to transparency and flexibility, allowing you to 

customize the proposal to your specific requirements while providing cost reductions for potential 

adjustments in the future. 

 

Summary of Work Items: 

 

Infrastructure Co-Managed Services: $2,079.00 

Managed Cybersecurity Services: $1,148.00 

Managed Data Protection Services: $1,260.00 

Total Monthly Fee for Services: $4,487.00* 

 

This comprehensive framework ensures not only the robustness of our services but also the flexibility for 

you to tailor the proposal according to your unique requirements. We look forward to the opportunity to 

continue to enhance your organization's efficiency, security, and resilience. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

*Current Microsoft Office 365 license fees are not included in this total, and based on current usage, are billed at $1,567.60 / 

mo. Please see page 5 for more information on this service. 

 

The fee scheduled for the three (3) Work Items outlined in this Work Order is set forth with an understanding that the scope of 

covered devices over time does adjust up and down as a normal course of business. These changes are contemplated in this 

Work Order and unless the counts increase or decrease by more than 25% of the stated scope, no billing adjustments shall be 

reflected until the subsequent year’s Work Order.   



 

Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority 
Information Technology Service – 2024 Work Order 

 

Work Item 

Infrastructure Co-Managed Services 
In today's dynamic business landscape, managing and optimizing IT infrastructure is crucial for sustained 

growth and efficiency.  

 

Our Co-Managed Services provide a collaborative approach, seamlessly integrating with your existing IT 

team to enhance the overall performance, security, and reliability of your infrastructure. 

 

Below is the Scope of Services and the Scope of End-Point Device enumerations covered by this work item: 

 

Scope of Services:

• 24 x 7 x 365 Server Monitoring & Alerting 

• Windows Security Patching/Updates 

• Firewall Best Practice Configurations & Audits 

• Routine Network Health Assessments  

• Daily Server Virus Management & Scanning 

• Daily Server Spyware Management & 

Scanning 

• Server Asset Management 

• Unlimited Escalated Remote Server & 

Network Support 

• Unlimited Escalated Onsite Server & Network 

Support 

 

Scope of Devices: 

• Firewalls: 2 

• Switches: 15 

• Physical Servers: 6 

• Server OS’s: 10 

 

Monthly Fee For Services: $2,079.00 

  



 

Peace River Regional Water Supply Authority 
Information Technology Service – 2024 Work Order 

 

Work Item 

Managed Cybersecurity Services 
In an era where digital threats continue to evolve, safeguarding the Authorities sensitive information is 

paramount.  

 

Our Managed Cybersecurity Services are designed to provide proactive, vigilant, and adaptive security 

measures, ensuring the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of your digital assets. By entrusting us with 

your cybersecurity needs, you are not just acquiring a service; you are establishing a robust defense 

strategy crafted to mitigate risks, detect vulnerabilities, and respond effectively to the ever-changing 

cybersecurity landscape.  

 

This work order outlines the specific components and deliverables that constitute our commitment to 

fortifying your digital resilience, as well as the fee schedule. 

 

Scope of Services:

• Endpoint Detection & Response (EDR)* 

• Internal Vulnerability Scanning 

• External Vulnerability Scanning 

• DNS Filtering 

• Ransomware Monitoring and Protection 

• User Awareness Cybersecurity Training  

• User Awareness Cybersecurity Testing 

• User Awareness Cybersecurity Phishing 

Simulations 

• DarkWeb Monitoring 

• Secure Access Service Edge (SASE) solution 

• Managed Detection & Response (MDR) – 

Internal Network 

• Managed Detection & Response (MDR) – 

Microsoft 365 

• Quarterly Vulnerability Scan Report Delivery 

• Review of Vulnerability Scan Results (upon 

request) 

 

Scope of Devices: 

• Firewalls: 2 

• Switches: 15 

• Physical Servers: 6 

• Server OS’s: 10 

• Computers/Laptops: 40 

 

Monthly Fee For Services: $1,148  



 

Peace River Regional Water Supply Authority 
Information Technology Service – 2024 Work Order 

 

Work Item 

Managed Data Protection Services 
In an era defined by data-driven operations, the integrity and availability of your critical information are non-

negotiable. Our Managed Data Protection and Disaster Recovery Services are meticulously crafted to 

provide a robust framework for safeguarding your data assets and ensuring business continuity in the face 

of unforeseen disruptions.  

 

Through a strategic combination of cutting-edge technology and proven recovery methodologies, our 

services aim to fortify your organization against data loss and downtime.  

 

This work order delineates the specific components that focus on preserving the resilience of your data 

infrastructure. 

 

Scope of Services:

• Server Backup Software 

• Server Data Backup (Local & Cloud) 

Management 

• Daily Server Backup Monitoring 

• Offsite Data Backup (up to 5 TB per 

server) 

• Online Backup versions maintained 

• Unlimited File Restores 

• Backup Success Reporting for Auditors

 

Scope of Devices: 

• Server OS’s: 6 

 

 

Monthly Fee For Services: $1,260.00  



 

Peace River Regional Water Supply Authority 
Information Technology Service – 2024 Work Order 

 

Work Item 

Ancillary Unbundled Services  
In the spirit of transparency and flexibility, our Work Orders are designed to accommodate your specific 

needs and budget considerations.  

 

While the top sections encompass a comprehensive overview of our offerings, we recognize that certain 

line items may be considered ancillary or subject to adjustments in the future. To provide you with 

maximum control over the scope and associated costs, we have identified specific elements that can be 

easily modified or excluded, allowing for a more tailored and adaptable solution. This approach ensures 

that you have the flexibility to fine-tune the proposal to align seamlessly with your evolving requirements, 

and in the event that certain items are removed, corresponding reductions in the overall bill will be applied 

accordingly.  

 

Our commitment is to deliver not only exceptional services but also a proposal framework that empowers 

you to make dynamic decisions that best suit your unique needs. 

 

• SentinelOne Control Licensing @ $1.95 per end point. 

o This item is bundled within the Infrastructure Co-Managed Services work item, and if purchased 

direct in the future, the associated license fees will be removed from subsequent monthly invoices. 

• Axcient Data Protection Licensing & Cloud Storage @ $55.00 per server. 

o This item is bundled within the Managed Data Protection Services work item, and if purchased direct 

in the future, the associated license fees will be removed from subsequent monthly invoices. 

• Microsoft Email Services as outlined below: 

 
 Quantity Rate per Total 

Microsoft Enterprise Mobility+Security E3 (Government) 57 $8.80 $501.60 

Microsoft Office 365 GCC G1 2 $8.00 $16.00 

Microsoft Office 365 GCC G3 52 $20.00 $1,040.00 

Microsoft Office 365 GCC G5 4 $2.50 $10.00 

 
o This item is not bundled in the above listed work items and will be billed in addition to the above 

until such time as it’s purchase directly. Once purchased direct, the associated license fees will be 

removed from subsequent monthly invoices. 



 

Page 19 of 21  

Exhibit B 
Consultant’s 2023 SOQ for Professional Services for Information Technology Support and 

Management Services 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Statement of Qualifications 
Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority 



Thursday, November 30, 2023 

Mike Coates, Executive Director 

Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority 
9415 Town Center Parkway 
Suite 100 
Lakewood Ranch, FL 34202 

Mr. Coates, 

Every colleague at Entech takes great pride in their opportunity to serve the many small businesses 
in our communities daily. We appreciate the opportunity to earn your trust and confidence. It is 
our experience that as you grow and succeed we will also grow and succeed. Through technology 
strategy, guidance, integration, and support, we will do our part to position your organization for 
success with focus and attention. 

We are passionate innovators in how we do business. Through meticulous planning, industry 
partnerships, and communication management we make enterprise solutions accessible to the 
small businesses in our community. Our proven systems fill a much-needed void in the technology 
service industry today. 

Thank you for your time and consideration in choosing a technology partner and we look forward 
to growing with you. 

Sincerely, 

Jake Spanberger David Spire 
CEO EVP & Chief Revenue Officer 

Tampa  |  Bradenton  |  Sarasota  |  Fort Myers  |  Naples 



Section 1 

☒ Legal name

☒ address

☒ phone number

☒ email of Consultant

Section 2 

☒ Principal office locations of submitting Consultant Legal form of company, i.e. partnership,
corporation, joint venture (if joint venture, identify the members);

Section 3 

☒ Copy of Florida Professional Licenses as applicable (business and/or individual);

Section 4 

☒ Description of Consultant’s philosophy and approach to monitoring and administration of an
organization’s information technology systems, including hardware, software and network
assets;

Section 5 

☒ Identification of Consultant’s “Project Manager” who is proposed to serve as point of contact and
his/her qualifications and professional experience;

Section 6 

☒ Identification, outline of qualifications including list of industry certifications, particularly
regarding Microsoft’s Azure/0365/Power platforms and Sonicwall hardware (SNSA/SNSP),
and professional experience of other key personnel that are available to be assigned, as may
be needed for IT system support and management services and the location of the office to
which they are normally assigned;

Section 7 

☒ Description and examples of clients supported by Consultant relating to IT system support
Information Technology Support and Management Services and management (please provide contact
references for each client if not listed as a standard reference as provided for in Item 12);



Section 8 

☒ Disclosure of whether Consultant currently represents Charlotte, DeSoto, Manatee or Sarasota
Counties, and/or the City of North Port (Customers), in any capacity, and description of such
representation, if applicable;

Section 9 

☒ Disclosure of any current litigation the Consultant is a party to against any of the Customers, either
directly or retained for testimony and expertise on behalf of any other entity in litigation against the
Authority or any of its Customers, and a description of such litigation, if applicable;

Section 10 

☒ Disclosure of any litigation against Consultant for breach of contract for work performed for a Florida
public entity within the last five (5) years;

Section 11 

☒ List of at least three (3) clients served within the last five (5) years that the Authority can contact as
references with respect to Consultant’s work performance for a project with a similar scope; and

Section 12 
Required forms (forms included below): 

☒ Project Manager and Project Team/Key Personnel Form;

☒ Contract Services Rate Sheet

☒ Signed Sworn Statement under Section 287.133(3)(a), Florida Statutes, on Public Entity
Professional Services for IT Systems Support and Management Request for SOQ Crimes;

☒ E-Verify Affidavit and Required Evidence

☒ References Form



C o n f i d e n t i a l  I n f o r m a t i o n  -  P a g e  | 1 

Company Information 
Sections 1. 2. 3. 



 

C o n f i d e n t i a l  I n f o r m a t i o n  -  P a g e  | 2 

E
n

te
c

h
 –

 C
o

m
p

a
n

y
 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

E
n

te
c

h
 –

 C
o

m
p

a
n

y
 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 Company Profile  

At Entech, we believe in a proactive and strategic approach to managing technology. We pair high-

level engineering with sharp business acumen to provide best-in-class, enterprise-level support 

and project solutions to our clients.  

 

We believe in the power of community. We’ve forged integral partnerships with more than 30 

local non-profit organizations, donating our time, money and resources to strengthen their work.  

 

We believe in longevity and continuity. 2023 marks our 25th year serving Southwest Florida. We 

have more than 95 dedicated team members, many of whom have been with us for a decade or 

longer. We service 275-plus clients at 450-plus locations with more than 12,500 endpoints under 

our management. We conduct our operations from our offices in Bradenton, Fort Myers and 

Bonita Springs. 

 

We focus on three distinct areas of expertise to help align and drive your organization forward: 

cybersecurity, cloud, and infrastructure services. We are confident Entech is the most 

operationally mature managed service provider (MSP) in the area. To ensure this, we’ve spent 

hundreds of thousands of dollars in tools, training, and talent acquisition, allowing us to deliver 

best-in-class IT managed services as compared with MSPs locally and throughout the U.S.  

 

At our core, Entech is a family-centric business. We believe a strong culture and employee 

satisfaction are at the heart of providing outstanding service to our clients. This ethos, coupled 

with a talented team of engineers, enables us to provide IT-managed services that have garnered 

local and global acclaim. 
 

▪ Company Name: Entech Computer Services, LLC, DBA: Entech 
▪ Office Addresses:  

• 615 67th Street Circle East, Suite 101, Bradenton, FL 34208 

• 5276 Summerlin Commons Way, Suite 701, Fort Myers, FL 33907 

• 9240 Bonita Beach Road, Suite 3317, Bonita Springs, FL 34135 
▪ Telephone: (941) 721-6423 
▪ Website: entechUS.com 
▪ Email: david@entechUS.com 
▪ Years in Business: 25 
▪ Business Type: Limited Liability Company 
▪ State Incorporated: Florida 
▪ Date Incorporated: April 4, 2000 
▪ Document Number: L21000320978 

 
 
 
 
 



 

C o n f i d e n t i a l  I n f o r m a t i o n  -  P a g e  | 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Philosophy & Approach to IT Systems 
Sections 4. 



 

C o n f i d e n t i a l  I n f o r m a t i o n  -  P a g e  | 4 

P
h

ilo
so

p
h

y
 &

 A
p

p
ro

a
c

h
 t

o
 I
T 

S
y
st

e
m

s 
Philosophy: 
Our philosophy and approach to monitoring and administering an organization’s information 
technology systems revolve around the core tenets of proactive management, robust security, 
and seamless functionality. We understand that efficient IT systems are the backbone of modern 
businesses, and our approach is centered on ensuring optimal performance, reliability, and 
security of hardware, software, and network assets. 
 
We believe that a proactive and preventive approach is paramount to mitigating risks and 
ensuring uninterrupted operations. We view IT systems as dynamic ecosystems that require 
constant vigilance and proactive management. We prioritize collaboration, flexibility, and 
innovation to deliver solutions aligned with each client’s unique needs and business goals. 
 
Approach: 

1. Proactive Monitoring and Maintenance: We implement state-of-the-art monitoring tools 
and methodologies to continuously track and analyze the health, performance, and 
security of IT systems. This proactive approach enables us to identify and resolve 
potential issues before they impact operations, ensuring minimal downtime and optimal 
system performance. 

 
2. Comprehensive Asset Management: Our approach includes meticulous inventory 

management and tracking of hardware, software licenses, and network assets. We 
maintain detailed records to ensure proper configuration, licensing compliance, and 
lifecycle management of all IT assets. 

 
3. Security-Centric Strategies: Security is at the forefront of our approach. We implement 

multi-layered security measures, including regular vulnerability assessments, threat 
intelligence, encryption protocols, and robust access controls. Our goal is to fortify IT 
systems against evolving cyber threats and ensure data integrity and confidentiality. 

 
4. Scalability and Future-Readiness: Recognizing the ever-evolving nature of technology, our 

approach emphasizes scalability and adaptability. We design IT systems that can 
seamlessly grow with the organization's needs, integrating emerging technologies and 
frameworks to future-proof the infrastructure. 

 
5. Support and Incident Response: Our dedicated support team operates to provide timely 

assistance and incident response. We offer rapid resolution of issues, proactive 
troubleshooting, and continuous support to ensure uninterrupted business operations. 

 
6. Compliance and Best Practices: We adhere strictly to industry best practices and 

compliance standards. Our approach integrates regulatory requirements, ensuring that IT 
systems meet all necessary standards and guidelines. 

 
Our team of experienced professionals possesses diverse expertise in IT system management. 
We collaborate closely with clients to understand their specific needs, aligning our approach to 
deliver tailored solutions that drive efficiency, innovation, and sustainable growth. 

 



 

C o n f i d e n t i a l  I n f o r m a t i o n  -  P a g e  | 5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Project Manager & Key Qualifications 

 

Sections 5. 6. 



 

C o n f i d e n t i a l  I n f o r m a t i o n  -  P a g e  | 6 

A
ss

ig
n

e
d

 P
ro

je
c

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

Assigned Project Manager 

David Spire, MBA – Vice President 
David brings more than 25 years of experience to his role as, experience 
that allows him to plan, design and implement the company’s business-
growth strategies and manage key strategic client accounts and 
relationships. 
 
In that quarter century, David has frequently been recognized by the 
industry and his peers. In its annual Channel Influencer Awards, The SMB 
150 named David among its top 150 channel influencers worldwide. Gulf 

Coast Business Review honored him as a top business leader in the Southwest Florida region in 
its prestigious 40 Under 40 awards. David is a frequent panelist and presenter at national 
conferences and speaking engagements, including IT Nation. 
 
David has been featured in Channel Executive Magazine, and for many years David wrote a 
column for the Bradenton Herald about tech trends for businesses. He holds multiple 
professional certifications, including Microsoft’s Small Business Specialist and Master Certified 
SonicWall Sales Specialist. 

 
Present & Past Professional Experience: 

• Entech (Bradenton, FL) – May 2015 – Present  
• United Systems Computer Group (Bradenton, FL) – March 2004 – May 2015 

 
Present & Past Project Experience: 

• 360 Orthopedics (Sarasota, FL) - Project Management, 1, 2, 3, 4, 
• City of St. Pete Beach (St. Pete Beach, FL) - Project Management, 1, 2, 3, 4 
• Coastal Orthopedics (Bradenton, FL) - Project Management, 1, 2 
• Council on Aging (Gainesville, FL) - Project Management, 1, 2 
• Frederick Derr & Company (Sarasota, FL) - Project Management, 1, 2 
• Greater Naples YMCA (Naples, FL) - Project Management, 1, 2, 3, 5 
• Habitat for Humanity Collier County (Naples, FL) - Project Management, 1, 2, 3, 4 
• Heart & Vascular Center of Venice (Venice, FL) - Project Management, 1, 2 
• Humane Society of Manatee County (Bradenton, FL) - Project Management, 1, 2, 3 
• Powell, Carney, Maller, P.A. (St. Pete, FL) – Project Management, 1, 2 
• Reingruber & Company (St. Pete, FL) - Project Management, 1, 2 
• Sarasota Bradenton International Airport (Sarasota, FL) - Project Management, 1 
• Sarasota Manatee MPO (Bradenton, FL) - Project Management, 1, 2, 3 
• Seaport Manatee (fka: Port Manatee) (Palmetto, FL) - Project Management, 1, 2 
• YMCA of Marco Island (Marco Island, FL) - Project Management, 1, 2, 3 
• YMCA of the Southwest Florida (Marco Island, FL) - Project Management, 1, 2, 3 

 
1 - Information Technology 
2 - Data Protection (Disaster Recovery / Business Continuity) 
3 – Cybersecurity 
4 – Cloud 
5 - Compliance 



 

C o n f i d e n t i a l  I n f o r m a t i o n  -  P a g e  | 7 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l K
e

y
 P

e
rs

o
n

n
e

l 
Additional Key Personnel 

The Consultant’s proposed project team/key personnel are to be indicated below.  
  

Name Job Classification Area of Expertise Location 

Chris Brenes 
Chief Information 
Security Officer (CISO) 

• Advanced Cybersecurity BR 

Roger Cox Escalation Engineer 
• Server Management 

• Network Support 
BR 

Kaleb Creger Cybersecurity Analyst • Network Security BR 

Shea Deemer Proactive Team Lead • DR/BC BR 

Ray Ebersole Systems Engineer 
• Server Management 

• Network Support 
BR 

Eric Gerhardt Support Engineer 
• Server Management 

• Network Support 
BR 

Mike Hebert Director of Architecture 
• Advanced Server Management 

• Advanced Network Support 
BR 

Michael Iacob Systems Engineer 
• Server Management 

• Network Support 
BR 

Grace Kraffert Project Coordinator • Project Management BR 

Steve Long Service Team Lead 
• Advanced Server Management 

• Advanced Desktop Support 
BR 

KJ Manegold Sr. Proactive Engineer 
• Administration of Monitoring & 

Maintenance Systems 
FM 

Kevin Miller Systems Engineer 
• Server Management 

• Network Support 
BR 

Mike Nash Service Manager • Service Management BR 

Derek Nunes Systems Engineer 
• Server Management 

• Network Support 
BR 

Joey Pandy Support Engineer 
• Server Management 

• Network Support 
BR 

Chad Roth Project Engineer 
• Cloud LOB Applications Support 

• Office 365 Configuration & 
Management 

BR 

Brad Wolff Sr. Project Engineer 

• WAN and LAN Connectivity 

• Microsoft Technologies, including 
Advanced Server Management 

• Hosted Exchange / Office 365  

• VoIP Configuration and Support 

FM 

 



C o n f i d e n t i a l  I n f o r m a t i o n  -  P a g e  | 8 

Te
c

h
n

ic
a

l C
e

rt
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
s 

Consultancy Certifications

The professionals at Entech hold dozens of certifications collectively, a number that is continually 
increasing. A few of the most recognized certifications earned by staff include the following: 

SonicWall Network Security Administrator (SNSA) 
This certification is intended to recognize the Security Networking Administrator who takes and 
passes a SonicWall certification exam. 

SonicWall Network Security Professional (SNSP) 
This certification is intended to recognize the Security Networking Professional who takes and 
passes a SonicWall certification exam. 

Microsoft - Solutions Partner in Modern Work for SMB's (Azure & Microsoft 365)
A Solutions Partner for Modern work has demonstrated a broad capability to help customers 
boost their productivity and make the shift to hybrid work using Microsoft 365. 

Certified Ethical Hacker 
A Certified Ethical Hacker is a skilled professional who understands and knows how to look for 
weaknesses and vulnerabilities in target systems and uses the same knowledge and tools as a 
malicious hacker, but in a lawful and legitimate manner to assess the security posture of a target 
system(s). The CEH credential certifies individuals in the specific network security discipline of 
Ethical Hacking from a vendor-neutral perspective. 

The purpose of the CEH credential is to establish and govern minimum standards for 
credentialing professional information security specialists in ethical hacking measures. 



C o n f i d e n t i a l  I n f o r m a t i o n  -  P a g e  | 9 

Te
c

h
n

ic
a

l C
e

rt
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
s 

Certified Information Systems Security Professional 
Certified Information Systems Security Professional (CISSP) is an information security 
certification developed by the International Information Systems Security Certification 
Consortium, also known as (ISC)². The CISSP designation is a globally recognized, vendor-neutral 
standard for attesting to an IT security professional's technical skills and experience in 
implementing and managing a security program. 

To become a CISSP, a candidate is tested in eight domains drawn from the more extensive (ISC)² 
Common Body of Knowledge: security and risk management, asset security, security 
engineering, communications and network security, identity and access management, security 
assessment and testing, security operations and software development security. 

To achieve this certification, a candidate must have five years full-time experience in at least two 
of the eight domains. They must also complete the CISSP examination agreement, subscribe to 
the (ISC)² code of ethics, answer several background qualification questions and receive an 
endorsement from an active (ISC)² certified professional. 

CompTIA Security+ Certification  
A CompTIA Security+ certification designates knowledgeable professionals in the field of security, 
one of the fastest-growing fields in IT. 

CompTIA Network+ Certification  
CompTIA Network+ validates the knowledge and skills of networking professionals. It is an 
international, vendor-neutral certification that recognizes a technician's ability to describe the 
features and functions of networking components and to manage, maintain, troubleshoot, 
install, operate and configure basic network infrastructure. 

Master Certified SonicWALL Sales Representative  
This certificate is designed to recognize the Sales Professional that has already mastered all 
Certified SonicWALL Sales Representatives certifications. In order to qualify for this program you 
must first pass all three CSSR certification exams. 

Cisco Certified Network Associate (CCNA) Routing and Switching  
The CCNA Routing and Switching certification program is for Network Specialists, Network 
Administrators and Network Support Engineers with 1-3 years of experience. This certificate 
validates an individual’s ability to install, configure, operate and troubleshoot medium-size 
routed and switched networks. 



C o n f i d e n t i a l  I n f o r m a t i o n  -  P a g e  | 10 

C
o

re
 D

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

to
rs

 Community, Industry, and National Recognition 

Everyone has a million things to do every day, and one extra thing like an IT problem can cause 

you and your team to lose your focus. Our passion is helping your staff eliminate these distractions 

whenever possible, and in cases where elimination is not possible, we’ll work with your team on a 

friendly, speedy solution so they can get back to doing what matters.  

To keep tabs on how we are doing at enabling our partners teams, we use a handful of feedback 

tools. One is a Client Satisfaction (CSAT) platform. In just the past 5 years, we have amassed more 

the 25,000 partner reviews with a current positive rating 97.9% of the time.  

In the fall of 2020 Entech was recognized by Google as being the #1 reviewed Managed Service 

(Computer & Support) organization in the state of Florida with over 500 reviews. We think that’s 

a pretty cool designation and it’s all thanks to a great team and our loyal raving fan partners. 

Entech’s most recent accolades include: Tampa Bay’s Best Places to Work (2021-2019), the 

University of Florida’s Gator 100 (2018 and 2017), INC 5000 (2017), CRN MSP Pioneer 250 (2022, 

2019, 2017, 2016), CRN Fast Growth 150 (2017 and 2016), Channel Futures / MSPMentor Top MSP 

501(2022-2013), Gulfshore Business Best of Business (2022-2014), Manatee Chamber Small 

Business of the Year (2011), and Bonita Springs Chamber Small Business of the Year (2015).  



C o n f i d e n t i a l  I n f o r m a t i o n  -  P a g e  | 11 

Client Dossier 
Section 7. 



 

C o n f i d e n t i a l  I n f o r m a t i o n  -  P a g e  | 12 

Client Dossier 

Below is a list and description (SOW’s) and examples of clients supported by Entech relating to IT 
system support and management. 

 

SOW Definitions 

1. Comprehensive Managed IT & Infrastructure Services 

2. Managed Data Backup & Recovery 

3. Cloud - Managed UC 

 

Company Name Industry SOW Contact Phone 

Aloia, Roland & Lubell, PLLC Legal 1, 2, 3 Ty Roland (239) 791-7950 

Babe's Plumbing Inc Services 1, 2, 3 Judy Lockwood (941) 488-2402 

Boca Grande Health Clinic Inc Healthcare 1, 2, 3 Mark Driscoll (941) 964-2276 

Canterbury School, Inc. Education 1, 2 Rick Kirschner (239) 481-4323 

Cardinal Mooney High School Education 1, 3 Stefan Gates (941) 371-4917 

Cavanaugh & Co. Finance/CPA 1, 2 Lisa LeBlanc (941) 366-2983 

Colonial Roofing Services 1, 2, 3 Chris Rakos (239) 458-1000 

Deangelis-Diamond  Construction 1, 2, 3 Brett Diamond (239) 594-1994 

Frederick Derr and Company Construction 1, 2 Gemma Fulton (941) 355-8575 

Green Schoenfeld & Kyle, LLP Legal 1, 2, 3 Nicole Landrum (239) 936-7200 

Humane Society of Manatee Non-Profit 1, 2 Rick Yocum (941) 747-8808 

MTI Equipment Inc Services 1, 2 Alain Trimble (941) 474-6789 

Offshore Sailing School Education 1, 2, 3 Doris Colgate (800) 221-4326 

Oysters Rock Hospitality Hospitality 1, 2 Trey Horne (863) 266-9927 

Port Manatee Services 1, 2 Ray Higgins (941) 722-6621 

Rowlett Middle Academy Education 1, 2 Jonas Rutledge (941) 462-4001 

Saint John XXIII Non-Profit 1, 2, 3 Holly Atkins (239) 561-2245 

SeaPort Manatee Government 1 Ray Higgins (941) 722-6621 

Sir Speedy Manufacturing 1, 2 Brian Doerner (941) 922-1563 

Southeastern Guide Dogs Non-Profit 1, 2 Joel Clark (941) 729-5665 

SWFL Community Foundation Non-Profit 1, 2, 3 Kim Williams (239) 274-5900 

Thomas G Rubino, DDS  Medical 1, 2 Amy Brady (941) 792-0029 

Walters & Associates CPAs Finance/CPA 1, 2 Nancy McLean (941) 756-0700 

YMCA of Southwest Florida, Inc. Non-Profit 1, 2 John Campbell (941) 492-9622 

ZNS Engineering Engineering 1, 2 Robin Brown (941) 748-8080 
 

 

 



 

C o n f i d e n t i a l  I n f o r m a t i o n  -  P a g e  | 13 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Disclosures & References 

 

Section 8. 9. 10. 11. 



 

C o n f i d e n t i a l  I n f o r m a t i o n  -  P a g e  | 14 

D
is

c
lo

su
re

s 
&

 R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
s 

Disclosures 

Section 8:  
At time of application Entech does not represent any of the Authorities five customers 
(Charlotte, DeSoto, Manatee, Sarasota Counties and/or the City of North Port). 
  
Section 9:  
At time of application Entech has no current litigation against any of the Customers, either 
directly or retained for testimony and expertise on behalf of any other entity in litigation against 
the Authority or any of its Customers, and a description of such litigation. 

 

Section 10:  
At time of application no litigation against Entech for breach of contract for work performed for 
a Florida public entity within the last five (5) years has taken place.  

 

References 

Company & Contact email Phone Number 

   

DeAngelis-Diamond   

Brett Diamond brettd@deangelisdiamond.com (239) 280-8122 
   

SeaPort Manatee   

Ray Higgins rhiggins@seaportmanatee.com (941) 722-6621 
   

Humane Society of Manatee   

Rick Yocum rick@humanemanatee.org (941) 747-8808 
   

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

C o n f i d e n t i a l  I n f o r m a t i o n  -  P a g e  | 15 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Required Forms 
Section 12. 



 

C o n f i d e n t i a l  I n f o r m a t i o n  -  P a g e  | 16 

R
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 F

o
rm

s 
Disclosures 

Project Manager and Project Team/Key Personnel Form 
Please see Page 8 above. 
  
Contract Services Rate Sheet  
Found on following pages. 

 

Signed Sworn Statement under Section 287.133(3)(a), Florida Statutes, on Public Entity  
Professional Services for IT Systems Support and Management Request for SOQ Crimes; 
Found on following pages. 
 
E-Verify Affidavit and Required Evidence 
Found on following pages. 

 
References Form 
Found immediately following. 

 

References 

DeAngelis-Diamond   

Brett Diamond brettd@deangelisdiamond.com (239) 280-8122 
   
Consultant: Stephen Tracy Project Name: IT & Cybersecurity Managed Services 
 Location: Sarasota and Naples, FL  
 Description: Ongoing IT Managed Services for their firm. 
   

SeaPort Manatee   

Ray Higgins rhiggins@seaportmanatee.com (941) 722-6621 
   
Consultant: David Spire Project Name: IT & Cybersecurity Managed Services 
 Location: Palmetto, FL  
 Description: Ongoing IT Managed Services for their firm. 
   

Humane Society of Manatee   

Rick Yocum rick@humanemanatee.org (941) 747-8808 
   
Consultant: David Spire Project Name: IT & Cybersecurity Managed Services 
 Location: Bradenton, FL  
 Description: Ongoing IT Managed Services for their firm. 

 
 

 
 









                
     

                 
                

         

Company ID Number:  Client Company ID Number:  

  
    

THE E-VERIFY
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

FOR EMPLOYERS USING A WEB SERVICES E-VERIFY EMPLOYER AGENT 

 
 

ARTICLE I
 PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY  

The parties to this agreement are the Department of Homeland Security (DHS), the
(Employer), and the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent. The purpose of this agreement is to set forth terms 

 and conditions which the Employer and the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent will follow while 
   participating in E-Verify. 

               E-Verify is a program that electronically confirms an employee’s eligibility to work in the United States after 
          completion of Form I-9, Employment Eligibility Verification (Form I-9). This Memorandum of Understanding

              (MOU) explains certain features of the E-Verify program and describes specific responsibilities of the Employer,
          the E-Verify Employer Agent, the Social Security Administration (SSA), and DHS.

                References in this MOU to the Employer include the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent when acting on 
   behalf of the Employer. 

                For purposes of this MOU, the E-Verify browser refers to the website that provides direct access to the E-Verify 
              system: https://E-Verify.uscis.gov/emp/. You may access E-Verify directly free of charge via the E-Verify 

browser. 
               Authority for the E-Verify program is found in Title IV, Subtitle A, of the Illegal Immigration Reform and 

                 Immigrant Responsibility Act of 1996 (IIRIRA), Pub. L. 104-208, 110 Stat. 3009, as amended (8 U.S.C. § 1324a 
           note). The Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) Subpart 22.18, “Employment Eligibility Verification” and 

            Executive Order 12989, as amended, provide authority for Federal contractors and subcontractors (Federal 
             contractor) to use E-Verify to verify the employment eligibility of certain employees working on Federal 

contracts. 

 ARTICLE II  
RESPONSIBILITIES 

   A. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE EMPLOYER

For purposes of this MOU, references to the Employer include the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent when 
acting on behalf of the Employer.  

1. By enrolling in E-Verify and signing the applicable MOU, the Employer asserts that it is a legitimate company
which intends to use E-Verify for legitimate purposes only and in accordance with the laws, regulations and
DHS policies and procedures relating to the use of E-Verify.

                Page 1 of 25 E-Verify MOU for Employers Using a Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent | Revision Date 06/01/13 

Entech Computer Services

2211718571783

https://e-verify.uscis.gov/emp/
https://e-verify.uscis.gov/emp


Company ID Number: Client Company ID Number:

2. The Employer agrees to display the following notices supplied by DHS (though the Web Services E-Verify
Employer Agent) in a prominent place that is clearly visible to prospective employees and all employees who
are to be verified through the system:

a. Notice of E-Verify Participation

b. Notice of Right to Work

3. The Employer agrees to provide to the SSA and DHS the names, titles, addresses, and telephone numbers
of the Employer representatives to be contacted about E-Verify.  The Employer also agrees to keep such
information current by providing updated information to SSA and DHS whenever the representatives’ contact
information changes.

4. The Employer agrees to become familiar with and comply with the most recent version of the

E-Verify User Manual. The Employer will obtain the E-Verify User Manual from the Web Services E-Verify
Employer Agent, and will be notified by the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent when a new version of
the E-Verify User Manual becomes available.

5. The Employer agrees to comply with current Form I-9 procedures, with two exceptions:

a. If an employee presents a "List B" identity document, the Employer agrees to only accept "List B"
documents that contain a photo. (List B documents identified in 8 C.F.R. 274a.2(b)(1)(B)) can be presented
during the Form I-9 process to establish identity.) If an employee objects to the photo requirement for
religious reasons, the Employer should contact E-Verify at 888-464-4218.

b. If an employee presents a DHS Form I-551 (Permanent Resident Card), Form I-766
(Employment Authorization Document), or U.S. Passport or Passport Card to complete
Form I-9, the Employer agrees to make a photocopy of the document and to retain the photocopy with the
employee’s Form I-9. The Employer will use the photocopy to verify the photo and to assist DHS with its
review of photo mismatches that employees contest.  DHS may in the future designate other documents
that activate the photo screening tool.

Note: Subject only to the exceptions noted previously in this paragraph, employees still retain the right to 
present any List A, or List B and List C, document(s) to complete the Form I-9. 

6. The Employer agrees to record the case verification number on the employee's Form I-9 or to print the
screen containing the case verification number and attach it to the employee's Form I-9.

7. The Employer agrees that, although it participates in E-Verify, the Employer has a responsibility to
complete, retain, and make available for inspection Forms I-9 that relate to its employees, or from other
requirements of applicable regulations or laws, including the obligation to comply with the antidiscrimination
requirements of section 274B of the INA with respect to Form I-9 procedures.

a. The following modified requirements are the only exceptions to an Employer’s obligation to not
employ unauthorized workers and comply with the anti-discrimination provision of the INA: (1) List B
identity documents must have photos, as described in paragraph 6 above; (2) When an Employer confirms
the identity and employment eligibility of newly hired employee using E-Verify procedures, the Employer
establishes a rebuttable presumption that it has not violated section 274A(a)(1)(A) of

 

Page 2 of 25 E-Verify MOU for Employers Using  a Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent | Revision Date 06/01/13 

2211718571783



             

Company ID Number:  Client Company ID Number:  

the Immigration and Nationality  Act  (INA)  with respect  to the hiring of  that  employee;  (3)  If  the  Employer  
receives  a final  nonconfirmation for  an  employee,  but  continues  to employ  that  person,  the Employer  
must  notify  DHS  and the Employer  is  subject  to  a civil  money  penalty  between $550 and $1,100  for  each 
failure to notify  DHS  of  continued employment  following a  final  nonconfirmation;  (4)  If  the Employer  
continues  to employ  an employee after  receiving  a final  nonconfirmation,  then  the Employer  is  subject  to 
a rebuttable presumption  that  it  has  knowingly  employed an unauthorized alien in violation of  section 
274A(a)(1)(A);  and (5)  no E-Verify  participant  is  civilly  or  criminally  liable under  any  law  for  any  action taken 
in good  faith  based on  information provided through the  E-Verify.   

b. DHS  reserves  the right  to conduct  Form  I-9  compliance  inspections,  as  well  as  any  other enforcement
or  compliance activity  authorized by law,  including  site visits,  to ensure proper  use  of E-Verify.

8. The  Employer  is  strictly  prohibited from  creating an E-Verify  case  before  the employee has  been hired,
meaning that  a firm  offer  of  employment  was  extended and  accepted and Form  I-9  was completed.   The
Employer  agrees  to create an  E-Verify  case for new  employees  within three  Employer business  days  after  each
employee has  been  hired (after  both Sections  1  and 2 of  Form I-9  have been completed),  and to complete as
many  steps  of  the  E-Verify  process  as  are necessary  according to  the E-Verify  User  Manual.  If  E-Verify  is
temporarily  unavailable,  the three-day  time  period  will  be extended until  it  is  again  operational  in order  to
accommodate the Employer's  attempting,  in good faith,  to  make inquiries  during the  period of  unavailability.

9. The  Employer  agrees  not  to use  E-Verify  for  pre-employment  screening of  job applicants,  in support of  any
unlawful  employment  practice,  or  for  any  other  use  that  this  MOU  or  the  E-Verify  User  Manual does  not
authorize.

10. The  Employer  must  use  E-Verify  (through its  Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent)  for  all  new employees.
The  Employer  will  not  verify  selectively  and will  not  verify  employees  hired before the effective date of  this
MOU.   Employers  who are Federal  contractors  may  qualify  for  exceptions  to this requirement  as  described in
Article II.B  of  this  MOU.

11. The  Employer  agrees  to follow  appropriate procedures  (see Article III  below)  regarding tentative
nonconfirmations.   The Employer  must  promptly  notify  employees  in private of  the  finding  and  provide them
with the notice and  letter containing  information specific  to the employee’s  E-Verify  case.    The Employer
agrees  to  provide both  the  English and  the translated notice and  letter  for  employees  with limited English
proficiency  to employees.   The  Employer  agrees  to provide written referral  instructions to employees  and
instruct  affected employees  to  bring the  English copy  of  the  letter  to the  SSA.   The Employer  must  allow
employees  to contest  the  finding,  and not  take  adverse action  against  employees if  they  choose  to  contest  the
finding,  while their  case is  still  pending.  Further,  when employees  contest a tentative nonconfirmation based
upon  a photo  mismatch,  the  Employer  must  take additional  steps
(see  Article  III.B  below)  to contact  DHS  with information necessary  to resolve the challenge.

12. The  Employer  agrees  not  to take any  adverse  action against  an employee based upon  the employee's
perceived employment  eligibility  status  while SSA  or  DHS  is  processing  the verification request  unless  the
Employer  obtains  knowledge (as  defined in  8 C.F.R.  § 274a.1(l))  that  the  employee is  not  work  authorized.  The
Employer  understands  that  an  initial  inability  of  the  SSA  or  DHS  automated

Page 3 of 25 E-Verify MOU for Employers Using a Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent | Revision Date 06/01/13 

2211718571783



        
          

          
             

              
    

           
          

           
           

            
          

         
        

            
           

            
         

          
         

          
             

              
            

             
       

              
          

             
             

          
         
             

             

Company ID Number:  Client Company ID Number:  

verification system to verify work authorization, a tentative nonconfirmation, a case in continuance 
(indicating the need for additional time for the government to resolve a case), or the finding of a photo 
mismatch, does not establish, and should not be interpreted as, evidence that the employee is not work 
authorized. In any of such cases, the employee must be provided a full and fair opportunity to contest the 
finding, and if he or she does so, the employee may not be terminated or suffer any adverse employment 
consequences based upon the employee’s perceived employment eligibility status  
(including denying, reducing, or extending work hours, delaying or preventing training, requiring an employee 
to work in poorer conditions, withholding pay, refusing to assign the employee to a Federal contract or other 
assignment, or otherwise assuming that he or she is unauthorized to work) until and unless secondary 
verification by SSA or DHS has been completed and a final nonconfirmation has been issued. If the employee 
does not choose to contest a tentative nonconfirmation or a photo mismatch or if a secondary verification is 
completed and a final nonconfirmation is issued, then the Employer can find the employee is not work 
authorized and terminate the employee’s employment. Employers or employees with questions about a final 
nonconfirmation may call E-Verify at 1-888-464-4218 (customer service) or 1-888-897-7781 (worker hotline).  

13. The Employer agrees to comply with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and section 274B of the INA
as applicable by not discriminating unlawfully against any individual in hiring, firing, employment eligibility
verification, or recruitment or referral practices because of his or her national origin or citizenship status, or
by committing discriminatory documentary practices. The Employer understands that such illegal practices
can include selective verification or use of E-Verify except as provided in part D below, or discharging or
refusing to hire employees because they appear or sound “foreign” or have received tentative
nonconfirmations. The Employer further understands that any violation of the immigration-related unfair
employment practices provisions in section 274B of the INA could subject the Employer to civil penalties,
back pay awards, and other sanctions, and violations of Title VII could subject the Employer to back pay
awards, compensatory and punitive damages. Violations of either section 274B of the INA or Title VII may
also lead to the termination of its participation in E-Verify. If the Employer has any questions relating to the
anti-discrimination provision, it should contact OSC at 1-800-255-8155 or 1-800-237-2515 (TDD).

14. The Employer agrees that it will use the information it receives from E-Verify (through its Web Services
E-Verify Employer Agent) only to confirm the employment eligibility of employees as authorized by this
MOU. The Employer agrees that it will safeguard this information, and means of access to it (such as
Personal Identification Numbers and passwords), to ensure that it is not used for any other purpose and as
necessary to protect its confidentiality, including ensuring that it is not disseminated to any person other
than employees of the Employer who are authorized to perform the Employer's responsibilities under this
MOU, except for such dissemination as may be authorized in advance by SSA or DHS for legitimate
purposes.

15. The Employer  agrees  to notify  DHS  immediately  in the event  of  a  breach of  personal  information. 
Breaches  are  defined as  loss  of  control  or unauthorized access  to E-Verify  personal  data.  All  suspected  or 
confirmed breaches  should be reported  by  calling  1-888-464-4218  or  via  email  at  E-Verify@uscis.dhs.gov. 
Please use “Privacy  Incident  – Password”  in the subject  line of  your  email  when  sending  a  breach  report  to
E-Verify.

16. The  Employer  acknowledges  that  the information it  receives  from SSA  through its  Web  Services

Page 4 of 25 E-Verify MOU for Employers Using a Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent | Revision Date 06/01/13 

2211718571783

mailto:E-Verify@uscis.dhs.gov


             

Company ID Number:  Client Company ID Number:  

E-Verify  Employer  Agent  is  governed by  the  Privacy  Act  (5  U.S.C.  § 552a(i)(1) and  (3))  and the Social Security
Act  (42 U.S.C.  1306(a)).  Any  person who obtains  this  information under  false pretenses  or uses  it  for  any
purpose other than  as  provided for  in this  MOU  may  be  subject  to criminal  penalties.

17. The  Employer  agrees  to cooperate with DHS  and  SSA  in their compliance monitoring  and evaluation
of  E-Verify,  which includes  permitting DHS,  SSA,  their  contractors  and  other  agents,  upon reasonable
notice, to  review  Forms  I-9 and  other  employment  records  and  to  interview  it  and its employees  regarding
the  Employer’s  use of  E-Verify,  and  to respond  in a  prompt  and  accurate  manner to DHS  requests  for
information  relating  to their  participation in  E-Verify.

18. The  Employer  shall  not make any  false or  unauthorized claims  or  references  about  its  participation in
E-Verify  on  its  website,  in  advertising materials,  or other  media.   The  Employer  shall  not  describe its
services  as  federally-approved,  federally-certified,  or  federally-recognized,  or  use  language  with a similar
intent  on  its  website or  other materials  provided to  the public.   Entering into this  MOU  does  not mean  that
E-Verify  endorses  or authorizes  your  E-Verify  services  and any  claim  to  that  effect  is  false.

             
          

   

            
                 

          
       

             
            

   

19. The Employer shall not state in its website or other public documents that any language used therein 
has been provided or approved by DHS, USCIS or the Verification Division, without first obtaining the prior 
written consent of DHS.

20. The Employer agrees that E-Verify trademarks and logos may be used only under license by DHS/
USCIS (see M-795 (Web)) and, other than pursuant to the specific terms of such license, may not be used in 
any manner that might imply that the Employer’s services, products, websites, or publications are 
sponsored by, endorsed by, licensed by, or affiliated with DHS, USCIS, or E-Verify.

21. The Employer understands that if it uses E-Verify procedures for any purpose other than as authorized 
by this MOU, the Employer may be subject to appropriate legal action and termination of its participation 
in E-Verify according to this MOU.

B. RESPONSIBILITIES OF  THE WEB  SERVICES E-VERIFY EMPLOYER  AGENT

1. The Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  to complete its  Web Services  interface  no later than six 
months  after the  date  the  Web  Services  User  signs  this  MOU.   E-Verify  considers  your interface  to  be complete
once it  has  been  built  pursuant  to  the  Interface  Control  Agreement  (ICA), submitted to E-Verify  for testing,
and  approved for  system  access.

2. The Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  to  perform sufficient  maintenance  on  the Web Services
interface  in accordance with the  requirements  listed in  the  ICA.   These  requirements  include, but  are not
limited  to,  updating the  Web  Services  interface  to  ensure that  any  updates  or enhancements  are
incorporated  no later  than six months  after  the issuance of  an ICA.   Web Services E-Verify Employer Agents 
should be aware that this will require the investment of time and resources. Compliance with the requirements 
of the ICA must be carried out to the satisfaction of DHS and or its assignees.

3. The Web Services E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  to  provide to  SSA  and/or  DHS  the  names,  titles, addresses,
e-mail  addresses,  and  telephone numbers  of  the  Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent representative who will 
access  information,  as  well  as  ensure cooperation,  communication,  and coordination with E-Verify.

Page 5 of 25 E-Verify MOU for Employers Using a Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent | Revision Date 06/01/13 

2211718571783

http://www.uscis.gov/USCIS/Verification/E-Verify/everifytrademark.pdf
https://www.e-verify.gov/about-e-verify/trademark-and-logo-usage-guidelines


 Company ID Number:  Client Company ID Number: 

In  addition,  Web  Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agents  must  provide to SSA  and/or DHS  the  names,  titles, 
addresses,  and  telephone numbers  of  its  clients  and  their  staff  who will  access information through  E-
Verify.  Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agents  must  ensure the contact  information is updated  with  SSA  and 
DHS  whenever  the points  of  contact change.  

4. The Web  Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  to  become familiar  with and comply  with the E-Verify  User
Manual  and provide a copy  of  the  most  current  version of  the  manual  to the  Employer  so that  the  Employer  can
become familiar  with and comply  with  E-Verify  policy  and  procedures. The  Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent
agrees  to obtain a revised E-Verify  User Manual  as  it  becomes  available and to provide  a copy  of  the  revised
version to the  Employer  no later  than  30  days  after  the  manual  becomes  available.

5. The  Web  Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  that  any  person accessing E-Verify  on  its  behalf is  trained  on
the  most  recent  E-Verify  policy  and procedures.

6. The  Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  that  any  of  its  representatives  who  will perform 
employment  verification cases  will  complete  the  E-Verify  Tutorial  before that  individual  initiates any  cases.

a. The  Web  Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  that  all of  its  representatives  will  take  the refresher 
tutorials  initiated  by  E-Verify  as  a  condition  of  continued  use of  E-Verify, including  any tutorials  for  Federal
contractors,  if  any  of  the  Employers  represented  by  the  Web  Services  E-Verify Employer  Agent  is  a  Federal
contractor.

b. Failure  to complete  a refresher  tutorial  will  prevent  the Web Services  E-Verify  Employer Agent  and 
Employer  from continued  use  of  E-Verify.

7. The Web  Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  to  grant  E-Verify  access  only  to  current employees  who  need
E-Verify  access.   The Web  Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  must  promptly  terminate an  employee’s  E-Verify
access  if  the employee is  separated from  the company  or  no  longer  needs  access  to E-Verify.

8. The  Web  Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  to  obtain  the  necessary  equipment  to  use E- Verify  as
required by the E-Verify rules and regulations as modified from time to time.

9. The Web  Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  to,  consistent  with applicable laws,  regulations, and 
policies,  commit  sufficient  personnel  and  resources  to meet  the requirements  of  this  MOU.

10. The Web  Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  to  provide its  clients  with training  on  E-Verify processes, 
policies,  and procedures.   The  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  also agrees  to provide its  clients with ongoing E-Verify 
training  as  needed.   E-Verify  is  not  responsible for  providing  training to clients  of E-Verify Employer Agents.

11. The  Web  Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  to  provide  the  Employer  with the  notices described in 
Article  II.B.2  below.

12. The  Web  Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  to  create E-Verify  cases  for the  Employer  it  represents
in  accordance   with  the  E-Verify   Manual,  the  E-Verify   Web-Based Tutorial  and all  other published E-Verify

Page  6 of  25  E-Verify  MOU  for  Employers  Using  a  Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  | Revision  Date 06/01/13 

2211718571783



              
        

          

              
            

         
           

          
             

               
          

      

              
               

    

          
          

      

              
            

  
  

 

                
        

             
               

               
  

          

             

          
              

               
         

           
               

        

Company ID Number:  Client Company ID Number:  

rules and procedures. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent will create E-Verify cases using information 
provided by the Employer and will immediately communicate the response back to the Employer. If E-Verify 
is temporarily unavailable, the three-day time period will be extended until it is again operational in order to 
accommodate the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent’s attempting, in good faith, to make inquiries on 
behalf of the Employer during the period of unavailability. If, however, the Web Services interface is 
unavailable due to no fault of E-Verify, then the three-day time period is not extended. In such a case, the Web 
Services E-Verify Employer Agent must use the E-Verify browser during the outage. 

13. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to ensure that all notices, referral letters and any 
other materials otherwise including instructions regarding tentative nonconfirmations, will be consistent 
with the most current E-Verify tentative nonconfirmation notices and referral letters, which are available 
on E-Verify’s website.

14. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees that any system or interface it develops will follow 
the steps for creating E-Verify cases and processing tentative nonconfirmations, as laid out in the ICA, this 
MOU and the User Manual, including but not limited to allowing an employer to close an invalid case 
where appropriate, allowing an employer to refer a tentative nonconfirmation only when an employee 
chooses to contest a tentative nonconfirmation (no automatic referrals), and referring a tentative 
nonconfirmation to the appropriate agency at the time the employer prints the referral letter and 
provides the letter to the employee. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent understands that any 
failure to make its system or interface consistent with proper E-Verify procedures can result in DHS 
terminating the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent’s agreement and access with or without notice.

15. When the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent receives notice from a client company that it has 
received a contract with the FAR clause, then the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent must update the 
company’s E-Verify profile within 30 days of the contract award date.

16. If data is transmitted between the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent and its client, then the Web 
Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to protect personally identifiable information during 
transmission to and from the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent.

17. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to notify DHS immediately in the event of a breach 
of personal information. Breaches are defined as loss of control or unauthorized access to E-Verify 
personal data. All suspected or confirmed breaches should be reported by calling 1-888-464-4218 or via 
email at E-Verify@uscis.dhs.gov. Please use “Privacy Incident – Password” in the subject line of your 
email when sending a breach report to E-Verify.

18. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to fully cooperate with DHS and SSA in their 
compliance monitoring and evaluation of E-Verify, including permitting DHS, SSA, their contractors and 
other agents, upon reasonable notice, to review Forms I-9, employment records, and all records 
pertaining to the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent’s use of E-Verify, and to interview it and its 
employees regarding the use of E-Verify, and to respond in a timely and accurate manner to DHS 
requests for information relating to their participation in E-Verify.

a. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to cooperate with DHS if DHS requests

Page 7 of 25 E-Verify MOU for Employers Using a Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent | Revision Date 06/01/13 

2211718571783

mailto:E-Verify@uscis.dhs.gov


            
           

             
    

           
           

            
           

       
           

       
           

                
           

      
 

             
            

            
            

   

Company ID Number:  Client Company ID Number:  

information about the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent’s interface, including requests by DHS to view 
the actual interface operated by the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent as well as related business 
documents. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to demonstrate for DHS the functionality of 
its interface to E-Verify upon request. 

b. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to demonstrate, if requested by DHS, that it has
provided training to its clients that meets E-Verify standards. Training programs must provide a focused
study of the topics covered in the E-Verify User Manual and pertinent Supplemental Guides. Furthermore,
training programs and materials must be updated as E-Verify changes occur. The Web Services E-Verify
Employer Agent is encouraged to incorporate information from existing E-Verify materials, including the
Enrollment Quick Reference Guide, the E-Verify Employer Agent Client Handbook (formerly known as the
Designated Agent Client Handbook), and existing tutorials and manuals into their training program. E-Verify
also encourages the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent to supervise first-time use of the E-Verify browser
or Web Services interface by its staff and Employer clients as part of any training program. The Web
Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to submit its training program materials to DHS for review upon
request.

Failure to provide adequate training could, in some instances, lead to penalties as described in Article V.F.1. 
of this MOU. 

19. The Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  shall  not  make any  false or  unauthorized claims  or references
about  its  participation in E-Verify  on  its  website,  in advertising materials,  or  other  media. The Web Services 
E-Verify  Employer  Agent  shall  not  describe its  services  as  federally-approved, federally-certified,  or federally-
recognized,  or use  language  with a similar intent  on its  website or other materials  provided to  the  public.
Entering into this  MOU  does  not  mean that  E-Verify  endorses  or authorizes  your  Web  Services  E-Verify
Employer  Agent  services  and any  claim  to  that  effect  is  false.

          
         

        

           
         

           
           

   

            
           

        

20. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent shall not state in its website or other public documents that
any language used therein has been provided or approved by DHS, USCIS or the Verification Division,
without first obtaining the prior written consent of DHS.

21. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees that E-Verify trademarks and logos may be used only
under license by DHS/USCIS (see M-795 (Web)) and, other than pursuant to the specific terms of such
license, may not be used in any manner that might imply that the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent’s
services, products, websites, or publications are sponsored by, endorsed by, licensed by, or affiliated with
DHS, USCIS, or E-Verify.

22. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent understands that if it uses E-Verify procedures for any
purpose other than as authorized by this MOU, the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent may be subject to
appropriate legal action and termination of its participation in E-Verify according to this MOU.

C. RESPONSIBILITIES  OF  FEDERAL  CONTRACTORS

The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent shall ensure that the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent and the 
Employers it represents carry out the following responsibilities if the Employer is a Federal contractor or 
becomes a federal contractor. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent should instruct the client to keep the 
Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent informed about any changes or updates related to federal contracts. It 
is the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent’s responsibility to ensure that its clients are in compliance 

Page  8 of  25  E-Verify  MOU  for  Employers  Using  a  Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  | Revision Date 06/01/13  

2211718571783

http://www.uscis.gov/USCIS/Verification/E-Verify/everifytrademark.pdf
https://www.e-verify.gov/about-e-verify/trademark-and-logo-usage-guidelines


           

     

Company ID Number:  Client Company ID Number:  

with all E-Verify policies and procedures. 

1. If the  Employer  is  a  Federal  contractor  with the FAR  E-Verify  clause subject  to the employment verification
terms  in Subpart  22.18  of  the  FAR,  it  will  become familiar  with and comply  with the most current  version of  the
E-Verify  User  Manual  for Federal  Contractors  as  well  as  the  E-Verify Supplemental  Guide for  Federal
Contractors.

2. In  addition  to  the  responsibilities  of  every  employer  outlined in  this  MOU,  the  Employer  understands that  if
it  is  a  Federal  contractor  subject  to the employment  verification terms  in Subpart  22.18 of  the FAR  it  must
verify  the employment  eligibility  of  any  “employee assigned  to the  contract”  (as  defined in FAR  22.1801).  Once
an  employee has  been verified through E-Verify  by the Employer,  the Employer may  not  reverify the  employee
through E-Verify.

a. An Employer  that  is  not  enrolled in E-Verify  as  a Federal  contractor  at  the  time  of  a contract award
must  enroll  as  a  Federal  contractor in the  E-Verify  program  within 30 calendar  days  of contract  award and,
within 90 days  of  enrollment,  begin to verify  employment  eligibility  of  new  hires using  E-Verify.   The
Employer  must  verify  those employees  who are working in the  United States, whether  or not  they  are
assigned  to  the  contract.  Once the  Employer  begins  verifying  new  hires, such verification of  new  hires  must
be initiated  within three business  days  after  the hire  date.  Once enrolled in E-Verify  as a Federal  contractor,
the Employer  must  begin  verification of  employees assigned  to  the  contract  within 90 calendar  days  after
the date of  enrollment  or  within 30 days  of  an employee’s  assignment  to the  contract,  whichever  date  is
later.

b. Employers  enrolled in E-Verify  as  a Federal  contractor  for  90  days  or  more at  the  time of  a contract
award must  use  E-Verify  to begin verification of  employment  eligibility  for  new  hires  of  the Employer  who
are working in the  United States,  whether  or not  assigned to the contract,  within three  business  days  after
the date of  hire. If  the Employer  is  enrolled in E-Verify  as  a Federal contractor  for  90  calendar  days  or  less  at
the  time  of  contract  award,  the  Employer  must,  within 90 days  of  enrollment,  begin to  use E-Verify  to
initiate verification of  new  hires  of  the  contractor  who are working in the  United  States,  whether  or  not
assigned  to  the  contract.  Such verification of  new hires  must  be initiated  within three business  days  after
the date of  hire.  An Employer  enrolled as  a Federal  contractor in E-Verify  must  begin verification of  each
employee assigned to  the contract within 90 calendar  days  after  date of  contract  award or  within 30 days
after  assignment  to  the contract,  whichever  is  later.

c. Federal  contractors  that  are institutions  of  higher  education (as  defined  at  20 U.S.C.  1001(a)), state  or
local  governments,  governments  of  Federally  recognized Indian tribes,  or  sureties performing  under  a
takeover  agreement  entered into with a Federal  agency  under  a performance bond may  choose  to  only
verify  new  and  existing employees  assigned  to  the Federal  contract.  Such Federal  contractors  may,
however,  elect  to verify  all  new  hires,  and/or  all  existing  employees  hired after  November 6,  1986.
Employers  in this  category  must  begin verification of  employees  assigned to the contract  within 90
calendar  days  after the  date of  enrollment  or  within 30 days  of  an employee’s  assignment  to the  contract,
whichever  date  is  later.

d. Upon enrollment,  Employers  who are Federal  contractors  may  elect  to verify  employment eligibility  of
all  existing employees  working in the United States  who were hired after  November  6, 1986,  instead of
verifying only  those employees  assigned  to  a covered  Federal  contract.  After enrollment,  Employers  must
elect  to verify  existing staff  following  DHS  procedures  and  begin E-Verify verification of all

Page 9 of 25 E-Verify MOU for Employers Using a Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent | Revision Date 06/01/13 

2211718571783



               

 Company ID Number: Client Company ID Number:  

existing  employees  within 180 days  after the  election. 

e. The Employer  may  use a  previously  completed Form  I-9 as  the  basis  for  creating an E-Verify case for
an  employee assigned to a  contract  as  long as:

i. That  Form  I-9 is  complete (including the  SSN)  and complies  with Article  II.A.6,

ii. The  employee’s  work  authorization  has  not  expired,  and

iii. The  Employer  has  reviewed the information reflected in the  Form  I-9 either  in person or in
communications  with the employee to  ensure  that  the employee’s  Section 1,  Form  I-9
attestation  has  not  changed  (including,  but  not  limited to,  a  lawful  permanent  resident alien
having  become  a naturalized U.S.  citizen).

f. The  Employer  shall  complete a new  Form  I-9 consistent  with Article II.A.6 or  update the previous
Form I-9 to  provide the necessary  information if:

i. The  Employer  cannot  determine that  Form  I-9 complies  with  Article  II.A.6,

ii. The  employee’s  basis  for  work  authorization as  attested in Section 1  has  expired or changed,
or

iii. The  Form I-9 contains  no SSN  or  is  otherwise incomplete.

Note:  If Section 1  of  Form  I-9 is  otherwise valid and up-to-date and  the  form  otherwise complies  with 
Article II.C.5,  but  reflects  documentation  (such as  a  U.S.  passport  or  Form  I-551)  that  expired after 
completing  Form  I-9,  the Employer  shall  not  require  the  production of  additional  documentation,  or use 
the photo  screening tool  described in Article II.A.5,  subject  to any  additional  or  superseding  instructions 
that  may  be provided on  this  subject in  the  E-Verify  User  Manual.  

g. The  Employer  agrees  not  to require a  second  verification using  E-Verify  of  any  assigned employee
who has  previously  been verified as  a newly  hired employee under  this  MOU  or  to authorize verification
of  any  existing  employee by  any  Employer  that  is  not a  Federal  contractor based on  this  Article.

3. The  Employer  understands  that  if  it  is  a  Federal  contractor,  its  compliance with this  MOU  is  a
performance  requirement  under  the terms  of  the  Federal  contract  or  subcontract,  and the Employer
consents  to  the  release  of  information relating to compliance with its  verification responsibilities  under this
MOU  to  contracting officers  or  other  officials  authorized to review  the Employer’s  compliance with Federal
contracting requirements.

D. RESPONSIBILITIES OF  SSA

1. SSA  agrees  to allow  DHS  to compare data provided by  the Employer  (through the E-Verify Employer
Agent) against  SSA’s  database.   SSA  sends  DHS  confirmation that  the data sent  either matches  or  does  not
match the  information in SSA’s  database.

2. SSA  agrees  to safeguard the information the Employer  provides  (through the  E-Verify  Employer Agent)
through E-Verify  procedures.   SSA  also agrees  to limit  access  to such information,  as  is appropriate  by  law,  to
individuals  responsible for  the verification of  Social  Security  numbers  or responsible for  evaluation of  E-Verify 
or  such  other  persons  or  entities  who may  be authorized by  SSA as  governed by  the  Privacy  Act  (5  U.S.C.  §
552a),  the  Social  Security  Act  (42 U.S.C.  1306(a)),  and SSA  regulations  (20 CFR  Part  401).

Page 10 of 25 E-Verify MOU for Employers Using a Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent | Revision Date 06/01/13 

2211718571783



Company ID Number:  Client Company ID Number:  

3. SSA  agrees  to provide case results  from its  database within three Federal  Government  work  days  of the
initial inquiry.   E-Verify  provides  the information to  the  E-Verify  Employer  Agent.

4. SSA  agrees  to update  SSA  records  as  necessary  if  the  employee who contests  the SSA  tentative
nonconfirmation visits  an  SSA  field office and  provides  the required  evidence.   If  the employee visits  an SSA
field office  within the eight  Federal  Government  work  days  from  the date of  referral  to SSA,  SSA agrees  to
update SSA  records,  if  appropriate,  within the eight-day  period unless  SSA  determines  that more  than  eight
days  may  be necessary.   In such  cases,  SSA  will  provide additional  instructions  to  the employee.   If  the
employee does  not  visit  SSA  in the time  allowed,  E-Verify  may  provide a  final nonconfirmation to the E-Verify
Employer  Agent.

Note: If  an  Employer  experiences  technical  problems,  or  has  a policy  question,  the  employer  should  
contact  E-Verify  at  1-888-464-4218.    

E. RESPONSIBILITIES OF  DHS

1. DHS  agrees  to provide the Employer  with  selected  data  from  DHS  databases  to  enable the Employer
(through the  E-Verify  Employer  Agent)  to conduct,  to the extent  authorized by  this  MOU:

a. Automated verification  checks  on  alien employees  by  electronic  means,  and

b. Photo verification checks  (when available)  on  employees.

2. DHS  agrees  to assist  the E-Verify  Employer  Agent  with operational  problems  associated  with its
participation in E-Verify.  DHS  agrees  to provide the E-Verify  Employer  Agent  names,  titles,  addresses, and
telephone numbers  of  DHS  representatives  to be contacted during the E-Verify  process.

3. DHS  agrees  to provide to the E-Verify  Employer  Agent  with access  to  E-Verify  training materials  as  well  as
an  E-Verify  User  Manual  that  contain instructions  on  E-Verify  policies,  procedures,  and requirements  for  both
SSA  and DHS,  including  restrictions  on  the use  of  E-Verify.

4. DHS  agrees  to train  E-Verify  Employer  Agents  on  all  important  changes  made  to  E-Verify  through the use  of
mandatory  refresher tutorials  and  updates  to the E-Verify  User  Manual.  Even without changes  to  E-Verify,  DHS
reserves  the  right  to  require  E-Verify  Employer  Agents  to take mandatory refresher  tutorials.

5. DHS  agrees  to provide to the Employer  (through  the  E-Verify  Employer  Agent)  a notice,  which indicates  the
Employer's  participation in E-Verify.  DHS  also agrees  to  provide to  the  Employer  anti-discrimination notices
issued by  the Office of  Special  Counsel  for  Immigration-Related Unfair Employment  Practices  (OSC),  Civil
Rights  Division,  U.S.  Department  of  Justice.

6. DHS  agrees  to issue  each of  the  E-Verify  Employer  Agent’s  E-Verify  users  a unique  user identification
number and password that  permits  them  to  log in to E-Verify.

7. DHS  agrees  to safeguard the information the Employer  provides  (through the  E-Verify  Employer Agent),
and  to  limit  access  to  such  information to  individuals  responsible for  the verification process, for evaluation of
E-Verify, or to such other persons or entities as may be authorized by applicable law. Information will be used
only to verify the accuracy of Social Security numbers and employment eligibility, to enforce the INA and
Federal criminal laws, and to administer Federal contracting requirements.

Page 11  of 25  E-Verify  MOU  for  Employers  Using  a  Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  | Revision  Date  06/01/13 

2211718571783



 Company ID Number: Client Company ID Number:  

8. DHS  agrees  to provide a means  of  automated  verification that  provides  (in conjunction with SSA
verification procedures)  confirmation or  tentative nonconfirmation of  employees'  employment  eligibility
within three  Federal  Government  work  days  of  the  initial inquiry.

9. DHS  agrees  to provide a means  of  secondary  verification (including  updating DHS  records)  for employees
who contest  DHS  tentative nonconfirmations  and photo mismatch tentative nonconfirmations.  This
provides  final  confirmation  or  nonconfirmation of  the employees'  employment eligibility  within 10 Federal
Government  work  days  of  the  date  of  referral  to DHS,  unless  DHS determines  that  more  than 10 days  may  be
necessary.  In  such  cases,  DHS  will  provide additional verification  instructions.

ARTICLE  III  
REFERRAL OF INDIVIDUALS TO SSA AND DHS  

A. REFERRAL  TO  SSA

1. If  the  Employer  receives  a  tentative nonconfirmation issued  by  SSA,  the  Employer  must  print  the notice  as
directed  by  E-Verify.   The  Employer  must  promptly  notify  employees  in private of  the finding  and provide  them
with the notice and  letter containing  information specific  to the employee’s  E-Verify case.   The  Employer  also
agrees  to  provide both  the English and  the  translated  notice  and letter  for employees  with limited  English
proficiency  to employees.   The Employer  agrees  to provide written referral  instructions  to employees  and
instruct  affected employees  to  bring the  English copy  of  the  letter to the SSA.   The  Employer  must  allow
employees  to  contest  the  finding,  and not  take  adverse  action  against  employees  if  they  choose to  contest  the
finding,  while their  case is  still  pending.

2. The  Employer  agrees  to obtain the employee’s  response about  whether  he or  she will  contest  the tentative
nonconfirmation as  soon  as  possible after  the Employer  receives  the  tentative nonconfirmation.   Only  the
employee may  determine whether  he  or  she will  contest  the  tentative nonconfirmation.

3. After a  tentative nonconfirmation,  the  Employer  will  refer  employees  to  SSA  field offices  only  as directed  by
E-Verify.   The Employer  must  record the case  verification number,  review  the  employee information  submitted
to E-Verify  to  identify  any errors,  and find out  whether  the employee contests  the tentative  nonconfirmation.
The  Employer  will  transmit  the  Social  Security  number,  or  any  other corrected employee  information that  SSA
requests,  to SSA  for verification again if  this  review  indicates a need  to do  so.

4. The  Employer  will  instruct  the employee to visit  an SSA  office within eight  Federal  Government  work days.
SSA  will  electronically  transmit  the  result  of  the referral  to the Employer  within 10 Federal Government  work
days  of  the  referral  unless  it  determines  that  more  than  10 days  is  necessary.

5. While waiting for  case  results,  the  Employer  agrees  to  check  the  E-Verify  system  regularly  for  case updates.

6. The  Employer  agrees  not  to ask  the employee to obtain a  printout  from  the Social  Security Administration
number database (the Numident) or other written verification of the SSN from the SSA.

Page  12  of 25  E-Verify  MOU  for  Employers  Using  a Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  | Revision  Date  06/01/13 

2211718571783



Company ID Number:  Client Company ID Number:  

B. REFERRAL TO DHS

1. If  the  Employer  receives  a tentative nonconfirmation issued  by  DHS,  the  Employer  must  promptly notify
employees  in private of  the  finding  and provide them with the  notice and letter  containing information
specific  to  the employee’s  E-Verify  case.   The Employer  also agrees  to provide  both the English and the
translated notice and  letter  for  employees  with  limited  English  proficiency to employees.  The Employer  must
allow  employees  to  contest  the  finding, and not  take adverse action against  employees  if  they  choose  to
contest  the  finding,  while their  case is  still  pending.

2. The  Employer  agrees  to obtain the employee’s  response about  whether  he or she  will  contest  the tentative
nonconfirmation as  soon  as  possible after  the Employer  receives  the  tentative nonconfirmation.  Only  the
employee  may  determine whether  he  or she  will  contest  the  tentative nonconfirmation.

3. The  Employer  agrees  to refer individuals  to DHS  only  when the  employee  chooses  to  contest  a tentative
nonconfirmation.

4. If  the  employee contests  a tentative  nonconfirmation issued by  DHS,  the  Employer  will  instruct the
employee to contact  DHS  through  its  toll-free  hotline (as  found  on  the referral  letter)  within eight Federal
Government  work  days.

5. If  the  Employer  finds  a  photo mismatch,  the  Employer  must  provide the photo mismatch  tentative
nonconfirmation notice  and follow  the instructions  outlined in paragraph  1 of  this  section  for  tentative
nonconfirmations,  generally.

6. The  Employer  agrees  that  if  an  employee  contests  a  tentative  nonconfirmation based upon  a photo
mismatch, the  Employer  will  send a copy  of  the  employee’s  Form  I-551, Form  I-766,  U.S.  Passport,  or passport
card  to  DHS  for  review  by:

a. Scanning  and  uploading  the document,  or

b. Sending  a  photocopy  of  the document  by  express  mail  (furnished  and paid  for  by  the employer).

7. The  Employer  understands  that  if  it  cannot  determine  whether  there  is  a  photo match/mismatch,  the
Employer  must  forward the employee’s  documentation to  DHS  as  described in the  preceding paragraph.   The
Employer  agrees  to resolve the case as  specified by  the DHS  representative  who  will determine  the  photo
match or mismatch.

8. DHS  will electronically  transmit  the result  of the  referral  to  the  Employer  within 10 Federal Government
work  days  of the referral  unless  it  determines  that  more  than  10 days  is  necessary.

9. While waiting for  case results, the  Employer  agrees  to  check  the  E-Verify  system  regularly  for  case updates.

Page  13  of 25  E-Verify  MOU  for  Employers  Using  a Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  | Revision Date 06/01/13 

2211718571783



               

Company ID Number:  Client Company ID Number:  

ARTICLE IV 
SERVICE PROVISIONS 

A. NO  SERVICE FEES

1. SSA  and  DHS  will  not  charge the Employer  or the Web  Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  for verification
services  performed  under this  MOU.  The  Employer  is  responsible for  providing  equipment needed to  make
inquiries. To  access  E-Verify,  an  Employer  will  need a personal  computer  with Internet access.

ARTICLE  V 
 SYSTEM  SECURITY AND  MAINTENANCE 

A. DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS

1. Software developed by  Web Services E-Verify  Employer  Agents  must  comply with federally-mandated
information security  policies  and industry  security  standards  to  include but  not  limited to:

a. Public  Law  107-347,  “E-Government  Act  of  2002,  Title III,  Federal  Information Security Management
Act  (FISMA),” December 2002.

b. Office of  Management  and Budget  (OMB)  Memorandum (M-10-15),  “FY  2010 Reporting Instructions
for  the Federal  Information Security  Management  Act  and Agency  Privacy Management,” April  2010.

c. National  Institute  of  Standards  and  Technology  (NIST)  Special  Publication (SP)  and Federal
Information Processing Standards  Publication (FIPS).

d. International  Organization for  Standardization/International  Electrotechnical  Commission
(ISO/IEC)  27002,  Information Technology  — Security  Techniques  — Code of  Practice for Information
Security  Management.

2. The Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  to  update  its  Web  Services  interface to reflect system
enhancements  within six  months  from  the  date DHS  notifies  the Web Services  User  of  the system  update.  The
Web  Services  User will  receive notice from DHS  in the  form  of  an Interface Control Agreement  (ICA).   The Web
Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  to  institute changes  to its interface  as  identified in the ICA,  including
all  functionality  identified and  all  data  elements  detailed therein.

3. The Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  to  demonstrate  progress  of  its  efforts  to update its  Web
Services  interface if  and  when DHS  requests  such progress  reports.

4. The Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  acknowledges  that  if  its  system  enhancements  are not
completed  to  the  satisfaction of  DHS  or its  assignees  within six  months  from  the date DHS  notifies  the Web
Services  User of  the system update,  then  the Web  Services  User’s  E-Verify  account  may  be suspended,  and
support  for previous  releases  of  E-Verify  may  no longer  be available to the Web Services  User.   The  Web
Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  also acknowledges  that  DHS  may  suspend the Web Services  User’s  account
after  the six-month period has  elapsed.

5. The Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  to  incorporate  error  handling  logic  into  its  development
or software to accommodate and act in a timely fashion should an error code be returned.

Page 14 of 25 E-Verify MOU for Employers Using a Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent | Revision Date 06/01/13 

2211718571783



 Company ID Number: Client Company ID Number:  

6. The Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent agrees to complete the technical requirements  testing which is
confirmed upon receiving approval of test data and connectivity between the Web Services E-Verify  Employer
Agent and DHS.

7. DHS  will  not  reimburse any  Web  Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  or  software  developer  who has expended
resources  in the development  or  maintenance of  a Web Services  interface  if  that  party  is unable,  or becomes
unable,  to  meet  any  of  the requirements  set  forth  in  this  MOU.

8. Housing,  development,  infrastructure,  maintenance,  and  testing  of  the Web  Services  applications may  take
place outside the United States  and its  territories,  but  testing must  be  conducted to ensure that  the  code is
correct  and secure.

9. If  the Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  includes  an electronic  Form  I-9 as  part  of  its  interface, then it
must  comply  with the standards  for electronic  retention of  Form  I-9 found in 8  CFR  274a.2(e).

B. INFORMATION SECURITY  REQUIREMENTS

Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agents  performing verification services  under  this  MOU  must  ensure that 
information  that  is  shared between  the Web  Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  and  DHS  is  appropriately 
protected  comparable to the  protection provided when the  information is  within the DHS  environment  [OMB 
Circular  A-130  Appendix  III].  

To  achieve this  level  of  information security,  the  Web  Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  to institute  the 
following  procedures:   

1. Conduct  periodic  assessments  of  risk,  including  the magnitude  of  harm that  could result  from  the
unauthorized access,  use,  disclosure,  disruption,  modification,  or  destruction of  information  and information 
systems  that  support  the  operations  and assets  of  the DHS,  SSA,  and the Web  Services E-Verify  Employer  Agent
and its clients;

2. Develop policies  and procedures  that  are based  on risk  assessments,  cost-effectively  reduce information
security  risks  to  an acceptable level,  and ensure  that  information security  is  addressed throughout  the life
cycle of  each  organizational  information system;

3. Implement  subordinate plans  for  providing  adequate information security  for  networks,  facilities,
information systems,  or  groups  of  information systems,  as  appropriate;

4. Conduct  security  awareness  training to  inform the  Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent’s personnel
(including  contractors  and  other  users  of  information systems  that  support  the  operations and assets  of  the
organization)  of  the  information  security  risks  associated  with their  activities  and their responsibilities  in
complying  with organizational  policies  and procedures  designed to reduce  these risks;

5. Develop periodic  testing and evaluation of  the  effectiveness  of  information security  policies, procedures,
practices,  and security  controls  to  be  performed with a  frequency  depending  on  risk,  but  no less  than  once per
year;

Page  15  of 25  E-Verify  MOU  for  Employers  Using  a Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  | Revision Date 06/01/13 

2211718571783



           

Company ID Number:  Client Company ID Number:  

6. Develop a  process  for planning,  implementing,  evaluating,  and  documenting remedial  actions  to address
any  deficiencies  in the  information security  policies,  procedures,  and practices  of  the organization;

7. Implement  procedures  for  detecting,  reporting,  and responding to  security  incidents;

8. Create plans  and procedures  to ensure  continuity  of  operations  for  information systems  that  support the
operations  and assets  of  the  organization;

9. In  information-sharing environments,  the  information owner  is  responsible for  establishing the  rules for
appropriate use  and  protection of  the subject  information and  retains  that  responsibility  even when the
information is  shared  with or  provided to other organizations  [NIST SP  800-37].

10. DHS  reserves  the right  to restrict  Web  Services  calls  from  certain IP  addresses.

11. DHS  reserves  the right  to audit  the  Web  Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent’s  application.

12. Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agents  and Software Developers  agree  to  cooperate willingly with the
DHS  assessment  of  information security  and privacy  practices  used by  the  company  to develop and maintain
the software.

C. DATA  PROTECTION AND PRIVACY  REQUIREMENTS

1. Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agents  must  practice  proper Internet  security;  this  means  using HTTP  over
SSL/TLS  (also known as  HTTPS)  when accessing  DHS  information resources  such  as
E-Verify  [NIST SP  800-95].   Internet  security  practices  like  this  are  necessary  because Simple  Object Access
Protocol (SOAP),  which provides  a basic  messaging framework  on which Web  Services  can be built,  allows
messages to be viewed or  modified by  attackers  as  messages  traverse the  Internet  and is not  independently
designed with all  the necessary  security  protocols  for  E-Verify  use.

2. In accordance  with DHS  standards,  the  Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  to  maintain physical,
electronic,  and procedural  safeguards  to  appropriately  protect  the  information  shared  under this  MOU  against
loss,  theft,  misuse,  unauthorized access,  and  improper  disclosure,  copying  use, modification or  deletion.

3. Any  data  transmission requiring  encryption shall  comply  with the following  standards:

• Products  using  FIPS  197  Advanced Encryption Standard (AES)  algorithms  with at  least  256-bit
encryption that  has  been validated under  FIPS  140-2.

• NSA  Type 2 or  Type 1  encryption.

4. User ID  Management  (Set  Standard):  All  information exchanged  between the  parties  under  this MOU  will
be done only  through authorized Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  representatives identified  above.

5. The Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  to  use  the  E-Verify  browser  instead of  its  own interface  if
it  has  not  yet  upgraded its  interface  to  comply  with the Federal  Acquisition Regulation (FAR) system  changes.
In addition,  Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agents  whose interfaces  do not  support  the Form I-9 from
2/2/2009 or 8/7/2009 should also use the E-Verify browser until the system upgrade is completed.

Page 16 of 25 E-Verify MOU for Employers Using a Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent | Revision Date 06/01/13 

2211718571783



 

            

Company ID Number:  Client Company ID Number: 

6. The Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  to  use  the  E-Verify  browser  instead of  its  own interface
if  it  has  not  completed updates  to its  system  within six  months  from  the date DHS  notifies  the Web Services 
E-Verify  Employer  Agent  of  the  system update.   The Web  Services  E-Verify  Employer Agent  can  resume  use
of  its  interface once it  is  up-to-date,  unless  the  Web  Services  E-Verify  Employer Agent  has  been suspended
or  terminated  from  continued use of  the  system.

D.  COMMUNICATIONS

1. Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agents  and Software Developers  agree  to  develop an electronic system
that  is  not  subject  to any  agreement  that  would restrict  access  to  and use of  by  an  agency  of the United
States.

2. The Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  to  develop effective  controls  to  ensure  the integrity,
accuracy  and reliability  of  its  electronic  system.

3. The Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  to  develop an inspection and  quality  assurance program
that  regularly,  at  least  once  per  year,  evaluates  the  electronic  system,  and  includes  periodic checks  of
electronically  stored  information.   The Web  Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  to share the results  of  its
regular inspection and  quality  assurance program  with DHS  upon  request.

4. The Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  to  develop an electronic  system  with the ability to
produce legible copies  of  applicable notices,  letters,  etc.

5. All  information exchanged between the  parties  under  this  MOU  will  be in accordance  with applicable laws, 
regulations,  and  policies,  including  but  not  limited to,  information security  guidelines  of  the sending  party
with respect  to any  information that  is  deemed Personally  Identifiable Information  (PII), including  but  not
limited to the  employee or applicant’s  Social  Security  number,  alien number,  date  of birth,  or  other
information that  may  be used  to  identify  the  individual.

6. Suspected and  confirmed information  security  breaches  must  be  reported to  DHS  according to Article
II.A.17.   Reporting such breaches  does  not  relieve the Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent from  further
requirements  as directed  by  state and local  law.   The Web Services  E-Verify  Employer Agent  is  subject  to
applicable state  laws  regarding data  protection  and incident  reporting in addition  to the requirements  herein.

E. SOFTWARE DEVELOPER  RESTRICTIONS

1. The Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  that  if  it  develops  a Web  Services  interface  and sells
such interface,  then  it  can  be held liable for  any  misuse by  the  company  that  purchases  the interface.   It  is
the  responsibility  of  the Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  to ensure that  its interface  is  used  in
accordance with E-Verify  policies  and procedures.

2. The Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  to  provide software updates  to each client  who
purchases  its  software.  Because of  the  frequency  Web  Services  updates,  an ongoing  relationship between
the software developer  and the  client  is  necessary.

Page 17 of 25 E-Verify MOU for Employers Using a Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent | Revision Date 06/01/13 

2211718571783



             

 Company ID Number: Client Company ID Number:  

3. DHS  reserves  the right  to terminate the  access  of  any  software developer  with or  without  notice  who
creates  or uses  an interface that  does  not  comply  with E-Verify  procedures.

4. Web  Services  Software Developers  pursuing  software development  independent  of  serving  clients as  a Web 
Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  are  not  eligible to receive an  ICA.   At  this  time,  E-Verify does  not  permit  Web
Services  software development  without  also  being a  Web  Services  E-Verify Employer  Agent  or  Web Services
Employer.

F. PENALTIES

1. The Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  that  any  failure on its  part  to comply  with the terms
of  the  MOU  may  result  in account  suspension,  termination,  or  other  adverse action.

2. DHS  is  not  liable for  any  financial  losses  to  Web  Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent,  its  clients,  or any  other
party  as  a result  of  your  account  suspension or  termination.

ARTICLE  VI 
MODIFICATION  AND  TERMINATION 

A. MODIFICATION

1. This  MOU  is  effective upon the  signature of  all  parties  and  shall  continue in effect  for  as  long as  the SSA
and  DHS operates  the E-Verify  program  unless  modified in writing by  the mutual  consent  of  all parties.

2. Any  and all  E-Verify  system  enhancements  by  DHS  or  SSA,  including  but  not limited to E-Verify checking
against  additional  data sources  and instituting new  verification  policies  or  procedures, will be covered under
this  MOU  and will  not  cause  the  need for  a  supplemental  MOU  that  outlines  these changes.

B. TERMINATION

1. The Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  may  terminate this  MOU and  its  participation  in  E-Verify at  any
time upon  30 days  prior written notice to the other  parties.  In  addition,  any  Employer represented by  the Web
Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  may  voluntarily  terminate its  MOU  upon giving  DHS  30  days’  written notice.
The Web Services  E-Verify  Employer Agent  may  not  refuse to terminate the Employer  based upon an
outstanding bill  for verification services.

2. Notwithstanding  Article  V, part A  of this  MOU, DHS  may  terminate  this  MOU,  and thereby  the  Web Services
E-Verify  Employer  Agent’s  participation in E-Verify,  with  or  without  notice at  any  time if deemed necessary
because of  the  requirements  of  law  or  policy,  or upon a determination  by  SSA  or DHS  that  there has  been  a
breach of  system integrity  or  security  by the  Web Services  E-Verify Employer  Agent  or  Employer,  or a  failure on
the  part  of  either party  to  comply  with  established E-Verify procedures  and/or  legal  requirements.  The
Employer  understands  that  if  it  is  a Federal  contractor, termination of  this  MOU  by  any  party  for  any  reason
may  negatively  affect  the  performance of  its contractual  responsibilities.   Similarly,  the  Employer  understands
that  if  it  is  in a state  where E-Verify is mandatory,  termination of  this  by  any  party  MOU  may  negatively  affect
the  Employer’s  business.

Page 18 of 25 E-Verify MOU for Employers Using a Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent | Revision Date 06/01/13 

2211718571783



            

Company ID Number:  Client Company ID Number:  

3. A  Web  Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  for  an  Employer  that  is  a  Federal  contractor may terminate this  MOU
when the  Federal  contract  that requires  its  participation in E-Verify  is  terminated or completed.  In such  cases,
the Web  Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  must  provide written notice  to DHS.   If  the Web Services  E-Verify
Employer  Agent  fails  to  provide such notice,  then  that  Employer  will remain an E-Verify  participant,  will  remain
bound  by  the terms  of  this  MOU  that  apply  to  non-Federal contractor  participants,  and will  be required  to  use
the  E-Verify  procedures  to verify  the  employment eligibility  of  all  newly  hired employees.

4. The Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  agrees  that  E-Verify  is  not  liable for  any  losses, financial  or
otherwise,  if  the Web  Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  or  the Employer  is  terminated from E-Verify.

ARTICLE  VII 
PARTIES 

A. Some  or  all  SSA  and  DHS  responsibilities  under  this  MOU  may  be performed by  contractor(s),  and SSA  and
DHS  may  adjust  verification  responsibilities  between each  other  as  necessary.  By  separate agreement  with
DHS,  SSA  has  agreed to perform  its  responsibilities  as described in this  MOU.

B. Nothing in this  MOU  is  intended,  or  should be  construed,  to create any  right  or  benefit,  substantive or
procedural,  enforceable at  law  by  any  third party  against  the  United States,  its  agencies,  officers, or
employees,  or against  the Web  Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent,  its  agents,  officers,  or  employees.

C. The Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  may  not  assign,  directly  or  indirectly,  whether  by operation of
law,  change  of  control  or  merger,  all  or  any  part  of  its  rights  or obligations  under  this  MOU without  the prior
written  consent  of  DHS,  which consent  shall  not  be  unreasonably  withheld or  delayed. Any  attempt to
sublicense,  assign,  or  transfer  any  of  the  rights,  duties,  or  obligations  herein is  void.

D. Each  party  shall  be solely  responsible for  defending  any  claim  or action  against  it  arising  out  of  or related
to E-Verify  or this  MOU,  whether  civil  or  criminal,  and for  any  liability  wherefrom,  including (but not  limited  to)
any  dispute between  the Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  or  the Employer  and any  other  person  or  entity
regarding the  applicability  of  Section  403(d)  of  IIRIRA  to  any  action taken  or allegedly  taken  by  the  Web
Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  or  the  Employer.

E. The Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  understands  that  its  participation in E-Verify  is  not confidential
information and may  be disclosed  as  authorized or  required  by  law  and DHS  or  SSA  policy, including  but  not
limited to,  Congressional  oversight,  E-Verify  publicity  and media inquiries, determinations  of  compliance with
Federal  contractual  requirements,  and  responses  to inquiries  under the Freedom of  Information  Act (FOIA).

F. The  individuals  whose signatures  appear  below  represent  that they  are  authorized to enter  into  this MOU
on behalf  of  the Employer,  the Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  and  DHS  respectively. The Web Services 
E-Verify Employer Agent understands that any inaccurate statement, representation, data or other information 
provided to DHS may subject the Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent, as the case may be, its subcontractors, 
its employees, or its representatives to: (1) prosecution for false statements pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or; (2) 
immediate termination of its MOU and/or; (3) possible debarment or suspension.

Page 19 of 25 E-Verify MOU for Employers Using a Web Services E-Verify Employer Agent | Revision Date 06/01/13 

2211718571783



Company ID Number:  Client Company ID Number:  

 

G. The foregoing constitutes the  full agreement on this subject between DHS,  the Employer, and the E-Verify 
Employer Agent.       (Employer) hereby designates and appoint 

(E-Verify Employer Agent) including its officers and employees, 
as the E-Verify Employer Agent for the purpose of carrying out (Employer) responsibilities under the MOU 
between the Employer, the E-Verify Employer Agent, and DHS.
If you have any questions, contact E-Verify at 1-888-464-4218. 

Page  20  of 25  E-Verify  MOU  for  Employers  Using  a Web Services  E-Verify  Employer  Agent  | Revision Date 06/01/13 

Paylocity Corporation
Entech Computer Services

2211718571783



 

 

  

  

    

  

 

 

   

  

    

  

Company ID Number:   Client Company ID Number:   

Approved by: 
Employer 

Name (Please Type or Print) Title 

Signature Date 

E-Verify Employer Agent

Name (Please Type or Print) Title 

Signature Date 

Department of Homeland Security – Verification Division 

Name (Please Type or Print) Title 

Signature Date 

Page 21   of 25   E-Verify   MOU   for   Employers   Using  a Web Services   E-Verify   Employer   Agent   | Revision Date 06/01/13  

Paylocity Corporation

Ainsley Lump

Entech Computer Services

2211718

Elizabeth Watson

571783



   

 

  

  

  

 

  

 

  

   

   

 

  

  

  

 

  

 

  

   

Company ID Number:   Client Company ID Number:   

Information Required   for   the   E-Verify   Program   

Information relating to your Company: 

Company Name 

Company Facility Address 

Company Alternate Address 

County or Parish 

Employer Identification Number 

North American Industry 
Classification Systems Code 

Parent Company 

Number of Employees 

Number of Sites Verified for 

Page 22 of 25 E-Verify MOU for Employers   Using  a Web Services   E-Verify Employer Agent  | Revision Date   06/01/13  

Entech Computer Services

LEE

2211718

541

20 to 99

571783

5276 Summerlin Commons Way
Suite 701
Fort Myers, FL 33907

651005763

1 site(s)



           

Company ID Number:  Client Company ID Number:  

Are you verifying for more than 1 site? If yes, please provide the number of sites verified for in 
each State: 

Page 23 of 25 E-Verify MOU for Employers  Using  a Web Services  E-Verify Employer Agent  | Revision  Date  06/01/13 

FL 1

2211718571783



        
 

Company ID Number:  Client Company ID Number:  

Information relating to the Program Administrator(s) for your Company on policy questions or 
operational problems:  

Page 24 of 25 E-Verify MOU for Employers  Using  a Web Services  E-Verify Employer Agent  | Revision  Date  06/01/13 

Email

2396006596
Ainsley Lump

2211718571783

Name
Phone Number
Fax

ainsley.lump@entechus.com



Company ID Number Client Company ID Number:  :  

This list represents the first 20 Program Administrators listed for this company. 

Page 25 of 25 E-Verify MOU for Employers  Using  a Web Services  E-Verify Employer Agent  | Revision  Date  06/01/13 

2211718571783



Thursday, November 30, 2023 

Mike Coates, Executive Director 

Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority 
9415 Town Center Parkway 
Suite 100 
Lakewood Ranch, FL 34202 

Mr. Coates, 

Below, please find a typewritten version of the Contractor Services Rate Sheet, included in our 
Statement of Qualifications (SOQ).  

Standard IT Support Services: 

• System Support Engineer: $175/hr*

Please note: Entech utilizes a flat billing model and does not charge a premium for senior staff for IT 
support services.   

Standard IT Project Management, Engineering & Deployment Services: 

• Tier 2 (Intermediate) Project Engineering and/or Project Deployment: $150/hr*

• Tier 3 Project Engineering and/or Project Deployment: $200/hr*

• Tier 4 Senior Project Engineer: $225/hr*

• Project Coordination & Management: $175/hr*

Please note: Entech does not provide Tier 1 Support or Project Engineers as part of any solution. 
*After business hours or holidays, billable rates are 1.5x rates listed above.

Please let me know if you should have any further needs. 

Sincerely, 

David Spire 
Executive Vice President & Chief Revenue Officer 

Tampa  |  Bradenton  |  Sarasota  |  Fort Myers  |  Naples 



 

C o n f i d e n t i a l  I n f o r m a t i o n  -  P a g e  | 17 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Additional Company Information 

 

Section 13. 



 

C o n f i d e n t i a l  I n f o r m a t i o n  -  P a g e  | 18 

C
o

re
 D

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

to
rs

   A Team-based Delivery Creates Scalability  

Entech uses a team-based approach to deliver all our client services. We do this to capitalize on 
our employees' strengths and minimize their weaknesses. It allows each team to deliver specific 
aspects of our service with the highest success rate and best possible outcomes. In addition, it 
eliminates layers of management, improves client and peer relationships, increases productivity 
and efficiencies, and provides balance within our organization and with our employees. We divide 
our client services into the following 6 teams. 
 
 

 
Service Desk: The Service Desk is responsible for delivering high levels of client satisfaction, 
as well as our SLA compliance, by resolving reactive, end-user support requests. Entech has 
three service desk teams made up of a team lead and 3-5 engineers per team. The Service 
Desk teams deliver 70-75% of all service hours across Entech’s client base. Therefore, most 
of the Service Department’s resources are assigned to these three teams.   

 
Network Operation Center: The NOC is responsible for delivering all aspects of our proactive 
maintenance, device monitoring, data security, compliance, and reporting. This team is 
made up of highly specialized engineers.  

 
Projects: Our Project team delivers all planned infrastructure initiatives. This could include, 
but is not limited to, cloud migrations, server and infrastructure upgrades, office moves, 
large workstation deployments, audits and assessments, as well as new client onboardings. 

 
IT Strategy: Our IT strategy team is made up of 8 full-time Partner Managers. Each Strategy 
Manager is assigned to a specific service desk team. This ensures that this Strategy Manager 
can deliver like-kind solutions and be exposed to common workflows across his assigned 
client base. 

 
Customer Finance: Most organizations believe their accounting/finance departments are 
“back office” functions, but not Entech. We understand that the finance department has a 
major responsibility in building trust with our clients through accuracy and simplicity of the 
invoicing and collections process. Our Finance team is made up of our CFO, Controller, AR 
Clerk, and AP Clerk.  

 
Procurement: The Procurement team is there to streamline IT purchases and remove 
another layer of overhead from our client’s. Our industry expertise combined with the 
world’s largest IT distribution partners allow our procurement team to ensure our clients 
always have the right solution, big or small.   

 

 



 

C o n f i d e n t i a l  I n f o r m a t i o n  -  P a g e  | 19 

C
o

re
 D

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

to
rs

   Data Driven Results 

At Entech we hire true seasoned professionals, give the specific success metrics, and then get out 
of their way and allow them to perform. Each member of our team has certain Key Performance 
Indictors (KPI’s) they are expected to deliver, based on role, and we keep track of these number 
through a host of Business Intelligence (BI) tools. Below are a few examples of how we measure 
and correct in real time. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 



 

C o n f i d e n t i a l  I n f o r m a t i o n  -  P a g e  | 20 

C
o

re
 D

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

to
rs

  Our People 

Hiring Strategy:  
Our philosophy is to hire talented engineers that have many years of experience 
across the IT industry or, more preferably, the IT managed services provider space. 
This allows us to assign tickets to all of our engineers based on priority level, rather 

than based on availability of an engineer with an adequate skill level to accomplish the ticket’s 
tasks. Our engineers are also “jacks-of-all-trades,” versus specialists in a specific area, such as 
Servers, Networking, or Security. 
 
When hiring a new engineer, we look for culture fit and adherence to our core values above all 
else. If an engineer can’t consistently deliver white-glove customer service and translate their 
years of knowledge into easy-to-understand explanations, it doesn’t matter what their level of 
technical skill is. Our clients expect friendly, personable engineers, and we work very hard to find 
the right people that can deliver that expectation.  

 
 

Training and Certifications:  
Entech maintains a strategic partnership with Microsoft through core competencies 
and training. Entech recently obtained a Microsoft Gold Small and Midmarket Cloud 
Solutions competency. This competency’s requirements focus on demonstrated 

Office 365 performance through customer references, net-new Office 365 customers within the 
previous twelve months, and training of an organization’s engineers. 
 
Entech also partners with SonicWall as our firewall vendor of choice. Engineers learn through a 
series of trainings when they first come onboard with Entech (SonicWALL University) along with 
annual in-house training from SonicWall's Southeast Security Solutions Architect. This partnership 
allows our engineers to become experts on the deployment and maintenance of SonicWALL 
appliance.  
  
Beyond our strategic partnerships, we encourage our engineers to pursue any technical 
certification tracks that they feel can increase their knowledge and provide value to our customers. 
Our engineers hold certifications focused on IT Security, Networking, Project Delivery, Cloud 
Solutions, Server Virtualization, Voice over IP, Computer Hardware, Remote Management Tools, 
Data Backup, and more. 

 
 

Cross training:  
We don’t dedicate engineers to specific accounts because, just as we want our 
engineers to be well versed in many different IT technologies, we want our engineers 
to serve a diverse client base. This increases their overall skill and allows them to use 

the knowledge, which they gain from working in multiple diverse client environments across 
multiple diverse industries, to solve problems and increase business efficiencies. 



 

C o n f i d e n t i a l  I n f o r m a t i o n  -  P a g e  | 21 

C
o

re
 D

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

to
rs

   The Client Experience 

In the simplest terms, our singular goal is to deliver unparalleled customer service. The way we 
achieve this goal? Do the “right thing” every time. How does every Entech employee know what 
the “right thing” is? That’s even simpler. We hire people that truly believe in the principle of the 
Golden Rule and live their lives by adhering to our organization’s Core Values: Integrity, Team, 
Understanding, Fun, and Trust.  
 
Finding the right people isn’t easy and doesn’t happen by accident. It often means passing on 
highly talented and touted engineers, but it’s a strategy that lays the foundation for us to build 
and deliver our “Secret Sauce.”  
 
All Managed Service Providers say they deliver the same IT Services: patching, monitoring, help 
desk, escalations, IT strategy, etc. We believe it’s not the services that are the special ingredients 
or differentiators--it’s how you deliver them and the results you deliver that make up our award-
winning recipe.  
 
Our ingredients are our core values and philosophies, our delivery framework and controls, our 
department structure and leadership, and our people. 
 

 Our Core Values 

• Integrity – Uphold the principle of the Golden Rule. 
Always do what’s right, honest, and moral. 

• Team – Be a group of people working together to 
achieve a singular goal. 

• Understanding – Be sympathetic, aware, and 
compassionate. Put yourself in the other person’s 
shoes.  

• Fun – Enjoy what you do and have fun doing it. 
Celebrate the wins! 

• Trust – Trust is the desired outcome of the core values 
and living by our philosophies.  

 



 

Page 20 of 21  

Exhibit C 
Authority  Resolution 2018-01 Resolution Establishing Per Diem and Travel Expenses 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 







 

Page 21 of 21  

Exhibit D 
Certificate of Insurance 

 
 



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXPTYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT 

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE

$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE
CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $
PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N
N / A

(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

1/17/2024

(312) 595-6200

20508

Entech Computer Services, LLC
5276 Summerlin Commons Way Ste 701
Fort Myers, FL 33907

22608
19445
00914
42374

A 1,000,000

7013673566 3/7/2023 3/7/2024 1,000,000
10,000

2,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000

EB AGGREGATE 2,000,000
1,000,000B

GMI-0215-02 3/7/2023 3/7/2024

5,000,000C
EBU033093506 3/7/2023 3/7/2024 5,000,000

D
83WECAV20A5 3/7/2023 3/7/2024 1,000,000

1,000,000
1,000,000

E Prof/Tech E&O/Cyber H23TG3322900 3/14/2023 Prof Liability 2,000,000

Management Liability
Policy #768743072
Effective Date: 11/01/2023-5/1/2025
Limits:
Directors and Officers - $3,000,000
Employment Practices -$3,000,000
Fiduciary - $1,000,000
SEE ATTACHED ACORD 101

Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority
9415 Town Center Parkway
Suite 100
Lakewood Ranch, FL 34202

ENTECOM-02 SWILLIAMS

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc.
353 N Clark St 11th Fl
Chicago, IL 60654

Valley Forge Insurance Company
National Specialty Insurance Company
National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, Pa.

Hartford Insurance Group
Houston Casualty Company

X

3/14/2024

X
X

X

X
X



FORM NUMBER:

EFFECTIVE DATE:

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE

FORM TITLE:

Page           of

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,

ACORD 101 (2008/01)

AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:
LOC #:

AGENCY NAMED INSURED

POLICY NUMBER

CARRIER NAIC CODE

© 2008 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc.

ENTECOM-02

SEE PAGE 1

1

SEE PAGE 1

ACORD 25 Certificate of Liability Insurance

5

SEE P 1

Entech Computer Services, LLC
5276 Summerlin Commons Way Ste 701
Fort Myers, FL 33907

SEE PAGE 1

SWILLIAMS

1

Description of Operations/Locations/Vehicles:
Crime - $1,000,000

Excess Professional Liability    
Policy # EKS3470273  
Effective Date:  3/14/2023 - 3/14/24                    
Limit-  $3,000,000 (Excess of $2,000,000)

Certificate issued as evidence of insurance



PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 7, 2024 

CONSENT AGENDA 
ITEM 5 

Phase 3C Regional Interconnect – Purchase of Pipeline Easements 
 

Recommended Action - Motion to approve Purchase of Two (2) Permanent 
Pipeline Easements and Two (2) Temporary Construction 
Easements and One (1) Co-Location Agreement for the 
Phase 3C Regional Interconnect and Authorization for the 
Chairman and Executive Director to execute the NON-
EXCLUSIVE PERMANENT WATER MAIN 
EASEMENT AGREEMENTS and TEMPORARY 
CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT AGREEMENTS, and 
other documents necessary to close on the easement 
purchases within the Phase 3C Easement Package #3. 

 
The Regional Integrated Loop Phase 3C Pipeline Project includes approximately 8 miles of 42-inch 
diameter pipeline.  The pipeline route begins near State Road 72 and Cow Pen Slough Canal and extends 
generally north to the vicinity of the Fruitville and Lorraine Roads intersection where it will connect with 
Sarasota County utilities existing infrastructure. The Project is scheduled for substantial completion by 
March 1, 2025.  On April 6, 2022, the Board approved Resolution 2022-03 determining the necessity for 
construction of the Phase 3C Regional Interconnect Pipeline and identifying the route for the pipeline.  Two 
amendments to Resolution 2022-03 (Amendment 1, April 5, 2023, Amendment 2, June 7, 2023) have been 
approved providing for revision of the originally approved pipeline route, and authorizing acquisition of 
property rights necessary to construct and operate the Phase 3C Pipeline project.  
 
Board authorization is requested to purchase the easements listed below and enter into a co-location 
agreement with the Gator Creek HOA (Phase 3C Easement Package # 3) for the selling prices below, and 
for the Chairman and Executive Director to execute the documents necessary to complete the purchase 
including closing costs and/or legal fees.  
 

Permanent Easement # Perm. Easement 
Area (Ac) 

Temporary 
Easement # 

Temp. Easement 
Area (Ac) 

Total Selling 
Price 

808 0.1861 708 0.2778 $62,500.00 

809 0.2161 709 0.3204 $102,500.00 
Gator Creek Improvement 
Association, Inc. (HOA)  1.928(1) - - $70,500.00 

1. The length of the co-location agreement within the 20’ bridal easement is approximately 4,200’ long representing 1.928 acres. 
 
Budget Action – No action is required. Funds for these materials will come from the Authority’s $100M 
Line of Credit.  
 
Attachments: 
Phase 3C Easement Package #3 



Parcel # 

Permanent 

Easement 

No.

Permanemnt 

Easement 

Area (Ac)

Temporary 

Easement 

No.

Temporary 

Easement 

Area (Ac)

Total Selling 

Amount
Owner 

Board Package w/ 

R/W Agreement 

(Board Date)

1  800  na 700  na na  

2  801  0.3234 701  0.1836 68,100$               Walters  1 (6/7/2023)

3  802  3.0759 702  1.5493 257,520$           
Gator Creek Golf Club 

Inc. 
1 (6/7/2023)

4  803  10.7974 703  5.4087 708,000$           
Preserve at Misty Creek 

Golf Club
2 (8/2/2023)

5  804  0.7531 704  0.3598  $             45,600 
Preserve at Misty Creek 

Homeowners Assn Inc 
1 (6/7/2023)

6  805  1.4414 705  0.7098  $             88,000 
Preserve at Misty Creek 

Homeowners Assn Inc 
1 (6/7/2023)

7  806  706 
 

 

8  807  0.1906 707  0.2699  $      113,900.00  DOBALA
Court Order 

12/18/2023

9  808  0.1861 708  0.2778  $        62,500.00  SWIATKOWSKI 3 (2/7/2024)

10  809  0.2161 709  0.3204  $      102,500.00  FREDRIKSEN 3 (2/7/2024)

11  810  0.1658 710  0.2472  $             26,200  ROSS 1 (6/7/2023)

12  811  0.165 711  0.2475  $             26,040  SQUATTRITO 1 (6/7/2023)

13  812  0.1459 712  0.2216  $             23,089  VROOM 1 (6/7/2023)

14  813  0.1511 713  0.2291  $             23,876  E & C 45 LLC  1 (6/7/2023)

15  814  0.1995 714  0.2992  $             69,347  BRUNCKHORST
Court Order 

10/20/23

16 815 0.052 715 0.438  $             14,217  ARTISTRY PHASE 1A 2 (8/2/2023)

17 816 716
 

18 817 717

Phase 3C Property Acquisition



PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

REQUEST FOR BOARD APPROVAL 

At the recommendation of counsel, the following Parcels for the Phase 3C – Regional Integrated 
Loop System have been negotiated and approved for execution by counsel representing the 
landowners. 

1.) Parcel 708/808 – Permanent Easement and Temporary Construction 
Easements for Parcel Tax ID: 0293010380 – John M. Swiatowski and Therese M. Swiatowski 

The landowner has already executed the attached easements and, subject to Board approval, are 
ready to complete the purchase/sale.  Please see Composite Exhibit A comprising of the easements. 

2.) Parcel 709/809 - Permanent Easement and Temporary Construction 
Easements for Parcel Tax ID: 0293010390 - STEPHEN A. FREDRIKSEN and SHEILA M. 
FREDRIKSEN, AS TRUSTEES OF FREDRIKSEN FAMILY TRUST u/a/d AUGUST 13, 
2018 

Counsel for the landowner is expected to have the landowner’s executed easement agreements by 
January 31, 2024.  Please see Composite Exhibit B comprising of the easements for execution.   

Parcel(s) Client Owner Fees Costs Full Compensation
808/708 Swaitowski $50,528 $6,972 $5,000 $62,500

Parcel(s) Client Owner Fees Costs Full Compensation
809/709 Fredricksen $80,000 $19,000 $3,500 $102,500



COMPOSITE EXHIBIT A







































Stewart Title Guaranty Company

TITLE SEARCH REPORT

File #: FL901699 Associated File # 12909215

Stewart Title Guaranty Company and/or their agent has searched the Sarasota County, Florida records for the period shown relative to
title to the real property described below, and provides the following title search report (TSR) for Vantage Point Title OE

Search Type: FL RES Cash Sale, Order Confirmation

The search period was to 2/3/2023 at 08:00 AM.

Property
Address: 0 Gator Creek Boulevard, Sarasota FL 34241

Seller: John M. Swiatkowski and Therese M. Swiatkowski
Buyer/Borrower: Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority

Title Vested In: John M. Swiatkowski and Therese M. Swiatkowski, husband and wife, by virtue of that certain Warranty Deed recorded
in Official Records Instrument 2021054150, of the Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida.

Interest or Estate (Fee Simple/Leasehold):    FEE SIMPLE

Legal Description

Lot 38, Gator Creek Estates, Unit 1, according to the plat thereof, recorded in Plat Book 23, Page 2, of the Public Records of
Sarasota County, Florida.

Taxes

[title] 2/8/2023 10:58:50 AM Page 1 of 3



Mortgages, Liens & Court

Record a Warranty Deed from John M. Swiatkowski and Therese M. Swiatkowski, to Peace River Manasota Regional Water
Supply Authority, an interlocal government entity of the State of Florida, conveying the property in Schedule "A". 
NOTE: If the grantors are individuals, and the property is homestead property, the spouse of said grantor must join in the execution
of the Deed. If not homestead, then a statement to that effect must be reflected on the Deed.

Affidavit from the current owner stating there are no open mortgages that would affect the subject property. The company reserves
the right to make such additional requirements as it may deem necessary.

Record a Termination of that certain Notice of Commencement recorded on 01/17/2023, in Official Records Instrument
2023008029, of the Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida in compliance with Section 713.132, Fla. Stat., together with the
Contractor's Final Affidavit listing all subcontractors, laborers and material men who have provided any services to the property and
who have not received final payment and
A. Obtain final lien waivers from the contractors, all subcontractors, laborers and material men who have provided any services to
the property if they are listed on the Final Contractor's Affidavit has not received Final Payment or have served a Notice to Owner to
the owner; and
B. Owners Affidavit must include the following in addition to the standard language:
(i) The names and addresses of all persons serving notice to owner.
(ii) A statement that all persons serving notice to owner have been paid in full.
NOTE: If there is ongoing construction or loss of priority, please contact underwriting.

Record a Termination of that certain Notice of Commencement recorded on 01/23/2023, in Official Records Instrument
2023011583, of the Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida in compliance with Section 713.132, Fla. Stat., together with the
Contractor's Final Affidavit listing all subcontractors, laborers and material men who have provided any services to the property and
who have not received final payment and
A. Obtain final lien waivers from the contractors, all subcontractors, laborers and material men who have provided any services to
the property if they are listed on the Final Contractor's Affidavit has not received Final Payment or have served a Notice to Owner to
the owner; and
B. Owners Affidavit must include the following in addition to the standard language:
(i) The names and addresses of all persons serving notice to owner.
(ii) A statement that all persons serving notice to owner have been paid in full.
NOTE: If there is ongoing construction or loss of priority, please contact underwriting.

Estoppel Certificate compliant with Florida Statute 720.30851 from Gator Creek Estates Improvement Association, Inc that all
assessments, (including but not limited to, special assessments or payments due to others such as master associations, etc.),
against the land described in Schedule 'A' herein, are paid in full to date and no violations exist.

The actual value of the estate or interest to be insured must be disclosed to the Company and subject to approval by the Company,
entered as the amount of the policy to be issued. Until the amount of the policy to be issued shall be determined, and entered as
aforesaid, it is agreed that as between the Company, the applicant for this commitment and every person relying on this
commitment, the Company cannot be required to approve any such evaluation in excess of this agency's pre-approved amount and
the total liability of the Company on account of this commitment shall not exceed said amount.

Payment of any and all Special Assessments, Bills, Charges or Municipal Liens levied and/or assessed.

Additional Matters of Record

General or special taxes and assessments for the year 2023 and subsequent years, which are not yet due and payable.

Any lien arising under Chapter 159, Florida Statutes, in favor of any city, town, village or port authority for unpaid service charges for
service by any water system, sewer system or gas system servicing the lands described herein.

All matters shown on the plat recorded in Plat Book 23, Page 2, of the Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida.

Covenants, conditions, easements and restrictions recorded in Official Records Book 1092, Page 159, and amended in Official
records Book 1095, Page 1440, of the Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida, together with all amendments thereto, which
may provide for association dues, fees and/or assessments, prior approval of sale, in addition to any easements, reservations,

[title] 2/8/2023 10:58:51 AM Page 2 of 3



covenants, building set back requirements, option to purchase, right of first refusal, and any special assessments which may come
due but omitting any such covenant based on race, color, religion, sex, familial status, national origin, handicap, sexual orientation,
marital status, ancestry, source of income, disability, medical condition, or other unlawful basis.

Non-participating, non-exclusive oil and gas royalty interest of 15% as granted by instrument recorded in Official Records Book
1025, Page 1483, of the Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida.

Restrictions, easements, and other matters recorded in Official Records Book 1664, Page 2084, of the Public Records of
Sarasota County, Florida.

NOTE: The following is for informational purposes only and is provided without any assurance or guarantee. 
Taxes and assessments for the year 2022 under Tax I.D. Number 0293010380, showing a gross amount of $6,377.65 were paid in
the amount of $6,122.54 on 11/15/2022.

NOTE: The following 24 month chain of title is shown for informational purposes only and not the purpose of insuring: 
Warranty Deed recorded on 03/26/2021, in Official Records Instrument 2021054150, of the Public Records of Sarasota County,
Florida.

County Notes

Tax Contact Info: 
(941) 861-8300 After you hear the recording, press 3

Tax Site: 
http://www.sarasotataxcollector.com/ContactUs.htm

Notice: This report, as written (and any supplements or amendments hereto), is issued solely for use in connection with the issuance of
Commitments for Title Insurance, Policies of Title Insurance, Preliminary and Final Judicial Reports, or Title Guaranties of Stewart Title
Guaranty Company. This report shall not be considered, nor used as a commitment or policy of title insurance.

THIS REPORT IS NOT AN ABSTRACT, EXAMINATION, REPORT, OR REPRESENTATION OF FACT OR TITLE AND DOES
NOT CREATE AND SHALL NOT BE THE BASIS OF ANY CLAIM FOR NEGLIGENCE, NEGLIGENT MISREPRESENTATION
OR OTHER TORT CLAIM OR ACTION. THE SOLE LIABILITY OF COMPANY AND ITS TITLE INSURANCE AGENT SHALL
ARISE UNDER AND BE GOVERNED BY THE CONDITIONS OF THE COMMITMENT

[title] 2/8/2023 10:58:51 AM Page 3 of 3



COMPOSITE EXHBIT B



COMPOSITE EXHIBIT B



This instrument prepared by and return to 
Steven R. Medendorp, Esq. 
Manson Bolves Donaldson & Tanner, P.A. 
109 N. Brush Street, Suite 300 
Tampa, FL 33602 
 
 

Parcel #: 809 

 

NON-EXCLUSIVE PERMANENT WATER MAIN EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

  

 THIS NON-EXCLUSIVE PERMANENT WATER EASEMENT AGREEMENT (the 
“Agreement”), is made and entered into this ______ day of ________________, 2024, by and 
between STEPHEN A. FREDRIKSEN and SHEILA M. FREDRIKSEN, AS TRUSTEES OF 
FREDRIKSEN FAMILY TRUST U/A/D AUGUST 13, 2018 (“Grantor”), whose address is 7551 
Tortoise Way, Sarasota, FL 34241, to PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER 
SUPPLY AUTHORITY, an interlocal governmental entity of the State of Florida (“Peace River” or 
“Grantee”), whose address is 9415 Town Center Parkway, Lakewood Ranch, Florida 34202. 

RECITALS: 

 

 WHEREAS, Grantee desires to construct, install, operate, maintain, replace, inspect, patrol, 
test, repair, relocate, remove, and upgrade an underground pipeline for the purpose of transporting 
water through and under the lands hereinafter described (the “Waterline”), along with the installation 
of appurtenant above-ground and below-ground pipes, valves and equipment (collectively the 
“Facilities”), to be located within the Easement Property (as defined below). 

 WHEREAS, Grantee has requested and Grantor grants a non-exclusive, permanent and 
perpetual easement to Grantee to construct, install, operate, maintain, replace, inspect, patrol, test, 
repair, relocate, replace, remove, and upgrade the above-mentioned Waterline and Facilities on the 
Easement Property (as defined below), on the terms set forth herein. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals, and the sum of Ten and No/100 
Dollars ($10.00), and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
is hereby acknowledged by Grantor, the parties agree as follows: 

1. To the extent applicable, the permanent, perpetual, non-exclusive waterline easement 
interests and rights acquired by Peace River over, above, across, through and under the Owner’s 
property located in Sarasota County, Florida are further described herein.  The applicability of any 
particular estate shall be determined by those interests and rights described and depicted on Exhibit 
“1” attached hereto (the “Easement Property”). 

 
2. Peace River shall have the right, privilege and easement for and to construct, install, 

operate, maintain, replace, inspect, patrol, test, repair, relocate, replace, remove, and upgrade an 
underground pipeline for the purpose of transporting water over, across, through and under the lands 



 
 

2 
 

hereinafter described (the “Waterline”), along with the installation of appurtenant above-ground and 
below-ground pipes, valves and equipment (collectively the “Facilities”), for the purpose of 
transporting water over, above, across, through and under the Easement Property in connecting the 
Peace River Authority Regional Integrated Loop Phase 3C Pipeline, beginning at the south side of 
Clark Road at Cow Pen Slough and terminating at the intersection of Lorraine Road and Fruitville 
Road in Sarasota County, Florida. Peace River agrees that the only permanent above-ground 
appurtenance to be constructed within the Easement Property may be a 24x24 concrete pad and 
identification plate over an access manhole presently delineated at St. 32+50 of its construction 
plans. 

 
3. Peace River’s easement rights, as described below, may be exercised by Peace 

River’s agents, employees, and representatives.  Those rights include the following: 
 

a. Peace River shall have the perpetual right, privilege and easement for and to 
construct, install, operate, maintain, replace, inspect, patrol, test, repair, replace, relocate, remove, 
and upgrade the Waterline and/or Facilities, which Waterline and Facilities shall be used for the 
purpose of transporting water over, above, across, through and under the Easement Property. 

 
b. Peace River shall have the right of ingress and egress from the Easement 

Property by means of the Easement Property and adjacent public or private roadways, easements 
or right-of-way owned or held by or lawfully available to Peace River, including any other 
property over which Peace River has access rights. 

 
c. Peace River agrees that no less than thirty (30) days prior to the 

replacement, removal or relocation of the Waterline and/or the Facilities, Peace River shall place 
Owners on notice of the proposed changes to Owners. 

 
d. Peace River shall have the right to excavate and refill ditches and trenches 

for the location of such Waterline and Facilities and further right to remove fences, trees, bushes, 
undergrowth, structures and any other obstructions interfering with the location, construction, 
operation, maintenance, repair, upgrade and replacement of such Waterline and/or Facilities so 
long as such improvements exist within the Easement Property. 

 
e. Peace River shall have the right, but not the obligation (without liability for 

damages), from time to time to re-clear the Easement Property by cutting and removing therefrom 
trees, brush, and other natural obstructions that may, in the reasonable judgment of Peace River or 
pursuant to regulatory requirements, injure, endanger or interfere with Peace River’s use of the 
Easement Property. 

 
f. Peace River shall not unreasonably restrict ingress or egress to Owners’ 

property abutting the Easement Property and shall use its best efforts to provide reasonable ingress 
and egress across the Easement Property for use of Owners.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Peace 
River shall be permitted to restrict ingress or egress to the Easement Property for safety purposes 



 
 

3 
 

only in Peace River’s reasonable discretion during periods of construction activity.  Recognizing 
that the location of the ingress and egress across the Easement Property may change due to 
construction activities and safety issues during the terms of this Agreement, Owners shall contact 
Peace River to determine the location of the ingress and egress across the Easement Property prior 
to accessing the Easement Property. 

 
g. After completion of construction activity, Peace River will remove all 

construction equipment and unused materials and will re-seed the Easement Property and other 
areas, if any, disturbed by the construction operations of Peace River.  Subject to Peace River’s 
rights hereunder and to the extent not inconsistent therewith, Peace River will restore the surface 
of all disturbed areas of the Easement Property to pre-construction elevations, contours, grades, 
and condition, as near as is reasonably practicable. 

 
4. The parties agree that this Agreement is non-exclusive in nature. 
 
5. As to the Permanent Easement, Owner(s) retains the right and may continue to use 

the Easement Property for any lawful purposes that does not interfere with Peace River’s rights 
acquired hereunder and improvement of such facilities, provided however that Owner(s) shall 
neither impound water, construct nor permit to be constructed any building, structure or other 
improvement upon the Easement Property which interferes with the exercise by Peace River of the 
rights hereby conveyed, including ingress and egress from the Easement Property, and the safe 
operation of the Waterline.  Owner(s) reserves the right to install, subject to the provisions of this 
Term Sheet, landscaping, roads, driveways, fences and underground utilities and other road paving 
installations as may be necessary for Owners’ development and enjoyment of the remainder 
property.  For safety and for the Peace River’s operational purposes, the use of the surface and 
subsurface of the Easement Property by Owners shall be subject to the following terms, conditions 
and limitations. 

 
a. Owners shall not enter upon or use the Easement Property while the Waterline 

and/or Facilities are being constructed, repaired, replaced or upgraded; 
 
b. Owners shall not obstruct or restrict Peace River’s use of the Easement 

Property in any manner; 
 
c. No excavation operations shall be undertaken within the Easement Property 

without five (5) days prior written notice to the Peace River and to the Florida Sunshine State One 
Call System or its successor; 

 
d. Construction activities and operations by the Owners on and/or under the 

Easement Property shall be subject to the prior written approval of Peace River for such operations, 
which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld; 

 



 
 

4 
 

e. Construction, installation, operation and maintenance activities by the Owner 
on or across the Easement Property and/or use of the surface or subsurface of the Easement Property 
shall be in compliance with all applicable statutes, rules, regulations, ordinances and codes of any 
governmental agency or entity having jurisdiction over the Easement Property and/or the operations 
being conducted; 

 
f. Installation and construction of any public or private utilities, including but 

not limited to, water, sewer, gas, electrical, fiber optic and/or telephone which impact or encroach 
on the Easement Property shall be subject to the following additional specific terms, conditions and 
limitations:  (1) construction and installation of all subsurface utility pipe or cables which cross the 
Easement Property shall be constructed and installed so as to maintain a separate distance of not less 
than eighteen inches (18”) or state-required minimum separation, whichever is greater, between such 
pipes and/or cables and Peace River’s Waterline pipe, and (2) no utilities shall be installed above the 
Easement Property or between the surface of the property and the top of the Waterline pipe; 

 
g. Installation and construction of any fences that impact or encroach on the 

Easement Property, after the initial construction of the Waterline, shall be subject to the following 
additional specific terms, conditions and limitations:  (1) no fence posts for any fences crossing the 
Easement Property perpendicularly shall be installed closer than ten feet (10’) on either side of Peace 
River’s Waterline pipe, and (2) any fences running parallel to the Easement Property shall be 
installed no closer than ten feet (10’) from the Peace River’s Waterline pipe; 

 
h. No construction of new canals, ditches or other open drainage facilities shall 

be constructed, nor use of explosives, intentional flooding or setting of fires shall be conducted, on 
or across the surface of the Easement Property without the prior written approval of Peace River; 

 
i. Installation and construction of any public or private roads or streets that 

impact or encroach on the Easement Property shall be subject to the prior written approval of Peace 
River for such operations, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.  Peace River shall 
have the right to utilize any road or street installed on or across the Easement Property as a means 
of ingress to, or egress from, the Easement Property and the use of the roads and/or streets 
constructed on or across the Easement Property shall be at the sole risk of the user; 

 
j. Planting or installation of any trees and/or landscaping that impacts or 

encroaches on the Easement Property, after the initial construction of the Waterline and/or Facilities, 
shall be subject to the following specific additional terms, conditions and limitations:  (1) any trees 
or shrubbery shall be shallow rooted; and (2) no trees or shrubbery shall be planted any closer than 
ten feet (10’) on either side of any Waterline or Facilities located on the Easement Property; 

 
k. Owners shall be responsible, at the sole cost and expense of Owners, for the 

repair or maintenance of any roads, streets, fences and/or subsurface utilities (excluding the 
Waterline and the Facilities), installed on or across the Easement Property and for the care and 



 
 

5 
 

maintenance of the trees, shrubbery and other landscaping planted by Owners on the Easement 
Property, including mowing the Easement Property; 

 
l. Peace River shall be responsible, at the sole cost and expense of the Peace 

River, for the repair and maintenance of the Waterline and the Facilities installed on or across the 
Easement Property. Other than restoration of the ground cover to pre-construction conditions, Peace 
River agrees not to install any landscaping within the Easement Property; and 

 
m. Operations by others on the Easement Property shall not impair or interfere 

with the rights granted to Peace River and shall not require the relocation or lowering of the 
Waterline pipe, decrease the ground cover of the Waterline pipe or change the contour of the ground 
surface over the Easement Property. 

 
6. Peace River agrees to provide Owners, either upon Owners’ request or at Peace 

River’s option, a prior written determination whether any particular exercise of the right to use the 
Easement Property by Owners does, or does not, directly interfere with the safe and efficient exercise 
of Peace River’s rights, which determination shall not be arbitrarily or unreasonably withheld, 
conditioned, or delayed. 

 
7. Owners shall not grant an easement on the Easement Property to a third party without 

the prior written consent of the Peace River.  Notwithstanding Owners may not grant an easement 
on the Easement Property to a third party which could, may or will negatively impact the Waterline 
and/or Facilities.  Peace River may assign the Waterline rights herein acquired, in whole or in part, 
and Peace River shall have the right to operate the Waterline and/or Facilities for its own use or to 
lease, sell, or assign any or all of the Waterline and Facilities or the rights thereto. However, any 
such purchaser, assignee, or lessee of Peace River assumes only the rights acquired herein and takes 
such title, assignment, or lease subject to this Agreement. 

 
8. Grantor represents to Grantee that the Easement Property is not leased, rented or 

occupied by any lessee or tenant. 
 
9. In the event of a dispute between the parties hereto relating to this Agreement, the 

prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred from the 
date of the dispute through any appeals, bankruptcy proceeding or to collect or enforce any judgment. 

 
10. The provisions of this Agreement shall run with the Easement Property and shall bind 

and inure to the benefit of the Grantor, Grantee and their respective heirs, successors, legal 
representatives and assigns. 

 
11. The above recitals are true, correct and incorporated herein. 
 
12. Grantor and Grantee each knowingly, voluntarily and intentionally waive any right 

to which either of them may have to a trial by jury with respect to any litigation or legal proceeding 



 
 

6 
 

based upon or arising directly, indirectly or otherwise in connection with, out of, related to or from 
this Agreement. 

 
13. This Agreement incorporates and describes all of the grants, undertakings, 

conditions, and consideration of the parties with respect to the Agreement.  Grantor, in executing 
and delivering this Agreement, represents that Grantor has authority to bind and execute this 
Agreement and have not relied upon any promises, inducements or representations of Grantee or its 
agents or employees, except as expressly set forth herein. 

 
14. This Agreement nay be executed in counterparts, all of which together shall constitute 

a single document. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[SIGNATURE PAGES TO FOLLOW] 

 



 
 

7 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement this _________ day of 
________________________, 2024. 

 

Signed, sealed and delivered   GRANTOR:  STEPHEN A. FREDRIKSEN 

in the presence of:      

_______________________________ By: ___________________________________ 

Printed Name: ____________________ As: Trustee of Fredriksen Family Trust u/a/d August 
13, 2018 

_______________________________ Address:_______________________________ 

Printed Name: ____________________ ______________________________________ 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF ________________________ 

The foregoing was acknowledged before me this ______ day of ___________________ 2024, by 
Stephen A. Fredriksen, as Trustee of Fredriksen Family Trust, u/a/d August 13, 2018, who is 
personally known to me; or produced a drivers license issued by the Florida Department of Motor 
Vehicles as identification; or produced the following as identification: 
___________________________________________________________________. 

       

      _____________________________________  

      Notary Public 

      Printed Name: _________________________ 

      My Commission Expires: ________________ 

      My Commission No: ____________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

8 
 

Signed, sealed and delivered   GRANTOR:  SHEILA M. FREDRIKSEN 

in the presence of:      

_______________________________ By: ___________________________________ 

Printed Name: ____________________ As: Trustee of Fredriksen Family Trust u/a/d August 
13, 2018 

 

_______________________________ Address:_______________________________ 

Printed Name: ____________________ ______________________________________ 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF ________________________ 

The foregoing was acknowledged before me this ______ day of ___________________ 2024, by 
Sheila M. Fredriksen, as Trustee of Fredriksen Family Trust, u/a/d August 13, 2018, who is 
personally known to me; or produced a drivers license issued by the Florida Department of Motor 
Vehicles as identification; or produced the following as identification: 
___________________________________________________________________. 

       

      _____________________________________  

      Notary Public 

      Printed Name: _________________________ 

      My Commission Expires: ________________ 

      My Commission No: ____________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

9 
 

 

WITNESSES:     GRANTEE: 

      PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL 

______________________________ WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY, an interlocal 

Signature     governmental entity of the State of Florida 

By: ___________________________ By: _______________________________ 

Printed Name: ___________________ Printed Name: _______________________ 

      Address:____________________________ 

      ___________________________________ 

________________________________ 

Printed Name: ____________________ 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF ________________________ 

The foregoing was acknowledged before me this ______ day of ___________________ 2024, by 
____________________________, as _________________________________ who is personally 
known to me; or produced a drivers license issued by the Florida Department of Motor Vehicles as 
identification; or produced the following as identification: ______________________ 
________________________________________. 

      _____________________________________  

      Notary Public 

      Printed Name: _________________________ 

      My Commission Expires: ________________ 

 

      My Commission No: ____________________ 

Approved to form and correctness: 

________________________________ 

Douglas Manson, Esq., General Counsel 





03/09/2023



This instrument prepared by and return to 
Steven R. Medendorp, Esq. 
Manson Bolves Donaldson & Tanner, P.A. 
109 N. Brush Street, Suite 300 
Tampa, FL 33602 
 
 

Parcel #: 709 

 

 

EXCLUSIVE TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT AGREEMENT 

  

 THIS EXCLUSIVE TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT (the “Agreement”), 
is made and entered into this ______ day of ________________, 2024, by and between STEPHEN 
A. FREDRIKSEN and SHEILA M. FREDRIKSEN, AS TRUSTEES OF FREDRIKSEN 
FAMILY TRUST U/A/D AUGUST 13, 2018 (“Grantor”), whose address is 7551 Tortoise Way, 
Sarasota, FL 34241, to PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY 
AUTHORITY, an interlocal governmental entity of the State of Florida (“Peace River” or 
“Grantee”), whose address is 9415 Town Center Parkway, Lakewood Ranch, Florida 34202. 

RECITALS: 

 WHEREAS, Grantee desires to construct, install, operate, maintain, replace, inspect, 
patrol, test, repair, relocate, replace, remove and upgrade an underground pipeline for the purpose 
of transporting water over, across, through and under certain lands (the “Waterline”), along with 
the installation of appurtenant above-ground and below-ground pipes, valves and equipment 
(collectively the “Facilities”), to be located within the Easement Property (as defined below). 

 WHEREAS, Grantee has requested and Grantor has agreed to grant an exclusive temporary 
construction easement to Grantee on the Temporary Construction Property (as defined below), to 
construct and install the above-mentioned Waterline and Facilities on the terms set forth herein. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals, and the sum of Ten Dollars 
and No/100 Dollars ($10.00), and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledge by Grantor, the parties agree as follows: 

 
1. To the extent applicable, the non-exclusive temporary construction easement 

interests and rights acquired by Peace River are described herein.  The applicability of any 
particular estate shall be determined by those interests and rights over, above, across, through and 
under Owner(s)’s property located in Sarasota County, Florida and further described and depicted 
on Exhibit “1” attached hereto and for the purpose of constructing and installing the Waterline and 
Facilities over, above, across, through and under certain lands, which easement rights shall be 
extended to Peace River’s agents, employees, licensees, or such other persons or entities as Peace 
River deems necessary (the “Easement Property”).   

 



 
 

2 
 

2. Peace River, its successors and assigns, shall have the right, title and interest for 
an exclusive temporary construction easement and staging area over, above, across, through and 
under Owner’s Easement Property (the “Temporary Construction Property”), for the purpose of 
constructing and installing the Waterline and Facilities over, above, across, through and under 
certain lands, which easement rights shall extend to Peace River’s agents and employees..   

 

3. Peace River’s construction activities included, but are not limited to, providing 
vehicular, equipment, and pedestrian access to the Waterline as well as excavating, storing 
material and equipment, and removing vegetation, structures or fences on the Temporary 
Construction Property.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Peace River removes any vegetation 
or structures from the Temporary Construction Property, Peace River shall permanently remove 
the dispose of same (if they are not otherwise reinstalled by Peace River), from the Temporary 
Construction Property.  Any excavated materials, the volume of which is substituted by any 
pipeline and supporting fill material constructed on the Temporary Construction Property, that is 
not used within the Waterline shall also be permanently removed by Peace River from the 
Temporary Construction Property by the expiration of this Temporary Construction Easement.  
In addition: 

 
a) Any area disturbed as a result of the installation of new pipe shall be cleared. 
 
b) During construction activity, Peace River shall have the right to construct, 

temporary fencing on the Temporary Construction Property. Upon completion of its project, any 
temporary fencing constructed shall be permanently removed by Peace River. 
 

c) Any roadways damaged as a result of the delivery of materials and 
equipment, and hauling of material shall be the sole responsibility of Peace River to repair and/or 
restore to pre-existing roadway conditions, or better. No access is permitted by Peace River 
through any part of Grantor’s remainder property. 
 

d) During construction activity, Peace River shall not unreasonably restrict 
ingress or egress to Owners’ property abutting the Temporary Construction Property and shall use 
its best efforts to provide reasonable ingress and egress across the Temporary Construction 
Property for the use of Owners.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Peace River shall be permitted to 
restrict (but not deny), ingress and egress to property abutting the Temporary Construction 
Property for safety purposes only in Peace River’s reasonable discretion during construction 
activity.  Recognizing that the location of the ingress and egress across the Temporary 
Construction Property may change due to construction activities and safety issues during the term 
of this Temporary Construction Easement, Owners shall contact Peace River to determine the 
location of the ingress and egress across the Temporary Construction Property prior to accessing 
the Temporary Construction Property. 
 



 
 

3 
 

e) After completion of construction activity, Peace River will remove all 
construction equipment and unused materials and will re-seed the Temporary Construction 
Property and other areas until a healthy stand of grass is rooted and established, if any, disturbed 
by the construction operations of Peace River.  Subject to Peace River’s rights hereunder and to 
the extent not inconsistent therewith, Peace River will restore, as near as reasonably practicable, 
the surface of all disturbed areas of the Temporary Construction Property to pre-construction 
elevations, contours, grades, and condition, as the continued function and utility of the Temporary 
Construction Property. 

 
4. The rights of Peace River shall cease and terminate, and all right, title and interest 

hereby conveyed shall revert to Owners or its successors and assigns, upon the earlier of: (i) two 
(2) years from the date of a signed agreement or order by this Court granting Peace River its 
easement rights; or (ii) the recording of a Certificate of Completion of the construction of the 
Waterline and Facilities by Peace River. 

 

5. Owners retains the right and may continue to use the Temporary Construction 
Easement for any lawful purposes that do not directly interfere with Peace River’s rights acquired 
hereunder. 

 
6. Grantor represents to Grantee that the Easement Property is not leased, rented or 

occupied by any lessee or tenant. 
 
7. In the event of a dispute between the parties hereto relating to this Agreement, the 

prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred from 
the date of the dispute through any appeals, bankruptcy proceeding or to collect or enforce any 
judgment.   

 
8. The provisions of this Agreement shall run with the Easement Property and shall 

bind and inure to the benefit of the Grantor, Grantee and their respective heirs, successors, legal 
representatives and assigns. 

 
9. The above recitals are true, correct and incorporated herein. 
 
10. Grantor and Grantee each knowingly, voluntarily and intentionally waive any right 

to which either of them may have to a trial by jury with respect to any litigation or legal proceeding 
based upon or arising directly, indirectly or otherwise in connection with, out of, related to or from 
this Agreement.  

 
11. This Agreement incorporates and describes all of the grants, undertakings, 

conditions, and consideration of the parties with respect to the Agreement.  Grantor, in executing 
and delivering this Agreement, represents that Grantor has authority to bind and execute this 



 
 

4 
 

Agreement and has not relied upon any promises, inducements or representations of Grantee or its 
agents or employees, except as expressly set forth herein.  

 
12. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, all of which together shall 

constitute a single document. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement this _________ day 

of ________________________, 2024. 
 

Signed, sealed and delivered   GRANTOR:  STEPHEN A. FREDRIKSEN 

in the presence of:      

_______________________________ By: ___________________________________ 

Printed Name: ____________________ As: Trustee of Fredriksen Family Trust u/a/d August 
13, 2018 

_______________________________ Address:_______________________________ 

Printed Name: ____________________ ______________________________________ 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF ________________________ 

The foregoing was acknowledged before me this ______ day of ___________________ 2024, by 
Stephen A. Fredriksen, as Trustee of Fredriksen Family Trust, u/a/d August 13, 2018, who is 
personally known to me; or produced a drivers license issued by the Florida Department of Motor 
Vehicles as identification; or produced the following as identification: 
___________________________________________________________________. 

       

      _____________________________________  

      Notary Public 

      Printed Name: _________________________ 

      My Commission Expires: ________________ 

      My Commission No: ____________________ 

 

 



 
 

5 
 

Signed, sealed and delivered   GRANTOR:  SHEILA M. FREDRIKSEN 

in the presence of:      

_______________________________ By: ___________________________________ 

Printed Name: ____________________ As: Trustee of Fredriksen Family Trust u/a/d August 
13, 2018 

 

_______________________________ Address:_______________________________ 

Printed Name: ____________________ ______________________________________ 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF ________________________ 

The foregoing was acknowledged before me this ______ day of ___________________ 2024, by 
Sheila M. Fredriksen, as Trustee of Fredriksen Family Trust, u/a/d August 13, 2018, who is 
personally known to me; or produced a drivers license issued by the Florida Department of Motor 
Vehicles as identification; or produced the following as identification: 
___________________________________________________________________. 

       

      _____________________________________  

      Notary Public 

      Printed Name: _________________________ 

      My Commission Expires: ________________ 

      My Commission No: ____________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

6 
 

WITNESSES:     GRANTEE: 

      PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL 

______________________________ WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY, an interlocal 

Signature     governmental entity of the State of Florida 

By: ___________________________ By: _______________________________ 

Printed Name: ___________________ Printed Name: _______________________ 

      Address:____________________________ 

      ___________________________________ 

 

________________________________ 

Printed Name: ____________________ 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF ________________________ 

The foregoing was acknowledged before me this ______ day of ___________________ 2024, by 
____________________________, as _________________________________ who is 
personally known to me; or produced a drivers license issued by the Florida Department of Motor 
Vehicles as identification; or produced the following as identification: ______________________ 
________________________________________. 

       

      _____________________________________  

      Notary Public 

      Printed Name: _________________________ 

      My Commission Expires: ________________ 

      My Commission No: ____________________ 

Approved to form and correctness: 

___________________________ 

Douglas Manson, Esq., General Counsel 



EXHIBIT 1



03/09/2023



Stewart Title Guaranty Company

TITLE SEARCH REPORT

File #: FL901700 Associated File # 12909222

Stewart Title Guaranty Company and/or their agent has searched the Sarasota County, Florida records for the period shown relative to
title to the real property described below, and provides the following title search report (TSR) for Vantage Point Title OE

Search Type: FL RES Cash Sale, Order Confirmation

The search period was to 2/3/2023 at 08:00 AM.

Property
Address: 7551 Tortoise Way, Sarasota FL 34241

Seller: Stephen A. Fredriksen and Sheila M. Fredriksen, as Trustees of Fredriksen Family Trust U/a/D August 13, 2018, as
Amended

Buyer/Borrower: Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority

Title Vested In:
Stephen A. Fredriksen and Sheila M. Fredriksen, as Trustees of Fredriksen Family Trust u/a/d August 13, 2018, as
amended, by virtue of that certain Warranty Deed recorded in Official Records Instrument 2022124051, of the Public
Records of Sarasota County, Florida.

Interest or Estate (Fee Simple/Leasehold):    FEE SIMPLE

Legal Description

Lot 39, Gator Creek Estates Unit 1, according to the map or plat thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 23, Page 2, of the Public
Records of Sarasota County, Florida.

Taxes

[title] 2/7/2023 11:36:38 AM Page 1 of 3



Mortgages, Liens & Court

Record a Warranty Deed from Stephen A. Fredriksen and Sheila M. Fredriksen, individually and as as Trustees of Fredriksen
Family Trust u/a/d August 13, 2018, to Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority conveying the property in Schedule
"A". 
NOTE: If the grantors are individuals, and the property is homestead property, the spouse of said grantor must join in the execution
of the Deed. If not homestead, then a statement to that effect must be reflected on the Deed.
NOTE: If the named trustee(s) herein are not the same as the ones who will be executing the documents please contact underwriting
for additional requirements.

Affidavit from the current owner stating there are no open mortgages that would affect the subject property. The company reserves
the right to make such additional requirements as it may deem necessary.

Estoppel Certificate compliant with Florida Statute 720.30851 from Gator Creek Estates Improvement Association, Inc, that all
assessments, (including but not limited to, special assessments or payments due to others such as master associations, etc.),
against the land described in Schedule 'A' herein, are paid in full to date and no violations exist.

The actual value of the estate or interest to be insured must be disclosed to the Company and subject to approval by the Company,
entered as the amount of the policy to be issued. Until the amount of the policy to be issued shall be determined, and entered as
aforesaid, it is agreed that as between the Company, the applicant for this commitment and every person relying on this
commitment, the Company cannot be required to approve any such evaluation in excess of this agency's pre-approved amount and
the total liability of the Company on account of this commitment shall not exceed said amount.

Payment of any and all Special Assessments, Bills, Charges or Municipal Liens levied and/or assessed.

Additional Matters of Record

General or special taxes and assessments for the year 2023 and subsequent years, which are not yet due and payable.

Any lien arising under Chapter 159, Florida Statutes, in favor of any city, town, village or port authority for unpaid service charges for
service by any water system, sewer system or gas system servicing the lands described herein.

All matters shown on the plat recorded in Plat Book 23, Page 2, of the Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida.

Covenants, conditions, easements and restrictions recorded in Official Records Book 1092, Page 159, of the Public Records of
Sarasota County, Florida, together with all amendments thereto, which may provide for association dues, fees and/or assessments,
prior approval of sale, in addition to any easements, reservations, covenants, building set back requirements, option to purchase,
right of first refusal, and any special assessments which may come due but omitting any such covenant based on race, color,
religion, sex, familial status, national origin, handicap, sexual orientation, marital status, ancestry, source of income, disability,
medical condition, or other unlawful basis.

Non-participating, non-exclusive oil and gas royalty interest of 15% as granted by instrument recorded in Official Records Book
1025, Page 1483, of the Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida.

NOTE: The following is for informational purposes only and is provided without any assurance or guarantee. 
Taxes and assessments for the year 2022 under Tax I.D. Number 0293010390, showing a gross amount of $6,527.22 were paid in
the amount of $6,266.13 on 10/21/2022.

NOTE: The following 24 month chain of title is shown for informational purposes only and not the purpose of insuring: 
Warranty Deed recorded on 03/05/2021, in Official Records Instrument 2021038989, of the Public Records of Sarasota County,
Florida.
Transfer recorded on 05/13/2021, in Official Records Instrument 2021088849, of the Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida.
Warranty Deed recorded on 07/26/2022, in Official Records Instrument 2022124051, of the Public Records of Sarasota County,
Florida.

[title] 2/7/2023 11:36:38 AM Page 2 of 3



County Notes

Tax Contact Info: 
(941) 861-8300 After you hear the recording, press 3 

Tax Site: 
http://www.sarasotataxcollector.com/ContactUs.htm

Notice: This report, as written (and any supplements or amendments hereto), is issued solely for use in connection with the issuance of
Commitments for Title Insurance, Policies of Title Insurance, Preliminary and Final Judicial Reports, or Title Guaranties of Stewart Title
Guaranty Company. This report shall not be considered, nor used as a commitment or policy of title insurance.

THIS REPORT IS NOT AN ABSTRACT, EXAMINATION, REPORT, OR REPRESENTATION OF FACT OR TITLE AND DOES
NOT CREATE AND SHALL NOT BE THE BASIS OF ANY CLAIM FOR NEGLIGENCE, NEGLIGENT MISREPRESENTATION
OR OTHER TORT CLAIM OR ACTION. THE SOLE LIABILITY OF COMPANY AND ITS TITLE INSURANCE AGENT SHALL
ARISE UNDER AND BE GOVERNED BY THE CONDITIONS OF THE COMMITMENT

[title] 2/7/2023 11:36:38 AM Page 3 of 3





















Steve Medendorp
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT B



03/09/2023



• •

• •



• •

• •

03/09/2023





03/09/2023





03/09/2023





03/09/2023





03/09/2023





03/09/2023





03/09/2023





03/09/2023





03/09/2023







Certificate of Authorization #27013    www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900    Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

0 /2023









Certificate of Authorization #27013    www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900  Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

03/09/2023



03/09/2023



PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 7, 2024 

CONSENT AGENDA 
ITEM 6 

Phase 2B Regional Interconnect Resolution of Necessity for Pipeline Easements 
 

Recommended Action - Motion to approve the recommended pipeline route for 
the Regional Integrated Loop Phase 2B, as identified in 
the 60% DESIGN PLANS FOR PEACE RIVER 
MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY 
AUTHORITY REGIONAL INTEGRATED LOOP 
PHASE 2B PIPELINE SEPTEMBER 2023 and, to 
approve RESOLUTION NO. 2024-01, “A 
RESOLUTION DETERMINING THE NECESSITY TO 
CONSTRUCT A TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND 
APPURTENANT FACILITIES AND ROUTE 
SELECTION FOR A PROJECT KNOWN AS THE 
REGIONAL INTEGRATED LOOP PHASE 2B 
PIPELINE PROJECT WHICH INCLUDES THE 
INSTALLATION OF A 42-INCH DIAMETER 
PIPELINE BETWEEN SERRIS METER STATION 
AND THE CHARLOTTE COUNTY GULF COVE 
BOOSTER STATION.” 

 
The Feasibility and Routing Study for the Regional Integrated Loop Phase 2B/2C Pipeline Project was 
completed and accepted by the Board in April of 2022.  Project Phase 2B recommendations included a 42-
inch diameter regional transmission main located along the border of Sarasota and Charlotte County, 
extending from Serris Boulevard, generally west along Hillsborough Boulevard and south mostly in 
Charlotte County crossing the Myakka River, and then extending to Charlotte County’s Gulf Cove Booster 
Station, a total distance of approximately 13 miles. Phase 2B began design in October of 2022 as a 
progressive design-build delivery and is currently at 60% Design.  Charlotte County and the Authority 
approved a revised interlocal agreement that fully funds the guaranteed maximum price for the project in 
December of 2023. Phase 2C, the extension of Phase 2B will begin at a later date. 
 
The recommended route for the Phase 2B pipeline is detailed on the 60% Design Plan set. Approval of 
Resolution 2024-01 will enable the Authority to begin the property acquisition work needed for the 
construction of the Phase 2B project.   
 
Budget Action – No action is required. 
 
Attachments: 
Tab A Resolution 2024-01 
Tab B Exhibit A 



TAB A 
Resolution 2024-01 



PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-01 

A RESOLUTION TO BE ENTITLED: 

 A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THE NECESSITY TO CONSTRUCT A 
TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND APPURTENANT FACILITIES AND ROUTE SELECTION 
FOR A PROJECT KNOWN AS THE REGIONAL INTEGRATED LOOP PHASE 2B PIPELINE 
PROJECT WHICH INCLUDES THE INSTALLATION OF A 42-INCH DIAMETER PIPELINE 
BETWEEN SERRIS METER STATION AND THE CHARLOTTE COUNTY GULF COVE 
BOOSTER STATION.  

 WHEREAS, Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority (“Authority”) is an 
interlocal governmental agency whose member governments and customers are Charlotte County 
(“Charlotte”), DeSoto County (“DeSoto”), Manatee County (“Manatee”), Sarasota County 
(“Sarasota”), and the City of North Port; and 

 WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by Section 373.713, Florida Statutes, to acquire water and 
water rights; to develop, store and transport water; and to provide, sell, and deliver water for county or 
municipal purposes and uses; and 

 WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized and required by Section 373.713, Florida Statutes, to 
design, construct, operate, and maintain facilities in the locations and at the times necessary to ensure an 
adequate water supply will be available to all member governments and customers within the Authority’s 
geographic territory; and 

 WHEREAS, the Authority has completed the Integrated Regional Water Supply Master Plan 2020 
(the “Master Water Plan”) that includes recommendations for the construction and development of new 
sources of potable water, pipelines and appurtenant facilities; and 

 WHEREAS, the Authority’s development of these potential water sources as regional supplies will 
benefit from continued expansion and construction of a regional integrated loop transmission system (the 
“Regional Integrated Loop System”) to move water from existing and new sources to the areas of demand; 
and 

 WHEREAS, the Authority has adopted the 60% DESIGN PLANS FOR PEACE RIVER 
MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHROITY REGIONAL INTEGRATED LOOP 
PHASE 2B PIPELINE SEPTEMBER 2023 that identifies pipeline capacity, routes, connections, and 
appurtenant facilities needed for Authority purposes. The Regional Integrated Loop System is intended to 
expand the capacity and enhance the reliability of the Authority’s regional water utility system to ensure an 
adequate water supply will be available to all members, customers and partners of the Authority; and 

  WHEREAS, Charlotte has requested that the Regional Integrated Loop Phase 2B Pipeline 
Project (Project), which includes installation of a 42-inch diameter pipeline between the Serris Drive Meter 
Station and the Charlotte County Gulf Cove Booster Station to be constructed. The project will meet 



2 
 

Charlotte’s water supply needs in that area as well as advance the regional transmission system toward a 
future interconnection with Sarasota’s water system, and delivery of water supply to Manatee’s water 
system; and 

WHEREAS, the Project includes a transmission pipeline, flow metering facilities, and appurtenant 
facilities (the “Pipeline Facilities”) which connect the terminus of the Authority’s existing Regional 
Integrated Loop System at Serris Drive Meter Station to Charlotte’s existing Gulf Cove Booster Station 
near the site of the future Phase 2C Booster Station, a total distance of approximately 13.0 miles; and 

 WHEREAS, the Authority has determined that the construction of the Pipeline Facilities for the 
Project is necessary to enable the Authority to meet projected water needs of the Authority’s public water 
utility system; and 

WHEREAS, the construction of the Pipeline Facilities for the Project is in the public interest, for 
the public benefit, and necessary for carrying out the Authority’s purposes; and 

 WHEREAS, the Authority has determined an appropriate route and location for the Pipeline 
Facilities for the Project and in determining the route of the Pipeline Facilities, and the land rights needed 
for the construction, operation, and maintenance of the Pipeline Facilities, the Authority has considered, 
and has weighed, among other things, the availability of alternative routes, environmental impact, safety 
factors, long-range planning, constructability, public impacts, operations and maintenance requirements, 
land  and costs of the Project; and 

 WHEREAS, an alternative route study and preferred route for the Project were presented to the 
Authority’s Board of Directors at the regular Board meeting on April 6, 2022; and  

 WHEREAS, the necessary approvals from the appropriate governmental agencies to construct, 
operate, and maintain the Pipeline Facilities have already been obtained or it is reasonably anticipated that 
they will be obtained; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Authority’s Board of Directors that those 
matters set forth in the foregoing recitals are hereby adopted, ratified, and found; and further 

 RESOLVED, that the Project is necessary and in the public interest and for a public purpose. The 
Route for the Project is determined to be that which is shown on Exhibit “A”, attached hereto, and which 
is described as 60% DESIGN PLANS FOR PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY 
AUTHROITY REGIONAL INTEGRATED LOOP PHASE 2B PIPELINE SEPTEMBER 2023; and 
further the Authority hereby authorizes said route to be surveyed and further investigated as necessary for 
the purpose of determining the condition and description of the properties necessary for the Project; and 

            RESOLVED, that the Authority, its officers, employees, contractors and attorneys are hereby 
authorized and directed to acquire by negotiation and contract those properties as may be necessary to 
acquire the fee, permanent easements and/or temporary construction easements needed for the Project; and  

 RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon being passed and adopted; 
and further 



3 
 

 RESOLVED, that if any phrase, portion or part of this Resolution is found to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such phrase, portion or part shall be deemed a 
separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remainder 
of the Resolution. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply 
Authority authorizes Resolution No. 2024-01. 

 ADOPTED at a meeting of the Board of Directors at the Peace River Facility, Arcadia, Florida, 
this 7th day of February, 2024.  

 
       Peace River Manasota 
Attest:       Regional Water Supply Authority 

 

             
Mike Coates, Executive Director   Chairman 
   
        
Approved as to Form: 
 
      
Douglas Manson, General Counsel 
for Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority 



TAB B 
Exhibit A 





















































































































PHONE: 813.397.3749PHONE: 813.397.3749PHONE: 813.397.3749



PHONE: 813.397.3749



PHONE: 813.397.3749



PHONE: 813.397.3749

























































































































































































•
•
•

•
•
•
•





















PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 7, 2024 

CONSENT AGENDA 
ITEM 7 

Treatment Trains 7 & 8 Rehabilitation Project - Phase 1 
 

Recommended Action - Motion to approve and authorize the Executive Director 
to execute a Work Order for Garney Companies, Inc. 
under their Continuing Service Contract in the amount of 
$2,709,752.60 for the Treatment Trains 7 & 8 
Rehabilitation Project – Phase 1. 

 
 Motion to approve and authorize the Executive Director 

to execute a work order for Black and Veatch Corporation 
under their Continuing Professional Services Contract in 
the amount of $130,812 for Construction Phase Services 
on the Treatment Trains 7 & 8 Rehabilitation Project – 
Phase 1. 

 
Treatment Trains 7 & 8 (Plant 4) have been in-service since 2009, accruing nearly 120,000 hours of runtime 
and treating about 51 billion gallons of water since being placed into service. Phase 1 of this rehabilitation 
project consists of cleaning, concrete restoration, and protective coating applications for six (6) multimedia 
filters, rebuilding of the six (6) multi-media filters with all new filtration media and associated stainless 
steel underdrain rehabilitation, installing a new programmed logic control (PLC) panel, and removal and 
replacement of fifty-six (56) filter control valves with actuators. The work is included in the FY 2024 
Renewal and Replacement (R&R) program budget.  
 
a) Work Order for Garney Construction for Phase 1 Rehabilitation of Treatment Trains 7 & 8 
 
Staff has negotiated a proposal for the recommended Phase 1 rehabilitation of Treatment Trains 7 & 8 with 
Garney Companies Inc. in the amount of $2,709,752.60, including $200,000 Owner’s Allowance available 
through written authorization by the Executive Director in the event of out-of-scope work. The Work Order 
will be conducted under the Agreement for As-Needed Water Treatment Process and Pipeline Construction 
Services between Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority and Garney Companies, Inc. 
dated December 1, 2021. 
  
b) Work Order for Black and Veatch for Construction Phase Engineering and Inspection Services 

on Phase 1 Rehabilitation of Treatment Trains 7 & 8 
 
Black and Veatch is the engineer for the rehabilitation design work on the project and is recommended by 
staff to provide construction phase services (engineering and inspection) for the proposed cost of $130,812. 
This amount includes an Owner’s Allowance of $10,000 available through written authorization by the 
Executive Director in the event of out-of-scope work. This Work Order will be conducted under the 
Agreement for General Professional Engineering Services between Peace River Manasota Regional Water 
Supply Authority and Black and Veatch Corporation, dated September 30, 2020. 
 
Budget Action – No action is required. Funds for the project are included in the 2024 R&R budget.  
 
Attachments: 
Tab A Garney Companies Scope and Fee Proposal 
Tab B Black & Veatch Scope and Fee Proposal 



TAB A 
Garney Companies Scope and Fee Proposal 



 370 East Crown Point Road, Winter Garden, FL 34787 
 Phone: 407.877.5903 
 Fax: 407.877.5912 
 www.garney.com 

 

 

January 10, 2024 

 

Peace River Manasota Regional  

Water Supply Authority  

8998 S.W. CR 769 

Arcadia, FL 34269 

 

Attention: Mr. Chris Rodgers 

 

RE: Trains 7 & 8 Rehabilitation Project 

  

Dear Mr. Rodgers, 

 

For the above referenced project, Garney Companies, Inc. is prepared to offer a price of $2,709,752.60 for the work 

described herein. breakdown is below: 

 

Filter work - $2,509,752.60 

Owners’ contingency - $200,000.00 

 

Scope: 

Garney Construction will provide all labor, equipment, management, supervision, and materials for Plant 4 Filters 

and Gallery work required per the Trains 7 & 8 Rehabilitation Project Contract Documents dated March 2023 and 

Bid Form attached. 

 

Clarifications: 

 

• Pricing is based on the contract documents referenced above as well as the Q&A log included herein. 

• Pricing above includes $200,000.00 in Owner Contingency Allowance for items to be determined.  

• Pricing is based on Garney dumping all existing media removed from Filters at an onsite location specified 

by PRMRWSA. Costs for offsite hauling and disposal are not included.   

• Installation of the new filter media will require coordination with PRMRWSA and their operators to control 

water levels in filters and backwashing media. 

• Per coating subcontractor, coatings pricing is based on applying SW Macropoxy 5500LT in lieu of SW coating 

specified as the specified coating has been discontinued due to new NSF requirements.  

• Pricing is based on Garney reusing existing stainless-steel nuts and bolts for all replacement valve flange 

connections as done on previous filter valve replacements for PRMRWSA. 

• Pricing is based on Filters 40-46 being shut down at the same time to allow work to occur at multiple 

structures concurrently and limit total work duration.  

• Payment and Performance Bonds are not included. Garney’s standard general liability and workers’ 

compensation insurances are included.  

• This pricing is valid for 90 days. Garney requires a NTP within these 90 days to lock in subcontractor pricing 

and allow work to begin onsite by June 2024 as requested by PRMRWSA.   

 

Exclusions: 

 

• Garney excludes all permits, builder’s risk insurance, material quality control testing, asbestos or lead paint 

surveys, certified as-built drawings, registered surveyor, and construction power and water usage fees. 

• All work associated with the Plant 4 SCUs 7 & 8 required per the contract documents is excluded from this 

proposal. 

• All hatch refurbishments/replacements are excluded from this proposal. 

• Purchase of filter media is excluded from this proposal. All replacement Filter Media shall be furnished by 

PRMRWSA. 

 

 



 

 

Schedule: 

 

Pricing is based on achieving substantially complete within 180 days of work onsite beginning and achieving final 

completion 30 days after substantial completion. 

 

If you have any questions or require further information, please contact me at your earliest convenience.  We look 

forward to being of service to you on this project. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

GARNEY COMPANIES, INC. 

 

 

Tyler Bolton 

Project Manager 

tbolton
Snapshot



Bid Item Description Units Estimated Quantity Unit Price Bid Price Location

1

Remove Defective Concrete & 

Surface Repairs - Overlay 

Thickness < 1/4"

Square Feet 2100 $12.35 $25,935.00 Filter

2

Remove Defective Concrete & 

Surface Repairs - Overlay 

Thickness > 1/4" & < 3/4"

Square Feet 11,720 $12.42 $145,562.40 Filter

5
Epoxy Protective Coating for 

Concrete Surfaces
Square Feet 11,720 $1.96 $22,971.20 Filter

9
Repair Control Joint Sealant 

Groove
Linear Feet 200 $34.00 $6,800.00 Filter

10
Grinding Filter Concrete Floor 

Surface (<1/2")
Square Feet 400 $21.00 $8,400.00 Filter

11
Grinding Filter Concrete Floor 

Surface (>1/2" To <1")
Square Feet 400 $21.00 $8,400.00 Filter

12

Leveling of Filter Concrete Floor 

with Self-Leveling Surface Repair 

Material

Each 6 $11,757.00 $70,542.00 Filter

13
Replacement of Existing 1/2" 

Threaded Rod Anchors
Each 100 $320.00 $32,000.00 Filter

14 Control Panel Installation LS 1 $529,192.00 $529,192.00 Filter

15
All Other Work Required to 

Complete The Base Bid
LS N/A $1,235,758.00 $1,235,758.00 Filter

16 Filter Media Purchase LS N/A $0.00 $0.00 Excluded

17
Filter Media 

Removal/Replacement
LS N/A $424,192.00 $424,192.00 Filter

Total Base Bid Bid Items 1 Through 17 $2,509,752.60

Price 1 - Filter Work
Work Associated with Filters 40-

46
$2,509,752.60

Owner's Allowance
Contingency Allowance for Items 

to Be Determined
$200,000.00

Total Bid Price
Total Base Bid + Owner's 

Allowance
$2,709,752.60

Peace River Water Supply Authority

Treatment Trains 7 and 8 Rehabilitation Project

Estimated Quantities  



8/30/2023

Item
Date 

Asked

Date 

Answered

Ref. 

Dwg/Spec

CSI 

Div.
Topic - Design/VE/Constructability/Risk/Assumption/Clarification GARNEY PEACE RIVER BLACK & VEATCH

1 8/28/2023 8/29/2023 N/A 16

Did they run new electrical wiring from the valves or use existing? They used the old wires (and just wire nutted the 

second wire no longer needed) when we did Plant 3 but 

Plant 4 will need to have new wires pulled due to the 

fact that the complete control panel is being replaced 

and most wire lengths will be insufficient. The new 

actuators only need the one wire instead of the two for 

the existing valve actuators.

2 8/28/2023 8/31/2023 N/A 15

Can you provide Garney cut sheets for all the new valves, 

hopefully this shows the upsizing in the SS tubing for the higher 

valves in the pipe gallery.

Peace River provided 8/31/23

3 8/28/2023 8/31/2023 N/A 11
Does Peace River want to purchase the media? Peace River would consider doing a self-purchase of 

the media. 

4 8/28/2023 8/31/2023 D-30-001 13

Any information on the larger control panel & updated plans for 

that panel location and the relocation of the level transmitter box 

that is in that area?

Rehab plans page D-30-001 (Notes 1 & 2) reference 

the panels to be removed. Will send panel plans in 

separate email.

5 8/28/2023 8/31/2023 N/A 13

In the piping gallery are the HACH instruments being provided or 

does Garney need to purchase those? Garney can add the 

receptacle for them just need to know who's scope it is to provide 

the Turbidity Meter & read out. In plant 3 rehab, the contractor only installed the 

stilling wells in the filter cells and the electrical 

receptacles in the turbidimeter cabinets, and the 

Authority them installed the level transducers 

and the HACH turbidimeters respectively. I 

remember having some discussion about adding 

the turbidimeters to the contractor requirements 

for Plant 4 but need to confirm what the plans 

reflect on that decision. We would certainly 

entertain self-purchase of the HACH instruments 

if needed.

6 8/30/2023 9/5/2023 02675 13

Specs are calling for ust to do disinfection of piping & structures 

before putting them back online. Will Garney need to perform 

this? If yes, how does Peace River normally o about disinfecting & 

how does Peace River dispose the chlorinated water upon 

completion?

During Plant 3 Rehab, the contractor did supply the 

bleach and disinfection supplies, however Operations 

personnel managed the disinfection process and 

testing.

No, It is anticipated the peace river authority will 

be performing disinfecting, Contractor is expected 

to support as necessary.  

7 8/30/2023 9/5/2023 N/A 01

Does Garney need to pull any permits for this work/or have those 

already been taken care of. 

No permits required-just disinfection ptocos fr placing 

system back into service.
No permits are known to be needed, Contractor to 

confirm with Peace River Authority.

8 8/30/2023 9/5/2023 01380 01

Are construction progress pictures in 4"x5" prints going to be 

required per specs?
No, only digital files are needed, digital files can be 

transmitted via email or flashdrive, it is preffered 

not to use CD.

9 8/30/2023 9/5/2023 01380 01

Is a preconstruction video going to be required per specs? Yes, a pre-construction video should be recorded. Yes, the preconstruction video is needed for 

documentation purposes. The subject of the video 

should be of all areas and equipment that will be 

worked on.

Peace River 7 & 8 Rehab

Q&A LOG



10 8/30/2023 9/5/2023 N/A 01

Will pressure testing be required of the piping where valves are 

being replaced? If so what Pressure? Specs do not appear to 

specify if pressure testing is required. No, the Valves are tested by manufacturer. 

11 8/30/2023 9/5/2023 N/A 01 Is leak testing required for tanks? No

12 8/30/2023 9/5/2023 M-30-301 15

Depend-o-lock Gasket Replacement - Dwg M-30-301 callouts 

requiring replacing these couplings but then refers to note stating 

only ones removed or affected need to be replaced. If we do not 

remove the coupling do we still need to replace these gaskets?

No, contractor does not have to replace all gasket 

seals - just the ones that are removed or affected. We 

do not want any leaks when work is complete. Please 

include these joint locations during the pre-construction 

video. 

No, only gaskets that have been removed or have 

been affected by the construction efforts due to 

pipe vibration or any pipe movement that may 

compromise the existing gaskets and cause leaking 

must be replaced.

13 8/30/2023 9/5/2023 N/A 13

Is Garney providing 7 new staff gauges in the filters or 6? Did 

Garney already provide a new staff gauge in the filter that we 

rehabbed last time?

Yes, a total of 7 Staff Gauges are to be replaced, 

including the one within the previously rehabed 

Filter 46.

14 9/7/2023 9/13/2023 11520 11

Specification 11520 requires qty (2) PAC Contact Mixers (15-M3A) 

and (15-M-3) to be furnished by the contractor and turned over to 

the owner as spares and not installed. Please confirm if this 

equipment is required to be furnished or if this specification is to 

be deleted from the contract documents

The 2 spare Pac Mixer motors were provided during the 

Plant 3 (Trains 5 & 6) Rehab project and will NOT be 

needed as part of the Plant 4 -Trains 7 & 8 project.

15 9/7/2023 9/13/2023 N/A 11

Please provide submittal data on existing filter equipment and air 

scour piping inside filter cells. Garney would like to verify quantity 

of pipe couplings we will be remving in each cell. 

In total there are 16 couplings associated with the 

air scour line. (3) on the 6” portion (13) on the lower 

(smaller Dia.) portion per email from Peace river on 

9/14

Currently searching thru files trying to locate submittals 

associated with the air scour piping in each cell. Will 

provide ASAP

Q&A LOG



TAB B 
Black & Veatch Scope and Fee Proposal 



 

Page 1 of 3 

 

GENERAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 

PURCHASE ORDER #                    . 

Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority 

 

Treatment Trains 7 & 8 Rehabilitation Project Construction Phase Services 

 

Pursuant to the Agreement for General Professional Engineering Services between Peace River 

Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority (Authority) and Black & Veatch Corporation, effective 

September 30, 2020, with updated rates submitted for the September 30, 2023 contract renewal. The 

Authority has requested Black & Veatch provide Construction Phase Services (CPS) for the Treatment 

Train 7 & 8 Rehabilitation Project (Designed by Black & Veatch) and proposed to be constructed by 

Garney, additional details below:  

BACKGROUND 

Under a previous scope of professional services, Black & Veatch Corporation (Consultant) worked with 

the Authority and developed construction documents (drawings and specifications) for Treatment Trains 

7 & 8 Rehabilitation Project at the Authority’s Peace River Water Treatment Plant WTP in Arcadia, Florida. 

A Contractor submitted a cost to construct the improvements. Consultant reviewed the proposal and 

submitted a letter recommending the award of the construction contract to the Contractor. The Authority 

intends to award the construction contract at the February 2024 Board Meeting, and it is anticipated that 

construction will begin in June 2024. The construction will only consist however of the filter rehabilitation 

and the installation of the valves and control panel. Also, it is anticipated that the project will last 90 days 

from NTP to substantial completion with another 30 days for final completion.     

The Authority requested a scope and fee from the Consultant to perform CPS services. 

This EXHIBIT A defines limited construction phase support services in support of the Treatment Trains 7 & 

8 Rehabilitation Project to be performed by the Consultant.  

SCOPE OF WORK 

Task 1 – Project Management & Administration 

The Consultant will provide overall management of the Project including contract administration, 

budget management, invoicing, monthly status reports, scheduling, and coordination with the 

Authority.  

The Consultant will submit a monthly progress report, along with the monthly invoice, to the Authority 

summarizing progress to date and any specific project risks or issues.   

Task 2 –Limited Construction Phase Services 

Consultant will perform limited CPS during construction and installation of the Treatment Trains 7 & 8 

Rehabilitation Project.  The construction scope of work, as defined in the design documents, includes all 



 

Page 2 of 3 

 

ancillary and appurtenant work connected with this Treatment Trains 7 & 8 WTP rehabilitation project, 

for the filter rehabilitation and valve and panel installation.  For a more detailed summary of the scope 

of construction work to be performed, refer to the design documents of the Treatment Trains 7 & 8 

Rehabilitation Project, dated March 2023, which are comprised of thirty-one (31) drawings and which 

also include the associated specifications (note this is only for the filter rehabilitation and valve and 

panel installation portions of the Contract Documents). It is assumed that the duration of these CPS will 

be for a total of 120 days from Construction NTP, and is based on the anticipated timeframe of 90 days 

to Substantial Completion.   

 

By performing these services, Consultant shall not have authority or responsibility to supervise, direct, 

or control the Contractor's work or the Contractor's means, methods, techniques, sequences, or 

procedures of construction.  Consultant shall not have authority or responsibility for safety precautions 

and programs incident to the Contractor's work or for any failure of the Contractor to comply with laws, 

regulations, rules, ordinances, codes, or orders applicable to the Contractor furnishing and performing 

the work. 

 

Limited construction phase services shall include the following: 

• Prepare Agenda and Conduct Pre-Construction Meeting.  It is assumed that two (2) Consultant 

Engineers will participate in this two-hour meeting that will be conducted at the PRF, and a third 

Consultant Engineer will also participate in this meeting in a virtual fashion. Consultant will 

prepare and distribute meeting minutes. 

• Review of Contractor’s construction schedule and Schedule of Values (SOV) submittals. 

• Attend monthly construction progress meetings.  This task assumes that one (1) Consultant 

Engineer will attend up to seven (7) construction progress meetings plus up to 2 equipment 

testing and startup/coordination meetings at the PRF.    

• Review & respond to Contractor construction submittals, including review of O&M manuals. It is 

assumed that Consultant will respond to up to 20 technical submittals during the course of 

construction. 

• Review & respond to Contractor requests for information (RFI).  It is assumed that Consultant 

will respond to up to 4 (four) technical requests for information during the course of 

construction.  

• Review of Contractor pay applications. It is assumed that a total of four (4) pay applications will 

be reviewed and approved by Consultant. 

• Review and assist in negotiation of change orders.  The budget for this task assumes up to two 

(2) change orders.  This budget also assumes up to three (3) Work Change Directives which are 

anticipated to be applied for additional owner-approved work that will be applied to the 

Owner’s Allowance. 

• Periodic observation of the work and on-call engineering site visits.   This task assumes that up 

to ten (10) engineering site visits will be performed at the PRF by the Consultant during the 

construction phase.   Some of these on-call engineering site visits will include confirmation of 

concrete repair and coating quantities associated with the unit price work, as well as multiple 

anticipated engineering site visits to support the work associated with the filter underdrain 

repairs and filter floor leveling improvements that will be performed on 6 filter cells in Plant 4, 

as well as the installation of the filter valves and actuators and SCU equipment.  Some of these 



 

Page 3 of 3 

 

on-call engineering site visits will also be provided to support the work associated with 

installation of the new Plant 4 Filter Control Panel. 

• Substantial and Final Completion Walkthroughs.  It is assumed that two (2) Consultant Engineers 

will attend each of these walkthroughs at the PRF. Consultant will prepare and distribute punch 

lists. 

• Preparation of Record Drawings based on Contractor-provided markups. 

• System start-up assistance.  This task assumes that up to two (2) engineering site visits will be 

performed by two (2) Consultant Engineers to assist the Authority in filter cell media and 

underdrain testing and startup as well as for startup of the new filter valves and actuators and 

Filter Control Panel/PLC for Plant 4 filters. 

• Project closeout, to include reviewing Contractor’s closeout documents, liens, warranties, etc. 

 

COMPENSATION 

For completion of the above scope of services, the Authority will compensate Black & Veatch on a Time & 

Material (T/M) basis in the amount indicated in the table below and using the established rates in Exhibit 

B, attached.  Black & Veatch’s invoices will be submitted monthly. This also includes a $10,000 Owner’s 

allowance, which can only be used with written permission from the owner.  

Task Basis Compensation 

Task 1 – Project Management & Administration T/M $16,243 

Task 2 – Limited Construction Phase Services T/M $104,569 

Owner’s Allowance T/M $10,000 

Total  T/M $130,812 

 

SCHEDULE 

Consultant services will commence within two weeks of Notice-to-Proceed. 

Black & Veatch proposes to perform the services in this Work Order under the schedule outlined below.  

The schedule assumes a 120-day construction contract time-frame. 

 

Task Days after NTP 

Task 1 – Project Management & Administration 120 

Task 2 – Limited Construction Phase Services 120 

 



PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 7, 2024 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
ITEM 8 

 
Phase 3C Regional Interconnect Resolution of Necessity 2022-03 - Amendment 3  

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommended Action -  Motion to approve third amendment to Resolution No. 

2022-03. A RESOLUTION TO BE ENTITLED: A 
RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 2022-
03, AS AMENDED, AND DETERMINING THE 
NECESSITY TO CONSTRUCT A TRANSMISSION 
PIPELINE AND APPURTENANT FACILITIES AND 
ROUTE SELECTION FOR A PROJECT KNOWN AS 
THE REGIONAL INTEGRATED LOOP PHASE 3C 
PIPELINE PROJECT WHICH INCLUDES THE 
INSTALLATION OF A PUMPING AND STORAGE 
FACILITY AND A 42-INCH DIAMETER PIPELINE 
BETWEEN STATE ROAD 72 AND THE 
INTERSECTION OF LORRAINE ROAD AND BLUE-
LAKE ROAD AND AUTHORIZING THE 
ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY RIGHTS BY 
NEGOTIATION AND CONTRACT AND, IF 
NECESSARY, BY THE EXERCISE OF EMINENT 
DOMAIN AUTHORITY. 

 
Background:  The Regional Integrated Loop Phase 3C Pipeline Project includes approximately 8 miles of 
42-inch diameter pipe and a new regional pumping and storage facility.  The pipeline route begins near the 
northern end of the existing Regional Integrated Loop Phase 3B Pipeline within Sarasota County near State 
Road 72 and Cow Pen Slough Canal and extends generally north to the vicinity of the Fruitville and Lorraine 
Roads intersection where it will connect with Sarasota County utilities existing infrastructure. The Garney 
Companies, Inc. team was approved at the August 3, 2022, Board meeting to deliver the Progressive Design 
Build Project. The Regional Integrated Loop Phase 3C Project is scheduled for substantial completion by 
March 1, 2025.   
 
At the April 6, 2022, meeting the Authority Board approved Resolution 2022-03 determining the necessity 
for construction of the Phase 3C Regional Interconnect and identifying the route for the pipeline.  In April 
2023 the Board approved the first amendment to Resolution 2022-03 to include revision of the originally 
approved pipeline route, and authorization for acquisition of property rights necessary to construct and 
operate the Phase 3C Pipeline project. A second Amendment to Resolution 2022-03 was approved June 7, 
2023 to further modify the preferred pipeline route.  This proposed third amendment to Resolution 2022-
03 (attached) will revise the limits of easements on the two parcels south of Clark Road previously 
submitted in the April 2023 amendment through Exhibit A shown as permanent easements 816 & 817 and 
temporary easements 716 & 717. Based upon the findings in Resolution 2022-03 the easement interests 
authorized to be acquire hereby are necessary for the completion of the project and in the public interest.  
 
Budget Action – No action required. Funds for these materials will come from the Authority’s $100M Line 
of Credit.    
 
Attachments: 
Tab A Amended Resolution No. 2022-03 
Tab B Amended Resolution No. 2022-03 Exhibit A - Easements 



TAB A 
Amended Resolution No. 2022-03 



 

 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

THIRD AMENDMENT TO RESOLUTION NO. 2022-03 

A RESOLUTION TO BE ENTITLED: 

 A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 2022-03, AS AMENDED, AND 
DETERMINING THE NECESSITY TO CONSTRUCT A TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND 
APPURTENANT FACILITIES AND ROUTE SELECTION FOR A PROJECT KNOWN AS 
THE REGIONAL INTEGRATED LOOP PHASE 3C PIPELINE PROJECT WHICH INCLUDES 
THE INSTALLATION OF A PUMPING AND STORAGE FACILITY AND A 42-INCH 
DIAMETER PIPELINE BETWEEN STATE ROAD 72 AND THE INTERSECTION OF 
LORRAINE ROAD AND BLUE-LAKE ROAD AND AUTHORIZING THE ACQUISITION OF 
PROPERTY RIGHTS BY NEGOTIATION AND CONTRACT AND, IF NECESSARY, BY THE 
EXERCISE OF EMINENT DOMAIN AUTHORITY. 

 WHEREAS, Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority (“Authority”) is an 
interlocal governmental agency whose member governments and customers are Charlotte County 
(“Charlotte”), DeSoto County (“DeSoto”), Manatee County (“Manatee”), Sarasota County 
(“Sarasota”), and the City of North Port (“North Port”); and 

 WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by Section 373.713, Florida Statutes, to acquire 
water and water rights; to develop, store and transport water; and to provide, sell, and deliver water 
for county or municipal purposes and uses; and 

 WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized and required by Section 373.713, Florida 
Statutes, to design, construct, operate, and maintain facilities in the locations and at the times 
necessary to ensure an adequate water supply will be available to all member governments and 
customers within the Authority’s geographic territory; and 

 WHEREAS, the Authority has completed the Integrated Regional Water Supply Master 
Plan 2020 (the “Master Water Plan”) that includes recommendations for the construction and 
development of new sources of potable water, pipelines and appurtenant facilities; and 

 WHEREAS, the Authority’s development of these potential water sources as regional 
supplies will benefit from continued expansion and construction of a regional integrated loop 
transmission system (the “Regional Integrated Loop System”) to move water from existing and 
new sources to the areas of demand; and 

 WHEREAS, the Authority has adopted the Regional Integrated Loop Phase 3C Pipeline 
Feasibility and Routing Study that identifies pipeline capacity, routes, connections, and 
appurtenant facilities needed for Authority purposes. The Regional Integrated Loop System is 
intended to expand the capacity and enhance the reliability of the Authority’s regional water utility 



 

2 
 

system to ensure an adequate water supply will be available to all members, customers and partners 
of the Authority; and 

 WHEREAS, Sarasota has requested that the first phase of the Regional Integrated Loop 
Phase 3C Pipeline Project (Project), which includes installation of a 42-inch diameter pipeline 
between State Road 72 and the intersection of Lorraine Road and Blue-Lake Road, and a regional 
pumping and storage facility be constructed. The project will meet Sarasota’s water supply needs 
in that area as well as advance the regional transmission system toward a future interconnection 
with the Manatee’s water system; and 

WHEREAS, the Project includes a transmission pipeline, flow metering facilities, 
pumping, storage and appurtenant facilities (the “Pipeline Facilities”) which connect the terminus 
of the Authority’s existing Regional Integrated Loop System at Clark Road to Sarasota’s existing 
distribution system near the vicinity of Blue-Lake and Lorraine Roads, a total distance of 
approximately 11.5 miles; and 

 WHEREAS, the Authority has determined that the construction of the Pipeline Facilities 
for the Project is necessary to enable the Authority to meet projected water needs of the Authority’s 
public water utility system; and 

WHEREAS, the construction of the Pipeline Facilities for the Project is in the public 
interest, for the public benefit, and necessary for carrying out the Authority’s purposes; and 

 WHEREAS, the Authority has determined an appropriate route and location for the 
Pipeline Facilities for the Project and in determining the route of the Pipeline Facilities, and the 
land rights needed for the construction, operation, and maintenance of the Pipeline Facilities, the 
Authority has considered, and has weighed, among other things, the availability of alternative 
routes, environmental impact, safety factors, long-range planning, constructability, public impacts, 
operations and maintenance requirements, land  and costs of the Project; and 

 WHEREAS, an alternative route study and preferred route for the Project were presented 
to the Authority’s Board of Directors at the regular Board meeting on April 6, 2022 and the 
Authority’s Board of Directors has adopted Resolution No. 2022-03 which established, among 
other things, the route for the project and authorized that the route be surveyed and further 
investigation conducted as necessary for the purpose of determining the condition and description 
of the properties necessary for the project; and 

            WHEREAS, upon further investigation a modification of the route was  appropriate and 
in the public interest and accordingly the route and the parcels needed and adopted in  Resolution 
No. 2022 – 03  were amended by the addition of the Permanent and Temporary Construction 
Easement Parcels, as depicted in Amended Resolution 2022-03 which was adopted on April 5, 
2023; and 



 

3 
 

              WHEREAS, upon further investigation a modification of the route and parcels needed 
was appropriate and in the public interest and accordingly the route and parcels adopted in 
Resolution No. 2022–03, as Amended, were amended by the addition of the Permanent and 
Temporary Construction Easement Parcels, as depicted in Second Amended Resolution 2022-03 
which was adopted on June 7. 2023; and 

             WHEREAS, upon further investigation a modification of the route and parcels needed is 
appropriate and in the public interest and accordingly the route and parcels adopted in Resolution 
No. 2022–03. as Amended, is further amended by the addition of the Permanent and Temporary 
Construction Easement Parcels, as depicted in Exhibit “A” to this Third Amended Resolution 
2022-03.            

 WHEREAS, the necessary approvals from the appropriate governmental agencies to 
construct, operate, and maintain the Pipeline Facilities have already been obtained or it is 
reasonably likely that they will be obtained; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Authority’s Board of Directors that 
those matters set forth in the foregoing recitals are hereby adopted, ratified, and found; and further, 

            RESOLVED, that Resolution No. 2022-03,  as amended by, Amended Resolution No. 22-
03, Second Amended Resolution No. 2022-03 is hereby ratified, and confirmed and shall remain 
in full force and unchanged except as expressly stated herein.  

 RESOLVED, that the Project is necessary and in the public interest and for a public 
purpose. The modification of the route, by the addition and modification of the Permanent and 
Temporary Constructions Easements  as depicted on Exhibit “A” is hereby adopted  after the 
consideration of, among other things, the availability of alternative routes, environmental impacts, 
safety factors, long-range planning, constructability, operation and maintenance requirements, 
public impacts, and costs of the project. This determination is made upon consideration of the 
information provided by the Authority’s staff and consultants as well as the information provided 
and relied on in connection with the adoption of Resolution No. 2022-03, as Amended.  Based 
upon that information the Authority finds that there exists a public purpose and necessity for 
acquisition of the Temporary Construction Easements and Permanent Easements as depicted in 
Exhibit “A”. 

            RESOLVED, that the Authority, its officers, employees, contractors and attorneys are 
hereby authorized and directed to acquire by negotiation and contract those properties interests as 
are necessary to acquire the fee, permanent easements and/or temporary construction easements 
upon the terms set forth in Resolution No. 2022-03, as Amended, as needed for the Project 
including those parcels of property depicted on Exhibit “A”; and  

          RESOLVED, that the Authority, its officers, employees, contractors and attorneys are 
hereby authorized and directed to acquire by negotiation and contract and the use of eminent 



 

4 
 

domain authority those property rights, including, fee, permanent easements and/or temporary 
construction easements as are necessary for the construction operation and maintenance of the 
Project, as depicted in Resolution 2022-23, as Amended, and on the surveys attached hereto as 
Exhibit “A”. The acquisition of the property rights across, above, across, through and under parcels 
of real estate as depicted on Exhibit “A” is in the public interest as these property rights are 
necessary for the completion of the Project. The easement rights to be acquired in the parcels 
identified in Exhibit “A” are set forth Resolution 2022-03, as Amended.  

 RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon being passed and 
adopted; and further. 

 RESOLVED, that if any phrase, portion or part of this Resolution is found to be invalid 
or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such phrase, portion or part shall be 
deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity 
of the remainder of the Resolution. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Peace River Manasota Regional Water 
Supply Authority authorizes the adoption of Third Amendment to Resolution 2022-03, as 
Amended. 

 ADOPTED at a meeting of the Board of Directors at the Peace River Water Treatment 
Facility in Arcadia, Florida, this 7th day of February 2024.  
 
 
       Peace River Manasota 
Attest:       Regional Water Supply Authority 

 
             
Mike Coates, P.G., Executive Director  Commissioner  
       Chairman 
 

Approved as to Form: 
 
      
Douglas Manson, General Counsel for 
Peace River Manasota Regional 
Water Supply Authority 



TAB B 
Amended Resolution No. 2022-03 Exhibit A – Easements 



Certificate of Authorization #27013  • •  www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900  • •  Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

PAGE 1

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013  • •  www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900  • •  Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

03/09/2023

Digitally signed 
by Robert R 
Cunningham 
Date: 
2023.03.09 
06:50:53 -05'00'

PAGE 2

EXHIBIT A



PAGE 3

EXHIBIT A



03/29/2023

Digitally signed 
by Robert R 
Cunningham 
Date: 2023.03.29 
18:05:05 -04'00'

PAGE 4

EXHIBIT A



03/09/2023

Digitally signed by 
Robert R 
Cunningham 
Date: 2023.03.09 
06:53:40 -05'00'

PAGE 5

EXHIBIT A



PAGE 6

EXHIBIT A



PAGE 7

EXHIBIT A



PAGE 8

EXHIBIT A



PAGE 9

EXHIBIT A



03/09/2023

Digitally signed 
by Robert R 
Cunningham 
Date: 2023.03.09 
06:54:41 -05'00'

PAGE 10

EXHIBIT A



PAGE 11

EXHIBIT A



PAGE 12

EXHIBIT A



PAGE 13

EXHIBIT A



PAGE 14

EXHIBIT A



PAGE 15

EXHIBIT A



PAGE 16

EXHIBIT A



03/06/2023

Digitally signed 
by Robert R 
Cunningham 
Date: 2023.03.06 
15:56:39 -05'00'

PAGE 17

EXHIBIT A



PAGE 18

EXHIBIT A



PAGE 19

EXHIBIT A



PAGE 20

EXHIBIT A



PAGE 21

EXHIBIT A



PAGE 22

EXHIBIT A



PAGE 23

EXHIBIT A



03/06/2023

Digitally signed 
by Robert R 
Cunningham 
Date: 2023.03.06 
15:55:44 -05'00'

PAGE 24

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013    www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900    Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

PAGE 25

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013    www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900    Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

03/09/2023

Digitally signed 
by Robert R 
Cunningham 
Date: 
2023.03.09 
06:56:30 -05'00'

PAGE 26

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013    www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900    Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

PAGE 27

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013    www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900    Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

03/09/2023

Digitally signed 
by Robert R 
Cunningham 
Date: 2023.03.09 
06:57:31 -05'00'

PAGE 28

EXHIBIT A



PAGE 29

EXHIBIT A



03/07/2023

Digitally signed 
by Robert R 
Cunningham 
Date: 2023.03.07 
13:34:05 -05'00'

PAGE 30

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013    www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900    Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

PAGE 31

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013    www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900    Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

03/07/2023

Digitally signed 
by Robert R 
Cunningham 
Date: 2023.03.07 
13:35:01 -05'00'

PAGE 32

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013    www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900    Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

PAGE 33

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013    www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900    Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

03/09/2023

Digitally signed 
by Robert R 
Cunningham 
Date: 2023.03.09 
06:59:19 -05'00'

PAGE 34

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013    www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900    Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

PAGE 35

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013    www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900    Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

03/09/2023

Digitally signed 
by Robert R 
Cunningham 
Date: 2023.03.09 
07:00:26 -05'00'

PAGE 36

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013    www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900    Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

PAGE 37

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013    www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900    Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

03/09/2023

Digitally signed 
by Robert R 
Cunningham 
Date: 
2023.03.09 
07:01:37 -05'00'

PAGE 38

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013    www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900    Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

PAGE 39

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013    www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900    Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

03/09/2023

Digitally signed 
by Robert R 
Cunningham 
Date: 
2023.03.09 
07:02:40 -05'00'

PAGE 40

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013    www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900    Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

PAGE 41

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013    www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900    Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

03/09/2023

Digitally signed 
by Robert R 
Cunningham 
Date: 2023.03.09 
07:03:37 -05'00'

PAGE 42

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013    www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900    Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

PAGE 43

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013    www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900    Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

03/09/2023

Digitally signed 
by Robert R 
Cunningham 
Date: 
2023.03.09 
07:04:31 -05'00'

PAGE 44

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013    www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900    Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

PAGE 45

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013    www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900    Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

03/09/2023

Digitally signed 
by Robert R 
Cunningham 
Date: 
2023.03.09 
07:05:33 -05'00'

PAGE 46

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013    www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900    Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

PAGE 47

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013    www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900    Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

03/09/2023

Digitally signed 
by Robert R 
Cunningham 
Date: 
2023.03.09 
07:06:28 -05'00'

PAGE 48

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013  • •  www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900  • •  Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

PAGE 49

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013  • •  www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900  • •  Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

PAGE 50

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013  • •  www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900  • •  Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

03/09/2023

Digitally signed 
by Robert R 
Cunningham 
Date: 2023.03.09 
07:07:39 -05'00'

PAGE 51

EXHIBIT A



PAGE 52

EXHIBIT A



PAGE 53

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013    www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900    Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

03/09/2023

Digitally signed 
by Robert R 
Cunningham 
Date: 2023.03.09 
07:35:05 -05'00'

PAGE 54

EXHIBIT A



03/09/2023

Digitally signed by 
Robert R Cunningham 
Date: 2023.03.09 
07:39:23 -05'00'

PAGE 55

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013    www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900    Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

03/09/2023

Digitally signed by 
Robert R 
Cunningham 
Date: 2023.03.09 
07:40:19 -05'00'

PAGE 56

EXHIBIT A



03/09/2023

Digitally signed by 
Robert R Cunningham 
Date: 2023.03.09 
07:41:20 -05'00'

PAGE 57

EXHIBIT A



03/09/2023

Digitally signed by 
Robert R 
Cunningham 
Date: 2023.03.09 
07:42:07 -05'00'

PAGE 58

EXHIBIT A



03/09/2023

Digitally signed by 
Robert R Cunningham 
Date: 2023.03.09 
07:43:40 -05'00'

PAGE 59

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013  • •  www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900  • •  Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

03/09/2023

Digitally signed by 
Robert R 
Cunningham 
Date: 2023.03.09 
13:15:07 -05'00'

PAGE 60

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013  • •  www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900  • •  Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

03/09/2023
Digitally signed by 
Robert R Cunningham 
Date: 2023.03.09 
07:46:57 -05'00'

PAGE 61

EXHIBIT A



Certificate of Authorization #27013    www.stantec.com
Phone  941-907-6900    Fax  941-907-6910

6920 Professional Parkway East, Sarasota, FL 34240-8414

Licensed Business Number 7866

03/09/2023

Digitally signed by 
Robert R Cunningham 
Date: 2023.03.09 
07:52:51 -05'00'

PAGE 62

EXHIBIT A



P.I.D. NO.  P.I.D. NO.  

THIS IS NOT A SURVEY

EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PARCEL 816
50 FEET WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT

COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 37 SOUTH,
RANGE 19 EAST, SARASOTA COUNTY: THENCE N 00°07'06" E, ALONG THE WEST
LINE OF SAID SECTION 15, A DISTANCE OF 869.19 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION
WITH THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF STATE ROAD 72 (CLARK ROAD) AS DESCRIBED
IN F.D.O.T. SECTION 17070(105)2501; THENCE S 55°50'02'' E ALONG SAID SOUTH
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 4335.83 FEET TO A POINT ON THE ARC OF A
CURVE CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY WHOSE RADIUS POINT LIES N 34°10'05'' E, A
DISTANCE OF 1959.86 FEET: THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE AND
THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 10°21'26'' A
DISTANCE OF 354.28 FEET TO A POINT OF NON-TANGENCY; THENCE S 66°12'02'' E
ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 1091.41 FEET TO A POINT
OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUE S 66°12'02'' E ALONG SAID SOUTH
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 592.02 FEET TO THE EASTERLY PARCEL
BOUNDARY OF A PARCEL DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 2068, PAGE 576,
PUBLIC RECORDS OF SARASOTA COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE S 01°22'11'' W, ALONG
SAID EASTERLY BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF 54.09 FEET; THENCE N 66°12'02'' W, A
DISTANCE OF 625.24 FEET TO THE WESTERLY PARCEL BOUNDARY OF SAID PARCEL
DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 2068, PAGE 576; THENCE N 37°55'35" E
ALONG SAID WESTERLY BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF 51.56 FEET TO SAID SOUTH
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 30,431 SQUARE FEET OR 0.699 ACRES, MORE OR LESS

PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR AND MAPPER
STATE OF FLORIDA # LS6051

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION No. LB 2610

ROBERT B. CURTIS

Sketch and Legal Description not valid without the original

signature and seal of a Florida licensed Surveyor and Mapper.

CERTIFIED AS TO SKETCH AND LEGAL DESCRIPTION

4921 Memorial Highway

One Memorial Center, Suite 300

Tampa, Florida  33634

Phone: (813) 880-8881

www.Ardurra.com
License #2610

SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 37 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST
SARASOTA COUNTY, FLORIDA

0294004000

PARCEL 816 - PERMANENT UTILITY EASEMENT 

WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY
PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL

PAGE 63

EXHIBIT A



CURVE TABLE
CURVE

C1

LENGTH

354.28'

RADIUS

1,959.86'

DELTA

10°21'26"

LINE TABLE
LINE

L1

L2

BEARING

S01°22'11"W

N37°55'35"E

DISTANCE

54.09'

51.56'

POINT OF
BEGINNING

S66°12'02"E1091.41'

STATE ROAD 72 (CLARK ROAD)

FDOT SECTION 17070(105)2501

PARCEL 816
SUBJECT PROPERTY
CONTAINING 30,431 SF

OR 0.699 ACRES

PID 0294004000
ORB 2068, PG 576

EA
ST

ER
N 

BO
UN

DA
RY

PI
D 

02
96

00
30

1050
.0

0'

PID 0293002020

S R/W

W
ES

T 
LI

NE
 O

F 
SE

CT
IO

N 
15

S55°50'02"E   4335.83'

N0
0°

07
'0

6"
E 

  8
69

.1
9'

POINT OF
COMMENCEMENT
SW CORNER OF SECTION 15

C1

160.00'
DRAINAGE R/W

ORB 527, PG 36

200.00'
DRAINAGE R/W

ORB 527, PG 36

50
.0

0'
PE

RM
AN

EN
T

UT
ILI

TY
 EA

SE
ME

NT
IN

ST
RU

ME
NT

#2
01

90
48

34
8

15
.0

0'
FL

OR
ID

A 
PO

W
ER

 &
LIG

HT
 C

OM
PA

NY
EA

SE
ME

NT
IN

ST
RU

ME
NT

#2
02

00
17

10
1

15
.0

0'
FL

OR
ID

A 
PO

W
ER

 &
 LI

GH
T

CO
MP

AN
Y E

AS
EM

EN
T

IN
ST

RU
ME

NT
 #

20
20

13
23

04

30
.0

0'
PE

RM
AN

EN
T U

TI
LIT

Y
EA

SE
ME

NT
IN

ST
RU

ME
NT

 #
20

20
06

25
58

S66°12'02"E592.02'N66°12'02"W625.24' L1

L2

P.I.D. NO.  P.I.D. NO.  

LEGEND:
FDOT = FLORIDA DEPARTMENT

OF TRANSPORTATION
ORB = OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK
PG = PAGE
SF = SQUARE FEET
R/W = RIGHT-OF-WAY
PID = PARCEL IDENTIFICATION

SURVEYOR'S NOTES:

1. NO INSTRUMENTS OF RECORD REFLECTING EASEMENTS, RIGHTS-OF-WAY,
AND OR OWNERSHIP WERE FURNISHED TO OR PURSUED BY THE
UNDERSIGNED.

2. UNLESS IT BEARS THE ORIGINAL SIGNATURE AND SEAL OF A FLORIDA
LICENSED SURVEYOR AND MAPPER THIS DRAWING, SKETCH, PLAT OR
MAP IS FOR INFORMATIONAL  PURPOSES ONLY AND IS NOT VALID.

3. THIS IS A SKETCH AND LEGAL DESCRIPTION ONLY, NOT A FIELD SURVEY.
4. BEARINGS ARE BASED ON WEST LINE OF SECTION 15, BEING NORTH

00°07'06" EAST, AS SHOWN HEREON.
5. DISTANCES SHOWN HEREON ARE IN U.S. FEET.

THIS IS NOT A SURVEY

SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION:

PARCEL 816 - PERMANENT UTILITY EASEMENT 

0294004000
WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL

PAGE 64

EXHIBIT A



P.I.D. NO.  P.I.D. NO.  

THIS IS NOT A SURVEY

EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PARCEL 716 - TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 37 SOUTH,
RANGE 19 EAST, SARASOTA COUNTY: THENCE N 00°07'06" E, ALONG THE WEST
LINE OF SAID SECTION 15, A DISTANCE OF 869.19 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION
WITH THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF STATE ROAD 72 (CLARK ROAD) AS DESCRIBED
IN F.D.O.T. SECTION 17070(105)2501; THENCE S 55°50'02'' E ALONG SAID SOUTH
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 4335.83 FEET TO A POINT ON THE ARC OF A
CURVE CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY WHOSE RADIUS POINT LIES N 34°10'05'' E, A
DISTANCE OF 1959.86 FEET: THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE AND
THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 10°21'26'' A
DISTANCE OF 354.28 FEET TO A POINT OF NON-TANGENCY; THENCE S 66°12'02'' E
ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 1,091.40 FEET; THENCE,
LEAVING SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE SOUTH 37°55'35" WEST, A DISTANCE OF
51.56 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 66°12'02" EAST, A
DISTANCE OF 232.02 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 37°55'35" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 51.56
FEET; THENCE NORTH 66°12'02" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 232.02 FEET TO A POINT ON
A NON-TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY 1.40 FEET ALONG
THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, HAVING A RADIUS OF 955.37 FEET, A CENTRAL ANGLE OF
00°05'02", AND A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF NORTH 37°53'04" EAST 1.40
FEET; THENCE NORTH 37°55'35" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 50.16 FEET TO THE POINT
OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 11,587 SQUARE FEET OR 0.266 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR AND MAPPER
STATE OF FLORIDA # LS6051

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION No. LB 2610

ROBERT B. CURTIS

Sketch and Legal Description not valid without the original

signature and seal of a Florida licensed Surveyor and Mapper.

CERTIFIED AS TO SKETCH AND LEGAL DESCRIPTION

4921 Memorial Highway

One Memorial Center, Suite 300

Tampa, Florida  33634

Phone: (813) 880-8881

www.Ardurra.com
License #2610

SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 37 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST
SARASOTA COUNTY, FLORIDA

0294004000
WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT 

PARCEL 716 

PAGE 65

EXHIBIT A



POINT OF
BEGINNING
TEMPORARY
CONSTRUCTION
EASEMENT

EA
ST

ER
N

BO
UN

DA
RY

STATE ROAD 72 (CLARK ROAD)

FDOT SECTION 17070(105)2501

PID 0294004000
ORB 2068, PG 576

160.00'
DRAINAGE R/W

ORB 527, PG 36

200.00'
DRAINAGE R/W

ORB 527, PG 36

50
.0

0'

15.00'
FLORIDA POWER &

LIGHT COMPANY

EASEMENT
ORB 1886, PG 351

50
.0

0'
PE

RM
AN

EN
T U

TI
LIT

Y
EA

SE
ME

NT
IN

ST
RU

ME
NT

#2
01

90
48

34
8

15
.0

0'
FL

OR
ID

A 
PO

W
ER

 &
LIG

HT
 C

OM
PA

NY
EA

SE
ME

NT
IN

ST
RU

ME
NT

#2
02

00
17

10
1

SOUTH R/W LINE

PARCEL 716
TEMPORARY

CONSTRUCTION
EASEMENT

SUBJECT PROPERTY
CONTAINING 11,587 SF

OR 0.266 ACRES

S66°12'02"E   1091.40'

L1

S66°12'02"E   232.02'N66°12'02"W   232.02'

L2

L3C2

STATE ROAD 72 (CLARK ROAD)

LINE TABLE
LINE

L1

L2

L3

BEARING

S37°55'35"W

S37°55'35"W

N37°55'35"E

DISTANCE

51.56'

51.56'

50.16'

CURVE TABLE
CURVE

C1

C2

LENGTH

354.28'

1.40'

RADIUS

1,959.86'

955.37'

DELTA

10°21'26"

0°05'02"

BEARING

S61°00'45"E

N37°53'04"E

CHORD

353.80'

1.40'

P.I.D. NO.  P.I.D. NO.  

LEGEND:
FDOT = FLORIDA DEPARTMENT

OF TRANSPORTATION
ORI = OFFICIAL RECORDS

INSTRUMENT
PG = PAGE
SF = SQUARE FEET
R/W = RIGHT-OF-WAY
PID = PARCEL IDENTIFICATION

SURVEYOR'S NOTES:

1. NO INSTRUMENTS OF RECORD REFLECTING EASEMENTS, RIGHTS-OF-WAY,
AND OR OWNERSHIP WERE FURNISHED TO OR PURSUED BY THE
UNDERSIGNED.

2. UNLESS IT BEARS THE ORIGINAL SIGNATURE AND SEAL OF A FLORIDA
LICENSED SURVEYOR AND MAPPER THIS DRAWING, SKETCH, PLAT OR
MAP IS FOR INFORMATIONAL  PURPOSES ONLY AND IS NOT VALID.

3. THIS IS A SKETCH AND LEGAL DESCRIPTION ONLY, NOT A FIELD SURVEY.
4. BEARINGS ARE BASED ON WEST LINE OF SECTION 15, BEING NORTH

00°07'06" EAST, AS SHOWN HEREON.
5. DISTANCES SHOWN HEREON ARE IN U.S. FEET.

THIS IS NOT A SURVEY

0294004000

SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION:

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT 

WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY
PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL

N0
0°

07
'0

6"
E 

  8
69

.1
9'

S55°50'02"E   4335.83'
C1

POINT OF
COMMENCEMENT
SW CORNER OF
SECTION 15

W
ES

T 
LI

NE
 O

F 
SE

CT
IO

N 
15

PARCEL 716 

PAGE 66

EXHIBIT A



P.I.D. NO.  P.I.D. NO.  

THIS IS NOT A SURVEY

EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PARCEL 817
100 FEET WIDE UTILITY EASEMENT

COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 37 SOUTH,
RANGE 19 EAST, SARASOTA COUNTY: THENCE N 00°07'06" E, ALONG THE WEST
LINE OF SAID SECTION 15, A DISTANCE OF 869.19 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION
WITH THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF STATE ROAD 72 (CLARK ROAD) AS DESCRIBED
IN F.D.O.T. SECTION 17070(105)2501; THENCE S 55°50'02'' E ALONG SAID SOUTH
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 4335.83 FEET TO A POINT ON THE ARC OF A
CURVE CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY WHOSE RADIUS POINT LIES N 34°10'05'' E, A
DISTANCE OF 1959.86 FEET: THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE AND
THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 10°21'26'' A
DISTANCE OF 354.28 FEET TO A POINT OF NON-TANGENCY; THENCE S 66°12'02'' E
ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 988.29 FEET TO A POINT
OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUE S 66°12'02'' E ALONG SAID SOUTH
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 103.12 FEET TO THE EASTERLY PARCEL
BOUNDARY OF A PARCEL DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS INSTRUMENT NUMBER
2012125320, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SARASOTA COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE S
37°55'35'' W, ALONG SAID EASTERLY BOUNDARY, A DISTANCE OF 101.72 FEET;
THENCE, LEAVING SAID EASTERLY BOUNDARY, NORTH 52°04'25" WEST, A DISTANCE
OF 100.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 37°55'35" EAST, ALONG THE WESTERLY PARCEL
BOUNDARY OF SAID PARCEL DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS INSTRUMENT
NUMBER 2012125320, PUBLIC RECORDS OF SARASOTA COUNTY, FLORIDA, A
DISTANCE OF 76.55 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 8,930 SQUARE FEET OR 0.205 ACRES, MORE OR LESS

PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR AND MAPPER
STATE OF FLORIDA # LS6051

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION No. LB 2610

ROBERT B. CURTIS

Sketch and Legal Description not valid without the original

signature and seal of a Florida licensed Surveyor and Mapper.

CERTIFIED AS TO SKETCH AND LEGAL DESCRIPTION

4921 Memorial Highway

One Memorial Center, Suite 300

Tampa, Florida  33634

Phone: (813) 880-8881

www.Ardurra.com
License #2610

SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 37 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST
SARASOTA COUNTY, FLORIDA

0293002020

PARCEL 817 - PERMANENT UTILITY EASEMENT 

WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY
PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL

PAGE 67

EXHIBIT A



POINT OF
BEGINNING
PARCEL 817

EA
ST

ER
N

BO
UN

DA
RY

STATE ROAD 72 (CLARK ROAD)

FDOT SECTION 17070(105)2501
PARCEL 817

SUBJECT PROPERTY
CONTAINING 8,930 SF

OR 0.205 ACRES

PID 0294004000
ORB 2068, PG 576

PID 0293002020
ORI 2012125350

L2

L1

L3
L4

160.00'
DRAINAGE R/W

ORB 527, PG 36

100.00'

100.00'

80.00'

80.00'

200.00'
DRAINAGE R/W

ORB 527, PG 36

50
.0

0'
PE

RM
AN

EN
T U

TI
LIT

Y E
AS

EM
EN

T

IN
ST

RU
ME

NT
 #

20
19

04
83

48

15
.0

0'

FL
OR

ID
A 

PO
W

ER
 &

 LI
GH

T C
OM

PA
NY

 EA
SE

ME
NT

IN
ST

RU
ME

NT
 #

20
20

01
71

01

15
.0

0'
FL

OR
ID

A 
PO

W
ER

 &
 LI

GH
T

CO
MP

AN
Y E

AS
EM

EN
T

IN
ST

RU
ME

NT
 #

20
20

13
23

04

30
.0

0'
PE

RM
AN

EN
T U

TI
LIT

Y E
AS

EM
EN

T

IN
ST

RU
ME

NT
 #

20
20

06
25

58

SOUTH R/W LINE

S66°12'02"E   988.29'

LINE TABLE
LINE

L1

L2

L3

L4

BEARING

S66°12'02"E

S37°55'35"W

N52°04'25"W

N37°55'35"E

DISTANCE

103.12'

101.72'

100.00'

76.55'

CURVE TABLE
CURVE

C1

LENGTH

354.28'

RADIUS

1,959.86'

DELTA

10°21'26"

BEARING

S61°00'45"E

CHORD

353.80'

P.I.D. NO.  P.I.D. NO.  

LEGEND:
FDOT = FLORIDA DEPARTMENT

OF TRANSPORTATION
ORI = OFFICIAL RECORDS

INSTRUMENT
PG = PAGE
SF = SQUARE FEET
R/W = RIGHT-OF-WAY
PID = PARCEL IDENTIFICATION

SURVEYOR'S NOTES:

1. NO INSTRUMENTS OF RECORD REFLECTING EASEMENTS, RIGHTS-OF-WAY,
AND OR OWNERSHIP WERE FURNISHED TO OR PURSUED BY THE
UNDERSIGNED.

2. UNLESS IT BEARS THE ORIGINAL SIGNATURE AND SEAL OF A FLORIDA
LICENSED SURVEYOR AND MAPPER THIS DRAWING, SKETCH, PLAT OR
MAP IS FOR INFORMATIONAL  PURPOSES ONLY AND IS NOT VALID.

3. THIS IS A SKETCH AND LEGAL DESCRIPTION ONLY, NOT A FIELD SURVEY.
4. BEARINGS ARE BASED ON WEST LINE OF SECTION 15, BEING NORTH

00°07'06" EAST, AS SHOWN HEREON.
5. DISTANCES SHOWN HEREON ARE IN U.S. FEET.

THIS IS NOT A SURVEY

0293002020

SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION:

PARCEL 817 - PERMANENT UTILITY EASEMENT 

WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY
PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL

N0
0°

07
'0

6"
E 

  8
69

.1
9'

S55°50'02"E   4335.83'
C1

POINT OF
COMMENCEMENT
SW CORNER OF
SECTION 15

W
ES

T 
LI

NE
 O

F 
SE

CT
IO

N 
15

PAGE 68

EXHIBIT A



P.I.D. NO.  P.I.D. NO.  

THIS IS NOT A SURVEY

EXHIBIT A

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

PARCEL 717 - TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

COMMENCE AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 37 SOUTH,
RANGE 19 EAST, SARASOTA COUNTY: THENCE N 00°07'06" E, ALONG THE WEST
LINE OF SAID SECTION 15, A DISTANCE OF 869.19 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION
WITH THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY OF STATE ROAD 72 (CLARK ROAD) AS DESCRIBED
IN F.D.O.T. SECTION 17070(105)2501; THENCE S 55°50'02'' E ALONG SAID SOUTH
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 4335.83 FEET TO A POINT ON THE ARC OF A
CURVE CONCAVE NORTHEASTERLY WHOSE RADIUS POINT LIES N 34°10'05'' E, A
DISTANCE OF 1959.86 FEET: THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CURVE AND
THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 10°21'26'' A
DISTANCE OF 354.28 FEET TO A POINT OF NON-TANGENCY; THENCE S 66°12'02'' E
ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 341.40 FEET TO THE
POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUE SOUTH 66°12'02" EAST, ALONG SAID
SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 750.00 FEET; THENCE, LEAVING SAID
SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, SOUTH 37°55'35" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 76.55 FEET;
THENCE NORTH 66°12'02" WEST, A DISTANCE OF 206.24 FEET; THENCE NORTH
37°55'35" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 45.62 FEET; THENCE NORTH 66°12'02" WEST, A
DISTANCE OF 536.21 FEET; THENCE NORTH 23°47'58" EAST, A DISTANCE OF 30.00
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 31,494 SQUARE FEET OR 0.723 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.

PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR AND MAPPER
STATE OF FLORIDA # LS6051

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION No. LB 2610

ROBERT B. CURTIS

Sketch and Legal Description not valid without the original

signature and seal of a Florida licensed Surveyor and Mapper.

CERTIFIED AS TO SKETCH AND LEGAL DESCRIPTION

4921 Memorial Highway

One Memorial Center, Suite 300

Tampa, Florida  33634

Phone: (813) 880-8881

www.Ardurra.com
License #2610

SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 37 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST
SARASOTA COUNTY, FLORIDA

0293002020
WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT 

PARCEL 717

PAGE 69

EXHIBIT A



POINT OF BEGINNING
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION
EASEMENT

PARCEL 717
TEMPORARY

CONSTRUCTION
EASEMENT

SUBJECT PROPERTY
CONTAINING 31,494 SF

OR 0.723 ACRES

PID 0293002020
ORI 2012125350

160.00'
DRAINAGE R/W

ORB 527, PG 36

200.00'
DRAINAGE R/W

ORB 527, PG 36

15
.0

0'
FL

OR
ID

A 
PO

W
ER

 &
 LI

GH
T

CO
MP

AN
Y E

AS
EM

EN
T

IN
ST

RU
ME

NT
 #

20
20

13
23

04

30
.0

0'
PE

RM
AN

EN
T U

TI
LIT

Y
EA

SE
ME

NT
IN

ST
RU

ME
NT

 #
20

20
06

25
58

15
.0

0'
FL

OR
ID

A 
PO

W
ER

 &
 LI

GH
T

CO
MP

AN
Y E

AS
EM

EN
T

IN
ST

RU
ME

NT
 #

20
20

13
23

04
30

.0
0'

PE
RM

AN
EN

T U
TI

LIT
Y

EA
SE

ME
NT

IN
ST

RU
ME

NT
 #

20
20

06
25

58

STATE ROAD 72 (CLARK ROAD)

FDOT SECTION 17070(105)2501

SOUTH R/W LINE

S66°12'02"E341.40'

S66°12'02"E   750.00'

N66°12'02"W   536.21'

L1

L2
L3

L4

LINE TABLE
LINE

L1

L2

L3

L4

BEARING

S37°55'35"W

N66°12'02"W

N37°55'35"E

N23°47'58"E

DISTANCE

76.55'

206.24'

45.62'

30.00'

SOUTH R/W LINE

CURVE TABLE
CURVE

C1

LENGTH

354.28'

RADIUS

1,959.86'

DELTA

10°21'26"

BEARING

S61°00'45"E

CHORD

353.80'

P.I.D. NO.  P.I.D. NO.  

LEGEND:
FDOT = FLORIDA DEPARTMENT

OF TRANSPORTATION
ORI = OFFICIAL RECORDS

INSTRUMENT
PG = PAGE
SF = SQUARE FEET
R/W = RIGHT-OF-WAY
PID = PARCEL IDENTIFICATION

SURVEYOR'S NOTES:

1. NO INSTRUMENTS OF RECORD REFLECTING EASEMENTS, RIGHTS-OF-WAY,
AND OR OWNERSHIP WERE FURNISHED TO OR PURSUED BY THE
UNDERSIGNED.

2. UNLESS IT BEARS THE ORIGINAL SIGNATURE AND SEAL OF A FLORIDA
LICENSED SURVEYOR AND MAPPER THIS DRAWING, SKETCH, PLAT OR
MAP IS FOR INFORMATIONAL  PURPOSES ONLY AND IS NOT VALID.

3. THIS IS A SKETCH AND LEGAL DESCRIPTION ONLY, NOT A FIELD SURVEY.
4. BEARINGS ARE BASED ON WEST LINE OF SECTION 15, BEING NORTH

00°07'06" EAST, AS SHOWN HEREON.
5. DISTANCES SHOWN HEREON ARE IN U.S. FEET.

THIS IS NOT A SURVEY

0293002020

SKETCH OF DESCRIPTION:

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT 

WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY
PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL

C1

86
9.

19
'

S55°50'02"E   4335.83'N0
0°

07
'0

6"
E

POINT OF
COMMENCEMENT
SW CORNER OF
SECTION 15

W
ES

T 
LI

NE
 O

F 
SE

CT
IO

N 
15

PARCEL 717

PAGE 70

EXHIBIT A



PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 7, 2024 

CONSENT AGENDA 
ITEM 9 

Operating Protocol Agreement between the Authority and the Polk Regional Water 
Cooperative for Water Supply Operations on the Peace River 

 

Recommended Action - Motion to approve and Authorize the Chairman to 
execute the Peace River Protocol Agreement between the 
Authority and the Polk Regional Water Cooperative. 

 
In January 2019, the Polk Regional Water Cooperative (PRWC) and the Authority resolved a Water Use 
Permit (WUP) challenge by PRWC through the execution of the Peace River Cooperation Settlement 
Agreement (Settlement Agreement). The Settlement Agreement stipulated that the Authority’s permitted 
maximum day withdrawals from the Peace River would be reduced from 258 MGD to 210 MGD if the 
PRWC developed its own supply on the Peace River in Polk County and that the Authority and the PRWC 
would develop an agreement to cooperate on future withdrawals from the Peace River.   
 
Pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement, on May 10, 2019, the PRWC and the Authority entered 
the Peace River Interlocal Cooperation Agreement (Coordination Agreement) to further coordination on 
joint use of the Peace River for water supply.  The Cooperation Agreement required the parties to develop 
an operating protocol to ensure that joint use of the Peace River was consistent with the Minimum Flow 
and Level (MFL) withdrawal limits established by the Southwest Florida Water Management District 
(SWFWMD). 
 
As envisioned in the Coordination Agreement, the Peace River Protocol Agreement (Protocol Agreement) 
has been developed between the PRWC and the Authority and is attached hereto for Board consideration.  
The Protocol Agreement eliminates the requirement for the Authority to reduce maximum day quantities 
from 258 MGD to 210 MGD from the river in return for the commitment that the Authority will not 
withdraw more than the 28% limit identified in the Authority’s WUP under the current MFL for the lower 
Peace River.  Analysis shows that the Authority benefits most from the access to a 258 MGD maximum 
withdrawal limit and the PRWC benefits most from access to withdrawals in the range above the 
Authority’s 28% limit and up to 40% in the highest flow block of the MFL’s. The PRWC Board approved 
the Peace River Protocol Agreement on January 24, 2024.  Staff recommends approval of the Peace River 
Protocol Agreement.    
 
Budget Action – No action is required. 
 
Attachments: 
Peace River Protocol Agreement 



PEACE RIVER PROTOCOL AGREEMENT 
 

THIS PEACE RIVER PROTOCOL AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is 
entered into between the Peace River/Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority 
(the “Authority”) and the Polk Regional Water Cooperative (the “Cooperative) col-
lectively, the “Parties” with the Effective Date of the Agreement, as described 
herein. 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties entered into the Peace River Interlocal Cooperation 

Agreement (“Cooperation Agreement”) on or about May 10, 2019 to further coordi-
nation between the Authority and the Cooperative with regards to their joint use of 
the Peace River; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Cooperation Agreement required the Parties to develop a 

protocol to ensure their joint use of the Peace River and its tributaries consistent with 
the Minimum Flow and Maximum Day Withdrawal Limit established by the South-
west Florida Water Management District (“District”) for the Lower Peace River pur-
suant to Section 373.042, Florida Statutes and Rule 40D-8.041(8), Florida Admin-
istrative Code (“F.A.C.”); and 

 
WHEREAS, at the time the Parties entered the Cooperation Agreement the 

Lower Peace River Minimum Flow limited withdrawals from the Lower Peace dur-
ing three seasonally dependent blocks based on combined flows from Horse Creek, 
Joshua Creek and the Peace River at Arcadia gages; and 

 
WHEREAS, the maximum withdrawal allowed from the Lower Peace River 

was limited to 16% of the flow above 130 cfs in Block 1, 16% of the flow between 
130 cfs and 625 cfs and 29% above 625 cfs in Block 2 and 16% of the flow between 
130 cfs and 625 cfs and 38% above 625 cfs in Block 3; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Maximum Daily Withdrawal from the Peace River was lim-

ited to 400 cfs or 258 mgd; and 
 
WHEREAS, prior to 2019 the Authority had been issued a water use permit 

by the District authorizing the withdrawal of water from the Lower Peace River up 
to the maximum percentage allowed under the Lower Peace River Minimum Flow 
for Block 1 and up to 28% in Blocks 2 and 3 and up to a maximum daily amount of 
120 mgd; and 

 



 
    

2 

WHEREAS, in 2018 the District proposed to issue the Authority a 50-year 
water use permit, which would have increased the maximum daily withdrawal 
amount from 120 mgd to 258 mgd or 400 cfs; and 

 
WHEREAS, that proposed agency action prompted the Cooperative, several 

of its member governments and the City of Wauchula to challenge the proposed 
permit; and 

 
WHEREAS, this litigation was resolved through the execution of the Peace 

River Cooperation Settlement Agreement (“Settlement Agreement”) by the Cooper-
ative, the Authority and the other challengers on or about January 22, 2019; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Settlement Agreement required the addition of a new permit 

condition to the Authority’s proposed water use permit that for ten years would re-
quire reduction of the 258 mgd maximum daily withdrawal quantity by up to 48 mgd 
should the maximum daily withdrawal quantity interfere with the Cooperative’s abil-
ity to obtain a permit to withdraw water from the Upper Peace River for natural 
system restoration or potable water supply; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District issued the Authority a water use permit with the new 

special condition required under the Settlement Agreement on or about February 26, 
2019; and 

 
WHEREAS, on or about April 12, 2021, the District adopted a new rule mod-

ifying the Lower Peace River Minimum Flow and Maximum Daily Withdrawal 
Limit; and 

 
WHEREAS, in place of the previous three seasonally dependent blocks, the 

new Lower Peace River Minimum Flow now consists of seven flow dependent min-
imum flows; and 

 
WHEREAS, the maximum withdrawal allowed from the Lower Peace River 

is limited to 0% of the flow below 130 cfs, 0-13% of the flow between 130 cfs and 
149 cfs, 13% of the flow between 149 cfs and 297 cfs, 13-23% of the flow between 
297 cfs and 335 cfs, 23% of the flow between 335 cfs and 622 cfs, 23-40% of the 
flow between 622 cfs and 798 cfs and 40% of the flow above 798 cfs; and 

 
WHEREAS, the new rule adopted by the District clarified that the 400 cfs or 

258 mgd Maximum Daily Withdrawal Limit only applied to permitted withdrawals 
within the Lower Peace River and not the Upper and Middle Peace River; and 



 
    

3 

 
WHEREAS, on or about July 19, 2021 the District modified the Authority’s 

water use permit to allow the Authority to withdraw up to the limit of the five of the 
seven flow dependent minimum flows, but limited the Authority’s withdrawal under 
the sixth and seventh flow dependent minimum flows to 28% rather than the maxi-
mum allowable 40%; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Cooperative and its consultants have determined that more 

water can be withdrawn from Upper Peace River for natural system restoration or 
potable water supply, if the Authority’s withdrawal from the Lower Peace River 
under the two highest flow dependent minimum flows is limited to 28% than would 
be available if the Authority’s Maximum Daily Withdrawal is limited to 210 mgd; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority and its consultants have determined that more wa-

ter would be available for its use, if the Maximum Daily Withdrawal is increased 
from 210 mgd to 258 mgd, than would be available from increasing its withdrawal 
from the Lower Peace River under the highest flow dependent minimum flow from 
28% to 40%; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is in the interest of both Parties to approve an operating pro-

tocol for the Peace River and its tributaries based on the current Minimum Flow and 
Maximum Daily Withdrawal Limit for the Lower Peace River. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and condi-

tions contained herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree, as follows: 

 
I. Effective Date.  This Agreement shall become effective on the date it is duly 
executed by all the Parties. The last date of execution by all the Parties shall be 
known as the “Effective Date” of this Agreement. 
 
II. Duration.  This Agreement shall be in effect until May 20, 2070, unless ter-
minated in writing by mutual consent of all Parties. 
 
III. Operating Protocol.  To ensure the combined withdrawals by the Authority 
and the Cooperative do not exceed the District’s Lower Peace River Minimum Flow 
and the Maximum Daily Withdrawal Limit, as set forth in Rule 40D-8.041(8), 
F.A.C., as of the Effective Date (“Lower Peace MFL”), the following distribution of 



 
    

4 

the available quantities is agreed to by both Parties as long as the Lower Peace MFL 
is in effect, in its current form. 
 

a. The Authority’s maximum daily withdrawal limit shall be 258 mgd, 
fully utilizing the water allocation available under the Lower Peace 
MFL in flow-based blocks 1 and 2 of Special Condition 6 of Water Use 
Permit No. 20010420.012 (“Authority Permit”). 

 
b. The Authority’s maximum daily withdrawal limit shall be 258 mgd, but 

the Authority shall only utilize 28% of the available water in flow-based 
block 3 of Special Condition 6 of the Authority Permit leaving the re-
maining available for use by the Cooperative. 

 
IV. Authority Permit.  

 
a. Modification of Flow Based Block 3 Flow Limit. For as long as this 

Agreement and the Lower Peace MFL remains in effect, the Authority 
shall not apply for any change to Special Condition 6 of the Authority 
Permit that would increase the quantity of water that it could withdraw 
from the Lower Peace River under Flow Based Block 3 above 28% of 
the available water. 

 
b. Special Condition 19. For as long as this Agreement and the Lower 

Peace MFL remains in effect, the Cooperative acknowledges that the 
Authority’s maximum daily withdrawal allocation of 258 mgd does not 
interfere with its ability to withdraw water from the Upper Peace River 
for native system restoration and potable water supply nor shall the Co-
operative request or accept the reduction of the Authority’s maximum 
daily withdrawal allocation of 258 mgd pursuant to Special Condition 
19 of the Authority Permit or Article V of the Settlement Agreement. 

 
 
 
VI. Modification of the Lower Peace MFL.  Should the District modify the 
Lower Peace MFL, the Parties agree to work on an updated Operating Protocol. 
 

 



 
    

5 

VII. Miscellaneous Provisions. 
 
a. Notice. All notices, amendments, requests, consents and other commu-

nications required or permitted under this Agreement shall be in writing 
(including telex, facsimile or telecommunication) and shall be (as 
elected by the Party giving such notice) hand delivered by prepaid ex-
press overnight courier or messenger service, telecommunicated or 
mailed (air-mail if international) by registered or certified mail (postage 
prepaid), return receipt requested, to the following addresses or to such 
other address(es) as a Party may designate by prior written notice in 
accordance with this provision to the other Party: 

 
As to the Authority: Peace River/Manasota Regional Water 
    Supply Authority 
    9415 Town Center Parkway 
    Lakewood Ranch, FL 34202 
    Attn: Mike Coates, P.G. 
     Executive Director 
    Phone: (941) 316-1776 
    Fax:  (941) 316-1772 
 
With a copy to:  Manson Bolves Donaldson Varn, P.A. 
(Which Shall Not  109 N. Brush Street 
Constitute Notice)  Suite 300 
    Tampa, FL 33602 
    Attn: Douglas P. Manson, Esq. 
    Phone:  (813) 514-4700 
    Fax:  (813) 514-4701 
 
As to the Cooperative Polk Regional Water Cooperative 
    330 W. Church Street 
    Bartow, FL 33831-9005 
    Attn: Eric DeHaven 
     Executive Director 
    Phone:  (863) 534-6475 
    Fax:  (863) 534-7069 
 
With a copy to:  de la Parte & Gilbert, P.A. 
(Which Shall Not  101 E. Kennedy Boulevard 
Constitute Notice)  Suite 2000 



 
    

6 

    Tampa, FL 33601 
    Attn: Edward P. de la Parte, Jr. Esq. 
    Phone:  (813) 229-2775 
    Fax:  (813) 229-2712 
 

b. Authority to Enter Agreement. The Parties each have the power, au-
thority and legal right to enter into and perform the obligations set forth 
in this Agreement, and the execution and delivery and performance 
hereof by the Parties has been duly authorized by the governing author-
ity of each of the Parties. 

 
c. Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents the entire understanding 

and agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter 
hereof. 

 
d. Binding Effect. All of the terms and provisions of this Agreement, 

whether so expressed or not, shall be binding upon, inure to the benefit 
of, and be enforceable by the Parties and their respective legal repre-
sentatives, successors and permitted assigns. 

 
e. Default and Remedy. 
 

i. Default.  Failure on the part of any Party to observe, comply with, 
perform or maintain in any material way any term, covenant, 
condition, duty, obligation, representation or express warranty 
contained in this Agreement shall constitute a Default under this 
Agreement. 

 
ii. Notice of Default and Opportunity to Cure.  Upon occurrence of 

an alleged Default by any Party, the other Party shall deliver writ-
ten notice to the Party allegedly in Default that identifies the spe-
cific nature of the alleged Default. The Party receiving such no-
tice shall have thirty (30) days within which to cure the alleged 
Default. Provided, that if the alleged Default is of such nature 
that it cannot be reasonably cured within thirty (30) days, the 
Party allegedly in Default shall have such additional time as may 
be reasonably necessary to cure the alleged Default, so long as 
within said period, the alleged defaulting Party commences the 
cure and diligently prosecutes such cure until completion. 

 



 
    

7 

iii. Remedy for Default.  For any alleged Default not cured as pro-
vided in Article VII.e.ii of this Agreement, the non-Defaulting 
Party may seek any remedy it may have available in law or in 
equity against the alleged Defaulting Party. 

 
iv. Mediation. Prior to seeking any legal remedy for a Default as 

provided in Article VII.e.iii of this Agreement, a Party shall be 
required to mediate the dispute with the Party in Default. A Party 
submitting a dispute to mediation shall do so by delivering to the 
other Party a notice requesting mediation of the dispute and 
providing a list of three mediators acceptable to the requesting 
Party. Within 10 business days after receipt of the notice from 
the requesting Party, the other Party shall in writing provide no-
tice of either the selection of one of the mediators proposed by 
the requesting Party or offer a list of three additional mediators 
for consideration. Within 10 business days of the requesting 
Party’s receipt of the notice of selection or list of alternative me-
diators, the Parties shall meet for the purpose of selecting one of 
the mediators proposed by the Parties. The mediators proposed 
by the Parties shall be Florida Supreme Court certified mediators, 
and, to the extent practicable, mediators shall have special com-
petence and experience with respect to the subject matter under 
consideration. Within 20 days after a mediator is agreed upon, a 
reasonable time and date for the mediation shall be scheduled 
between the Parties and documented in writing. The mediation 
shall be conducted expeditiously and the location of the media-
tion shall be at a location mutually selected by the Parties, or at 
a location in Hillsborough County of the mediator’s choosing if 
the Parties cannot agree on a location. The Parties shall share 
equally in the fees and expenses of the mediator. Each Party shall 
pay their respective attorney’s fees, expert fees and other ex-
penses related to the mediation. Any settlement achieved through 
mediation shall be made in writing approved by the Parties. If a 
settlement is not reached within 120 days after the initiation of 
mediation or, if the mediator declares an impasse, then the non-
Defaulting Party may seek any and all legal or equitable remedies 
for the alleged Default. The mediation process set forth herein is 
intended to be a waiver of or a substitute or replacement for the 
conflict resolution process set forth in Chapter 164, Florida Stat-
utes. 



 
    

8 

 
f. Time Extensions.  The Parties by joint written consent may extend or 

change any of the deadlines specified in this Agreement. 
 
g. Amendment or Modification.  This Agreement may only be amended 

or modified, in whole or in part, at any time, through a written instru-
ment that sets forth such changes and which is signed by all the Parties. 

 
h. Waiver.  Any failure by a Party to exercise any right, power or privilege 

under this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of that right, power, 
or privilege under this Agreement. 

 
i. Assignability.  This Agreement may not be assigned without the prior 

written consent of all the Parties to this Agreement. 
 
j. Third Parties.  Nothing in this Agreement, whether express or implied, 

is intended to confer any rights or remedies under or by reason of this 
Agreement, on any person other than the Parties their legal representa-
tives, successors and permitted assigns. Nothing in this Agreement is 
intended to relieve or discharge the obligation of any third person to 
any Party nor shall any provision of this Agreement be interpreted to 
give any third person any right of subrogation or action over or against 
the Parties. 

 
k. Recording.  The Parties intend this Agreement to be an interlocal agree-

ment pursuant to Section 163.01, Florida Statutes and it shall be rec-
orded by the Cooperative with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for 
Polk, Manatee, Sarasota, DeSoto and Charlotte Counties, Florida. 

 
l. Severability.  If any part of this Agreement is contrary to, prohibited by 

or deemed invalid under applicable law or regulation, such provision 
shall be inapplicable and deemed omitted to the extent so contrary, pro-
hibited or invalid, but the remainder hereof shall not be invalided 
thereby and shall be given full force and effect so far as possible. 

 
m. Governing Law and Venue.  This Agreement and all transactions con-

templated by this Agreement shall be governed by, and construed and 
enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida without 
regard to any contrary conflicts of law principle. Venue of all proceed-
ings in connection herewith shall be exclusively in Hillsborough 



 
    

9 

County, Florida and each Party hereby waives whatever their respective 
rights may have been in the selection of venue. 

 
n. Headings.  The headings contained in this Agreement are for conven-

ience of reference only, and shall not limit or otherwise affect in any 
way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. 

 
o. Attorney’s Fees.  The Parties agree that each Party shall bear its own 

attorney’s fees and costs incurred in connection with this Settlement 
Agreement. 

 
p. Waiver of Jury Trial.  The Parties expressly and specifically hereby 

waive the right to a jury trial as to any issue in any way connected to 
this Agreement. 

 
q. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more coun-

terparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which 
together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

 
r. No Construction Against Drafting Party.  The Parties to this Agreement 

expressly recognize that this Agreement results from a negotiation pro-
cess in which each Party was given the opportunity to consult with 
counsel and contribute to the drafting of this Agreement. Given this 
fact, no legal or other presumptions against the Party drafting any por-
tion of this Agreement concerning its construction, interpretation, or 
otherwise shall accrue to the benefit of any Party to this Agreement and 
each Party expressly waives the right to assert such presumption in any 
proceeding or disputes connected with, arising out of, or involving this 
Agreement. 

 
s. Miscellaneous Provisions. 
 

i. No Party shall be deemed to be an agent of any other Party nor 
shall represent that it has the authority to bind any other Party. 

 
ii. In computing any time period under this Agreement, any refer-

ence to days shall mean calendar days, unless business days are 
specifically referenced. In computing any period of time under 
this Agreement, exclude the day of the event that triggers the 
computation of the period of time. If the last day of a period of 



 
    

10 

time is a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, the period of time 
shall run until the end of the next calendar day which is not a 
Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday. 

 
iii. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed a waiver of any 

Party’s police powers. 
 

[Signatures being on the following page] 
  



 
    

11 

       PEACE RIVER/MANASOTA 
       REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY 
       AUTHORITY 
 
 
 
       By:       
        Elton Langford, Chair 
 
 
       Date:       
 
Approved as to Form and Correctness: 
 
 
 
       
Douglas Manson 
General Counsel 
 
 
ATTEST:        [Seal] 
 
 
 
       
Agency Clerk 

 
  





PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 7, 2024 
 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
ITEM 1 

 
Water Supply Conditions Report 

 
 
Presenter -  Richard Anderson, Deputy Director 
 
Recommended Action -  Status Report.  This item is presented for the Board’s 

information and no action is required. 
 
Water Supply Conditions at the Peace River Facility as of January 19, 2024. 
 

 Water Supply Quantity: Excellent 
 Treated Water Quality: Excellent    

 
November Water Demand 26.31 MGD 

November River Withdrawals 21.77 MGD 

Storage Volume: 
Reservoirs 

ASR 
Total 

 
 6.79 BG 
 8.72 BG 
15.41 BG 

 
Attachments: 
Presentation Materials 



1

Water Supply Conditions

Regular Item 1
February 07, 2024

Peace River Basin Average Rainfall

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

Dec-21 Feb-22 Apr-22 Jun-22 Aug-22 Oct-22 Dec-22 Feb-23 Apr-23 Jun-23 Aug-23 Oct-23 Dec-23

T
O

T
A

L
 R

A
IN

F
A

L
L

 f
o

r 
M

O
N

T
H

, i
n

ch
es

HIST. ACTUAL

1

2



2

River Flows

0

2000

4000

6000

8000

10000

12000

Dec-21 Feb-22 Apr-22 Jun-22 Aug-22 Oct-22 Dec-22 Feb-23 Apr-23 Jun-23 Aug-23 Oct-23 Dec-23

C
F

S
   

   

PEACE  RIVER COMBINED FLOW 

HIST AVERAGE MIN

River Withdrawals

River Withdrawals
December – 31.0 MGD      January 20.6 MGD 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Dec-21 Apr-22 Aug-22 Dec-22 Apr-23 Aug-23 Dec-23

M
il

li
o

n
 G

al
lo

n
s

Peace River Facility
Average Monthly River Withdrawals

(MGD)

3

4



3

Surface Water Storage

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

Dec-21 Dec-22 Dec-23

M
il

li
o

n
 G

al
lo

n
s

Peace River Facility Reservoir System Storage

MG of Storage Permit Max

ASR Storage

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

9000

10000

Dec-
21

Jan-
22

Feb-
22

Mar-
22

Apr-
22

May-
22

Jun-
22

Jul-22 Aug-
22

Sep-
22

Oct-
22

Nov-
22

Dec-
22

Jan-
23

Feb-
23

Mar-
23

Apr-
23

May-
23

Jun-
23

Jul-23 Aug-
23

Sep-
23

Oct-
23

Nov-
23

Dec-
23

Jan-
24

M
il

li
o

n
 G

al
lo

n
s

Peace River Facility ASR System Storage

Total Storage Usable Storage

5

6



4

Estimated Days of Supply

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

Dec 2021 Jun 2022 Dec 2022 Jun 2023 Dec 2023

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

D
ay

s

Days @ ADF (30 MGD) Days @ 34.7 MGD

399 DAYS

345 DAYS

Regional Water Production and Use 
December 2023 

DEC
2023

[MGD]

Capacity
[MGD]Source

28.1434.70Authority System

54.8769.97County & City Facilities 

83.01104.7Total Capacity & 
Production 

3.37NAExport to Non Authority 
Customers 

79.64104.7Authority Customer Total 
Water Use 

7

8



5

% UTILIZEDDECEMBER 2023
[MGD]

CAPACITY
[MGD]SOURCE

76%12.3016.10Peace River Facilities

25%0.7853.17Charlotte Self Supply

68%13.0819.27TOTAL

Charlotte County 

10.40
10.85 10.68 10.83

11.63
10.90 10.70

11.54 11.86
12.32

12.98 13.29

0.00

3.00

6.00

9.00

12.00

15.00

18.00

WY 2013 Avg WY 2014 Avg WY 2015 Avg WY 2016 Avg WY 2017 Avg WY 2018 Avg WY 2019 Avg WY 2020 Avg WY 2021 Avg WY 2022 Avg WY 2023 Avg 12 Mo. RA

MGD

ANNUAL AVERAGE USAGE

Desoto County
% UTILIZEDDECEMBER 2023

[MGD]
CAPACITY

[MGD]SOURCE

180%1.250.695Peace River Facilities

40%0.300.75Desoto Self Supply

109%1.551.425TOTAL

1.08

1.17
1.11

0.97

1.23

0.91 0.91
0.86

0.99
1.03

1.10

1.19

0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

1.40

MGD

ANNUAL AVERAGE USAGE

9

10



6

Manatee County
% UTILIZEDDECEMBER 2023

[MGD]
CAPACITY

[MGD]SOURCE

73%37.8752.00Manatee Self Supply

3.96NAExport to Sarasota Co.

3.37NAExport to Others

87%45.1952.00TOTAL

29.25 29.69 30.02 31.22 32.33 31.41
32.70

36.63 36.73 37.01
39.65 40.27

0.00

10.00

20.00

30.00

40.00

50.00

WY 2013 Avg WY 2014 Avg WY 2015 Avg WY 2016 Avg WY 2017 Avg WY 2018 Avg WY 2019 Avg WY 2020 Avg WY 2021 Avg WY 2022 Avg WY 2023 Avg 12 Mo. RA

MGD

ANNUAL AVERAGE USAGE

Sarasota County
% UTILIZEDDECEMBER 2023

[MGD]
CAPACITY

[MGD]SOURCE

86%12.9315.06Peace River Facilities

79%3.965.00Import from Others

63%6.6510.52County Self Supply

70%23.5733.58TOTAL

18.09 18.16 18.94 19.22 19.57 19.70 20.00 20.56 21.14 22.01
24.03 24.37

0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

25.00

30.00

MGD

ANNUAL AVERAGE USAGE

11

12



7

North Port
% UTILIZEDDECEMBER 2023

(MGD]
CAPACITY

[MGD]SOURCE

58%1.662.865Peace River Facilities

58%1.923.30North Port Self Supply

-0.01N/AWater Exchanged

57%3.576.165TOTAL

2.88
3.11

2.79
3.12 3.23 3.14

3.41
3.13

3.41

3.85

3.46 3.57

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

WY 2013 Avg WY 2014 Avg WY 2015 Avg WY 2016 Avg WY 2017 Avg WY 2018 Avg WY 2019 Avg WY 2020 Avg WY 2021 Avg WY 2022 Avg WY 2023 Avg 12 Mo. RA

MGD

ANNUAL AVERAGE USAGE

Regional Demand

64.92 66.49 66.93
68.63

71.46
69.58

71.39

76.38 77.71
79.55

85.00 86.47

0.00

20.00

40.00

60.00

80.00

100.00

WY 2013 Avg WY 2014 Avg WY 2015 Avg WY 2016 Avg WY 2017 Avg WY 2018 Avg WY 2019 Avg WY 2020 Avg WY 2021 Avg WY 2022 Avg WY 2023 Avg 12 Mo. RA

M
G

D

REGIONAL ANNUAL AVERAGE

13

14



8

Regional Utilization December 2023
104.7 
MGD
Available

83.0 
MGD  
Used 

21.7 
MGD
Available

79.3% 
Utilized

Available Capacity, 
21.7

Charlotte County, 0.8

DeSoto County, 0.3

Sarasota County, 6.7

City of North Port, 1.9Manatee County, 45.2

Authority, 28.1

Questions?

15

16



PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 7, 2024 

REGULAR AGENDA 
ITEM 2 

FY 2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report and Independent Auditors’ Report 
 

Presenter - Ann Lee, MBA, CGFO, Finance & Budget Sr. Manager 
 Tiffany Mangold, CPA, Purvis Gray & Company 
 
Recommended Action -  Motion to receive and file ‘Peace River Manasota 

Regional Water Supply Authority FY 2023 Annual 
Comprehensive Financial Report and Independent 
Auditors’ Report’ as submitted and approve its submittal 
to the GFOA Certificate of Achievement for Excellence 
in Financial Reporting Program, pending the changes 
related to GASB 68 and 75. 

 
The firm of Purvis Gray & Company completed the annual audit of the Authority’s financial records for 
the fiscal year ending September 30, 2023.  There were no matters involving internal control over financial 
reporting or significant deficiencies in operation noted in the audit that would be considered a material 
weakness. 
 
Staff recommends the Board ‘receive and file’ the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report and 
Independent Auditors’ Report of the Authority for the period ending September 30, 2023, and approve its 
submittal to the GFOA Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting Program, pending 
the changes related to GASB 68 and 75. 
 
Budget Action – No action is required. 
 
Attachments: 
Tab A Presentation Materials 
Tab B FY 2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report and Independent Auditors’ Report [DRAFT] 



TAB A 
Presentation Materials 



1

FY 2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial 
Report & Independent Auditors’ Report  

February 7, 2024

Regular Agenda Item 2

01 Financial Statements

02 Auditors’ Report

03 Motion

1

2



2

01 Financial Statements

Statement of 
Net Position

3

4



3

Statement of 
Revenues, 
Expenses & 
Changes in 
Net Position

Capital 
Assets Net of 
Depreciation

5

6



4

Long Term 
Debt

Debt 
Coverage 
Ratios

7

8



5

02 Auditors’ Report

Audit Results
ConclusionMatter

• Issued an “unmodified” opinion
(essentially a “clean” audit)

• Fairly stated in all material respects

• Opinion on Financial Statements

• No instances of fraud or illegal acts
• No material uncertainties noted
• No changes to our planned scope and 

approach were required during year 
end field work

• Other Matters

9

10



6

Audit 
Reports

Favorable Audit 
Conclusions

Independent 
Auditor’s 
Report –

Unmodified 
Opinion

Two Reports on 
Internal Controls –

Identified no 
significant deficiencies 

or material 
weaknesses

Attestation Report on 
Investments -

in compliance with 
FS Section 218.415

Management Letter –
No written audit 

findings

Audit Results
Items Added to Audit Packet

• Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal 
Program and on Internal Control over Compliance Required by the 
Uniform Guidance

• The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

• Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

• Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

11

12



7

Required
Communications ConclusionMatter

• SWFWMD Revenue/Receivable• Adjustments detected by the audit process
• None• Passed adjustments
• The disclosures are neutral, consistent, 

and clear.
• Financial statement disclosures

• We are not aware of other documents that 
contain the audited financial statements 
that require work on our part

• Other information in documents containing 
audited financial statements

• None• Disagreements with management

• Management has informed us that they 
have not consulted with other accountants

• Management consultations with other 
accountants

• None• Major issues discussed with management 
prior to our retention

• None• Difficulties encountered while performing 
the audit

03 Motion

13

14



8

Motion: Motion to receive and file ‘Peace River Manasota Regional
Water Supply Authority FY 2023 Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report and Independent Auditors’ Report’ as
submitted and approve its submittal to the GFOA Certificate of
Achievement For Excellence in Financial Reporting Program,
pending the changes related to GASB 68 and 75.

15



TAB B 
FY 2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report and 

Independent Auditors’ Report [DRAFT] 



ANNUAL
COMPREHENSIVE 
FINANCIAL REPORT

LAKEWOOD RANCH, FL

2023FISCAL YEAR ENDED
SEPTEMBER 30, 

1



2



 
 

  
 
 
 
 

 
PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

LAKEWOOD RANCH, FLORIDA 
 

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT 
 
 
 
 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED 
 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: 
 

Department of Finance & Budget 
Ann Lee, MBA, CGFO 

Finance & Budget Senior Manager 
 3



 
 

 
 

  

4



 
 

 
 
 

 
Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority 

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 
Introductory Section ......................................................................................................................................................... 7 

Letter of Transmittal ....................................................................................................................................................... 9 

GFOA Certificate of Achievement ............................................................................................................................... 16 

Organizational Chart ..................................................................................................................................................... 17 

Board of Directors ......................................................................................................................................................... 18 

 
Financial Section ............................................................................................................................................................. 19 

Independent Auditors Report ........................................................................................................................................ 21 

Management’s Discussion & Analysis ......................................................................................................................... 24 

Financial Statements ..................................................................................................................................................... 33 

Statement of Net Position .................................................................................................................................... 34 

Statement of Revenue, Expenses & Changes in Fund Balances .......................................................................... 35 

Statement of Cash Flows ..................................................................................................................................... 36 

         Notes to the Financial Statements ........................................................................................................................ 38 

Required Supplementary Information ........................................................................................................................... 59 

Schedule of Net Pension Liability ....................................................................................................................... 60 

Schedule of Contributions .................................................................................................................................... 61 

Notes to Required Supplementary Information ................................................................................................... 62 

 
Statistical Section ............................................................................................................................................................ 65 

Financial Trends ............................................................................................................................................................ 66 

Net Position .......................................................................................................................................................... 66 

Revenues, Expenses & Changes in Net Position ................................................................................................. 67 

Restricted Assets .................................................................................................................................................. 68 
 

Revenue Capacity ......................................................................................................................................................... 69 

Water Sales (Average Millions of Gallons Per Day) ........................................................................................... 69 

Water Sales by Customer ..................................................................................................................................... 70 
 
 
 
 

5



Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority 
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2023 

TABLE OF CONTENTS (Continued) 

Debt Capacity ................................................................................................................................................................ 71 

Long Term Debt by Issuance ............................................................................................................................... 71 

Debt Coverage ..................................................................................................................................................... 72 

Operating Information ................................................................................................................................................... 73 

Operating Indicators ............................................................................................................................................ 73 

Contracted Delivery Amounts ............................................................................................................................. 74 

Demographic and Economic Information ..................................................................................................................... 75 

Demographic and Economic Statistics ................................................................................................................ 75 

Other Reports .................................................................................................................................................................. 77 

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
        and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial 
        Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards ...................................................... 79 

    Independent Accountants’ Report on Compliance with Florida 
Statute Section 218.415 – Investment of Public Funds ....................................................................................... 81 

    Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for each Major Federal Program and on Internal Control over 
Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance ................................................................................................. 82 

    Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ............................................................................................................... 85 
    Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ................................................................................................ 86 
    Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs ................................................................................................................. 87 
   Management Letter ....................................................................................................................................................... 88 

6



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INTRODUCTORY SECTION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 7



8



 
 

 
 

PEACE  RIVER  MANASOTA   REGIONAL  WATER  SUPPLY  AUTHORITY 
             Hon.  Joe Tiseo                                   Hon.   Elton A. Langford                         Hon.  George Kruse                     Hon.  Mike Moran 
              Charlotte County                                            DeSoto County                                Manatee County                         Sarasota County 

 
Mike Coates, P.G., Executive Director 

 
February 7, 2024 
 
 
The Honorable Board of Directors 
Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority 
9415 Town Center Parkway 
Lakewood Ranch, FL 34202 
 
 
We are pleased to present the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the year ended September 30, 2023. The 
financial statements are audited in conformity with Chapter 166.241(1), Florida Statutes, and Chapter 10.550 of the Rules 
of the Auditor General of the State of Florida. Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and 
reliability of the information contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal controls that it 
has established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal controls should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective 
is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any material 
misstatements. 
 
Authority policy requires that an independent certified public accounting firm, approved by the Board, audit the financial 
statements on an annual basis. The Authority auditors, Purvis Gray, have issued an unmodified (or clean) opinion on the 
Agency’s financial statements for fiscal year ended September 30, 2023. 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) immediately follows the independent auditor’s report and provides 
a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. The MD&A complements this letter of 
transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it. 
 
Government Profile 
 
The Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority (Authority) is a regional water supply authority that 
provides wholesale drinking water to its member counties and the City of North Port supporting the region's public 
health, safety, economy and quality of life.  
 
The Authority is an independent special district created and existing pursuant to Chapter 373, Florida Statutes, and 
Chapter 163, Florida Statutes by an interlocal agreement executed between Charlotte, DeSoto, Manatee and Sarasota 
Counties. The interlocal agreement was most recently amended in 2005 (Second Amended lnterlocal Agreement 
Creating the Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority; October 5, 2005). 
 
The boundaries of the Authority consist of all of DeSoto, Manatee and Sarasota Counties and those parts of Charlotte 
County which are under the jurisdiction of the Southwest Florida Water Management District, a region of roughly 
1,000,000 residents. The Board of Directors of the Authority consists of one representative of Charlotte County, DeSoto 
County, Manatee County and Sarasota County that is a commissioner on the board of county commissioners for each 
respective county.  Each representative is appointed by and serves at the pleasure of their respective Board of County 
Commissioners. The Authority Board of Director's officers consist of a chair and vice chair. The Board of Directors is 
vested with all the powers of the Authority. 
 
The Authority owns and operates the Peace River Facility located in southwest DeSoto County. The Peace River Facility 
is a 51 MGD (million gallons per day) surface water treatment facility utilizing the Peace River as a water source. Water 
is withdrawn from the Peace River in accordance with a withdrawal schedule established by the Southwest Florida 
Water Management District in a water use permit issued to the Authority to protect the downstream estuary and 
Charlotte harbor. The Authority owns and operates an off- stream reservoir system with 6.5 billion gallons of storage 
capacity and an Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) system consisting of 21 ASR wells. 
 9



 
 

 
 
 
 
The Authority currently maintains a network of approximately 80 miles of transmission pipelines for delivery of  
treated drinking water to its member governments and customers. The Authority also has interconnects with other water 
systems: City of North Port Utilities and the City of Punta Gorda utilities. These interconnects are available to supply 
water in case of natural disaster, equipment maintenance or failure, resource stress or unforeseen or unplanned increase 
in water demand. 
 
The Authority's 5-year Capital Improvement Program (CIP) and 20-year Capital Needs Assessment (CNA) identifies 
construction of additional supply sources and interconnecting pipelines to support regional reliability, provide supplies 
to meet growing needs, share resources to the benefit of all residents in the four- county service area, and ensure that 
public water supply is provided in an environmentally sustainable manner. 
 
Local Economy and Demand Trends  
 
The information presented in the financial statements is best understood when it is considered from the broader 
perspective of the environment in which the Authority functions. The Authority provides water to its member counties 
(Charlotte, DeSoto & Sarasota Counties) and a contract customer, the City of North Port. Manatee County is also a 
member, but they do not currently receive water from the Authority. Demand projections indicate that Manatee County 
will require water from the Authority commencing in 2038. An estimated 500,000 people receive water from the 
Authority through their local providers every day.  
 
According to customer demand projections, the potable water needs of the Authority’s customers in the region are 
expected to grow at an annual average rate of 2.26% over the next 20 years. The projected annual demand increase is 
generally consistent with the population projections from the Bureau of Economics and Business Research (BEBR) at 
the University of Florida which reflect a growth rate for Charlotte, DeSoto, Manatee and Sarasota Counties of 25% thru 
2050. This positive trend is also reflected in the Authority’s actual average MGD to our customers. The Authority has 
seen a 5% average annual growth in delivered quantities over the last five years and expects the steady growth of the 
region to continue into the future. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 -

 5.00

 10.00

 15.00

 20.00

 25.00

 30.00

 35.00

FY19 FY20 FY21  FY 22  FY 23

Authority Average Annual Deliveries (MGD)

City of North Port

Sarasota County

DeSoto County

Charlo�e County

10



 
 

 
 
 
Long Term Planning and Major Initiatives 
 
Pursuant to Section 373.713, Florida Statutes, the Authority shall design, construct, operate and maintain facilities in 
locations and at the times necessary to ensure that an adequate water supply will be available to all citizens within the 
Authority. By statute, the Authority is to maximize the economic development of the water in such a manner as will 
give priority to reducing adverse environmental effects.  
 
In February 2021, as part of the Authority’s statutory mandate, the Authority Board of Directors formally adopted the 
revised Strategic Plan as well as an updated vision statement which states that “Through cooperation and collaboration 
the Authority and its Customers shall create, maintain and expand a sustainable, interconnected regional water supply 
system.” The updated Strategic Plan includes four core values: Cooperation and Collaboration, Resiliency, Financial 
Stability and Leadership and Water Advocacy as well as specific goals and objectives associated with each core value. 
 
As part of the Strategic Plan implementation, the Authority has completed several large master plans and studies 
including Water Quality Master Plan, Integrated Regional Water Master Plan 2020, Peace River Facility Site Master 
Plan, as well as collaborating with member and non-member governments on emergency planning and future water 
needs. In 2019, the Authority completed the collaborative effort to establish regional emergency SOP’s and has since 
initiated design for  further expansion of the Peace River Facility reservoir and water treatment systems to ensure future 
water demands are met in a sustainable and environmentally responsible manner.   
 
As part of the Authority’s long term planning initiatives, a comprehensive 5 year Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 
as well as a 20 year Capital Needs Assessment (CNA) is created and updated annually. The CIP and CNA plans were 
most recently updated and approved by the Authority Board in June 2023. The 5 year CIP plan reflects infrastructure 
investment of roughly $818 million comprised of $125 million of water transmission projects, $664 million of water 
supply projects and $29 million of common benefit projects. The 20 year CNA program, which includes the 5 year CIP 
plan, reflects potential infrastructure investments of $1.096 billion comprised of $363 million of water transmission 
projects, $704 million of water supply projects and $29 million of common benefit projects. Should all of the current 
projects come to fruition; the Authority will have completed 72 miles of additional pipeline to interconnect the region 
as well as adding 9 billion gallons of additional storage capacity and 25 million gallons per day of expanded treatment 
capacity. Additional information regarding the Authority’s long term planning may be found on the Authority website.  
  

 
 11



 
 

 
 
Fund Structure Overview 
 
The Authority consists of one Enterprise Fund that for accounting purposes is broken into additional funds and 
accounts.  

 
Revenue Fund:  
 
The Revenue Fund is the initial depository for all Authority revenues.  The ‘Revenue Fund’ is divided into Operations, 
Maintenance & Administration Fund and Construction Fund. 
 
Operations, Maintenance & Administration Fund: 
 
The Operations, Maintenance & Administration Fund is the initial depository of all revenue, excluding construction and 
is used to pay for all operating and administrative costs of the Authority. The Operation, Maintenance and 
Administration Fund includes an Operating Reserve Fund. 
 
Renewal & Replacement Fund: 
 
The Renewal and Replacement Fund is used for repairs and replacement of the water facilities as the need arises and as 
approved annually by the Board through the budget. 
 
Sinking Fund: 
 
The Sinking Fund holds all Authority funds restricted to payment of debt. Funds are transferred into the Sinking Fund 
as approved by Board through the budget for debt payment. 
 
Utility Reserve Fund: 
 
The Utility Reserve Fund is maintained at a balance sufficient to meet requirements and policy as established by the 
Board. Moneys in the Utility Reserve Fund may be applied for any lawful purpose relating to the Authority by action 
of the Board. 
 
Disaster Recovery Reserve Fund: 
 
The Disaster Reserve Fund is maintained at a balance sufficient to meet requirements and policy as established by the 
Board. Moneys in the Disaster Reserve Fund may be used to ensure the recovery and continued operations of the 
Authority during natural disasters or by action of the Board. 
 
Construction Fund: 
 
The Construction Fund is used to pay costs of various capital projects as designated and approved by the Board through 
the budget or specific Board action. 
 
 

REVENUE 
FUND 

12



 
 

 
 
 
Relevant Financial Policies 
 
 
The Authority has adopted a comprehensive set of financial policies and continually monitors and assesses them to 
insure they continue to be relevant and adequate for both current and future needs. These policies are intended as a 
guide to the financial stewardship of the Authority and guide decisions affecting budgets and financial matters. 
 
Operation, Maintenance and Administration Fund Policy: 
 
Moneys in the Revenue Account shall first be used each month to deposit in the General Fund [aka Operation, 
Maintenance and Administration Fund] such sums as are necessary to pay operations and maintenance costs for the 
ensuing month; provided the Authority may transfer moneys from the Revenue Account at any time to pay operating and 
maintenance costs to the extent there is a deficiency in the Operation, Maintenance and Administration Fund for such 
purpose.  Amounts in the Operation, Maintenance and Administration Fund shall be paid out from time to time by the 
Authority for operating and maintenance costs.  The Authority establishes a policy to fund an operating reserve within 
the Operation, Maintenance and Administration Fund in an amount which shall be equal to the monthly average of 
operating and maintenance costs for the preceding fiscal year as provided in the Authority’s preceding budget.  Moneys 
in the operating reserve shall be used to pay operating and maintenance costs to the extent other moneys in the Operation, 
Maintenance and Administration Fund are not available for such purposes. 
 
Utility Reserve Fund Policy: 
 
The Authority establishes a policy to maintain an uncommitted Utility Reserve Fund with a minimum balance equivalent 
to 180 days of the total operations and maintenance expenditures in the Authority’s annual budget.  Utility Reserve Fund 
is the residual classification for the Enterprise Fund and represents fund balance that has not been restricted, committed 
or assigned to specific purposes within the Enterprise Fund.   
 
Rate Stabilization Fund Policy: 
 
The Authority establishes a policy to maintain Rate Stabilization account that can be used to mitigate water rate increase 
in the Authority’s annual budget.  The Authority Board of Directors may transfer into the Rate Stabilization Reserve 
such moneys which are on deposit in the Utility Reserve Fund as it deems appropriate.  It is the goal of the Authority to 
maintain a balance at the end of each fiscal year of $1 million in the Rate Stabilization account. 
 
Renewal and Replacement Fund Policy: 
 
The Authority’s bond documents establish a Renewal and Replacement Reserve Fund requirement on the date of 
calculation, an amount of money equal to (1) five percent of the Gross Revenues for the preceding fiscal year or (2) such 
greater or lesser amount as may be certified by the consulting engineers in an amount appropriate.  The Authority 
establishes a policy to maintain a minimum balance in the Replacement and Renewal Reserve Fund of $2 million dollars 
unless either of the above conditions requires a greater minimum amount be maintained in the fund. 
 
Renewal and Replacement charges are established by the Authority for the exclusive purpose of funding renewals and 
replacements of water supply facilities.  The charges are established to satisfy the requirements of the Authority’s 
obligations and shall be set forth in the annual budget approved by the Authority board of directors.  Renewal and 
Replacement costs are the capital expenditures set forth in the annual budget approved by the Authority board of directors 
for the ordinary renewal, replacement, upgrade and betterment of water supply facilities.  Renewal and Replacement 
costs do not include capital expenditures associated with the expansion or addition of water treatment, storage, pumping 
or transmission capacity. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 13



 
 

 
 
 
Disaster Recovery Reserve Fund Policy: 
 
The Authority’s service area lies within a coastal zone highly susceptible to hurricane and storm damage. The purpose 
of the Disaster Recovery Reserve is to ensure funds for the recovery and continued operation during disaster situations 
such as hurricanes and other weather-related events (as well as other environmental or other natural disasters that cause 
disruptions of service). It is the goal of the Authority to maintain a balance at the end of each fiscal year of $1 million in 
the Disaster Recovery Reserve. 
 
Debt Service Coverage Policy: 
 
For each fiscal year, the Authority covenanted in Bond resolutions to fix, establish, maintain and collect such rates, fees 
and charges, and revise them from time to time, whenever necessary, so as to always provide in each fiscal year net 
revenues equal to (1) at least 115% of the annual debt service becoming due in such fiscal year; and (2) at least 100% of 
any (a) amounts required by the terms of the Bond resolutions to be deposited in the Reserve Account or with  any issuer 
of a Reserve Account Letter of Credit or Reserve Account Insurance Policy in such fiscal year, and (b) any payments 
required to be made to Charlotte County and DeSoto County pursuant to the Master Water Supply Contract due in such 
fiscal year. 
 
 The Authority establishes a policy to budget for debt service coverage of 150% to assure compliance with bond 
covenants and maintain the highest possible credit ratings that can be achieved without compromising the mission of the 
Authority and meeting all contractual obligations.  Debt service coverage is budgeted based on each customer’s 
respective debt obligation.  Funds budgeted for debt service coverage for each customer is to be maintained on behalf of 
that customer. 
 
Capital Asset Policy: 
 
The Finance and Budget Senior Manager is responsible for establishing the policies and procedures necessary to provide 
adequate internal control over capital assets and all policies and procedures shall be approved by the Executive Director. 
All capital assets acquired by the Authority shall be titled to the Authority and recorded in the capital assets records 
system. At a minimum, the capital assets records system shall contain the applicable information required by regulatory 
bodies. (Reference: Florida Statutes, Chapter 274.02; Rules of the Auditor General, Chapter 10.450). An annual physical 
inventory of all movable equipment shall be taken under the direction of the finance department and reconciled to the 
capital asset records and general ledger control accounts in accordance with Florida Statutes, Chapter 274.02 and Rules 
of the Auditor General, Chapter 10.480). 
 
Investment Policy: 
 
The objectives of the Authority’s investment policy are safety, liquidity and return on investment. The primary objective 
is safety, i.e., the minimization of risk and the preservation and protection of investment principal. The second objective 
is to maintain sufficient liquidity at all times to meet all cash requirements that can reasonably be anticipated. The third 
objective is to maximize investment return, but only within the constraints of the first two objectives. The investment 
policy also establishes allowable investments, investment providers, and investment concentrations in furtherance of 
these objectives. 
 
 
Budgets, Rates and Charges 
 
The Authority’s Master Water Supply Contract, bond documents and financial policies establish the conditions and 
charges related to water sales. The budget includes all anticipated revenue sources and expenditures including capital, 
operating, planning and administrative costs of the Authority for its projects and activities and is annually approved by 
the Authority Board of Directors during a public hearing.  
 
 
 
 

14



 
 

 
 
The Water Rate is annually established by Resolution of the Authority for the sale of water and is comprised of a Base 
Rate and Water Use Charge. The Base Rate is comprised of the debt and fixed costs of the Authority while the Water 
Use Charge is comprised of the variable costs associated with power, treatment chemicals and residual hauling. Through 
sound financial practices and conservative budgeting, the Authority has been able to maintain a stable water use charge 
for more than five years. Additional information regarding the Authority budgets, rates and charges may be found on 
the Authority website. 
 
Awards and Acknowledgments 
 
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority for 
its annual comprehensive financial report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2022. This is the fifth consecutive 
year that the government has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the 
government had to publish an easily readable and efficiently organized annual comprehensive financial report that 
satisfied both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable program requirements.  
 
A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting is valid for a period of one year only. We believe 
that our current annual comprehensive financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence 
in Financial Reporting Program’s requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for 
another certificate. 
 
The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the skill, effort, and dedication of the entire 
Authority staff. We would also like to thank the Board for their unfailing leadership and support for maintaining the 
highest standards of professionalism in the management of the Authority’s finances. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Ann Lee, MBA, CGFO 
Finance and Budget Senior Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

15



Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of 
Achievement
for Excellence

in Financial 
Reporting

Presented to

Peace River Manasota
Regional Water Supply Authority

Florida

For its Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report

For the Fiscal Year Ended

September 30, 2022

Executive Director/CEO

1516



Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority

  

Total FTE:  57

Resource and 
Planning                            

[5]

Operations
[16]

Maintenance
[12]

Operations
Specialist

Laboratory
[3]

Accountant                     
[1]

Administrative 
Assistant                  

[1]

Engineering/IT
[8]

Administrative 
Assistant                      

[1]

Organizational Chart
[October 2023]

Board of Directors

Executive Director Legal Counsel
[contracted]

Senior Advisor                              
[Grants & Governmental 

Coordinator]                               
[1]

Human Resources 
Manager                    

[1]

Executive Asst.
[Agency Clerk]          

[1]

Water Resources and 
Planning Director                                

[1]

Director of Engineering      
[1]

Director of Operations       
[1]

Finance & Budget Sr. 
Manager                                  

[1]

Engineering/Projects
Sr. Manager                          

[1]

17



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority 
 
 

Board of Directors  
Fiscal Year 2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    Elton Langford, Chair  
                 DeSoto County  
                  Commissioner 
         www.desotobocc.com 
 
 

      

     

                                                   Bill Truex, Vice Chair  
               Charlotte County  
                  Commissioner 
         www.charlottefl.com 
 
 

                                                                                          

 
 
            George Kruse 
                Manatee County    
                 Commissioner 
             www.mymanatee.org 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Mike Moran 
Sarasota County 
Commissioner 
www.scgov.net 

18



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FINANCIAL SECTION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

19



20



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Peace River Manasota Regional 
 Water Supply Authority 
Lakewood Ranch, Florida 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinions 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply 
Authority (the Authority) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2023, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the 
table of contents. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Authority as of September 30, 2023, and the changes in its financial position, and its cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinions 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report.  We are required to be independent of the Authority and to meet our ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to the audit.  We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.  
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Authority’s ability to continue as 
a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known 
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinions.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and, therefore, is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and  

DRAFT

21



Board of Directors 
Peace River Manasota Regional 
 Water Supply Authority 
Lakewood Ranch, Florida 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.  Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in 
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards, we:  
 
■ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 
■ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.  Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

 
■ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.  Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 
■ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

 
■ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 

raise substantial doubt about the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable 
period of time.  

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit.  
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s 
discussion and analysis and the required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents 
(collectively, the required supplementary information), be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be 
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

DRAFT

22



Board of Directors 
Peace River Manasota Regional 
 Water Supply Authority 
Lakewood Ranch, Florida 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
Supplementary Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements.  The schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as 
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirement for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and 
is not a required part of the basic financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management 
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare 
the basic financial statements.  The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, 
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the 
basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Information 
Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report.  The other information 
comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial statements and 
our auditor’s report thereon.  Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other 
information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.  
 
In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the 
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  If, based 
on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information 
exists, we are required to describe it in our report.  
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated _______, 2024, 
on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other matters.  
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part 
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
Restriction on Use 
These financial statements are presented in draft form and are subject to change pending the release of new 
Florida Retirement System information.  Items in red indicate areas expected to be updated as this 
information becomes available; however, other items may change as a result. 
 
 
 
__________, 2024 
Sarasota, Florida 

DRAFT

23



 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 
 
As management of Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority (Authority), we offer readers 
of the Authority’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the 
Authority for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023.  Readers should consider the information presented 
here in conjunction with the rest of the basic financial statements as well as the additional information 
furnished in the letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages 9-15 of this report. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 

• The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Authority exceeded its liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $145,410,958 (net position).  Of 
this amount, $21,283,272 represents unrestricted net position that may be used to meet the 
Authority’s ongoing obligations to members and creditors. 

 
• The Authority’s total net position increased by $11,878,939 during the year. Capital grants and 

contributions were $14,800,670 (net of capital disbursements).  The loss before capital contributions 
was $2,921,731. This compares to a loss before capital contributions in the prior year of $3,368,267. 
 

• At the close of the current fiscal year, the Authority’s enterprise fund reported combined cash 
balances of $28,527,139, an increase of $1,821,455 in comparison with the prior year. 
Approximately 48.26% of this amount ($13,768,204) is available for spending at the government’s 
discretion (unrestricted cash). 
 

• The Authority’s total outstanding long-term debt increased by $12,208,000.  
 

• During 2023, the Authority’s total revenues were $56,001,243, which is an increase of $15,561,799 
       or 38.48% from 2022, which is primarily attributed to increases in capital grants and contributions.  

 
• The Authority’s operating and nonoperating expenses increased by $4,019,443, or 10% from 2022 

to 2023 from increases in the cost of sales and services that were partially offset by decreases to 
studies and master plans and administration expenses.  

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This section of the Authority’s annual comprehensive financial report presents a discussion and analysis of 
the financial position of the Authority as of September 30, 2023 and 2022, as well as an overview of the 
financial activities during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, with 2022 fiscal year data presented for 
comparative purposes.  This discussion should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and 
related notes.   
 
This annual report consists of a series of financial statements, prepared in accordance with Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management 
Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments, as amended.  The Authority is considered a single 
purpose entity engaged only in business-type activities, and is required to present only fund financial 
statements.  The fund financial statements are enterprise fund statements and consist of the following: 
 
 

 
24



 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 

 
a) Statement of Net Position 
b) Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position 
c) Statement of Cash Flows 

 
Following the fund financial statements are notes to financial statements.  The notes provide additional 
information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the financial statements. 
 
 
Statement of Net Position 
 
Shown below is a comparative statement of net position presented in summary form for 2023 and 2022.  
This statement shows the assets (current and noncurrent), deferred outflows, liabilities (current and 
noncurrent), deferred inflows, and net position (assets and deferred outflows minus liabilities and deferred 
inflows) as of the end of the fiscal year.   
 
The statement of net position is prepared using the accrual basis of accounting, where revenues are 
recognized when the service is provided and expenses are recognized when goods are received or services 
are performed, regardless of when cash is exchanged.  The purpose of the statement of net position is to 
present the reader of the financial statements with fiscal snapshots of the Authority on September 30, 2023 
and 2022.  Following is the summarized statement of net position for 2023 and 2022: 
 

Net Position 
   

Business-type Activites  
 

 
2023  2022      

Current assets  $            29,380,676  
 

 $              23,077,379  
Capital assets (Net)              263,452,218  

 
               243,456,464  

Noncurrent assets (Other)                14,776,712  
 

                 10,130,082   
Total assets               307,609,606  

 
               276,663,925  

     
 

Deferred outflows                  3,192,563  
 

                   3,332,738       
Current liabilities                19,555,681  

 
                 11,460,476  

Noncurrent liabilities              145,569,963  
 

               134,671,254  
 Total liabilities              165,125,644  

 
               146,131,730       

 
Deferred inflows                     265,567  

 
                      332,914       

Net position    

Net investment in capital assets              109,371,250  
 

               108,850,622  
Restricted                14,756,435  

 
                 10,040,158  

Unrestricted                21,283,273  
 

                 14,641,239   
Total net position $       145,410,958 

 
$        133,532,019      

 
 

25



 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 
 
Over time, the changes in net position provide an indication of the overall financial condition of the 
Authority.  On September 30, 2023, net position was $145,410,958, and for the year, there was an increase 
in net position of $11,878,939.  A substantial portion of the Authority’s net position on September 30, 2023, 
(75.2%) reflects its net investment in capital assets.  This net position is not available for future spending. 
 
 

   
 
 
Although the Authority’s investment in its capital assets is net of related debt, it should be noted that the 
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves 
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.  An additional portion of the Authority’s net position (10.1%) 
represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used.  The remaining balance 
of net position (14.7%) is unrestricted. 
 
 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position 
 
Following is a summarized statement of changes in net position for 2023 and 2022.  This statement is similar 
to the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net position in the fund financial statements, 
and prepared using the same accrual basis of accounting.  This statement shows the revenues and expenses 
of the Authority for the years, in summarized form: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

26



 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 

Change in Net Position 
 

   
Business-type Activites     

2023  2022 
Revenues: 

   
 

Program revenues: 
   

  
Charges for services  $            32,821,176  

 
 $            30,753,356    

Operating grants and contributions                  4,907,485  
 

                 5,411,442    
Capital grants and contributions (net)                14,800,670  

 
                 3,187,381   

General revenues: 
   

  
Other                  3,471,912  

 
                    569,796  

Total revenues                56,001,243  
 

               39,921,975        

Expenses: 
   

 
Water Supply and Delivery               (44,122,304) 

 
              (40,102,861)       

Change in net position                11,878,939  
 

                  (180,886) 
Net position - beginning of year              133,532,019  

 
             133,712,905  

Net position - end of year  $       145,410,958  
 

 $         133,532,019        

 
 

Charges for services increased by $2,067,820 (6.72%) and operating grants and contributions decreased by 
$503,957 (9.31%) from 2022 to 2023 as budgeted.  Capital grants and contributions (net) in 2023, which 
included capital grants from SWFWMD and FDEP toward the Peace River Reservoir No. 3 Preliminary 
Engineering, Phase 2B and Phase 3C Pipelines and Project Prairie as well as capital contributions for System 
Wide Benefit Projects from Authority customers and members, increased by $11,613,289 from 2022 to 2023.   
 
As illustrated below, the total water sales billed to our customers was $32,821,176 in 2023 as compared to 
$30,753,356 in 2022.  
 

 
 

 
 

0 5,000,000 10,000,000 15,000,000 20,000,000 25,000,000 30,000,000 35,000,000

Other

City of North Port

Sarasota County

DeSoto County

Charlo�e County

Total Annual Water Sales

Charges for Services
September 30, 2023 and 2022

2022

2023

27



 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 
Total expenses increased by $4,019,443 or 10% from 2022 to 2023 as illustrated below: 
 

 
The increases were due to the following: 

 
a) Cost of Sales & Service increased by $4,056,205. Cost increases to utilities, water treatment 

chemical and Hurricane Ian expenses were slightly offset by decreases in professional services and 
maintenance.   

b) Interest expense increased by $255,623. 
c) Bond Issuance expenses increased by $165,695. 
d) Depreciation expenses increased by $159,058. 

 
These increases in expenses were partially offset by the following decreases in expenses: 
 

a) Studies & Master Plan expenses decreased by $755,117. 
b) Administration expenses decreased by $36,894. 

 
The graph below compares the expenses to the revenues. 
 

 -

 10,000,000

 20,000,000

 30,000,000

 40,000,000

 50,000,000

 60,000,000

2023 2022

Expenses & Revenues
September 30, 2023 and 2022

Revenues

Expenses

 -

 5,000,000

 10,000,000

 15,000,000

 20,000,000

 25,000,000

   Cost of Sales & Services    Studies & Master Plan    Administra�on    Deprecia�on Interest Expense Other Non-Opera�ng

Expenses

Expenses
September 30, 2023 and 2022

2023

2022

28



 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 
Capital Assets 
 
The Authority’s investment in capital assets as of September 30, 2023, totaled $263,452,218 (net of 
accumulated depreciation).  This investment in capital assets includes land and easements, structures, 
leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment, and construction in progress. 
 

Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) 
    

Business-type Activites     
2023  2022 

Land and Easements 
 

 $            4,643,310  
 

 $          2,604,359  
Buildings and improvements, water treatment plant,  

  

   supply, and transmission systems            224,018,229  
 

         230,689,392  
Leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment                   648,759  

 
                888,341  

Construction in progress              34,141,920  
 

             9,274,372  
Total 

  
 $        263,452,218  

 
 $      243,456,464        

 
 
The book value of capital assets increased by $19.996 million during 2023.  Additions were $32.5 million 
and depreciation was $12.5 million.  Additions during 2023 included the following: 
 

• Renewal and replacement projects - $5,442,726 
• Vehicles, machinery, and equipment - $172,402 
• Construction in progress - $24,867,548 
• Land and Easements - $2,038,951 

 
Additional information on the Authority’s capital assets can be found in Note 4 of this report. 
 
Long-term Debt 
 
The Authority’s bonded debt outstanding as of September 30, 2023, totaled $133,078,000.  These bonds 
are secured by the Net Revenues pledged in the Master Water Supply Contract. 
 

Business-type Activities  2023   2022  
 Revenue bonds $      133,078,000  $ 120,870,000 
 
Long-term debt increased by $12,208,000 including $5,015,000 during the year from scheduled principal 
payments and $17,223,000 from draws on the Authority’s Capital Project Line of Credit.    
 
Under the Authority’s budgetary process, rates are established to provide adequate coverage for existing 
and planned additional debt. This is demonstrated by the Authority’s debt coverage and county debt service 
coverage ratios, which are both indicators of the Authority’s financial strength. As indicated by the 
following table, the Authority consistently maintains coverage ratios well above the requirements. 
 
 
 

 

29



 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 
   
Moody’s, S&P and Fitch have assigned ratings of “Aa3” (stable outlook), “AA” (stable outlook) and “AA-
” (stable outlook) respectively, to the 2020 Bonds.  These ratings by all three major rating agencies reflect 
the Authority’s ample long-term water supply and favorable financial condition dictated by policy.  
Additional information on the Authority’s long-term debt can be found in Note 5 of this report. 
 

 
 
 
 

 

30



 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 
 
Economic Factors and 2024 Budget and Rates  
 
The Authority considers many factors when developing the annual budget and in establishing the years 
water rates. The Authority is obligated to create the budget in a manner which meets the contractual 
obligations found in the Master Water Supply Contract, customer demand projections, which are submitted 
annually, regional population growth, anticipated environmental conditions, insure efficient and effective 
operations, continual investment in infrastructure and the maintenance of bond ratings and financial policies 
as well as maintain reasonable water rates both presently and into the future.  
 
The Authority has a thorough budgetary review process that consists of multiple meetings with our member 
and customer government staffs, presentations and discussions with our member and customer government 
Boards and City Council as well as in-depth discussions with the Authority Board of Directors. The 
Authority Board of Directors formally adopted the FY2024 budget of $141.5 million ($39.6 million or 39% 
budget increase from FY 2023) on August 2, 2023.  
 
The FY 2023 to FY 2024 budgetary changes correlate to the following: 
 
     Revenues: 

o Increases in utility and treatment chemical costs along with model projections by the 
Authority’s rate consultants facilitated a $0.09/1000 gallon increase in the water use rate 
(consisting of variable costs).  

o Projected grants are expected to increase by $46.8 million to $51.82 million 
     Expenditures  

o $2 million of increased operations and maintenance expenses, the majority of which are 
associated with increased treatment chemical costs, utilities, insurance and maintenance. 
The Authority also budgeted for minor increases in personnel costs and general 
administration. 

o Renewal & Replacement costs increased slightly to $4.25 million to support infrastructure 
reliability and insure the long-term viability of assets. 

o Capital project expenditures increased by $37 million which reflects the continued work 
on the PR³ Final Design and CMAR services, Brackish RO Facility Preliminary Design, 
the commencement of the Phase 2B Pipeline and Phase 3C Pipeline (both being delivered 
via Progressive Design Build), as well as two System Wide Benefit Projects.  
 

Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Peace River Manasota Regional Water 
Supply Authority’s finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances.  Questions 
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information 
should be addressed to the Authority at, 9415 Town Center Parkway, Lakewood Ranch, Florida  34202. 

31



32



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
 
 
 

33



Assets
Current Assets:

Cash 2,968,393$                
External Investment Pools 10,799,811                
Accounts Receivable 4,661,160                  
Grant Funds Receivable 9,458,991                  
Lease Receivable - Current 69,647                       
Inventory 1,372,209                  
Prepaid Expenses 50,465                       

Total Current Assets 29,380,676                
Non-Current Assets:

Restricted:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,622,563                  
External Investment Pools 10,136,372                

Total Restricted Assets 14,758,935                
Lease Receivable - Long-Term 17,777                       
Capital Assets:

Land and Easements 4,643,310                  
Buildings and Improvement, Water Treatment Plant,

Supply, and Transmission Systems 415,452,706              
Leasehold Improvements, Furniture, and Equipment 6,805,236                  
Construction in Progress 34,141,920                
(Less Accumulated Depreciation) (197,590,954)             

Total Capital Assets, Net 263,452,218              
Total Non-Current Assets 278,228,930              

Total Assets 307,609,606              

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Charge on Refunding 1,686,749                  
Pension Related 1,505,814                  

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 3,192,563                  

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 310,802,169              

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 3,696,444                  
Contracts Payable 9,215,866                  
Retainage Payable 296,106                     
Accrued Expenses 1,114,765                  
Security Deposits 2,500                         
Current Portion - Revenue Bonds Payable 5,230,000                  

Total Current Liabilities 19,555,681                
Non-Current Liabilities:

Revenue Bonds Payable 141,025,745              
Retirement System Net Liability (FRS & HIS) 4,544,218                  

Total Non-Current Liabilities 145,569,963              
Total Liabilities 165,125,644              

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pension Related 178,143                     
Leases 87,424                       

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 265,567                     

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 165,391,211              

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 109,371,250              
Restricted for:

Capital Outlay, Grants, Etc. 8,756,058                  
Renewal and Replacement 2,684,806                  
Operations Reserve 2,084,377                  
Rate Stabilization 1,231,194                  

Unrestricted 21,283,273                
Total Net Position 145,410,958$            

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY

See accompanying notes.

DRAFT

34



Operating Revenues
Member Dues 432,485$             
Water Sales 36,821,176          
Planning Assessment 475,000               
Other 2,240,014            

Total Operating Revenues 39,968,675          

Operating Expenses
Cost of Sales and Services 23,723,324          
Administration 466,333               
Depreciation 12,525,873          

Total Operating Expenses 36,715,530          

Operating Income 3,253,145            

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment Earnings 1,231,898            
County Payments (796,000)              
Other Customer Payments (1,519,868)           
Interest Expense (4,893,909)           
Bond Issuance Costs (196,997)              

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) (6,174,876)           

(Loss) Before Capital Contributions (2,921,731)           

Capital Contributions
Capital Grants 12,605,075          
Capital Contributions 2,195,595            

Total Capital Contributions 14,800,670          

Change in Net Position 11,878,939          

Total Net Position, Beginning of Year 133,532,019        

Total Net Position, End of Year 145,410,958$      

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY

See accompanying notes.

DRAFT

35



Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers and Users 36,136,686$        
Payments to Suppliers (18,483,250)         
County Payments (796,000)              
Other Customer Payments (1,519,868)           
Payment to Employees (4,132,669)           
Other Income 240,014               

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 11,444,913          

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (24,299,285)         
Acquisition of Long-Term Debt 17,223,000          
Principal Payments on Long-Term Debt (5,015,000)           
Interest Payments on Long-Term Debt (5,849,125)           
Construction Grants/Customer Capital Contributions 7,282,051            
Debt Issuance Cost (196,997)              

Net Cash (Used in) Capital and Related Financing Activities (10,855,356)         

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Earnings Received 1,231,898            

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 1,231,898            

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,821,455            

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 26,705,684          

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 28,527,139$        

Composition of Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year

Cash 2,968,393$          
External Investment Pools 10,799,811          
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Restricted 4,622,563            
External Investment Pools, Restricted 10,136,372          

Total Composition of Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 28,527,139$        

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY

See accompanying notes.

DRAFT

36



Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net
Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Operating Income 3,253,145$          
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash

Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation Expense 12,525,873          
County Payments (796,000)              
Other Customer Payments (1,519,868)           
Retirement System Adjustments -                           

(Increase) Decrease in Assets:
Accounts Receivable (1,591,975)           
Inventory (111,703)              
Prepaid Expenses 26,478                 

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 1,469,742            
Accrued Expenses 189,221               
Unearned Revenue (2,000,000)           

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 11,444,913$        

Schedule of Non-Cash Transactions

Bond-Related Amortization
      Bond Premiums 1,095,391$          
      Deferred Charges on Refunding 140,175$             

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

See accompanying notes.

DRAFT

37



 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 
 
Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 
Reporting Entity 
Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority (the Authority) was established on February 26, 
1982, by an interlocal agreement between the counties of Charlotte, DeSoto, Manatee, and Sarasota.  The 
agreement was amended on February 1, 1984, May 21, 1991, and October 5, 2005. 
 
The Authority was created and operates pursuant to the provisions of Chapters 373.713 and 163.01, Florida 
Statutes.  The purpose of the Authority is to operate and maintain the Peace River Regional Water Treatment 
Facility and to ensure future water supply through the development of new surface water resources for 
member Counties and municipal purposes. 
 
The Authority follows the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 
Numbers 14 and 61, regarding the financial reporting entity and component units.  Based on the criteria 
established in those standards, the Authority is a primary government with no component units. 
 
Basis of Presentation 
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles for 
governmental entities, as determined by the GASB.  Under these standards, the Authority is a single purpose 
entity engaged in only business-type activities.  The following comprise the basic financial statements of the 
Authority: 
 
■ Proprietary (Enterprise) Fund Financial Statements: 
 ●     Statement of Net Position 
             ●  Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position 
             ●  Statement of Cash Flows 
■    Notes to Financial Statements 
 
Governmental reporting includes a requirement for a management’s discussion and analysis of the basic 
financial statements, and it requires the classification of net position into three components:  net investment 
in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted.  These classifications are defined as follows: 
 
■     Net Investment in Capital Assets—consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced 
by the outstanding balances of any debt that is attributable to those assets (net of deferred charges on 
refunding and less any unspent debt proceeds). 
 
■    Restricted Net Position—consists of those assets that have external constraints placed upon their uses, 
which are imposed by donors, creditors (such as through debt covenants), or through laws, regulations, 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation, reduced by any liabilities to be paid from these assets. 
 
■    Unrestricted Net Position—consists of net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “net 
investment in capital assets.” 
 
The statement of net position is presented in a classified format to distinguish between current and 
noncurrent assets and liabilities.  The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net position is 
presented by major revenue source.  The statement of cash flows is presented using the direct method. 
 

38



 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 
 
Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting 
These proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned and measurable and expenses are 
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.  Cost-
reimbursable grants and contributions are recorded in the period in which the related expenditures are 
incurred.  
 
The Authority reports the following fund type: 
 
■    Proprietary Fund Type – Enterprise Fund—A single Enterprise Fund is used to account for all of 
      the operations of the Authority.  Enterprise funds may generally be used to report any activity for which      
      a fee is charged to external users for goods or services.  Enterprise funds are required to be used for  
      activities:  (a) that are financed with debt secured solely by a pledge of the net revenues from fees and  
      charges of the activity; (b) if laws and regulations require that the activity’s costs of providing services,  
      including capital costs, be recovered with fees and charges, rather than with taxes or similar revenues;  
      or (c) the pricing policies of the activity establish fees and charges designed to recover its costs,  
      including capital costs. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with an enterprise fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of the 
Authority are charges to customers for water sales and services, member dues, and other assessments related 
to operations of the Authority.  Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, studies and master 
plans, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting 
these definitions are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Authority’s policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
 
Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported and disclosed in 
the financial statements and accompanying notes.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Budgets 
The Authority follows these procedures in establishing its annual budget: 
 
■     The Executive Director submits to the Authority a tentative operating budget no later than May 15 for 
the fiscal year commencing the following October.  The budget contains proposed expenditures and the 
means of financing them. 
 
■     After review, the Authority adopts the final budget during a public hearing, no later than August 15 
for the ensuing fiscal year. 
 
■     The annual budget is adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles, 
except that debt principal and capital expenditures are budgeted in the year paid/incurred, and depreciation 
and amortization are not budgeted.  In addition, the budget may include certain transfers between restricted 
and unrestricted accounts. 

39



 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 

 
 

Funding Sources 
Funding is provided by capital and operating grants, from voluntary dues from the member Counties, and 
from irrevocable commitments from customers to pay for water sales. 
 
Water Sales 
The primary source of funding the Authority’s operations is from water sales to its member counties and 
the City of North Port (who is a customer, not a member).  The Authority does not currently provide any 
water to Manatee County, so charges to it consist solely of the member fees and customer planning 
assessments each year.  The Authority modified the water use permit in February 2019 for an additional 50 
years and is currently permitted to withdraw a maximum amount from the Peace River of 258 million 
gallons per day (MGD) and provides for the delivery of treated water to meet an annual average demand of 
80 MGD. 
 
The Authority’s water rate consists of two components: the Base Rate Charge and Water Use Charge.  The 
Base Rate Charge is further broken into a Debt Service Component and a Fixed Operations and 
Maintenance Component.  The Debt Service Component of the Base Rate Charge consists of costs of 
allocation percentages for the debt associated with additional water supply acquisitions and/or expansions 
and pipelines for each respective customer as well as contributions to the System Wide Benefit CIP Projects. 
 
The Fixed Operations and Maintenance Component of the Base Rate Charge is calculated as a unitary rate 
based on each customer’s contractual water allocation and consists of:  fixed costs associated with CIP, 
Renewal and Replacement and Resource/Supply projects, Fund Disbursements associated with the prior fiscal 
year’s debt service coverage payments, contributions to the Renewal and Replacement fund, and 
contingencies.  The Fixed Operation and Maintenance Component also includes inter-governmental 
payments, such as DeSoto County’s Payment. 
 
The second component of the Authority’s water rate is the Water Use Charge, which reflects actual metered 
water usage.  This charge is derived from the Variable Operations and Maintenance Expenses related to the 
Peace River Facility cost center.  For fiscal year 2023, the per 1,000 gallon charge was $1.00.   

 
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, total water sales of $36,821,176 were allocated between 
Water Sales ($32,821,176) and a Repair and Replacement Charge ($4,000,000).  Gross water sales to each 
of its customers were as follows: 
 
 Charlotte  $      10,669,112 
 DeSoto  791,564 
 Sarasota  19,219,267 
 Manatee  - 
 North Port  2,141,233 
 Total $ 32,821,176 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Authority generally considers all highly liquid debt 
instruments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.  The Authority’s 
definition of cash equivalents includes investments with the Local Government Surplus Trust Fund 
administered by the State Board of Administration (Florida PRIME). 

40



 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 
 

Receivables 
Accounts and grant funds receivable are reported at their gross value, and where appropriate are reduced 
by the estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible.  Leases receivables are reported at the present 
value of lease payments expected to be received during the lease term, reduced by any provision for 
estimated uncollectible amounts.  There are no estimated uncollectible amounts at September 30, 2023. 
 
Inventory 
Inventory of chemicals and supplies is stated at cost.  Cost is determined by the first-in, first-out method. 
 
Bond Issue Costs/Prepaid Bond Insurance 
Bond issuance costs (except for any prepaid bond insurance) are recorded as expenses in the period 
incurred.  Prepaid bond insurance is recorded as an asset and amortized over the debt term. 
 
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents 
a consumption of net assets that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of 
resources (expense) until then.  In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report 
a separate section for deferred inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred 
inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net assets that applies to  future periods and so will not be 
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time and includes amounts related to net pension 
liability and amounts related to leases. 
 
Deferred Charge on Refunding 
In the case of an advance refunding resulting in defeasance of debt, the difference between the reacquisition 
price and the net carrying amount of the old debt is termed a refunding loss.  Refunding losses are recorded 
as deferred outflows in the statement of net position and amortized over the remaining term of the refunded 
debt or the term of the new refunding debt, whichever is shorter. 
 
Capital Assets 
Assets with an estimated useful life of longer than one year are capitalized if greater than $1,000 (machinery, 
equipment, and leasehold improvements), $5,000 (buildings, building improvements, and infrastructure), or 
$25,000 (renewal and replacement projects).  Capital assets are recorded at historical cost if purchased or 
constructed.  Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation.  The costs of 
normal repair and maintenance that do not add to the value of the asset or extend the useful life of the asset 
are expensed as incurred. 
 
Capital assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated lives of the related assets, as 
follows: 
 
■     Buildings and Improvements, Water Treatment Plant, 
           Supply, and Transmission Systems 10-40  Years 
■     Leasehold Improvements, Furniture, and Equipment Years                                                                 5-20  Years 
■     Right to use leased equipment 5- 20  Years 
■     Vehicles        5  Years 
■     Computers and Software       3  Years 
 
Bond Discounts and Premiums 
Bond discounts and premiums are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line 
method.  Bond discounts/premiums are recorded as a reduction/addition to the bond payable balance. 

 

41



 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 
 

Compensated Absences 
The Authority accrues vacation and sick pay benefits and the related costs in accordance with GASB 
Statement No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences.  Employees are paid for accrued vacation time 
upon separation, and there are limits on the maximum amount of vacation hours that may be carried over 
from one calendar year to the next.  Employees in good standing, with ten or more years of continuous and 
creditable service at separation, are entitled to one-half of accrued sick leave up to a maximum of 520 hours. 
 
Net Pension Liability 
The Authority participates in the Florida Retirement System (FRS) defined benefit pension plan and the 
Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) defined benefit plan administered by Florida Division of Retirement.  
Employers participating in cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans are required to 
report the employers’ proportionate share of the net pension liabilities and related pension amounts of the 
defined benefit pension plans.  
 
Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) requires that employers report the total OPEB 
liability and related deferred inflows/outflows on their statement of net position.  In connection with the 
standard, the Authority contacted its Actuary to perform a valuation for September 30, 2023.  Based on that 
valuation, the Authority’s total OPEB liability is measured at $55,688.  The Authority does not offer an 
explicit post-employment benefit and the calculated amount only represents an implicit rate subsidy. 
Management has determined that its effect is immaterial to the financial statements taken as a whole and 
has not recorded a liability or disclosed any further information. 
 
Note 2 - Deposits and Investments 

 
Deposits 
The Authority’s policy allows deposits to be held in demand deposits, savings accounts, certificates of 
deposit, and money market accounts.  At September 30, 2023, the Authority maintained deposits in demand 
deposit accounts.  Deposits whose values exceeded the limits of federal depository insurance were entirely 
insured or collateralized pursuant to Chapter 280 of the Florida Statutes. 
 
At September 30, 2023, the carrying amount of the Authority’s deposits was $7,590,956 and the bank 
balance was $8,462,841. 
 
 
Investments 
The Authority holds assets that are defined as investments.  The Authority’s investments are recorded at 
fair value unless the investment qualifies as an external investment pool under the guidance in GASB 
Statement No. 79. 
 
The Authority holds investments in qualified external investment pools that measure all of its investments 
at amortized cost.  The following investments are recorded at amortized cost at September 30, 2023: 
 

           Amortized  
  Investment Pool   Operating   Restricted   Cost  
          SBA Florida PRIME $ 10,799,811 $ 10,136,372 $ 20,936,183 
 
 

 
 
 

42



 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
  
 

Florida PRIME is administered by the Florida State Board of Administration (SBA) and managed by 
professional money managers.  Florida PRIME invests exclusively in short-term, high-quality fixed income 
securities rated in the highest short-term rating category by one or more nationally recognized statistical 
rating agencies, or securities of comparable quality.   
 
Florida PRIME is considered a stable value investment pool.  The account balances are approximate fair 
value, and balances are available for immediate withdrawal.  The weighted average maturity of Florida 
PRIME at September 30, 2023 is 36 days.  The weighted average life (WAL) of Florida PRIME at 
September 30, 2023, is 76 days.  Florida PRIME has a Standard & Poor’s rating of “AAAm”.  Neither 
fund was exposed to foreign currency risk during the year. 
 
Authorized Investments 
The Authority has adopted an investment policy consistent with Florida Statutes 218.415, which authorizes 
the following investments: 
 
a. Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund, the State of Florida Investment Pool administered by the  
 State Board of Administration (F.S. 218.405). 
 
b. United States Government Securities, which are negotiable direct obligations of, or obligations the  
 principal and interest of which are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States Government. 
 
c. Securities of United States Government Agencies that issue bonds, debentures, notes, callables, or other  
 evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by United States agencies, provided such obligations are   
 backed by the full faith and credit of the United States Government (include FHA, FFB, and GNMA). 
 
d. Securities of Federal Instruments (United States Government sponsored agencies) that issue bonds,  
 debentures, notes, callables, or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by United States  
 Government agencies which are not full faith and credit agencies are limited to the FFCB, FHLB,  
 FNMA, FHLMC, and SLMA. 
 
e. Nonnegotiable interest-bearing time certificates of deposit or savings accounts in banks organized  
 under the laws of the United States, doing business and situated in the State of Florida, provided that,  
 any such deposits are secured by the Florida Security for Public Deposits Act, Chapter 280, Florida  
 Statutes. 
 
f. Repurchase Agreements (for purchase and subsequent sale) for any of the investments authorized above    
       in Items b. and c. 
 
g. State and/or local government taxable and tax-exempt debt, general obligation and/or revenue bonds 
  rated at least “Aa” by Moody’s  and “AA” by Standard & Poor’s for long-term debt, or rated at least  
 “MIG-2” by Moody’s and “SP-2” by Standard & Poor’s for short-term debt.  Banker’s Acceptances  
 issued by a domestic bank, or a federally chartered domestic office of a foreign bank, which are  
 eligible for purchase by the Federal Reserve System which have an unsecured, uninsured and  
 unguaranteed obligation rating of at least “Prime-1” and “A” by Moody’s Investors Service and “A- 
 1” and “A” by Standard & Poor’s and ranked in the top fifty (50) United States banks in terms of 
  total assets by the American Banker’s yearly report. 

 
 

43



 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 
 

h. Commercial paper rated, at the time of purchase, must have the minimum rating listed of two of the  
       following three nationally recognized rating agencies; “PRIME-1” by Moody’s, 
 “A-1” by Standard & Poor’s (prime commercial paper), and “F-1” by Fitch. 
 
i. Money market mutual funds regulated by the Securities and Exchange Commission and whose portfolio   
      consists only of domestic securities that are rated “Aam” or “Aam-G” or better by Standard & Poor’s  
      or the equivalent by another rating agency. 
 
j. Intergovernmental Investment Pools that are authorized pursuant to the Florida lnterlocal Cooperation 
     Act, as provided in Section 163.01, Florida Statutes. 
 
In addition, the investment policy states that the Authority will not directly invest any funds in derivative 
investment products.  This includes, but is not limited to, collateralized mortgage obligations (CMO), 
interest-only (IO) and principal-only (PO) forwards, futures, currency and interest rate swaps, options 
floaters/inverse floaters, and caps/floors/collars. 
 
Risk Disclosures 
 
The Authority’s investment policy limits credit and custodial risk by limiting the amount of investments, 
which are not direct U.S. Government Obligations or in the Local Government Surplus Trust Fund, and 
having a qualification process for broker/dealers.  In addition, the policy requires independent third-party 
custodians, when applicable. 
 
Interest rate risk is controlled by limiting the maximum length of obligations purchased.  Unless matched 
up to a specific cash flow, the Authority will not directly invest in securities maturing more than two years 
from the date of purchase. 
 
Note 3 - Receivables 
 
Accounts receivable at September 30, 2023, consists primarily of amounts due from customers for water 
sales, in the amount of $4,661,160. 
 
Grants receivable as of year-end include amounts due from Southwest Florida Water Management District 
in the amount of $7,307,725 and from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection in the amount 
of $2,151,266 for capital grants. 
 
Lease receivable totaling $87,424 at September 30, 2023 includes the present value of lease payments 
expected to be received during the lease term, in which the Authority leases out a portion of their 
administration building. 
 
All amounts are considered collectible.  There is no allowance for uncollectible accounts. 
 

44



 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 
 

Note 4 - Capital Assets 
 

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2023, was as follows: 

 
 
 

Depreciation expense in the amount of $12,525,873 was reported as a separate line item in the statement of 
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 
 
Construction Commitments 
The following is a summary of major construction contract commitments remaining as of September 30, 
2023: 

 

45



 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 
Note 5 - Long-term Debt 

 
Long-term debt activity for the year ended September 30, 2023, was as follows: 

 

 
 
 

The 2014 and 2015 Bonds 
On December 29, 2014, the Authority issued $56,065,000 Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds Series 
2014B (the 2014B Bonds).  On July 7, 2015, the Authority issued $23,910,000 Utility System Refunding 
Revenue Bonds Series 2015 (the 2015 Bonds). 
 
The 2014B Bonds were issued at a premium of $8,903,446, as serial bonds, with stated interest rates of 
5.00% (except for $150,000 at 2.00% which was due and payable on October 1, 2015).  The unamortized 
premium at September 30, 2023 is $5,276,116.  Principal payments are due each October 1, beginning 
October 1, 2028 (except for $150,000 at 2.00% which was due and payable on October 1, 2015), and interest 
is due semi-annually each October 1 and April 1.   
 
The 2014B Bonds (along with the now defeased 2014A Bonds – see 2020 Bonds below) were issued to 
provide funds, together with other legally available monies of the Authority, for the principal purpose of 
refinancing the Authority’s outstanding 2005A Bonds in the par amount of $88,415,000.  The 2015 Bonds 
were issued to provide funds, together with other legally available monies of the Authority, for the principal 
purpose of refinancing the Authority’s outstanding 2005B Bonds in the par amount of $27,845,000. 
 
The final maturity is October 1, 2035.  The 2014B Bonds may be redeemed in whole or in part at any time 
on or after October 1, 2024, without penalty. 
 

 

46



 

 
PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2022 

 
The 2015 Bonds were issued at a premium of $3,310,428, as serial bonds, with stated interest rates of 
5.00%.  The unamortized premium at September 30, 2023, is $1,168,387.  Principal payments are due each  
October 1, and interest is due semi-annually each October 1 and April 1.  The final maturity is October 1, 
2028.  The 2015 Bonds may be redeemed in whole or in part at any time on or after October 1, 2024, 
without penalty. 
 
At September 30, 2023, unamortized losses were $1,482,706 (2014B Bonds) and $28,235 (2015 Bonds).  
Amortization of $123,559 (2014B Bonds) and $6,274 (2015 Bonds) were charged to interest expense in 
2023.  These losses are being amortized over the remaining debt term using the straight-line method. 
 
The 2020 Bonds 
On October 22, 2020, the Authority issued $52,055,000 Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 
2020 (the 2020 Bonds).   
 
The 2020 Bonds were issued to provide funds, together with other legally available monies of the Authority, 
for the principal purpose of refinancing the Authority’s outstanding 2010A, 2010B and 2014A Bonds in the 
par amount of $52,055,000 and were refunded for a savings of over $24 million ($13 million in present 
value savings).  
  
The 2020 Bonds were issued at a premium of $7,921,462, as serial bonds, with stated interest rates of 3.00% 
to 5.00% (except for a $1,130,000 term bond at 2.00% which is due and payable on October 1, 2035).  The 
unamortized premium at September 30, 2023, is $6,733,242.  Principal payments are due each October 1, 
and interest is due semi-annually each October 1 and April 1.  The final maturity is October 1, 2040.  The 
2020 Bonds maturing on or before October 1, 2030 are not subject to optional redemption prior to maturity. 
The 2020 Bonds maturing on or after October 1, 2031 are redeemable prior to their stated maturity dates 
on or after October 1, 2030, without penalty. 
 
At September 30, 2023, unamortized loss was $175,808.  Amortization of $10,342 was charged to interest 
expense in 2023.  This loss is being amortized over the remaining debt term using the straight-line method. 
 
The 2019 Note – Direct Borrowing 
On February 13, 2019, the Authority issued $2,000,000 Utility System Subordinate Taxable Revenue Note, 
Series 2019 (the 2019 Note). The 2019 Note was issued to provide funds, together with other legally 
available monies of the Authority, for the principal purpose of purchasing the Authority’s Administration 
Office located in Lakewood Ranch, Florida.   
 
The 2019 Note was issued without premium or discount, as term bonds maturing on October 1, 2028, but 
subject to mandatory redemption in specified lots beginning on October 1, 2019.  The stated interest rate on 
the term bonds is 3.362%.  Principal payments are due each October 1, and interest is due semi-annually each 
October 1 and April 1.  The final maturity is October 1, 2028.   
 
Series 2019 Credit Note – Direct Borrowing 
On October 1, 2019, the Authority closed on a $5,000,000 Non-Revolving Line of Credit (Series 2019 
Credit Note) with a three year term. The Line of Credit will be used to provide funding for the Authority’s 
System-wide Benefit Projects (a subset of the Authority’s Capital Improvement Projects). The interest rate 
on the Line of Credit is variable and will be calculated at a rate of 79% of LIBOR plus thirty-six basis points 
with the interest payments being due semi-annually on April 1 and October 1.  
 
 

47



 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 
On September 28, 2022, the 2019 $5,000,000 Non-Revolving Line of Credit was restated and amended to 
$10,000,000 with the same terms and provisions, with the exception of the interest rate index being BSBY 
in lieu of LIBOR. As of September 30, 2023, the Authority has drawn a total of $3,500,000 on the line of 
credit with a current outstanding amount of $2,500,000 and the amount of unused line of credit is 
$6,500,000. 
 
Series 2022 Credit Bond – Direct Borrowing 
On October 7, 2022, the Authority closed on a $100,000,000 Revolving Line of Credit (Series 2022 Credit 
Bond) with a three year term. The Line of Credit will be used to provide funding for the Authority’s Capital 
Improvement Projects. The interest rate on the Line of Credit is variable and will be calculated at a rate of 
79% of BSBY plus twenty-four basis points with the interest payments being due semi-annually on April 
1 and October 1. As of September 30, 2023, the Authority has drawn a total of $17,223,000 on the line of 
credit with a current outstanding amount of $17,223,000 and the amount of unused line of credit is 
$82,777,000. 
 
Other Provisions 
Principal and interest on the above bonds are payable from and secured by a lien upon and pledge of the 
Net Revenues (see below) plus the balances in certain funds and accounts as defined in the bond resolutions.  
The lien and pledge on each series of bonds is on parity with the others. 
 
Bond covenants require the Authority to set rates so as always to provide, in each fiscal year, Net Revenues 
equal to:  (1) at least 115% of the Annual Debt Service becoming due in such fiscal year; and (2) at least 
100% of any required County Payments, as defined in the bond resolutions.  Net Revenues are defined in 
the bond resolutions as Gross Revenues less Operating and Maintenance Costs.  Gross Revenues are 
operating revenues (excluding member dues) plus investment earnings, Federal Direct Payments, and 
certain transfers from the Rate Stabilization Account.  Operating and Maintenance Costs are operating 
expenses excluding depreciation, studies, and master plans.  Following are the required disclosures for 
2023: 

                Percentage  
       Total   Current      of Net  
    Revenue   Principal   Year   Current   Revenues to  
 Pledge   Pledged  and Interest   Principal and   Year   Principal and  
 Revenue   Through   Outstanding   Interest Paid  Net Revenue  Interest Paid  
 Net Revenues   10/01/40  $ 133,078,000    $  10,826,879       $ 16,103,431  149% 
 

The following is a schedule of future gross debt service requirements (excluding federal direct payments) 
of the Authority’s outstanding bonds payable:  
 

 
 
 
Total interest costs on the above bonds incurred during 2023 were $5,811,879.  No interest costs were 
capitalized in 2023. 

48



 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 
Note 6 -Restricted Assets and Net Position 
 
Restricted assets represent moneys that have been set aside as a result of bond covenants or contractual 
agreements. Interest earnings are added to the balances and authorized expenditures are deducted from 
restricted assets. 
 
Net position is restricted when restricted assets are funded from operating revenues.  Only portions of debt 
related to the proceeds that have been spent to acquire capital assets are included in the calculation of the 
net investment in capital assets.  Following are the balances in restricted assets and restricted net position 
at September 30, 2023: 
 

 
 

The tenant security deposit of $2,500 accounts for the variance between Restricted Assets and Restricted 
Net Position above. 
 
Within the assets restricted for capital outlay, grants, etc. above, certain amounts have been attributed to 
specific customers to be used toward future projects or as general fund disbursements as follows: 
 

 
 

Note 7 -Retirement Plan 
 
General Information about the Florida Retirement System (FRS) 
The FRS was created in Chapter 121, Florida Statutes, to provide a defined benefit pension plan for 
participating public employees.  The FRS was amended in 1998 to add the Deferred Retirement Option 
Program (DROP) under the defined benefit plan and amended in 2000 to provide a defined contribution 
plan alternative to the defined benefit plan for FRS members effective July 1, 2002.  This integrated defined 
contribution pension plan is the FRS Investment Plan.  Chapter 112, Florida Statutes, established the Retiree 
Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) Program, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, 
to assist retired members of any state-administered retirement system in paying the costs of health 
insurance. 
 

 

49



 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 

Essentially all regular employees of the Authority are eligible to enroll as members of the State-
administered FRS.  Provisions relating to FRS are established by Chapters 121 and 122, Florida Statutes; 
Chapter 112 Part IV, Florida Statutes; Chapter 238, Florida Statutes; and FRS Rules, Chapter 60S, Florida 
Administrative Code; wherein eligibility, contributions, and benefits are defined and described in detail.  
Such provisions may be amended at any time by further action from the Florida Legislature.  The FRS is a 
single retirement system administered by the Florida Department of Management Services, Division of 
Retirement, and consists of two cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined-benefit plans and other 
nonintegrated programs.  An annual comprehensive financial report of the FRS, which includes its financial 
statements, required supplementary information, actuarial report, and other relevant information, is available 
from the Florida Department of Management Services’ web site (www.dms.myflorida.com). 
 
Payables to the Pension Plan.  At September 30, 2023, the Authority reported a payable of $21,794 for the 
outstanding amount of contributions to the Plan, required for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023. 
 
FRS Pension Plan 
Plan Description.  The FRS Pension Plan (Plan) is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension 
plan, with a DROP for eligible employees.  The general classes of membership applicable to the Authority 
are as follows: 
 
• Regular Class―Members of the FRS who do not qualify for membership in the other classes. 
• Senior Management Service Class (SMSC)―Members in senior management level positions. 
 
Employees enrolled in the Plan prior to July 1, 2011, vest at six years of creditable service and employees 
enrolled in the Plan on or after July 1, 2011, vest at eight years of creditable service.  All vested members 
enrolled prior to July 1, 2011, are eligible for normal retirement benefits at age 62 or at any age after 30 
years of service, except for members classified as special risk who are eligible for normal retirement 
benefits at age 55 or at any age after 25 years of service.  All members enrolled in the Plan on or after July 
1, 2011, once vested, are eligible for normal retirement benefits at age 65 or any time after 33 years of 
creditable service, except for members classified as special risk who are eligible for normal retirement 
benefits at age 60 or at any age after 30 years of service.  Members of the Plan may include up to four years  
of credit for military service toward creditable service.  The Plan also includes an early retirement provision; 
however, there is a benefit reduction for each year a member retires before his or her normal retirement 
date.  The Plan provides retirement, disability, death benefits, and annual cost-of-living adjustments to 
eligible participants. 

 
DROP, subject to provisions of Section 121.091, Florida Statutes, permits employees eligible for normal 
retirement under the Plan to defer receipt of monthly benefit payments while continuing employment with 
an FRS employer.  An employee may participate in DROP for a period not to exceed 96 months after 
electing to participate, except that certain instructional personnel may participate for up to 96 months.  
During the period of DROP participation, deferred monthly benefits are held in the FRS Trust Fund and 
accrue interest.  The net pension liability does not include amounts for DROP participants, as these members 
are considered retired and are not accruing additional pension benefits. 

 
Benefits under the Plan are computed on the basis of age and/or years of service, average final 
compensation, and service credit.  Credit for each year of service is expressed as a percentage of the average 
final compensation.  For members initially enrolled before July 1, 2011, the average final compensation is 
the average of the five highest fiscal years’ earnings; for members initially enrolled on or after July 1, 2011,  
the average final compensation is the average of the eight highest fiscal years’ earnings.  The total 
percentage value of the benefit received is determined by calculating the total value of all service, which is 
based on the retirement class to which the member belonged when the service credit was earned.  The 
following chart shows the percentage value for each year of service credit earned: 

50



 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 
 
 Class, Initial Enrollment, and   Percent  
 Retirement Age/Years of Service   Value  
 
Regular Class Members Initially Enrolled Before July 1, 2011: 
 Retirement up to age 62 or up to 30 years of service 1.60 
 Retirement at age 63 or with 31 years of service 1.63 
 Retirement at age 64 or with 32 years of service 1.65 
 Retirement at age 65 or with 33 or more years of service 1.68 
 
 
Regular Class Members Initially Enrolled on or After July 1, 2011: 
 Retirement up to age 65 or up to 33 years of service 1.60 
 Retirement at age 66 or with 34 years of service 1.63 
 Retirement at age 67 or with 35 years of service 1.65 
   Retirement at age 68 or with 36 or more years of service 1.68 
 
Senior Management Service Class 2.00 
 

As provided in Section 121.101, Florida Statutes, if the member is initially enrolled in the FRS before July 
1, 2011, and all service credit was accrued before July 1, 2011, the annual cost-of-living adjustment is 3% 
per year.  If the member is initially enrolled before July 1, 2011, and has service credit on or after July 1, 
2011, there is an individually calculated cost-of-living adjustment.  The annual cost-of-living adjustment is 
a proportion of 3% determined by dividing the sum of the pre-July 2011 service credit by the total service 
credit at retirement multiplied by 3%.  Plan members initially enrolled on or after July 1, 2011, will not 
have a cost-of-living adjustment after retirement. 
 
Contributions.  The Florida Legislature establishes contribution rates for participating employers and 
employees.  Contribution rates during the Authority’s 2022-23 fiscal year were as follows:  
 
        Year Ended June 30, 2023   Year Ended June 30, 2024 
           Percent of Gross Salary   Percent of Gross Salary  
 Class        Employee   Employer   Employee   Employer  
FRS, Regular  3.00   10.19   3.00   11.51  
FRS, Senior Management 
 Services  3.00   29.85   3.00   32.46  
DROP – Applicable to 
 Members from All of 
 the Above Classes  0.00   16.94   0.00   19.13  
Investment Plan, Regular  0.00              6.30   0.00   8.30  
FRS, Reemployment 
 Retiree  (1)   (1)   (1)   (1)  
 
Notes:  (1) Contribution rates are dependent upon retirement class in which reemployed. 
 
The Authority’s contributions (employer only) to the Plan totaled $633,964 for the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2023.  This excludes the HIS defined benefit pension plan contributions. 

 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions.  At September 30, 2023, the Authority reported a liability of $3,495,546 
for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.  The net pension liability was measured as of June 
30, 2023, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an 
actuarial  

51



 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 
valuation as of July 1, 2023.  The Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on 
the Authority’s 2022-23 fiscal year contributions relative to the 2022-23 fiscal year contributions of all 
participating members.  At June 30, 2023, the Authority’s proportion was 0.0093945995%, which was an 
increase of 0.0003432445% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2022. 
 
For the year ended September 30, 2023, the Authority recognized pension expense of $581,901 related to 
the Plan.  At September 30, 2023, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

 
    Deferred   Deferred 
    Outflows of   Inflows of 
 Description   Resources   Resources  
Employer Contributions after Measurement Date  $ 113,072 $ 0 
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience   166,018  0 
Changes in Assumptions   430,491  0 
Changes in Proportion and Difference between 
    Authority Contributions and Proportionate 
    Share of Contributions   358,354  0 
Net Difference between Projected and Actual Earnings on 
 Pension Plan Investments   230,810  0 
Total    $ 1,298,745 $ 0 
 
 
The deferred outflows of resources related to pensions, totaling $113,072, resulting from Authority 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date but prior to the end of the reporting period will be 
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the subsequent fiscal year. Other amounts reported 
as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized 
in pension expense as follows: 
 
 
  Fiscal Year 
  Ending June 30,   Amount  
 2024 $ 299,675 
 2025  172,856 
 2026  25,539 
 2027  647,605 
 2028  39,998 
 Total $ 1,185,673 
 
Actuarial Assumptions.  The total pension liability in the July 1, 2023, actuarial valuation was determined 
using the individual entry age cost method, and the following actuarial assumptions: 
 
Inflation 2.40% 
Salary Increases 3.25% Average, Including Inflation 
Discount Rate 6.70% 
Long-term Expected Rate of Return, 
 Net of Investment Expense 6.70% 
Municipal Bond Index N/A 
 
Mortality rates were based on the PUB-2010 base table which varies by member category and sex, projected  
 

52



 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 
generationally with Scale MP-2018 details in July 1, 2023 valuation report. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2023 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2018. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was not based on historical returns, but 
instead is based on a forward-looking capital market economic model.  The allocation policy’s description 
of each asset class was used to map the target allocation to the asset classes shown below.  Each asset class 
assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions, and includes an adjustment for the 
inflation assumption.  The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic and geometric real rates of 
return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:  
 
          Compound 
             Annual   Annual 
 Asset   Target       Arithmetic   (Geometric)   Standard 
 Class   Allocation   Return   Return   Deviation  
Cash 1.0% 2.6% 2.6% 1.1% 
Fixed Income 19.8% 4.4% 4.4% 3.2% 
Global Equity 54.0% 8.8% 7.3% 17.8% 
Real Estate 10.3% 7.4% 6.3% 15.7% 
Private Equity 11.1% 12.0% 8.9% 26.3% 
Strategic Investments  3.8%  6.2% 5.9% 17.8% 
Total  100.0%  
 
Assumed Inflation – Mean                                                                   2.4%                                     1.3%             
 
Discount Rate.  The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.70%.  The Plan’s 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 
current active and inactive employees.  Therefore, the discount rate for calculating the total pension 
liability is equal to the long-term expected rate of return.  The discount rate was 6.70% in the July 1, 
2023 valuation.  

 
Sensitivity of the Authority’s Proportionate Share of the Net Position Liability to Changes in the Discount 
Rate.  The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated 
using the discount rate of 6.70%, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (5.70%) or 
1-percentage-point higher (7.70%) than the current rate: 

 
FRS – Authority: 
 
             Current 
            1%     Discount   1% 
        Decrease   Rate   Increase 
   (5.70%)   (6.70%)   (7.70%)  
Authority’s Proportionate Share 
     of the Net Pension Liability $ 6,045,306 $ 3,495,546 $ 1,363,643 
 
 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position.  Detailed information about the Plan’s fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued FRS Pension Plan and Other State Administered Systems Annual 
Comprehensive Financial Report. 

53



 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 

HIS Pension Plan 
Plan Description.  The HIS Pension Plan (HIS Plan) is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit 
pension plan established under Section 112.363, Florida Statutes, and may be amended by the Florida 
Legislature at any time.  The benefit is a monthly payment to assist retirees of State-administered retirement 
systems in paying their health insurance costs and is administered by the Division of Retirement within the 
Florida Department of Management Services. 
 
Benefits Provided.  Through the period June 30, 2023, eligible retirees and beneficiaries received a monthly 
HIS payment equal to the number of years of service credited at retirement multiplied by $5.  The minimum 
payment was $30 and the maximum payment was $150 per month, pursuant to Section 112.363,  
Florida Statutes.  Effective July 1, 2023, the HIS multiplier increased to $7.50 for each year of credited 
service, $30 minimum payment, and $45 maximum payment per month.  To be eligible to receive a HIS 
Plan benefit, a retiree under a State-administered retirement system must provide proof of health insurance 
coverage, which may include Medicare. 
 
Contributions.  The HIS Plan is funded by required contributions from FRS participating employers as set 
by the Florida Legislature.  Employer contributions are a percentage of gross compensation for all active 
FRS members.  For the Plan fiscal years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the contribution rate was 1.66% of 
payroll pursuant to Section 112.363, Florida Statutes.  As of July 1, 2023, the HIS contribution rate 
increased to 2%. The Authority contributed 100% of its statutorily required contributions for the current 
and all preceding years.  HIS Plan contributions are deposited in a separate trust fund from which payments 
are authorized.  HIS Plan benefits are not guaranteed and are subject to annual legislative appropriation.  In 
the event the legislative appropriation or available funds fail to provide full subsidy benefits to all 
participants, benefits may be reduced or canceled. 
The Authority’s contributions to the HIS Plan totaled $60,003 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023. 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions.  At September 30, 2023, the Authority reported a net pension liability of 
$1,048,672 for its proportionate share of the HIS Plan’s net pension liability.  The net pension liability 
was measured as of June 30, 2023, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability 
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2023.  The Authority’s proportionate share of the 
net pension liability was based on the Authority’s 2022-23 fiscal year contributions relative to the total  
2022-23 fiscal year contributions of all participating members.  At June 30, 2023, the Authority’s 
proportionate share was 0.0099009807%, which was a decrease of 0.0001165194% from its 
proportionate share measured as of June 30, 2022. 

 
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, the Authority recognized pension expense of $81,994 related 
to the HIS Plan.  In addition, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
    Deferred   Deferred 
    Outflows of   Inflows of 
 Description   Resources   Resources  
Employer Contributions after Measurement Date  $ 15,660 $ 0 
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience   31,830  4,614 
Changes of Assumptions   60,111  162,229 
Changes in Proportion and Difference between 
    Authority Contributions and Proportionate 
    Share of Contributions   97,950  11,300 
Net Difference between Projected and Actual 
     Earnings on Pension Plan Investments   1,518  0 
Total   $ 207,069 $ 178,143 

54



 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 
The deferred outflows of resources related to pensions, totaling $15,660, resulting from Authority 
contributions to the HIS Plan subsequent to the measurement date but prior to the end of the reporting 
period will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the subsequent fiscal year.  Other 
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
   
     Fiscal Year 
  Ending   Amount  
 2024 $ 10,626 
 2025  15,285 

 2026  15,558 
 2027  2,907 
 2028  (20,134) 
 Thereafter  (10,976) 
 Total $ 13,266 

 
Actuarial Assumptions.  The total pension liability in the July 1, 2023 actuarial valuation rolled forward to 
the measurement date of June 30, 2023, was determined using the individual entry age cost method, and 
the following actuarial assumptions: 
 
 Inflation 2.40% 
 Salary Increases 3.25% Average, Including Inflation 
 Discount Rate 3.54% 
 Long-term Expected Rate of Return, 
 Net of Investment Expense N/A 
 
 Municipal Bond Index 3.54% 
 
Mortality rates were based on the Generational PUB-2010 with Projection Scale MP-2018; details in July 
1, 2023 valuation report.  
 
The actuarial assumptions that determined the total pension liability as of June, 30, 2023 were based on the 
results of an actuarial experience study of the FRS for the period July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2018.  
 
Discount Rate.  The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.54%.  In general, the 
discount rate for calculating the total pension liability is equal to the single rate equivalent to discounting 
at the long-term expected rate of return for benefit payments prior to the projected depletion date.  Because 
the HIS benefit is essentially funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, the depletion date is considered to be 
immediate, and the single equivalent discount rate is equal to the municipal bond rate selected by the HIS 
Plan sponsor.  The Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index was adopted as the 
applicable municipal bond index. 
 
Sensitivity of the Authority’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount 
Rate.  The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated 
using the discount rate of 3.54%, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.54%) or 1-
percentage-point higher (4.54%) than the current rate: 
 
 
 
 

55



 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 

 
     Current 
  1%   Discount   1% 
  Decrease   Rate   Increase 
  (2.54%)   (3.54%)   (4.54%)  
Authority’s Proportionate Share 
 of the Net Pension Liability $ 1,199,767 $ 1,048,672 $ 923,644 
 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position.  Detailed information about the HIS Plan’s fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued FRS Pension Plan and Other State Administered Systems Annual 
Comprehensive Financial Report. 
 
FRS – Defined Contribution Pension Plan 
The Authority contributes to the FRS Investment Plan (Investment Plan), a defined contribution pension 
plan, for its eligible employees electing to participate in the Investment Plan.  The Investment Plan is 
administered by the SBA, and is reported in the SBA’s annual financial statements and in the State of 
Florida Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.  Service retirement benefits are based upon the value of 
the member’s account upon retirement. 
 
As provided in Section 121.4501, Florida Statutes, eligible FRS members may elect to participate in the 
Investment Plan in lieu of the FRS defined-benefit plan.  Authority employees participating in DROP are 
not eligible to participate in the Investment Plan.  Employer and employee contributions, including amounts 
contributed to individual member’s accounts, are defined by law, but the ultimate benefit depends in part 
on the performance of investment funds.  Benefit terms, including contribution requirements, for the 
Investment Plan are established and may be amended by the Florida Legislature.  The Investment Plan is 
funded with the same employer and employee contribution rates that are based on salary and membership 
class (Regular Class, Elected County Officers, etc.), as the FRS defined benefit plan.  Contributions are 
directed to individual member accounts, and the individual members allocate contributions and account 
balances among various approved investment choices.  Allocations to the investment member’s accounts 
during the 2022-23 fiscal year were as follows: 

 
 

Year Ended June 30, 2023 Year Ended June 30, 2024 
  Percent of Gross Compensation        Percent of Gross Compensation  

  Class   Employee  Employer   Employee     Employer 
FRS, Regular Class 3.00              6.30  3.00 8.30 
FRS, Senior Management 

Service Class 3.00             7.67  3.00 9.67 
 

 
 

For all membership classes, employees are immediately vested in their own contributions and are vested 
after one year of service for employer contributions and investment earnings.  If an accumulated benefit 
obligation for service credit originally earned under the FRS Pension Plan is transferred to the Investment 
Plan, the member must have the years of service required for FRS Pension Plan vesting (including the 
service credit represented by the transferred funds) to be vested for these funds and the earnings on the 
funds.  Nonvested employer contributions are placed in a suspense account for up to five years.  If the 
employee returns to FRS-covered employment within the five-year period, the employee will regain control 
over their account.  If the employee does not return within the five-year period, the employee will forfeit 
the accumulated account balance.  Costs of administering the Investment Plan, including the FRS Financial  

56



 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 
 

Guidance Program, are funded through an employer contribution of 0.06% of payroll and by forfeited 
benefits of Investment Plan members.  For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, the information for 
the amount of forfeitures was unavailable from the SBA; however, management believes that these 
amounts, if any, would be immaterial to the Authority. 

After termination and applying to receive benefits, the member may rollover vested funds to another 
qualified plan, structure a periodic payment under the Investment Plan, receive a lump-sum distribution, 
leave the funds invested for future distribution, or any combination of these options.  Disability coverage 
is provided; the member may either transfer the account balance to the FRS Pension Plan when approved 
for disability retirement to receive guaranteed lifetime monthly benefits under the FRS Pension Plan, or 
remain in the Investment Plan and rely upon that account balance for retirement income. 
 
The Authority’s contributions to the Investment Plan totaled $53,567 for the fiscal year ended September 
30, 2023.  The Authority’s Investment Plan pension expense totaled $53,567 for the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2023. 
 
FRS – Summary of Defined Benefit Pension Plans 
The aggregate amount of net pension liability, and the related deferred outflows of resources, deferred 
inflows of resources, and pension expense for the Authority’s defined benefit pension plans are summarized 
below:  
 

 
 
Note 8 - Leases 
 
The Authority is a lessor for a noncancellable lease of a portion of the administration building. The 
Authority recognizes a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources in the financial statements. The 
lease commenced in January of 2020 and is for a five-year period. The Authority recognized $67,347 in 
lease revenue and $4,173 in interest revenue during the current fiscal year related to this lease. As of 
September 30, 2023, the Authority’s receivable for lease payments is $87,424 and the balance of the 
deferred inflow of resources is $87,424. 
 
At the commencement of a lease, the Authority initially measures the lease receivable at the present value 
of payments expected to be received during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease receivable is reduced 
by the principal portion of the lease payments received. The deferred inflow of resources is initially 
measured as the initial amount of the lease receivable, adjusted for lease payments received at or before the 
lease commencement date. Subsequently, the deferred inflow of resources is recognized as revenue over 
the life of the lease term.  
 
  

57



 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 
 
Key estimates and judgements include how the Authority determines (1) the discount rate it used to discount 
the expected lease receipts to present value, (2) lease term, and (3) lease receipts. 
 
■ The Authority uses its estimated incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate for leases. 
■ The lease term includes the noncancellable period of the lease. Lease receipts included in the   
             measurement of the lease receivable is composed of fixed payments from the lease.  
 
The Authority monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its lease, and will 
remeasure the lease receivable and deferred inflows of resources if certain changes occur that are expected 
to significantly affect the amount of the lease receivable.  
 
Note 9 - Subscription Based Information Technology Arrangements 
 
The Authority implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 96, Subscription-
Based Information Technology Arrangements (SBITAs), in fiscal year 2023. The Authority currently has 
no material software arrangements that meet the Authority’s threshold per annum and require recognition 
under GASBS No. 96.  
 
The Authority has committed to SBITAs involving payroll/time keeping and permit compliance, with no 
payments related to these agreements occurring prior to September 30, 2023.  
 
Note 10 - Risk Management 

 
The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Authority carries commercial insurance.  
There has been no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the prior year.  
 
Due to Hurricane Ian, the Authority currently has an outstanding insurance claim for the damages sustained 
during the storm as well as an accepted request for public assistance through FEMA. At this time, the total 
amount of claims is estimated at $2,700,000 and as of September 30, 2023 the Authority has received 
$1,117,668 in reimbursements from the insurance and FEMA claims. Although storm damage was 
sustained, the Authority was able to continually provide water to the customers throughout the event and 
continues to operate under normal conditions.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

58



 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
  

59



 
 

 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
SCHEDULE OF THE AUTHORITY’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE 

OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 
FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM AND HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY PENSION PLANS 

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS 
 

FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM PENSION PLAN 

 

HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY PENSION PLAN 
 

 
Note: 

Additional information will be provided annually until ten years' data is presented. 
See accompanying notes 

60



 

 

 

SCHEDULE OF AUTHORITY CONTRIBUTIONS 
FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM AND HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY 

PENSION PLANS LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS 
 
 

FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM PENSION PLAN 
 

 
 

HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY PENSION PLAN 
 

 
Note: 

Additional information will be provided annually until ten years' data is presented. 
 

61



 

 

 

 
PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 

 
Note I - Changes in Benefit Terms and Assumptions – 2023 
 

Changes in Benefit Terms from the year ended June 30, 2022 to June 30, 2023: 
 
■ FRS―No significant changes. 
 
■ HIS―No significant changes. 
 
Changes in Assumptions from the year ended June 30, 2022 to June 30, 2023: 
 
■ FRS― The long-term expected rate of return was decreased from 6.70% to X% and the 

active member mortality assumption was updated  
 
■ HIS―The municipal rate used to determine total pension liability increased from 3.54% to 

X%. 
 
 
Note II - Changes in Benefit Terms and Assumptions – 2022 
 

Changes in Benefit Terms from the year ended June 30, 2021 to June 30, 2022: 
 
■ FRS―No significant changes. 
 
■ HIS―No significant changes. 
 
Changes in Assumptions from the year ended June 30, 2021 to June 30, 2022: 
 
■ FRS― The long-term expected rate of return was decreased from 6.80% to 6.70% and the 

active member mortality assumption was updated  
 
■ HIS―The municipal rate used to determine total pension liability increased from 2.16% to 

3.54%. 
 

Note III - Changes in Benefit Terms and Assumptions – 2021 
 

Changes in Benefit Terms from the year ended June 30, 2020 to June 30, 2021: 
 
■ FRS―No significant changes. 
 
■ HIS―No significant changes. 
 
Changes in Assumptions from the year ended June 30, 2020 to June 30, 2021: 
 
■ FRS―No significant changes 
 
■ HIS―The municipal rate used to determine total pension liability decreased from 2.21% to 

2.16%. 

62



 

 

 

 
PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 

 
Note IV - Changes in Benefit Terms and Assumptions – 2020 
 

Changes in Benefit Terms from the year ended June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020: 
 
■ FRS―No significant changes. 
 
■ HIS―No significant changes. 
 
Changes in Assumptions from the year ended June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020: 
 
■ FRS―The long-term expected rate of return was decreased from 6.90% to 6.80% and the 

active member mortality assumption was updated. 
 
■ HIS―The municipal rate used to determine total pension liability decreased from 3.50% to 

2.21%. 
 

Note V  -Changes in Benefit Terms and Assumptions – 2019 
 

Changes in Benefit Terms from the year ended June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2019: 
 
■ FRS―No significant changes. 
 
■ HIS―No significant changes. 
 
Changes in Assumptions from the year ended June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2019: 
 
■ FRS―The long-term expected rate of return was decreased from 7.00% to 6.90% and the 

active member mortality assumption was updated. 
 
■ HIS―The municipal rate used to determine total pension liability decreased from 3.87% to 

3.50%. 
 

Note VI - Changes in Benefit Terms and Assumptions – 2018 
 

Changes in Benefit Terms from the year ended June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018: 
 
■ FRS―No significant changes. 
 
■ HIS―No significant changes. 
 
Changes in Assumptions from the year ended June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018: 
 
■ FRS―The long-term expected rate of return was decreased from 7.10% to 7.00%, and the 

active member mortality assumption was updated. 
 
■ HIS―The municipal rate used to determine total pension liability increased from 3.58% to 

3.87%. 
 

63



 

 

 

 
PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION  
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 

 
Note VII - Changes in Benefit Terms and Assumptions – 2017 
 

Changes in Benefit Terms from the year ended June 30, 2016 to June 30, 2017: 
 
■ FRS―No significant changes. 
 
■ HIS―No significant changes. 
 
Changes in Assumptions from the year ended June 30, 2016 to June 30, 2017: 
 
■ FRS―The long-term expected rate of return was decreased from 7.60% to 7.10%, and the 

active member mortality assumption was updated. 
 
■ HIS―The municipal rate used to determine total pension liability increased from 2.85% to 

3.58%. 
 

64



STATISTICAL SECTION 
(unaudited) 

This part of the Authority's annual comprehensive financial report presents detailed information as a context for 
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary 
information says about the Authority's overall financial health. 

Contents Page 

Financial Trends 66-68

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand 
how the Authority's financial performance has changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 69-70

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the 
Authority's revenue sources  

Debt Capacity 71-72

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the 
affordability of the Authority's current level of outstanding debt and the 
Authority’s ability to issue additional debt in the future. 

Operating Information 73-74

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader 
understand how the information in the Authority's financial report relates 
to the services the Authority provided services and the activities.  

Demographic and Economic Information 75 

These tables offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 
understand the environment in which the Authority’s financial activities take place. 

65



20
23

20
22

20
21

20
20

20
19

20
18

20
17

20
16

20
15

20
14

N
et

 P
o

si
ti

o
n

   
N

et
 In

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

C
ap

ita
l A

ss
et

s
10

9,
37

1,
25

0
   

 
10

8,
85

0,
62

2
   

 
10

8,
89

4,
59

8
   

 
10

5,
57

7,
77

9
   

  
97

,1
26

,2
76

   
   

 
99

,2
49

,4
84

   
   

 
10

5,
83

6,
76

5
   

   
   

11
2,

35
1,

82
5

   
   

11
8,

38
4,

87
5

   
   

   
12

0,
27

9,
42

8
 

   
R

es
tri

ct
ed

14
,7

56
,4

35
   

   
10

,0
40

,1
58

   
   

8,
06

4,
09

2
   

   
  

9,
83

3,
91

6
   

   
   

12
,4

42
,3

51
   

   
 

21
,7

82
,8

30
   

   
 

20
,1

36
,4

02
   

   
   

  
19

,3
61

,2
13

   
   

  
19

,7
38

,7
80

   
   

   
  

19
,7

51
,7

59
   

   
U

nr
es

tri
ct

ed
21

,2
83

,2
72

   
   

14
,6

41
,2

39
   

   
16

,7
54

,2
15

   
   

19
,8

94
,7

71
   

   
 

15
,5

78
,0

57
   

   
 

8,
04

7,
92

2
   

   
   

9,
33

5,
83

2
   

   
   

   
 

7,
87

5,
47

3
   

   
   

 
6,

54
0,

10
1

   
   

   
   

 
8,

10
9,

72
3

   
  

T
o

ta
l N

et
 P

o
si

ti
o

n
14

5,
41

0,
95

8
   

 
13

3,
53

2,
01

9
   

 
13

3,
71

2,
90

5
   

 
13

5,
30

6,
46

6
   

  
12

5,
14

6,
68

4
   

  
12

9,
08

0,
23

6
   

  
13

5,
30

8,
99

9
   

   
   

13
9,

58
8,

51
1

   
   

14
4,

66
3,

75
7

   
   

   
14

8,
14

0,
91

0
 

P
ea

ce
 R

iv
er

 M
an

so
ta

 R
eg

io
n

al
 W

at
er

 S
u

p
p

ly
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
N

et
 P

o
si

ti
o

n
 b

y 
C

o
m

p
o

n
en

t
L

as
t 

10
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

rs

66



O
p

er
at

in
g

 R
ev

en
u

es
20

23
20

22
20

21
20

20
20

19
   

   
   

20
18

   
   

   
20

17
   

   
  2

01
6

   
   

   
20

15
   

   
 2

01
4

   
M

em
be

r D
ue

s
43

2,
48

5
   

   
   

  
40

9,
13

4
   

   
   

  
38

6,
50

8
   

   
   

  
37

1,
16

0
   

   
   

   
38

9,
20

0
   

   
   

   
35

5,
30

0
   

   
   

   
33

6,
49

9
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

9,
50

0
   

   
   

   
 

30
9,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

27
7,

60
0

   
   

  
   

W
at

er
 S

al
es

36
,8

21
,1

76
   

   
34

,7
53

,3
56

   
   

32
,9

01
,4

94
   

   
31

,9
41

,4
19

   
   

 
31

,1
25

,1
03

   
   

 
30

,4
67

,2
31

   
   

 
30

,3
90

,7
98

   
   

   
  

30
,1

10
,4

90
   

   
  

29
,4

74
,9

21
   

   
   

  
29

,1
35

,3
01

   
   

Pl
an

ni
ng

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t

47
5,

00
0

   
   

   
  

62
4,

99
9

   
   

   
  

62
5,

00
0

   
   

   
  

32
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

10
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

60
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

60
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
,0

00
   

   
   

 
   

R
en

ew
al

 &
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
20

0,
00

0
   

  
   

O
th

er
2,

24
0,

01
4

   
   

  
34

7,
40

0
   

   
   

  
2,

00
1,

01
5

   
   

  
65

2,
18

3
   

   
   

   
13

1,
49

9
   

   
   

   
37

,3
54

   
   

   
   

  
27

,0
18

   
   

   
   

   
   

21
,9

93
   

   
   

   
   

27
,1

31
   

   
   

   
   

   
19

,1
37

   
   

   
 

T
o

ta
l O

p
er

at
in

g
 R

ev
en

u
es

39
,9

68
,6

75
   

   
36

,1
34

,8
89

   
   

35
,9

14
,0

17
   

   
33

,2
89

,7
62

   
   

 
31

,7
45

,8
02

   
   

 
30

,9
19

,8
85

   
   

 
30

,8
14

,3
15

   
   

   
  

30
,4

91
,9

83
   

   
  

29
,8

61
,0

52
   

   
   

  
30

,6
82

,0
38

   

O
p

er
at

in
g

 E
xp

en
se

s
   

C
os

t o
f S

al
es

 &
 S

er
vi

ce
s

23
,7

23
,3

24
   

   
19

,6
67

,1
19

   
   

17
,6

67
,2

01
   

   
16

,8
82

,0
50

   
   

 
16

,4
15

,6
82

   
   

 
15

,0
02

,1
10

   
   

 
14

,2
00

,7
60

   
   

   
  

13
,5

74
,2

50
   

   
  

13
,4

93
,3

54
   

   
   

  
13

,8
19

,8
34

   
   

St
ud

ie
s 

& 
M

as
te

r P
la

n
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
75

5,
11

7
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

4,
53

1
   

   
   

   
30

7,
29

4
   

   
   

   
18

,1
12

   
   

   
   

  
5,

25
9

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

,7
90

   
   

   
   

   
59

,2
96

   
   

   
   

   
   

31
6,

46
0

   
   

  
   

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n
46

6,
33

3
   

   
   

  
50

3,
22

8
   

   
   

  
50

2,
56

5
   

   
   

  
46

6,
51

1
   

   
   

   
74

3,
90

1
   

   
   

   
68

3,
72

3
   

   
   

   
62

7,
03

8
   

   
   

   
   

 
60

2,
46

6
   

   
   

   
 

56
8,

40
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

48
9,

97
2

   
   

  
   

D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n
12

,5
25

,8
73

   
   

12
,3

66
,8

15
   

   
12

,3
05

,3
55

   
   

12
,6

86
,6

24
   

   
 

12
,4

95
,0

84
   

   
 

12
,5

73
,1

46
   

   
 

12
,1

56
,4

31
   

   
   

  
11

,8
78

,1
25

   
   

  
11

,5
95

,9
14

   
   

   
  

11
,6

87
,3

72
   

T
o

ta
l O

p
er

at
in

g
 E

xp
en

se
s

36
,7

15
,5

30
   

   
33

,2
92

,2
79

   
   

30
,4

75
,1

22
   

   
30

,1
59

,7
19

   
   

 
29

,9
61

,9
61

   
   

 
28

,2
77

,0
91

   
   

 
26

,9
89

,4
89

   
   

   
  

26
,0

75
,6

31
   

   
  

25
,7

16
,9

64
   

   
   

  
26

,3
13

,6
38

   

O
p

er
at

in
g

 In
co

m
e

3,
25

3,
14

5
   

   
  

2,
84

2,
61

0
   

   
  

5,
43

8,
89

5
   

   
  

3,
13

0,
04

3
   

   
   

1,
78

3,
84

1
   

   
   

2,
64

2,
79

4
   

   
   

3,
82

4,
82

6
   

   
   

   
 

4,
41

6,
35

2
   

   
   

 
4,

14
4,

08
8

   
   

   
   

 
4,

36
8,

40
0

   
  

N
o

n
o

p
er

at
in

g
 R

ev
en

u
es

 (
E

xp
en

se
s)

   
G

ra
nt

s 
- S

tu
di

es
 &

 M
as

te
r P

la
ns

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

37
7,

30
9

   
   

   
  

72
7,

80
5

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
3,

64
8

   
   

   
   

9,
05

6
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

14
,1

83
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

8,
20

1
   

   
  

   
In

ve
st

m
en

t E
ar

ni
ng

s
1,

23
1,

89
8

   
   

  
22

2,
39

6
   

   
   

  
32

,9
49

   
   

   
   

 
34

1,
22

5
   

   
   

   
67

5,
60

3
   

   
   

   
1,

23
1,

89
8

   
   

   
26

4,
13

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

6,
74

4
   

   
   

   
 

11
9,

46
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

54
,6

62
   

   
   

 
   

O
ve

rs
iz

e 
Fa

ci
lit

y 
Pa

ym
en

ts
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(1

,9
71

,5
57

)
   

   
 

(1
,9

71
,5

57
)

   
   

  
(1

,9
71

,5
57

)
   

   
  

(1
,9

71
,5

57
)

   
   

  
(1

,9
71

,5
57

)
   

   
   

   
(1

,9
71

,5
57

)
   

   
   

(1
,9

71
,5

57
)

   
   

   
  

(1
,9

71
,5

57
)

   
 

   
C

ou
nt

y 
Pa

ym
en

ts
(7

96
,0

00
)

   
   

   
 

(7
96

,0
00

)
   

   
   

 
(7

96
,0

00
)

   
   

   
 

(7
96

,0
00

)
   

   
   

  
(7

96
,0

00
)

   
   

   
  

(7
96

,0
00

)
   

   
   

  
(7

96
,0

00
)

   
   

   
   

   
(7

96
,0

00
)

   
   

   
   

(7
50

,0
00

)
   

   
   

   
  

(7
50

,0
00

)
   

   
 

   
O

th
er

 C
us

to
m

er
 P

ay
m

en
ts

(1
,5

19
,8

68
)

   
   

 
(1

,3
44

,9
94

)
   

   
 

(1
,3

45
,1

25
)

   
   

 
(1

,3
45

,3
21

)
   

   
  

(1
,3

45
,6

34
)

   
   

  
(1

,3
45

,2
91

)
   

   
  

(1
,3

46
,1

76
)

   
   

   
   

(1
,3

31
,3

17
)

   
   

   
(1

,4
74

,9
54

)
   

   
   

  
(1

,2
43

,1
87

)
   

 
   

In
te

re
st

 E
xp

en
se

(4
,8

93
,9

09
)

   
   

 
(4

,6
38

,2
86

)
   

   
 

(4
,8

16
,9

96
)

   
   

 
(6

,2
78

,2
23

)
   

   
  

(6
,3

47
,3

70
)

   
   

  
(6

,4
06

,8
51

)
   

   
  

(6
,5

04
,5

33
)

   
   

   
   

(6
,5

98
,3

30
)

   
   

   
(7

,2
32

,1
75

)
   

   
   

  
(8

,2
91

,9
31

)
   

 
   

Bo
nd

 Is
su

an
ce

 C
os

ts
(1

96
,9

97
)

   
   

   
 

(3
1,

30
2)

   
   

   
   

(4
25

,5
13

)
   

   
   

 
(5

1,
63

0)
   

   
   

   
 

(4
9,

94
0)

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(4
,8

01
)

   
   

   
   

   
 

(8
38

,5
06

)
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

Fe
de

ra
l D

ire
ct

 P
ay

m
en

ts
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
34

,1
52

   
   

   
   

 
58

4,
83

5
   

   
   

   
58

2,
35

2
   

   
   

   
57

9,
86

8
   

   
   

   
57

8,
00

6
   

   
   

   
   

 
57

8,
62

6
   

   
   

   
 

57
6,

56
5

   
   

   
   

   
 

57
6,

14
3

   
   

  
   

Ta
xe

s
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(2

24
,9

75
)

   
   

 
T

o
ta

l N
o

n
o

p
er

at
in

g
 R

ev
en

u
es

(6
,1

74
,8

76
)

   
   

 
(6

,2
10

,8
77

)
   

   
 

(8
,5

60
,2

85
)

   
   

 
(9

,5
16

,6
71

)
   

   
  

(9
,0

98
,8

99
)

   
   

  
(8

,6
98

,8
77

)
   

   
  

(9
,7

76
,1

30
)

   
   

   
   

(9
,9

66
,6

35
)

   
   

   
(1

1,
55

6,
98

5)
   

   
   

(1
1,

69
2,

64
4)

  

(L
o

ss
) 

B
ef

o
re

 C
ap

it
al

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

(2
,9

21
,7

31
)

   
   

 
(3

,3
68

,2
67

)
   

   
 

(3
,1

21
,3

90
)

   
   

 
(6

,3
86

,6
27

)
   

   
  

(7
,3

15
,0

57
)

   
   

  
(6

,0
56

,0
83

)
   

   
  

(5
,9

51
,3

04
)

   
   

   
   

(5
,5

50
,2

83
)

   
   

   
(7

,4
12

,8
97

)
   

   
   

  
(7

,3
24

,2
44

)
   

 

C
ap

it
al

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

   
C

ap
ita

l G
ra

nt
s

12
,6

05
,0

75
   

   
2,

70
4,

85
0

   
   

  
52

7,
82

8
   

   
   

  
8,

90
0,

72
1

   
   

   
3,

38
1,

50
5

   
   

   
61

1,
87

0
   

   
   

   
1,

67
1,

79
3

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

25
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0,

00
0

   
  

   
C

ap
ita

l R
ef

un
ds

 - 
C

us
to

m
er

s
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(5

17
,4

69
)

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(2

4,
96

4)
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(2

,0
81

,5
69

)
   

 
   

C
ap

ita
l P

ay
m

en
ts

 - 
C

us
to

m
er

s
2,

19
5,

59
5

   
   

  
1,

00
0,

00
0

   
   

  
1,

00
0,

00
0

   
   

  
7,

64
5,

68
6

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

 
4,

39
3,

63
5

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
C

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
fro

m
 G

en
er

al
 F

un
d

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
T

o
ta

l C
ap

it
al

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

14
,8

00
,6

70
   

   
3,

18
7,

38
1

   
   

  
1,

52
7,

82
8

   
   

  
16

,5
46

,4
07

   
   

 
3,

38
1,

50
5

   
   

   
61

1,
87

0
   

   
   

   
1,

67
1,

79
3

   
   

   
   

 
47

5,
03

6
   

   
   

   
 

5,
64

3,
63

5
   

   
   

   
 

(1
,0

81
,5

69
)

   
 

C
h

an
g

e 
in

 N
et

 P
o

si
ti

o
n

11
,8

78
,9

39
   

   
(1

80
,8

86
)

   
   

   
 

(1
,5

93
,5

61
)

   
   

 
10

,1
59

,7
81

   
   

 
(3

,9
33

,5
52

)
   

   
  

(5
,4

44
,2

13
)

   
   

  
(4

,2
79

,5
11

)
   

   
   

   
(5

,0
75

,2
47

)
   

   
   

(1
,7

69
,2

62
)

   
   

   
  

(8
,4

05
,8

13
)

   
 

T
o

ta
l N

et
 P

o
si

ti
o

n
, B

eg
in

n
in

g
 o

f 
Y

ea
r:

   
As

 O
rig

in
al

ly
 R

ep
or

te
d

13
3,

53
2,

01
9

   
 

13
3,

71
2,

90
5

   
 

13
5,

30
6,

46
6

   
 

12
5,

14
6,

68
4

   
  

12
9,

08
0,

23
6

   
  

13
5,

30
8,

99
9

   
  

13
9,

58
8,

51
1

   
   

   
14

4,
66

3,
75

8
   

   
14

8,
14

0,
91

0
   

   
   

15
7,

90
0,

24
3

 
   

Ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 d
ue

 to
 G

AS
B 

C
ha

ng
es

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(1

,7
07

,8
90

)
   

   
   

  
(1

,3
53

,5
20

)
   

 
   

As
 A

dj
us

te
d

13
3,

53
2,

01
9

   
 

13
3,

71
2,

90
5

   
 

13
5,

30
6,

46
6

   
 

12
5,

14
6,

68
4

   
  

12
9,

08
0,

23
6

   
  

13
5,

30
8,

99
9

   
  

13
9,

58
8,

51
1

   
   

   
14

4,
66

3,
75

8
   

   
14

6,
43

3,
02

0
   

   
   

15
6,

54
6,

72
3

 

T
o

ta
l N

et
 P

o
si

ti
o

n
, E

n
d

 o
f 

Y
ea

r
14

5,
41

0,
95

8
   

 
13

3,
53

2,
01

9
   

 
13

3,
71

2,
90

5
   

 
13

5,
30

6,
46

6
   

  
12

5,
14

6,
68

4
   

  
12

9,
08

0,
23

6
   

  
13

5,
30

8,
99

9
   

   
   

13
9,

58
8,

51
1

   
   

14
4,

66
3,

75
8

   
   

   
14

8,
14

0,
91

0
 

L
as

t 
10

 F
is

ca
l Y

ea
rs

S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
R

ev
en

u
es

, E
xp

en
se

s 
&

 C
h

an
g

es
 in

 F
u

n
d

 N
et

 P
o

si
ti

o
n

P
ea

ce
 R

iv
er

 M
an

so
ta

 R
eg

io
n

al
 W

at
er

 S
u

p
p

ly
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty

67



F
is

ca
l 

Y
ea

r
C

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 

F
u

n
d

s

R
en

ew
al

 &
 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
F

u
n

d
s

R
at

e 
S

ta
b

ili
za

ti
o

n
 

F
u

n
d

s

D
eb

t 
S

in
ki

n
g

 
F

u
n

d
O

p
er

at
io

n
s 

R
es

er
ve

T
o

ta
l

20
23

8,
75

6,
05

7
$ 

   
2,

68
4,

80
6

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

23
1,

19
4

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

08
4,

37
7

$ 
   

  
14

,7
56

,4
35

$ 
   

 
20

22
3,

27
4,

34
5

$ 
   

2,
79

9,
21

5
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
12

8,
10

1
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
83

8,
49

8
$ 

   
  

10
,0

40
,1

58
$ 

   
 

20
21

1,
64

6,
62

8
$ 

   
2,

55
7,

07
5

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

11
0,

13
6

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

75
0,

25
3

$ 
   

  
8,

06
4,

09
2

$ 
   

   
20

20
1,

40
5,

52
7

$ 
   

2,
78

4,
23

1
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
10

6,
85

5
$ 

   
  

1,
85

5,
63

7
$ 

   
  

1,
68

1,
66

7
$ 

   
  

9,
83

3,
91

6
$ 

   
   

20
19

5,
01

9,
75

2
$ 

   
2,

52
5,

90
7

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

08
2,

15
9

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

62
6,

20
0

$ 
   

  
11

,2
54

,0
18

$ 
   

 
20

18
6,

57
8,

28
6

$ 
   

2,
52

2,
35

6
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
03

0,
33

6
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

9,
45

0,
60

2
$ 

   
  

20
,5

81
,5

80
$ 

   
 

20
17

6,
13

8,
79

0
$ 

   
2,

80
1,

98
2

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

99
2,

13
4

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
8,

31
7,

43
0

$ 
   

  
19

,2
50

,3
36

$ 
   

 
20

16
6,

76
1,

10
0

$ 
   

2,
57

1,
22

8
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
97

0,
72

9
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

8,
23

7,
02

4
$ 

   
  

19
,5

40
,0

81
$ 

   
 

20
15

7,
77

5,
19

7
$ 

   
2,

99
3,

12
7

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

96
0,

08
0

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
8,

17
7,

88
6

$ 
   

  
20

,9
06

,2
90

$ 
   

 
20

14
9,

95
4,

97
7

$ 
   

2,
23

0,
91

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

1,
95

1,
55

4
$ 

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

8,
14

0,
58

1
$ 

   
  

22
,2

78
,0

22
$ 

   
 

P
ea

ce
 R

iv
er

 M
an

as
o

ta
 R

eg
io

n
al

 W
at

er
 S

u
p

p
ly

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
R

es
tr

ic
te

d
 A

ss
et

s
L

as
t 

10
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

rs

68



20
23

20
22

20
21

20
20

20
19

20
18

20
17

20
16

20
15

20
14

C
h

ar
lo

tt
e 

C
o

u
n

ty
12

.2
4

11
.7

9
11

.3
9

11
.0

8
10

.4
5

10
.4

6
11

.2
8

10
.3

9
10

.4
3

10
.4

0
D

eS
o

to
 C

o
u

n
ty

0.
74

0.
69

0.
69

0.
54

0.
59

0.
61

0.
91

0.
67

0.
72

0.
82

S
ar

as
o

ta
 C

o
u

n
ty

16
.5

2
13

.7
8

14
.2

4
15

.5
2

12
.7

2
12

.4
7

12
.9

9
13

.5
2

12
.8

5
12

.5
1

C
it

y 
o

f 
N

o
rt

h
 P

o
rt

1.
39

2.
57

2.
30

1.
71

2.
00

0.
94

1.
17

1.
36

1.
58

1.
49

30
.9

0
28

.8
4

28
.6

2
28

.8
5

25
.7

5
24

.4
8

26
.3

4
25

.9
3

25
.5

7
25

.2
1

L
as

t 
10

 F
is

ca
l Y

ea
rs

P
ea

ce
 R

iv
er

 M
an

so
ta

 R
eg

io
n

al
 W

at
er

 S
u

p
p

ly
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
W

at
er

 S
al

es
 b

y 
C

u
st

o
m

er
 (

A
ve

ra
g

e 
M

ill
io

n
s 

o
f 

G
al

lo
n

s 
p

er
 D

ay
)

69



20
23

20
22

20
21

20
20

20
19

   
   

   
20

18
   

   
   

20
17

   
   

  2
01

6
   

   
   

20
15

   
   

 2
01

4
C

h
ar

lo
tt

e 
C

o
u

n
ty

12
,5

25
,0

19
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
12

,8
14

,1
19

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

12
,8

49
,8

55
$ 

   
   

   
 

12
,2

98
,4

09
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
12

,1
35

,5
35

$ 
   

 
12

,0
23

,4
23

$ 
   

   
 

11
,9

23
,4

05
$ 

   
   

 
11

,6
83

,6
94

$ 
   

   
 

11
,7

42
,7

17
$ 

   
   

 
11

,3
16

,0
97

$ 
   

   
 

D
eS

o
to

 C
o

u
n

ty
86

9,
37

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

79
3,

78
3

70
7,

89
1

64
4,

39
6

65
7,

88
5

65
7,

53
3

72
7,

91
4

65
7,

62
3

68
1,

26
3

70
2,

73
2

S
ar

as
o

ta
 C

o
u

n
ty

20
,9

55
,2

90
   

   
   

   
   

18
,0

52
,5

14
16

,2
88

,7
82

16
,1

73
,5

21
15

,4
26

,7
35

15
,1

94
,2

77
15

,1
46

,1
30

15
,1

37
,2

68
14

,4
60

,2
02

14
,5

32
,5

53
C

it
y 

o
f 

N
o

rt
h

 P
o

rt
2,

47
1,

49
2

   
   

   
   

   
  

3,
09

2,
93

9
3,

05
4,

96
6

2,
80

5,
97

6
2,

90
5,

34
7

2,
59

1,
99

8
2,

59
3,

34
9

2,
63

1,
90

5
2,

59
0,

73
9

2,
58

3,
91

8
O

th
er

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

19
,1

17
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

36
,8

21
,1

76
$ 

   
   

   
 

34
,7

53
,3

56
$ 

   
   

   
 

32
,9

01
,4

94
$ 

   
   

 
31

,9
41

,4
19

$ 
   

   
   

 
31

,1
25

,5
01

$ 
 

30
,4

67
,2

31
$ 

   
 

30
,3

90
,7

98
$ 

   
  

30
,1

10
,4

90
$ 

   
  

29
,4

74
,9

21
$ 

   
  

29
,1

35
,3

01
$ 

   
  

P
ea

ce
 R

iv
er

 M
an

so
ta

 R
eg

io
n

al
 W

at
er

 S
u

p
p

ly
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
W

at
er

 S
al

es
 b

y 
C

u
st

o
m

er
 

L
as

t 
10

 F
is

ca
l Y

ea
rs

70



F
Y

20
05

A
20

05
B

20
08

 B
A

N
20

10
A

20
10

B
20

14
A

20
14

B
20

15
20

19
20

20
L

in
e 

o
f 

C
re

d
it

T
o

ta
l

20
23

61
,1

91
,1

16
   

  
12

,1
08

,3
86

   
1,

12
0,

00
0

   
   

 
52

,1
13

,2
42

   
  

19
,7

23
,0

00
   

   
14

6,
25

5,
74

5
   

20
22

61
,6

30
,7

93
   

  
14

,2
53

,0
28

   
1,

32
0,

00
0

   
   

 
55

,4
39

,3
15

   
  

2,
50

0,
00

0
   

   
  

13
5,

14
3,

13
6

   
20

21
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
62

,0
70

,4
69

   
  

16
,3

12
,6

69
   

1,
51

5,
00

0
   

   
 

58
,6

50
,3

88
   

  
2,

50
0,

00
0

   
   

  
14

1,
04

8,
52

7
   

20
20

- 
- 

- 
12

,9
33

,1
67

 
29

,5
55

,0
00

   
   

   
21

,6
15

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
62

,5
10

,1
45

   
  

18
,2

82
,3

11
   

1,
70

5,
00

0
   

   
 

3,
50

0,
00

0
   

   
  

15
0,

10
0,

62
3

   
20

19
- 

- 
- 

12
,9

21
,0

00
 

29
,5

55
,0

00
   

   
   

22
,7

80
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

62
,9

49
,8

22
   

  
20

,1
66

,9
52

   
1,

88
5,

00
0

   
   

 
- 

15
0,

25
7,

77
4

   
20

18
- 

-
-

12
,9

08
,8

33
29

,5
55

,0
00

   
   

   
23

,9
15

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
63

,3
89

,4
98

   
  

21
,9

76
,5

94
   

-
- 

15
1,

74
4,

92
5

   
20

17
- 

-
-

12
,8

96
,6

67
29

,5
55

,0
00

   
   

   
25

,0
20

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
63

,8
29

,1
74

   
  

23
,7

16
,2

35
   

-
- 

15
5,

01
7,

07
6

   
20

16
- 

-
-

12
,8

84
,5

00
29

,5
55

,0
00

   
   

   
26

,1
00

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
64

,2
68

,8
51

   
  

25
,3

80
,8

76
   

-
- 

15
8,

18
9,

22
7

   
20

15
- 

-
-

12
,8

72
,3

33
29

,5
55

,0
00

   
   

   
27

,1
55

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
64

,7
08

,5
27

   
  

26
,9

80
,5

18
   

-
- 

16
1,

27
1,

37
8

   
20

14
90

,7
08

,3
11

   
   

   
28

,4
76

,8
67

   
   

   
 

-
12

,8
60

,1
67

29
,5

55
,0

00
   

   
   

- 
- 

-
-

- 
16

1,
60

0,
34

5
   

20
13

91
,5

88
,4

53
   

   
   

29
,9

37
,4

78
   

   
   

 
-

12
,8

48
,0

00
29

,5
55

,0
00

   
   

   
- 

- 
-

-
- 

16
3,

92
8,

93
1

   

P
ea

ce
 R

iv
er

 M
an

as
o

ta
 R

eg
io

n
al

 W
at

er
 S

u
p

p
ly

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
L

o
n

g
 T

er
m

 D
eb

t 
b

y 
Is

su
an

ce
, N

et
 o

f 
U

n
am

o
rt

iz
ed

 P
re

m
iu

m
s 

an
d

 D
is

co
u

n
ts

L
as

t 
10

 F
is

ca
l Y

ea
rs

71



20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

G
ro

ss
 R

ev
en

u
e s

W
at

er
 S

al
es

29
,1

35
,3

01
$ 

   
   

29
,4

74
,9

21
$ 

   
   

30
,1

10
,4

90
$ 

  
30

,3
90

,7
98

$ 
  

30
,4

67
,2

31
$ 

  
31

,1
25

,1
03

$ 
  

31
,9

41
,4

19
$ 

  
32

,9
01

,4
94

$ 
  

34
,7

53
,3

56
$ 

   
  

36
,8

21
,1

76
$ 

   
R

en
ew

al
 &

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t R
ev

en
ue

1,
20

0,
00

0
In

te
re

st
54

,6
62

 
11

9,
46

0
 

15
6,

74
4

   
   

   
 

26
4,

13
0

   
   

   
 

44
7,

34
8

   
   

   
 

67
5,

60
3

   
   

   
 

34
1,

22
5

   
   

   
32

,9
49

   
   

   
  

 
22

2,
39

6
 

1,
23

1,
89

8
 

Fe
de

ra
l S

ub
si

dy
 In

te
re

st
 (2

01
0B

 B
on

d 
Is

su
e)(1

)
57

6,
14

3
 

57
6,

56
5

 
57

8,
62

6
   

   
   

 
57

8,
00

6
   

   
   

 
57

9,
86

8
   

   
   

 
- 

- 
- 

- 
G

ro
ss

 R
ev

en
ue

 T
ra

ns
fe

r (
R

SF
)

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
- 

- 
O

th
er

(2
)

19
,1

37
 

27
,1

31
 

21
,9

93
   

   
   

  
 

27
,0

18
   

   
   

  
 

37
,3

54
   

   
   

  
 

13
1,

49
9

   
   

   
 

65
2,

18
3

   
   

   
2,

00
1,

01
5

   
   

 
34

7,
40

0
 

2,
24

0,
01

4
 

   
To

ta
l G

ro
ss

 R
ev

en
ue

s
30

,9
85

,2
43

$ 
   

  
 

30
,1

98
,0

77
$ 

   
  

 
30

,8
67

,8
53

$ 
  

31
,2

59
,9

52
$ 

  
31

,5
31

,8
01

$ 
  

31
,9

32
,2

0
5

$ 
  

32
,9

34
,8

27
$ 

  
34

,9
35

,4
58

$ 
  

35
,3

23
,1

52
$ 

   
  

40
,2

93
,0

87
$ 

  
 

O
p

er
at

io
n

 a
n

d
 M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 E
xp

en
se

s
C

os
t o

f S
al

es
 a

nd
 S

er
vi

ce
s

13
,8

19
,8

34
$ 

   
   

14
,3

31
,8

60
$ 

   
   

13
,5

74
,2

50
$ 

  
14

,2
00

,7
60

$ 
  

15
,0

02
,1

10
$ 

  
16

,4
15

,6
82

$ 
  

16
,8

82
,0

50
$ 

  
17

,6
67

,2
01

$ 
  

19
,6

67
,1

19
$ 

   
  

23
,7

23
,3

24
$ 

   
Ad

m
in

is
tra

tio
n

48
9,

97
2

 
56

8,
40

0
 

60
2,

46
6

   
   

   
 

62
7,

03
8

   
   

   
 

68
3,

72
3

   
   

   
 

74
3,

90
1

   
   

   
 

46
6,

51
1

   
   

   
50

2,
56

6
   

   
   

 
50

3,
22

8
 

46
6,

33
3

 
  T

ot
al

 O
pe

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 E

xp
en

se
s

14
,3

09
,8

0 6
$ 

   
  

 
14

,9
00

,2
60

$ 
   

  
 

14
,1

76
,7

16
$ 

  
14

,8
27

,7
98

$ 
  

15
,6

85
,8

33
$ 

  
17

,1
59

,5
83

$ 
  

17
,3

48
,5

61
$ 

  
18

,1
69

,7
67

$ 
  

20
,1

70
,3

47
$ 

   
  

24
,1

89
,6

57
$ 

  
 

N
et

 R
ev

en
ue

s 
A

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
16

,6
75

,4
37

$ 
   

   
15

,2
97

,8
17

$ 
   

   
16

,6
91

,1
37

$ 
  

16
,4

32
,1

54
$ 

  
15

,8
45

,9
68

$ 
  

14
,7

72
,6

22
$ 

  
15

,5
86

,2
66

$ 
  

16
,7

65
,6

91
$ 

  
15

,1
52

,8
05

$ 
   

  
16

,1
03

,4
31

$ 
   

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 B
on

ds
 D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
Pr

in
ci

pa
l

2,
14

0,
00

0
   

   
   

  
2,

00
5,

00
0

 
2,

39
5,

00
0

   
   

 
2,

48
5,

00
0

   
   

 
2,

58
5,

00
0

   
   

 
2,

68
5,

00
0

   
   

 
2,

79
0,

00
0

   
   

2,
64

0,
00

0
   

   
 

4,
61

5,
00

0
 

4,
81

5,
00

0
 

In
te

re
st

(1
)

8,
30

7,
58

5
   

   
   

  
7,

23
2,

17
5

 
6,

59
8,

33
0

   
   

 
6,

50
4,

53
3

   
   

 
6,

40
6,

85
1

   
   

 
6,

27
9,

75
1

   
   

 
6,

23
4,

31
2

   
   

5,
48

7,
71

9
   

   
 

5,
51

7,
45

0
 

5,
31

4,
85

0
 

To
ta

l D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

 (3
)

10
,4

47
,5

85
$ 

   
   

9,
23

7,
17

5
$ 

   
   

 
8,

99
3,

33
0

$ 
   

 
8,

98
9,

53
3

$ 
   

 
8,

99
1,

85
1

$ 
   

 
8,

96
4,

75
1

$ 
   

 
9,

02
4,

31
2

$ 
   

8,
12

7,
71

9
$ 

   
 

10
,1

32
,4

50
$ 

   
  

10
,1

29
,8

50
$ 

   

D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

 C
ov

er
ag

e 
 (1

.1
5x

 re
qu

ire
d)

1.
60

1.
66

1.
86

1.
83

1.
76

1.
65

1.
73

2.
06

1.
50

1.
59

R
ev

en
u

es
 A

va
ila

b
le

 A
ft

er
 S

en
io

r 
L

ie
n

 D
eb

t 
S

er
vi

ce
6,

22
7,

85
2

   
   

   
  

6,
06

0,
64

2
 

7,
69

7,
80

7
   

   
 

7,
44

2,
62

1
   

   
 

6,
85

4,
11

7
   

   
 

5,
80

7,
87

1
   

   
 

6,
56

1,
95

4
   

   
8,

63
7,

97
2

   
   

 
5,

02
0,

35
5

 
5,

97
3,

58
1

 

Su
bo

rd
in

at
e 

In
de

bt
ed

ne
ss

 D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

Pr
in

ci
pa

l
11

5,
00

0
   

   
   

 
18

0,
00

0
   

   
   

19
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

19
5,

00
0

 
20

0,
00

0
 

In
te

re
st

(1
)

42
,5

85
   

   
   

  
 

63
,3

74
   

   
   

  
57

,3
22

   
   

   
  

 
76

,0
52

 
45

2,
65

1
 

To
ta

l S
ub

or
di

na
te

 In
de

bt
ed

ne
ss

 D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

 (3
)

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
15

7,
58

5
$ 

   
   

 
24

3,
37

4
$ 

   
   

24
7,

32
2

$ 
   

   
 

27
1,

05
2

$ 
   

   
   

65
2,

65
1

$ 
   

   
 

To
ta

l D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

10
,4

47
,5

8
5

$ 
   

  
 

9,
23

7,
17

5
$ 

   
   

 
8,

99
3,

33
0

$ 
   

 
8,

98
9,

53
3

$ 
   

 
8,

99
1,

85
1

$ 
   

 
9,

12
2,

33
6

$ 
   

 
9,

26
7,

68
6

$ 
  

 
8,

37
5,

04
1

$ 
   

 
10

,4
03

,5
02

$ 
   

  
10

,7
82

,5
01

$ 
  

 

R
ev

en
u

es
 A

va
ila

b
le

 A
ft

er
 T

o
ta

l D
eb

t 
S

er
vi

c e
6,

22
7,

85
2

$ 
   

   
  

6,
06

0,
64

2
$ 

   
   

 
7,

69
7,

80
7

$ 
   

 
7,

44
2,

62
1

$ 
   

 
6,

85
4,

11
7

$ 
   

 
5,

65
0,

28
6

$ 
   

 
6,

31
8,

58
0

$ 
   

8,
39

0,
65

0
$ 

   
 

4,
74

9,
30

3
$ 

   
   

5,
32

0,
93

0
$ 

   
  

To
ta

l D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

 C
ov

er
ag

e 
 (1

.1
5x

 re
qu

ire
d)

1.
60

1.
66

1.
86

1.
83

1.
76

1.
62

1.
68

2.
00

1.
46

1.
49

C
ap

it
al

 C
o

st
 R

ei
m

b
 C

h
g

 (
C

h
ar

 C
o

 P
m

t)
1,

97
1,

55
7

   
   

   
  

1,
97

1,
55

7
 

1,
97

1,
55

7
   

   
 

1,
97

1,
55

7
   

   
 

1,
97

1,
55

7
   

   
 

1,
97

1,
55

7
   

   
 

1,
97

1,
55

7
   

   
1,

97
1,

55
7

   
   

 
- 

- 
D

eS
o

to
 C

o
u

n
ty

 P
ay

m
en

t
75

0,
00

0
 

75
0,

00
0

 
79

6,
00

0
   

   
   

 
79

6,
00

0
   

   
   

 
79

6,
00

0
   

   
   

 
79

6,
00

0
   

   
   

 
79

6,
00

0
   

   
   

79
6,

00
0

   
   

   
 

79
6,

00
0

 
79

6,
00

0
 

D
u

e 
C

h
ar

lo
tt

e 
C

o
. f

o
r 

N
o

rt
h

 P
o

rt
 R

es
er

ve
 A

llo
ca

ti
o

n
4,

78
1

 
4,

78
1

 
4,

78
1

 
4,

78
1

 
4,

78
1

 
4,

78
1

 
4,

78
1

 
4,

78
1

 
- 

- 
To

ta
l C

ou
nt

y 
Pa

ym
en

ts
2,

72
6,

33
8

$ 
   

   
  

2,
72

6,
33

8
$ 

   
   

 
2,

77
2,

33
8

$ 
   

 
2,

77
2,

33
8

$ 
   

 
2,

77
2,

33
8

$ 
   

 
2,

77
2,

33
8

$ 
   

 
2,

77
2,

33
8

$ 
   

2,
77

2,
33

8
$ 

   
 

79
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

79
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
 

C
o

u
n

ty
 D

eb
t 

S
er

vi
ce

 C
o

ve
ra

g
e 

 (
1.

00
x 

re
q

) 
2.

28
2.

22
2.

78
2.

68
2.

47
2.

04
2.

28
3.

03
5.

97
6.

68

(2
)S

W
FW

M
D

/E
PA

 fu
nd

s 
ar

e 
no

t a
pp

lic
ab

le
 to

 d
eb

t s
er

vi
ce

 c
ov

er
ag

e.

(1
)G

ro
ss

 R
ev

en
ue

s 
in

cl
ud

e 
Fe

de
ra

l D
ire

ct
 P

ay
m

en
ts

 in
 th

e 
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r e
nd

ed
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 3
0,

 2
01

5 
on

ly
. D

ue
 to

 th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 a
m

en
dm

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
Bo

nd
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e

as
 o

f D
ec

em
be

r 2
9,

 2
01

4,
 F

ed
er

al
 D

ire
ct

 P
ay

m
en

ts
 a

re
 e

xc
lu

de
d 

fro
m

 G
ro

ss
 R

ev
en

ue
s 

in
 fi

sc
al

 y
ea

rs
 e

nd
ed

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 3

0,
 2

01
6 

th
ro

ug
h 

an
d 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
20

21
 a

nd
 in

st
ea

d 
ar

e

(3
)P

rin
ci

pa
l/I

nt
er

es
t d

ue
 o

n 
O

ct
ob

er
 1

 w
as

 p
ai

d 
on

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 3

0 
of

 p
rio

r f
is

ca
l y

ea
r r

ef
le

ct
in

g 
co

ns
er

va
tiv

e 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
w

he
n 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 o

f t
he

 B
on

d 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n.

P
ea

ce
 R

iv
er

 M
an

as
o

ta
 R

eg
io

n
al

 W
at

er
 S

u
p

p
ly

 A
u

th
o

ri
t y

D
eb

t 
S

er
vi

ce
 C

o
ve

ra
g

e 
L

as
t 

10
 F

is
ca

l Y
ea

rs

72



F
Y

M
ile

s 
o

f 
T

ra
n

sm
is

si
o

n
 

P
ip

el
in

es

F
ac

ili
ty

 
T

re
at

m
en

t 
C

ap
ac

it
y 

(M
G

D
)

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
A

S
R

 
W

el
ls

A
S

R
 W

el
l C

ap
ac

it
y 

(B
ill

io
n

 G
al

lo
n

s)

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
W

at
er

 S
u

p
p

ly
 

R
es

er
vo

ir
s

W
at

er
 S

u
p

p
ly

 
R

es
er

vo
ir

 C
ap

ac
it

y 
(B

ill
io

n
 G

al
lo

n
s)

20
23

80
51

21
6

2
6.

5
20

22
80

51
21

6
2

6.
5

20
21

80
51

21
6

2
6.

5
20

20
67

51
21

6
2

6.
5

20
19

67
51

21
6

2
6.

5
20

18
67

51
21

6
2

6.
5

20
17

67
51

21
6

2
6.

5
20

16
67

51
21

6
2

6.
5

20
15

67
48

21
6

2
6.

5
20

14
67

48
21

6
2

6.
5

P
ea

ce
 R

iv
er

 M
an

as
o

ta
 R

eg
io

n
al

 W
at

er
 S

u
p

p
ly

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

O
p

er
at

in
g

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

L
as

t 
10

 F
is

ca
l Y

ea
rs

73



F
Y

A
n

n
u

al
 A

ve
ra

g
e 

C
o

n
tr

ac
te

d
 

D
el

iv
er

y 
(M

G
D

)
P

ea
k 

M
o

n
th

ly
 

(M
G

D
)

M
ax

 D
ay

 F
lo

w
 

(M
G

D
)

20
23

34
.7

41
.6

5
48

.6
20

22
34

.7
41

.6
5

48
.6

20
21

34
.7

41
.6

5
48

.6
20

20
34

.7
41

.6
5

48
.6

20
19

34
.7

41
.6

5
48

.6
20

18
34

.7
41

.6
5

48
.6

20
17

34
.7

41
.6

5
48

.6
20

16
37

.7
41

.6
5

48
.6

20
15

32
.7

38
.1

45
.8

20
14

32
.7

38
.1

45
.8

L
as

t 
10

 F
is

ca
l Y

ea
rs

P
ea

ce
 R

iv
er

 M
an

as
o

ta
 R

eg
io

n
al

 W
at

er
 S

u
p

p
ly

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
C

o
n

tr
ac

te
d

 D
el

iv
er

y 
A

m
o

u
n

ts

74



FY
County 

Population¹
Per Capita 

Personal Income²
Single Family 

Building Permits³
Unemployment 

Rate⁴

2023               204,126 N/A N/A 3.80%
2022               196,742 53,227$                 5,676                         3.00%
2021               190,570 51,677$                                           2,683 4.90%
2020               187,904 45,606$                                           2,381 5.50%
2019               181,770 42,793$                                           1,414 3.50%
2018 180,071             41,564$                 1,578                         4.10%
2017 178,465             40,557$                 1,251                         4.60%
2016 173,115             38,473$                 657                            5.20%
2015 167,141             37,745$                 947                            5.90%
2014 164,467             36,768$                 610                            6.00%

FY
County 

Population¹
Per Capita 

Personal Income²
Single Family 

Building Permits³
Unemployment 

Rate⁴

2023                 34,974 N/A N/A 3.50%
2022                 34,748 32,893$                 252                            2.60%
2021                 34,031 32,873$                 123 3.80%
2020                 37,082 27,863$                 102 3.70%
2019                 36,065 26,128$                 127 3.40%
2018 35,520               23,610$                 71 4.30%
2017 35,621               24,040$                 79                              4.40%
2016 35,141               23,603$                 71                              5.30%
2015 34,777               23,759$                 118                            5.80%
2014 34,426               22,667$                 112                            7.10%
2013 34,367               21,244$                 117                            8.20%

FY
County 

Population¹
Per Capita 

Personal Income²
Single Family 

Building Permits³
Unemployment 

Rate⁴

2023               439,566 N/A N/A 3.40%
2022               421,768 59,691$                 8,457                         2.60%
2021               411,209 59,152$                                           5,436 4.50%
2020 398,503             52,395$                 4,280                         5.20%
2019 387,414             48,618$                 2,374                         3.00%
2018 377,826             47,378$                 2,689                         3.60%
2017 368,782             45,880$                 2,917                         3.30%
2016 356,133             44,800$                 2,957                         4.70%
2015 341,405             43,800$                 2,586                         5.10%
2014 337,546             46,700$                 2,318                         6.10%
2013 333,687             40,500$                 2,284                         7.20%

FY
County 

Population¹
Per Capita 

Personal Income²
Single Family 

Building Permits³
Unemployment 

Rate⁴

2023               464,223 N/A N/A 3.30%
2022               452,378 84,035$                 7,323                         2.50%
2021               441,508 78,815$                                           4,954 4.40%
2020 438,816             70,884$                 4,153                         5.20%
2019 426,275             66,878$                 2,457                         2.80%
2018 417,442             64,868$                 2,264                         3.50%
2017 407,260             61,523$                 3,072                         3.80%
2016 399,538             59,598$                 2,857                         4.50%
2015 392,090             58,427$                 2,406                         5.10%
2014 387,140             55,139$                 1,856                         5.80%
2013 385,292             50,208$                 1,495                         7.00%

N/A = Data not available at the time of publication

Sources: (1) Bureau of Economic and Business Research
(2) Florida Office of Economic & Demographic Research
(3) State of the Cities Data Systems (SOCDS)
(4) U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

Sarasota County

Peace River Mansota Regional Water Supply Authority
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last 10 Fiscal Years

Charlotte County

DeSoto County

Manatee County

75



76



 

 

 

OTHER REPORTS 

77



78



 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN 

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
Board of Directors 
Peace River Manasota Regional 
 Water Supply Authority 
Lakewood Ranch, Florida 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial statements of Peace River Manasota Regional 
Water Supply Authority (the Authority) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2023, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements, 
and have issued our report thereon dated __________, 2024. 
 
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.  
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements, on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Authority’s 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 
 
 
 

DRAFT

79



Board of Directors 
Peace River Manasota Regional 
 Water Supply Authority 
Lakewood Ranch, Florida 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN 

AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements, non-compliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
financial statements.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed 
no instances of non-compliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal 
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

__________ 2024 
Sarasota, Florida 

DRAFT

80



 

 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
WITH FLORIDA STATUTE SECTION 218.415 – INVESTMENTS OF PUBLIC FUNDS 

 
 
Board of Directors 
Peace River Manasota Regional 
 Water Supply Authority 
Lakewood Ranch, Florida 
  
We have examined Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority’s (the Authority’s) compliance 
with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023.  Management is 
responsible for the Authority’s compliance with those requirements.  Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on the Authority’s compliance based on our examination. 
 
Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
examination to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Authority complied, in all material respects, 
with the requirements referenced above.  An examination involves performing procedures to obtain 
evidence about whether the Authority complied with the specified requirements.  The nature, timing, and 
extent of the procedures selected depend on our judgment, including an assessment of the risks of material 
non-compliance, whether due to fraud or error.  We believe that the evidence we obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
We are required to be independent and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with relevant 
ethical requirements relating to the engagement. 
 
Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the Authority’s compliance with specified 
requirements. 
 
In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements 
during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Florida Auditor General, and the Authority’s 
Board of Directors and applicable management, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone 
other than these specified parties. 
 
 
 
____________ 2024 
Sarasota, Florida 
 
 

DRAFT

81



 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL 
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED  

BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Peace River Manasota Regional 
 Water Supply Authority 
Lakewood Ranch, Florida 
 
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 
 
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
We have audited Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority’s (the Authority) compliance 
with the types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance 
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Authority’s major federal programs 
for the year ended September 30, 2023.  The Authority’s major federal programs are identified in the 
summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
 
In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the 
year ended September 30, 2023.  
 
Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  Our responsibilities under those standards 
and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
Compliance section of our report.  
 
We are required to be independent of the Authority and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit.  We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program.  Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Authority’s compliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above.  
 
Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of 
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the 
Authority’s federal programs. 
 
 

DRAFT

82



 

 

Board of Directors 
Peace River Manasota Regional 
 Water Supply Authority 
Lakewood Ranch, Florida 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL 
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED  

BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material non-compliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion 
on the Authority’s compliance based on our audit.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is 
not absolute assurance and, therefore, is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will 
always detect a material non-compliance when it exists.  The risk of not detecting material non-compliance 
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  Non-compliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report 
on compliance about the Authority’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a 
whole. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing 
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we: 
 
■ Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 
■ Identify and assess the risks of material non-compliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and 

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.  Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, 
evidence regarding the Authority’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and 
performing such other audit procedures as we conside necessary in the circumstances. 

 
■ Obtain an understanding of the Authority’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in 

order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on 
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over compliance.  
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal 
control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, non-compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material non-compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in internal control 
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with 
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

DRAFT

83



 

 

Board of Directors 
Peace River Manasota Regional 
 Water Supply Authority 
Lakewood Ranch, Florida 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL 
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED  

BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 
 
 
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies 
in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.  However, 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not 
identified.  
 
Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing any opinion on the effectiveness of internal control 
over compliance.  Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
_________ 2024 
Sarasota, Florida 
  

DRAFT

84



Assistance
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Listing Award Contract/

Grantor/Program Title Number Amount Grant Number Expenditures

U. S. DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY
Passed Through Florida Department of Environmental Protection:

Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery 21.027 7,250,000$ FRP001 4,586,045$      

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters) 97.036 100,069$    711544 100,069           
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared Disasters) 97.036 9,905$        715055 9,905               

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 109,974           

 Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 4,696,019$      

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY

DRAFT

85



 

 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 
 
Note 1 - Basis of Presentation 
 
The accounting policies and presentation of the accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards 
(the schedule) of Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority (the Authority) have been 
designed to conform with generally accepted accounting principles, including reporting and compliance 
requirements of the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).  The 
schedule is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. 
 
Note 2 - Reporting Entity 
 
The Authority’s reporting entity is defined in Note 1 to the Authority’s basic financial statements for the 
year ended September 30, 2023.  All federal awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as 
federal awards passed through other governmental agencies, are included in this schedule. 
 
Note 3 - Contingencies 
 
Grant monies received and disbursed by the Authority are for specific purposes and are subject to review 
by the grantor agencies.  Such audits may result in requests for reimbursement due to the disallowance of 
expenditures.  Based upon prior experience, the Authority does not believe that such disallowances, if any, 
would have a material effect on the financial position of the Authority. 
 
Note 4 - Indirect Costs 
 
The Authority did not elect to use the 10% de minimis cost rate in 2023 as covered in 2 CFR 200.414. 
 
 

DRAFT

86



 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 

Financial Statements 

Type of Auditor’s Report Issued: Unmodified 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting: 
Material weakness(es) identified? No 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? No 

Non-compliance material to financial statements noted? No 

Federal Awards  

Internal Control Over Major Programs and Projects: 
Material weakness(es) identified? No 
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? No 

Type of Auditor’s Report Issued on Compliance for 
Major Programs and Projects: Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with CFR 200.516(a)? No 

Identification of Major Federal Programs/State Projects: 

Federal Programs: 
■ U.S. Department of Treasury:

• Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery (Assistance Listing 21.027)

Dollar Threshold Used to Distinguish Between Type A and Type B: 

 Federal Programs: $750,000 

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee pursuant to the Uniform Guidance? No 

Findings and Questioned Costs for Major Federal Programs Required to be Reported Under 
Section .516(a) of the Uniform Guidance  

The audit disclosed no findings which are required to be reported under Section .516(a) of the Uniform 
Guidance. 

Prior Audit Findings 

There were no prior year audit findings. 

DRAFT

87



 

 

MANAGEMENT LETTER 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Peace River Manasota Regional 
 Water Supply Authority 
Lakewood Ranch, Florida 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the financial statements of Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority 
(the Authority) as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2023, and have issued our report thereon 
dated __________, 2024. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance); and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. 
 
Other Reporting Requirements 
We have issued our Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in Accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards; Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major 
Federal Program and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; Schedule of Findings and Questioned 
Costs; and Independent Accountant’s Report on an examination conducted in accordance with the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Professional Standards, AT-C Section 315, regarding 
compliance requirements in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General.  Disclosures in 
those reports and schedule, which are dated _________, 2024, should be considered in conjunction with 
this management letter. 
 
Prior Audit Findings 
Section 10.554(1)(i)l., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not corrective 
actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding financial audit 
report.  There were no findings or recommendations in the preceding financial audit report. 
 
Official Title and Legal Authority 
Section 10.554(l)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and legal 
authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in this 
management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.  The Authority was created by 
an inter-local agreement dated February 26, 1982.  There are no component units. 
 

DRAFT

88



 

 

Board of Directors 
Peace River Manasota Regional 
 Water Supply Authority 
Lakewood Ranch, Florida 
 

MANAGEMENT LETTER 
 
 
Financial Condition and Management 
Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply appropriate 
procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether or not the Authority met one or 
more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to identify the specific 
condition(s) met.  In connection with our audit, we determined that the Authority did not meet any of the 
conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes. 
 
Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.b. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial 
condition assessment procedures for the Authority.  It is management’s responsibility to monitor the 
Authority’s financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations 
made by management and review of financial information provided by same. 
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any recommendations 
to improve financial management.  In connection with our audit, we did not have any such 
recommendations. 
 
Specific Information 
The specific information below has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.  
As required by Section 218.39(3)(c), Florida Statutes, and Section 10.554(1)(i)6, Rules of the Auditor 
General, the Authority reported: 
 
a. The total number of district employees compensated in the last pay period of the district’s fiscal year 

as 52. 
 

b. The total number of independent contractors to whom non-employee compensation was paid in the last 
month of the district’s fiscal year as 0. 

 
c. All compensation earned by or awarded to employees, whether paid or accrued, regardless of 

contingency as $4,222,134. 
 
d. All compensation earned by or awarded to non-employee independent contractors, whether paid or 

accrued, regardless of contingency as $0. 
 

e. Each construction project with a total cost of at least $65,000 approved by the district that is scheduled 
to begin on or after October 1 of the fiscal year being reported, together with the total expenditures for 
such project as: 

 
Kiewit Water Facilities Florida $ 89,310 

 
f. A budget variance based on the budget adopted under Section 189.016(4), Florida Statutes, before the 

beginning of the fiscal year being reported if the Authority amends a final adopted budget under 
Section 189.016(6), Florida Statutes, as follows:  the Authority’s original budget totaled $78,327,527 
and was amended by the total amount of $23,627,562, for final budgeted expenditures of $101,955,089.  

 
 

DRAFT

89



Board of Directors 
Peace River Manasota Regional 
 Water Supply Authority 
Lakewood Ranch, Florida 

MANAGEMENT LETTER 

Additional Matters 
Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate non-compliance with 
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have occurred, 
that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but warrants the attention of those 
charged with governance.  In connection with our audit, we did not have any such findings. 

Purpose of this Letter 
Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing 
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor 
General, federal and other granting agencies and pass-through entities, including the Southwest Florida 
Water Management District, the Authority’s Board of Directors and applicable management, and is not 
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

We wish to take this opportunity to thank you and your staff for the cooperation and courtesies extended to 
us during the course of our audit.  Please let us know if you have any questions or comments concerning 
this letter, our accompanying reports, or other matters. 

_____________ 2024 
Sarasota, Florida 

DRAFT

90



91



PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 7, 2024 

REGULAR AGENDA 
ITEM 3 

FY 2025 Budget – Schedule and Considerations 
 

Presenter - Mike Coates, Executive Director 
 
Recommended Action -  Status Update. This item is presented for the Board’s 

information and no action is required. 
 
Staff will provide the schedule for the development and approval of the FY 2025 budget and preview 
potential changes from the approved 2024 budget. 
 
Budget Action – No action is required. 
 
Attachments: 
Presentation Materials 



1

FY 2025 BUDGET PREVIEW
February 7, 2024

• Feb    7 Board Presentation – Budget Preview

• Mar   6 Prof. Staff Meeting – Draft Budget Review

• Apr    3 Board Meeting – Adoption of Draft Budget

• May   1 Prof. Staff Meeting – Draft Budget Questions

• Jun     5 Board Meeting 

• Jul    10 Prof. Staff Meeting – Draft Budget Questions

• Aug    7 Board Meeting – Adoption of Final Budget

2

FY 2025 Budget Preview

Budget Milestones

1

2



2

Enterprise Fund

Administrative Facilities

Facilities O&M

Technical Services

Construction Services

Enterprise Fund Chart

FY 2025 Budget Preview

• Second Amended Interlocal
Agreement Creating the Peace River
Manasota Regional Water Supply
Authority (Amended 2005)

• Peace River Manasota Regional Water
Supply Authority Master Water Supply
Contract (Amended 2015)

• Resolution 2005-08 ‘Resolution
Setting Forth Rate Setting
Methodology’ (Oct. 2005)

• Utility System Revenue Bonds

– Series 2020

– Series 2015

– Series 2014B

• Budget Policies (Aug. 2020)

• 5-Year CIP and 20-Year CNA

• Consistent with 2021 Strategic Plan

Budget Documents

FY 2025 Budget Preview

3

4



3

FY 2025 Budget Preview

The Authority is contractually 
obligated to provide a reliable, safe 
and secure water supply to the region.

• MWSC water allocations [34.7 
MGD]

• Efficient and cost-effective 
operations 

• Appropriate investment to 
maintain infrastructure

• Plan for long term water demands

• Maintain financial stability/bond 
rating

• Maintain reasonable water rates

Budget Obligations

FY 2025 Budget Preview

• Board Adopts Annual Budget
– Public Hearing at Regular scheduled Board Meeting – August 7, 2024

– Adopts Water Rates and Fees by Resolution

• Rates, Fees and Charges Adopted by Resolution
– Water Rate

• Water charge to users (Charlotte, DeSoto, Sarasota and North Port)

– Member Fee

• Administrative fees to members (Charlotte, DeSoto, Manatee and 
Sarasota)

– Planning Assessment

• Cost for future planning (Charlotte, DeSoto, Manatee, Sarasota and North 
Port)

– Interconnect Water Charge

• Water charge to users not a Customer by MWSC

Budget/Rate Resolution

5

6



4

Water Rate is established by resolution of the Authority for 

the sale of water and comprised of two components:

Water Rate
Base Rate Charge

[Allocation]

Water Use 
Charge

[Actual Use]

Water Rate

FY 2025 Budget Preview

FY 2024 Budget 
Debt Service Component =  $1.07 / 1,000 gal. (average of all debt)
Common Benefit Projects = $0.14  / 1000 gal.
Fixed O&M Component  =    $1.43 / 1,000 gal. 
FY 2024 Total Base Rate  =    $2.64 / 1,000 gal.
FY 2024 Water Use Chg.  =    $1.09 / 1,000 gal.

FY 2025 Budget Preview

• Operations & Maintenance
– FY 2025 O&M Expenses

• Most fixed expenses projected to increase with rate of 
inflation

• Increase in Water Use rate due to increased power and 
chemical costs

– Three new FTE positions to achieve Strategic Plan goals and 
objectives

– Increase in Property Insurance Premiums

• Other Rate Related Expenditures
– Update R&R Contribution based on Sufficiency Study Results

– Replenish Disaster Recovery Reserve tapped for Hurricane Ian 
Repairs

Key Expenditures

7

8



5

FY 2025 Budget Preview

• Non-Rate Related Expenditures

– Member Contributions

– Management & Planning Costs

– CIP Projects

• Surface Water System 

Expansion Project  

• Brackish Groundwater Supply 

• Regional Loop 3C Project

• Regional Loop 2B Project

• System-Wide Benefit Projects

– Partially Treated Water ASR 

Key Expenditures

1. SW System 
Expansion

2. Brackish GW 
Supply

3. Partially 
Treated 
Water ASR

Phase 2B 
Pipeline Project

Phase 3C 
Pipeline Project

FY 2025 Budget Preview
FY 2025 Expenditure Considerations

9

10



6

FY 2025 Budget Preview

– Grants
• SWFWMD Grant Funds

• State of Florida Grant Funds

– Borrowing
• Municipal Bonds

• Bank Note

• Federal Funds (WIFIA)

• Current $100M LOC until positioned for Bond sales

• Continue Use of Line-of-Credit for System-Wide 
Benefit Projects

Potential Funding Sources for CIP Projects

QUESTIONS - COMMENTS - DISCUSSION

12

11

12



PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 7, 2024 

GENERAL COUNSEL’S REPORT 

 

Presenter - Douglas Manson, General Counsel 

 

Recommended Action -  Status Update. This item is presented for the Board’s 

information and no action is required. 

 

 

1.  Update on PFAS settlement and case issues. 

2. Clarification for FRS on Executive Director compensation 





















PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 7, 2024 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

Presenter - Mike Coates, Executive Director 
 
Recommended Action -  Status Update. This item is presented for the Board’s 

information and no action is required. 
 



PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 7, 2024 

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
ITEM 1 

Recognition of Commissioner Bill Truex Service to the Authority 
 

Presenter - Chairman 
 
Recommended Action -  Motion to approve Resolution 2024-02 ‘Recognition of 

Commissioner Bill Truex for Service to the Region as a 
Member of the Peace River Manasota Regional Water 
Supply Authority Board of Directors’. 

 
The Authority wishes to express its gratitude to Commissioner Truex for his service to the Authority over 
the past two (2) years  
 
Attachments: 
Resolution 2024-02 



PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
 

Resolution 2024 – 02 
 

RECOGNITION OF COMMISSIONER BILL TRUEX 
FOR SERVICE TO THE REGION AS A MEMBER OF THE  

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 The Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority, created pursuant to Chapter 373, 
Florida Statutes, and interlocal agreement pursuant to Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, in lawful session and 
in regular order of business properly presented, finds that: 
 
 WHEREAS, Commissioner Truex was elected to the Charlotte County Commission in 2012 and 
reelected to a second and third term in 2016 and 2020 respectively; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Commissioner Truex was appointed by the Charlotte County Commission to 
represent the County on the Authority Board of Directors from 2021 through 2023; and 
 

WHEREAS, Commissioner Truex served as Vice-Chairman of the Authority Board of Directors 
in 2023; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Commissioner Truex furthered the creation of a regional water system to better serve 
the residents and businesses of Charlotte, DeSoto, Manatee and Sarasota counties; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Commissioner Truex served in a spirit of cooperation toward local, regional, state 
and federal agencies and the public. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply 
Authority does hereby express its appreciation to Commissioner Bill Truex for his outstanding contribution 
as a member of the Authority Board of Directors, his contributions toward development of a reliable, 
sustainable and affordable regional water supply system and his leadership on behalf of the citizens of the 
four-county region. 
 
 Done at Arcadia, Florida, this Seventh day of February 2024. 
 

Peace River Manasota 
Attest: Regional Water Supply Authority 

 

    
Mike Coates, Executive Director Chairman  
 

Approved as to Form: 
 

_________________________________ 
Douglas Manson, General Counsel for 
Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority 



PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 7, 2024 

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
ITEM 2 

Recognition of Commissioner George Kruse Service to the Authority 
 

Presenter - Chairman 
 
Recommended Action -  Motion to approve Resolution 2024-03 ‘Recognition of 

Commissioner George Kruse for Service to the Region as 
a Member of the Peace River Manasota Regional Water 
Supply Authority Board of Directors’. 

 
The Authority wishes to express its gratitude to Commissioner George Kruse for his service to the 
Authority over the past three (3) years.  
 
Attachments: 
Resolution 2024-03 



PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
 

Resolution 2024 – 03 
 

RECOGNITION OF COMMISSIONER GEORGE KRUSE 
FOR SERVICE TO THE REGION AS A MEMBER OF THE  

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 The Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority, created pursuant to Chapter 373, 
Florida Statutes, and interlocal agreement pursuant to Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, in lawful session and 
in regular order of business properly presented, finds that: 
 
 WHEREAS, Commissioner Kruse was elected to the Manatee County Commission in 2020; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Commissioner Kruse was appointed by the Manatee County to represent the County 
on the Authority Board of Directors from 2020 through 2023; and 
 

WHEREAS, Commissioner Kruse furthered the creation of a regional water system to better serve 
the residents and businesses of Charlotte, DeSoto, Manatee and Sarasota counties; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Commissioner Kruse served in a spirit of cooperation toward local, regional, state 
and federal agencies and the public. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply 
Authority does hereby express its appreciation to Commissioner George Kruse for his outstanding 
contribution as a member of the Authority Board of Directors, his contributions toward development of a 
reliable, sustainable and affordable regional water supply system and his leadership on behalf of the citizens 
of the four-county region. 
 
 Done at Arcadia, Florida, this Seventh day of February 2024. 
 

Peace River Manasota 
Attest: Regional Water Supply Authority 

 

    
Mike Coates, Executive Director Chairman  
 

 
Approved as to Form: 
 

_________________________________ 
Douglas Manson, General Counsel for 
Peace River Manasota Regional Water Supply Authority 



PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 7, 2024 
 
 

ROUTINE STATUS REPORTS  
ITEM 1 

Hydrologic Conditions Report 



 1

MEMORANDUM 
 
Project:  Hydrologic Conditions Report 

Date:   February 7, 2024 

TO:   Mike Coates, Executive Director 

Developed By:  Shalina Odegard, Water Resources & Planning Manager 
 

 
This memorandum summarizes rainfall, surface water conditions, and the Authority’s current 
water storage and supply conditions for the month of December, and the preceding 13-month 
period. 
 
Rainfall Conditions & Projections 
 
Table 1 summarizes rainfall conditions for the 13-month period from December 1, 2022, through 
December 31, 2023.  Rainfall in the Peace River Basin for the past 12-months totaled 41.74 inches, 
which is 10.56 inches below the long-term historical average of 52.30 inches.  Rainfall for the 
month of December 2023 totaled 2.08 inches, a value 0.18 inches above the historical monthly 
average of 1.90 inches for December. 
  
Table 1 (Peace River Basin Rainfall - Inches) 
 

Month Dec-
22 

Jan-
23 

Feb-
23 

Mar-
23 

Apr-
23 

May-
23 

Jun-
23 

Jul-
23 

Aug-
23 

Sep-
23 

Oct-
23 

Nov-
23 

Dec-
23 

12 Mo 
Total 

Historical 
Avg 
Rainfall1  

1.90 2.20 2.50 2.90 2.50 4.00 8.40 8.10 7.70 7.30 3.10 1.70 1.90 52.30 

Actual 
Rainfall2  

2.10 1.36 0.90 0.35 2.71 5.19 6.45 5.02 7.98 6.55 1.62 1.53 2.08 41.74 

Diff. 
Historical 
vs Actual 

0.20 -0.84 -1.60 -2.55 0.21 1.19 -1.95 -3.08 0.28 -0.75 -1.48 -0.17 0.18 -10.56 

 

1 Historical rainfall data are the long-term average of the Winter Haven, Bowling Green, and Joshua at Nocatee 
Rainfall Stations. 
 
2 Actual rainfall data are average values for the Winter Haven, Bowling Green, and Joshua at Nocatee Rainfall Stations. 
 
Figure 1 provides region-wide rainfall conditions as reported by SWFWMD for the 12-month 
period ending December 2023.  Data shown for the Authority’s 4-county service area indicate very 
dry to normal conditions for most of Sarasota, DeSoto, and Charlotte Counties and very dry to 
drier than normal conditions for most of Manatee County.  The overall inland Peace River Basin 
indicates very dry to normal conditions from Polk to DeSoto Counties over the last 12 months.   
 
NOAA projections for the next three months (Jan 2024 – Mar 2024) are for equal odds of above, 
near, or below normal temperatures and likely above normal rainfall for Southwest Florida.  The 



 2

NOAA/ENSO (El Nino/ La Nina) extended forecast indicates El Nino is expected to continue 
through the Northern Hemisphere winter, with a transition to ENSO-neutral favored during April 
– June 2024 (60% chance). 
 
Figure 1 (SWFWMD Rainfall Conditions Map) 
                                                                                                                                                                                    

  



 3

 
River Flow Conditions 
 
Figure 2 provides the locations of the three U.S. Geological Survey gauges that are used to regulate 
Authority withdrawals from the Peace River: 1) Peace River at Arcadia, 2) Horse Creek at Arcadia, 
and 3) Joshua Creek at Nocatee.  Flow conditions at these gauges are discussed below: 
 
The combined flow at the three gauges listed above decreased below the historical average in mid-
October 2023 and then increased above the historical average near the end of December 2023.  
Late December 2023, the combined flow decreased below the historical average and remained 
below until the end of December 2023.   Figure 3 provides a hydrograph of combined flows plotted 
against the historical average and the 130 cfs lower limit for withdrawals.  
 

Figure 2 (Peace River Basin Showing Selected Gauge Locations with ) 
 

 



 4

Figure 3 – HYDROGRAPH OF COMBINED FLOWS OF THREE STATIONS 
 
 



 5

River Withdrawals, Finished Water Production, & Demand (December 2022 – December 
2023) 
 
Figure 4 provides average daily river withdrawals for each of the last 13 months at the Peace River 
Facility in million gallons per day (MGD).  Average withdrawals for December 2023 (31.0 MGD) 
were 8.7 MGD lower than those that occurred in December 2022 (39.7 MGD).  
 
Figure 4 
 

 
  



 6

Figure 5 shows average daily finished water distributed to the regional network for each of the 
last 13-months in MGD.  Finished water distribution averaged 28.4 MGD in December 2023, 
approximately 0.4 MGD less than in December 2022.  
 
The routine exchange of water with the City of Punta Gorda is ongoing with deliveries from the 
Region to the City south through the Phase 1 Pipeline on US 17 and return of flow from the City 
to the region north through the Phase 1A Pipeline.  The exchange of water through regional 
pipelines maintains these facilities in a “ready-to-serve” condition at all times.   
 
 
Figure 5    
 

 
  



 7

Stored Supplies at the PRF 
 
The Authority maintains two large capacity off-stream storage systems at the PRF.  The primary 
storage is raw river water stored in Reservoir No. 1 and No. 2.  When the flow in the River is high 
enough, a small percentage of that flow is harvested at the Authority’s river intake pumping facility 
on the Peace River consistent with the permit-authorized diversion schedule and is stored in 
Reservoirs 1 and 2.  Storage volumes in the reservoirs generally decline in the dry season due to 
lower flows and increase during the wet season as rainfall, flows, and river diversions increase.  
During the hurricane season the permitted total combined raw water storage capacity in Reservoirs 
1 and 2 is 6.5 billion gallons (BG).  Outside of hurricane season, additional water can be safely 
stored up to 6.8 BG.  Total raw water stored in the reservoir system as of December 31, 2023, 
was 6.784 BG, which was 0.039 BG less than December 2022 (6.823 BG).   
 
The secondary storage option at the PRF is treated water stored in the Aquifer Storage and 
Recovery (ASR) system.  The ASR system has a design storage capacity of 6.3 BG.  However, 
practical storage capacity is substantially higher as evidenced by the 8.722 BG stored in the ASR 
system as of December 31, 2023.  Because this supply must be fully treated to drinking water 
standards before storage, it cannot be stored as rapidly as water in the raw-water reservoirs.  Filling 
ASR storage is done incrementally each year during the wet season as excess treatment capacity 
(due to lower public water supply demand) and hydrologic conditions allow.  Water recovered 
from ASR during the dry season is discharged to the surface reservoir system and undergoes full 
treatment again with the rest of the raw-water stream before delivery to Authority Customers.  
 
In 2023, recovery from the ASR system began April 3 and ended May 30 for a total of 432 MG.  
Total ASR system storage as of December 31, 2023, was 8.722 BG (2.422 BG greater than 
design storage capacity), and 0.06 BG less than December 2022 (8.782 BG).     
 
Stored raw water supplies (combined storage in Reservoir No. 1 and No. 2) and stored water in 
the ASR system for the past year are shown in Figure 6.  The total water in storage as of 
December 31, 2023, was approximately 15.506 BG, approximately 0.099 BG less than total 
storage in December 2022 (15.605 BG). 
 
 
  



 8

Figure 6 
 

 
 

 



PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 7, 2024 
 

 
ROUTINE STATUS REPORTS  

ITEM 2 

Check Registers for November & December 2023 



Date Document Number Payee Name / Description  Amount 

11/02/2023 QuickBooks Payroll Service 124,715.87$                             

11/03/2023 39961 D  M CONSTRUCTION CORP 17,373.62$                               

11/03/2023 39962 DESOTO COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 75.00$                                      

11/03/2023 39964 FDOT 6.75$                                        

11/03/2023 39965 FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 156,640.86$                             

11/03/2023 39966 JET AUTO SERVICE 396.06$                                    

11/03/2023 39967 KED GROUP INC 15,548.00$                               

11/03/2023 39968 NaturZone Pest Control 146.79$                                    

11/03/2023 39969 PNC Bank N A 2,268.50$                                 

11/03/2023 39970 SUPER T 1,631.86$                                 

11/03/2023 39971 VERIZON WIRELESS 92.74$                                      

11/03/2023 ACH6631 RS Americas 5,004.52$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6632 ALLIED UNIVERSAL CORP 101,334.09$                             

11/03/2023 ACH6633 AMAZON Business 2,772.56$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6634 Apex 429.12$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6635 ASSOC OF METROPOLITAN WATER AGENCY 12,700.00$                               

11/03/2023 ACH6636 BENCHMARK ENVIROANALYTICAL INC 4,783.00$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6637 Briggs Equipment Inc 3,061.04$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6638 Brown and Caldwell 34,873.01$                               

11/03/2023 ACH6639 C & S CHEMICALS INC 169,503.02$                             

11/03/2023 ACH6640 CED - Port Charlotte 347.16$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6641 CENTURYLINK 401.75$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6642 CHARLOTTE COUNTY BCC - LANDFILL 18,778.75$                               

11/03/2023 ACH6643 CINTAS 107.00$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6644 COOL TODAY 870.10$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6645 CULLIGAN WATER of Sarasota 1,369.00$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6646 Cummins Power South 3,765.65$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6647 DELL MARKETING LP 43,699.10$                               

11/03/2023 ACH6648 DMS-FINANCIAL MGMT SERVICES 452.03$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6649 Entech Computer Services LLC 6,664.45$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6650 FEDERAL EXPRESS 536.00$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6651 Fisher Scientific 267.17$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6652 George Pennell (V) 50.00$                                      

11/03/2023 ACH6653 Hach Company 3,863.50$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6654 HDR ENGINEERING INC 2,293.75$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6655 Hilltop Securities 1,500.00$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6656 Jacobi Carbons Inc 70,619.20$                               

11/03/2023 ACH6657 Lumen-CenturyLink-6358 6,651.12$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6658 Lumen - Centurylink 3363 157.77$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6659 NAVITAS CREDIT CORP 211.58$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6660 PALM PRINTING 473.54$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6661 Pitney Bowes Purchase Power 200.00$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6662 Risk Management Associates Inc 162,680.38$                             

11/03/2023 ACH6663 Rite Technology 1,852.51$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6664 SHALINA ODEGARD 246.75$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6665 SUNSHINE ACE HARDWARE 98.89$                                      

11/03/2023 ACH6666 Tanner Industries, Inc 6,381.19$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6667 TOI TOI USA 866.96$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6668 UNIVAR SOLUTIONS USA INC 107,820.46$                             

11/03/2023 ADBT110323 STATE OF FLORIDA DISBURSEMENT UNIT 444.75$                                    

11/03/2023 DBT110323 United States Treasury 39,940.95$                               

11/03/2023 DBT11032023 Valic 9,526.62$                                 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY
CHECK REGISTER: NOVEMBER & DECEMBER 2023

PUBLIC FUNDS INTEREST CHECKING (PNC)



Date Document Number Payee Name / Description  Amount 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY
CHECK REGISTER: NOVEMBER & DECEMBER 2023

PUBLIC FUNDS INTEREST CHECKING (PNC)

11/03/2023 39963 DESOTO COUNTY BOCC 3,244.34$                                 

11/15/2023 DBT11172024 Valic 11,597.20$                               

11/16/2023 QuickBooks Payroll Service 154,602.22$                             

11/17/2023 39972 Braden River Utilities LLC 209.72$                                    

11/17/2023 39973 DESOTO AUTOMOTIVE ENTERPRISES INC 1,010.46$                                 

11/17/2023 39974 FDOT 2.50$                                        

11/17/2023 39975 Gannett Holdings-Florida 643.50$                                    

11/17/2023 39976 KED GROUP INC 17,063.20$                               

11/17/2023 39977 NaturZone Pest Control 83.79$                                      

11/17/2023 39978 QUALITY STARTER & ALT SER INC 272.90$                                    

11/17/2023 39979 SPECIALTY PARTS 11.76$                                      

11/17/2023 39982 TRULY NOLEN  Branch 093 350.00$                                    

11/17/2023 39983 Waste Pro Bradenton/Sarasota 195.00$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6669 AMAZON Business 1,636.43$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6670 Apex 171.28$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6671 BABE'S PLUMBING INC. & FIRE SPRINKLER 460.00$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6672 BENCHMARK ENVIROANALYTICAL INC 1,909.00$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6673 C & S CHEMICALS INC 62,033.30$                               

11/17/2023 ACH6674 CED - Port Charlotte 1,583.90$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6675 CHARLOTTE COUNTY BD OF COMMISSIONER 110,807.78$                             

11/17/2023 ACH6676 CHENANGO SUPPLY CO., INC. 536.78$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6677 Cimtec Automation, LLC 7,768.08$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6678 CINTAS 321.00$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6679 CINTAS FIRE 636525 570.00$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6680 CORONADO LAWN SERVICE OF FL 7,668.00$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6681 DESOTO COUNTY (V) 66,333.33$                               

11/17/2023 ACH6682 DONALDSON COMPANY INC 3,576.00$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6683 Environmental Systems Research Institute 2,881.85$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6684 FEDERAL EXPRESS 155.31$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6685 Fisher Scientific 1,184.22$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6686 Gulf Controls Company, Inc. 155.38$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6687 Hach Company 10,617.00$                               

11/17/2023 ACH6688 Hostetler Irrigation Inc 212.17$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6689 HVMI LLC 12,028.40$                               

11/17/2023 ACH6690 Jacobi Carbons Inc 140,612.80$                             

11/17/2023 ACH6691 JANICKI ENVIRONMENTAL INC 24,040.00$                               

11/17/2023 ACH6692 Jim Guida (V) 277.11$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6693 Lumen - Centurylink 3363 157.88$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6694 MANSON BOLVES DONALDSON TANNER 32,173.61$                               

11/17/2023 ACH6695 Matt's Lawn Service 775.00$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6696 NAVITAS CREDIT CORP 211.58$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6697 PMC-STS INC 2,774.98$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6698 ROGERS PETROLEUM  INC 4,848.05$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6699 SENSIDYNE LP 2,429.83$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6700 SUNSHINE ACE HARDWARE 250.43$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6701 SUNSHINE STATE ONE CALL OF FL INC 101.08$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6702 SUTTER ROOFING COMPANY OF FLORIDA 16,189.65$                               

11/17/2023 ACH6703 Tanner Industries, Inc 6,377.89$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6704 THERMO ELECTRON NORTH AMERICA LLC 1,271.25$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6705 TOI TOI USA 956.22$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6706 U.S. TENT RENTAL INC 5,881.40$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6707 USA Bluebook 567.14$                                    



Date Document Number Payee Name / Description  Amount 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY
CHECK REGISTER: NOVEMBER & DECEMBER 2023

PUBLIC FUNDS INTEREST CHECKING (PNC)

11/17/2023 ACH6708 Vanguard Cleaning Systems of SW Florida 2,400.00$                                 

11/17/2023 DBT111723 United States Treasury 54,388.40$                               

11/17/2023 DBT11172023 STATE OF FLORIDA DISBURSEMENT UNIT 444.75$                                    

11/21/2023 39984 THE SUN 153.01$                                    

11/24/2023 ABT112523 PNC Bank (Credit Card) 10,198.29$                               

11/27/2023 DBT112723 FLORIDA DIVISION OF RETIREMENT 75,208.19$                               

11/30/2023 QuickBooks Payroll Service 132,302.32$                             

12/01/2023 39985 BILL'S BOTTLED WATER SERVICE 11.25$                                      

12/01/2023 39986 CHARLOTTE HARBOR NTL ESTUARY PRGRM 3,500.00$                                 

12/01/2023 39987 D  M CONSTRUCTION CORP 21,532.77$                               

12/01/2023 39988 DESOTO AUTOMOTIVE ENTERPRISES INC 316.20$                                    

12/01/2023 39989 DESOTO COUNTY UTILITITES 550.53$                                    

12/01/2023 39990 FENDER'S TIRE & BATTERY INC 625.00$                                    

12/01/2023 39991 FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 188,773.29$                             

12/01/2023 39992 FW&PCOA 1,020.00$                                 

12/01/2023 39993 GRAYBAR 1,652.64$                                 

12/01/2023 39994 HOME DEPOT 479.56$                                    

12/01/2023 39995 Ken Burton Jr  Tax Collector 1,514.31$                                 

12/01/2023 39996 Manatee County Utilities Department 282.42$                                    

12/01/2023 39997 SAM'S CLUB 615.85$                                    

12/01/2023 39998 Sewer Viewer Inc 2,500.00$                                 

12/01/2023 39999 VERIZON WIRELESS 96.16$                                      

12/01/2023 ACH6710 ADVANTAGE CARE INC. 80.00$                                      

12/01/2023 ACH6711 AIRGAS USA LLC 514.63$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6712 RS Americas 7.44$                                        

12/01/2023 ACH6713 ALLIED UNIVERSAL CORP 51,235.47$                               

12/01/2023 ACH6714 Apple Video & Photography Studio 2,095.00$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6715 BATTERIES PLUS BULBS #451 186.70$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6716 BENCHMARK ENVIROANALYTICAL INC 3,957.00$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6717 C & S CHEMICALS INC 165,021.78$                             

12/01/2023 ACH6718 CED - Port Charlotte 270.90$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6719 Cimtec Automation, LLC 967.59$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6720 CINTAS 433.71$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6721 CINTAS FIRE 636525 300.00$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6722 DMS-FINANCIAL MGMT SERVICES 452.07$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6723 DONALDSON COMPANY INC 1,038.45$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6724 Doug Morton (V) 448.96$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6725 EARTH BALANCE 4,594.51$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6726 FEL-FT MYERS WATERWORKS 339,809.76$                             

12/01/2023 ACH6727 Fisher Scientific 4,252.02$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6728 FRONTIER-941 270.13$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6729 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS-305 240.98$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6730 GRAINGER 2,778.52$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6731 Gulf Controls Company, Inc. 307.93$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6732 Hach Company 21,926.49$                               

12/01/2023 ACH6733 Hudson Pump 3,845.10$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6734 HVMI LLC 76,595.45$                               

12/01/2023 ACH6735 IDEXX DISTRIBUTION INC 1,697.34$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6736 Jacobi Carbons Inc 138,846.40$                             

12/01/2023 ACH6737 JOHNSON ENGINEERING INC 15,920.00$                               

12/01/2023 ACH6738 MOCK ENGINEERING TECHNOLOGIES 2,818.00$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6739 MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO 341.64$                                    



Date Document Number Payee Name / Description  Amount 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY
CHECK REGISTER: NOVEMBER & DECEMBER 2023

PUBLIC FUNDS INTEREST CHECKING (PNC)

12/01/2023 ACH6740 Precision Gate & Security Inc 400.00$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6741 PRO-CHEM INC 1,101.60$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6742 Public Resources Advisory Group Inc 1,512.50$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6743 SIMS CRANE & EQUIPMENT 1,823.25$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6744 STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES 87,526.75$                               

12/01/2023 ACH6745 SUNSHINE ACE HARDWARE 64.95$                                      

12/01/2023 ACH6746 TAMPA ARMATURE WORKS  INC 145.76$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6747 Tanner Industries, Inc 6,437.21$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6748 THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON 825.00$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6749 TOI TOI USA 433.48$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6750 TRANSCAT  INC 1,605.11$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6751 TRULY NOLEN BRANCH 079 318.00$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6752 UNIVAR SOLUTIONS USA INC 127,725.91$                             

12/01/2023 ACH6753 USA Bluebook 1,296.17$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6754 VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS INC 4,627.85$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6755 WOMACK SANITATION INC 2,500.25$                                 

12/01/2023 DBT12123 STATE OF FLORIDA DISBURSEMENT UNIT 444.75$                                    

12/01/2023 DBT120123 United States Treasury 42,982.81$                               

12/04/2023 DBT12012023 Valic 9,536.66$                                 

12/13/2023 DBT121323 Valic 9,889.94$                                 

12/14/2023 QuickBooks Payroll Service 129,410.44$                             

12/15/2023 40002 Braden River Utilities LLC 134.62$                                    

12/15/2023 40003 DESOTO COUNTY UTILITITES 1,071.06$                                 

12/15/2023 40004 FSAWWA 2,000.00$                                 

12/15/2023 40005 HOME DEPOT 216.85$                                    

12/15/2023 40006 MANATEE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 915.00$                                    

12/15/2023 40009 Manatee County Utilities Department 326.65$                                    

12/15/2023 40007 PREFERRED GOVERNMENT INSURANCE TRUS 19,614.00$                               

12/15/2023 40008 AWWA 266.00$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6756 ADVANTAGE COMMUNICATIONS  INC 4,900.00$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6757 AECOM TECHNICAL SERVICES INC 1,803.05$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6758 AIR CENTERS-FLORIDA 6,816.50$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6759 ALFA LAVAL INC 451.09$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6760 ALLIED UNIVERSAL CORP 58,006.52$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6761 ANN LEE (V) 164.00$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6762 Apex 895.33$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6763 BLACK & VEATCH 9,137.84$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6764 Brown and Caldwell 15,119.05$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6765 C & S CHEMICALS INC 96,577.46$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6766 CAROLLO ENGINEERS INC 8,102.30$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6767 CED - Port Charlotte 3,805.00$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6768 CENTURYLINK 797.80$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6769 CHARLOTTE COUNTY BD OF COMMISSIONER 112,208.61$                             

12/15/2023 ACH6770 CINTAS 693.75$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6771 CINTAS FIRE 636525 740.61$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6772 CORONADO LAWN SERVICE OF FL 5,792.00$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6773 Cummins Power South 1,548.32$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6774 DESOTO COUNTY (V) 66,333.33$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6775 ENDRESS+HAUSER, INC. 12,880.33$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6776 FEL-FT MYERS WATERWORKS 251.22$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6777 Fisher Scientific 3,284.47$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6778 FRONTIER-941 270.22$                                    



Date Document Number Payee Name / Description  Amount 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY
CHECK REGISTER: NOVEMBER & DECEMBER 2023

PUBLIC FUNDS INTEREST CHECKING (PNC)

12/15/2023 ACH6779 GARNEY CONSTRUCTION 33,012.61$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6780 GRAY MATTER SYSTEMS INC 3,736.10$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6781 Gulf Controls Company, Inc. 327.00$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6782 Hach Company 1,800.84$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6783 HAZEN AND SAWYER 26,528.80$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6784 Jacobi Carbons Inc 67,785.60$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6785 JANICKI ENVIRONMENTAL INC 24,111.00$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6786 JOHNSON ENGINEERING INC 2,925.00$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6787 KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES INC 4,934.57$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6788 KONE Inc 984.54$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6789 Lumen - Centurylink 3363 157.66$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6790 MANSON BOLVES DONALDSON TANNER 56,887.50$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6791 Matt's Lawn Service 775.00$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6792 MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO 69.70$                                      

12/15/2023 ACH6793 Natural Resources LLC 18,035.67$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6794 NAVITAS CREDIT CORP 211.58$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6795 OVIVO USA LLC 107,594.85$                             

12/15/2023 ACH6796 RS Americas 49.60$                                      

12/15/2023 ACH6797 SUNSHINE ACE HARDWARE 87.67$                                      

12/15/2023 ACH6798 SUTTER ROOFING COMPANY OF FLORIDA 41,117.74$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6799 Tanner Industries, Inc 6,395.47$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6800 TERRI BRUMFIELD 1,163.28$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6801 TRULY NOLEN BRANCH 079 350.00$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6802 UNIVAR SOLUTIONS USA INC 65,573.21$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6803 USA Bluebook 4,104.73$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6804 Vanguard Cleaning Systems of SW Florida 2,400.00$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6805 WOMACK SANITATION INC 885.00$                                    

12/15/2023 DBT121523 United States Treasury 44,989.32$                               

12/15/2023 DBT12152023 STATE OF FLORIDA DISBURSEMENT UNIT 178.39$                                    

12/25/2023 EFT122523 PNC Bank (Credit Card) 9,460.58$                                 

12/27/2023 DBT122723 Valic 9,718.89$                                 

12/27/2023 DBT122724 FLORIDA DIVISION OF RETIREMENT 104,990.36$                             

12/28/2023 QuickBooks Payroll Service 124,892.13$                             

12/29/2023 40010 BILL'S BOTTLED WATER SERVICE 16.50$                                      

12/29/2023 40011 D  M CONSTRUCTION CORP 16,685.24$                               

12/29/2023 40012 DESOTO AUTOMOTIVE ENTERPRISES INC 39,418.00$                               

12/29/2023 40013 EUROFINS EATON ANALYTICAL, LLC 1,190.00$                                 

12/29/2023 40014 Gannett Holdings-Florida 244.75$                                    

12/29/2023 40021 LWR Town Center Association Inc 3,206.00$                                 

12/29/2023 40015 NaturZone Pest Control 83.79$                                      

12/29/2023 40016 SAM'S CLUB 54.20$                                      

12/29/2023 40017 SMITH RANCH & GARDEN  INC 833.00$                                    

12/29/2023 40018 TIRE KINGDOM-Mavis Discount Tire 99.96$                                      

12/29/2023 40019 VERIZON WIRELESS 100.63$                                    

12/29/2023 40020 Waste Pro Bradenton/Sarasota 190.00$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6806 Adobe Systems Inc 5,993.88$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6807 ADVANTAGE CARE INC. 120.00$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6808 AIR CENTERS-FLORIDA 8,854.47$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6809 Air Mechanical & Service Corp 558.00$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6810 AIRGAS USA LLC 255.99$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6811 ALLIED UNIVERSAL CORP 28,715.83$                               

12/29/2023 ACH6812 AMAZON Business 4,913.00$                                 



Date Document Number Payee Name / Description  Amount 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY
CHECK REGISTER: NOVEMBER & DECEMBER 2023

PUBLIC FUNDS INTEREST CHECKING (PNC)

12/29/2023 ACH6813 Apex 623.23$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6814 Brown and Caldwell 3,218.56$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6815 C & S CHEMICALS INC 76,784.12$                               

12/29/2023 ACH6816 CED - Port Charlotte 3,712.89$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6817 CINTAS FIRE 636525 1,662.51$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6818 Commercial Fire & Communications 288.00$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6819 COOL TODAY 462.50$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6820 DMS-FINANCIAL MGMT SERVICES 452.67$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6821 EARTH BALANCE 3,696.41$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6822 Entech Computer Services LLC 20,051.19$                               

12/29/2023 ACH6823 FEDERAL EXPRESS 23.78$                                      

12/29/2023 ACH6824 Fisher Scientific 448.42$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6825 Flatiron LIft Systems, LLC 1,850.00$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6826 FLUID CONTROL SPECIALTIES  INC 3,787.00$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6827 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS-305 240.98$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6828 GoTo Technologies USA inc 3,499.99$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6829 H2 ENVIRO SOLUTIONS LLC 4,800.00$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6830 Hach Company 45,992.62$                               

12/29/2023 ACH6831 HDR ENGINEERING INC 8,583.08$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6832 Henry Meredith 33.69$                                      

12/29/2023 ACH6833 Hostetler Irrigation Inc 135.00$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6834 HVMI LLC 17,181.85$                               

12/29/2023 ACH6835 Johnson Controls Security Solutions LLC 1,288.58$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6836 JOHNSON ENGINEERING INC 12,830.00$                               

12/29/2023 ACH6837 Lumen-CenturyLink-6358 1,656.85$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6838 MANSON BOLVES DONALDSON TANNER 50,262.92$                               

12/29/2023 ACH6839 NAVITAS CREDIT CORP 211.58$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6840 Pitney Bowes- Lease 209.85$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6841 PMC-STS INC 4,894.01$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6842 Public Resources Advisory Group Inc 687.50$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6843 RESPEC Company LLC 4,115.00$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6844 RING POWER CORPORATION 9,935.76$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6845 Risk Management Associates Inc 1,352.00$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6846 Rite Technology 3,979.59$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6847 RS Americas 457.08$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6848 SAFETY SHOE DISTRIBUTORS, LLP 3,572.93$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6849 SOUTHWEST MOBILE MECHANIC 845.10$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6850 STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES 31,356.90$                               

12/29/2023 ACH6851 Tanner Industries, Inc 6,392.17$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6852 TRULY NOLEN BRANCH 079 318.00$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6853 UNIVAR SOLUTIONS USA INC 107,424.86$                             

12/29/2023 ACH6854 VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS INC 4,379.18$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6855 Xylem Water Solutions U.S.A., Inc. 8,855.70$                                 

12/29/2023 DBT122923 United States Treasury 39,854.52$                               

12/29/2023 DBT12292023 STATE OF FLORIDA DISBURSEMENT UNIT 444.75$                                    

Total 5,444,457.42



Date Document Number Payee Name / Description  Amount 

12/29/2023 ACH6806 Adobe Systems Inc 5,993.88$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6710 ADVANTAGE CARE INC. 80.00$                                      

12/29/2023 ACH6807 ADVANTAGE CARE INC. 120.00$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6756 ADVANTAGE COMMUNICATIONS  INC 4,900.00$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6757 AECOM TECHNICAL SERVICES INC 1,803.05$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6758 AIR CENTERS-FLORIDA 6,816.50$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6808 AIR CENTERS-FLORIDA 8,854.47$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6809 Air Mechanical & Service Corp 558.00$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6711 AIRGAS USA LLC 514.63$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6810 AIRGAS USA LLC 255.99$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6759 ALFA LAVAL INC 451.09$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6632 ALLIED UNIVERSAL CORP 101,334.09$                             

12/01/2023 ACH6713 ALLIED UNIVERSAL CORP 51,235.47$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6760 ALLIED UNIVERSAL CORP 58,006.52$                               

12/29/2023 ACH6811 ALLIED UNIVERSAL CORP 28,715.83$                               

11/03/2023 ACH6633 AMAZON Business 2,772.56$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6669 AMAZON Business 1,636.43$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6812 AMAZON Business 4,913.00$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6761 ANN LEE (V) 164.00$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6634 Apex 429.12$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6670 Apex 171.28$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6762 Apex 895.33$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6813 Apex 623.23$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6714 Apple Video & Photography Studio 2,095.00$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6635 ASSOC OF METROPOLITAN WATER AGENCY 12,700.00$                               

12/15/2023 40008 AWWA 266.00$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6671 BABE'S PLUMBING INC. & FIRE SPRINKLER 460.00$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6715 BATTERIES PLUS BULBS #451 186.70$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6636 BENCHMARK ENVIROANALYTICAL INC 4,783.00$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6672 BENCHMARK ENVIROANALYTICAL INC 1,909.00$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6716 BENCHMARK ENVIROANALYTICAL INC 3,957.00$                                 

12/01/2023 39985 BILL'S BOTTLED WATER SERVICE 11.25$                                      

12/29/2023 40010 BILL'S BOTTLED WATER SERVICE 16.50$                                      

12/15/2023 ACH6763 BLACK & VEATCH 9,137.84$                                 

11/17/2023 39972 Braden River Utilities LLC 209.72$                                    

12/15/2023 40002 Braden River Utilities LLC 134.62$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6637 Briggs Equipment Inc 3,061.04$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6638 Brown and Caldwell 34,873.01$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6764 Brown and Caldwell 15,119.05$                               

12/29/2023 ACH6814 Brown and Caldwell 3,218.56$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6639 C & S CHEMICALS INC 169,503.02$                             

11/17/2023 ACH6673 C & S CHEMICALS INC 62,033.30$                               

12/01/2023 ACH6717 C & S CHEMICALS INC 165,021.78$                             

12/15/2023 ACH6765 C & S CHEMICALS INC 96,577.46$                               

12/29/2023 ACH6815 C & S CHEMICALS INC 76,784.12$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6766 CAROLLO ENGINEERS INC 8,102.30$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6640 CED - Port Charlotte 347.16$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6674 CED - Port Charlotte 1,583.90$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6718 CED - Port Charlotte 270.90$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6767 CED - Port Charlotte 3,805.00$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6816 CED - Port Charlotte 3,712.89$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6641 CENTURYLINK 401.75$                                    

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY
CHECK REGISTER: NOVEMBER & DECEMBER 2023

Alphabetically by Vendor

PUBLIC FUNDS INTEREST CHECKING (PNC)



Date Document Number Payee Name / Description  Amount 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY
CHECK REGISTER: NOVEMBER & DECEMBER 2023

Alphabetically by Vendor

PUBLIC FUNDS INTEREST CHECKING (PNC)

12/15/2023 ACH6768 CENTURYLINK 797.80$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6642 CHARLOTTE COUNTY BCC - LANDFILL 18,778.75$                               

11/17/2023 ACH6675 CHARLOTTE COUNTY BD OF COMMISSIONER 110,807.78$                             

12/15/2023 ACH6769 CHARLOTTE COUNTY BD OF COMMISSIONER 112,208.61$                             

12/01/2023 39986 CHARLOTTE HARBOR NTL ESTUARY PRGRM 3,500.00$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6676 CHENANGO SUPPLY CO., INC. 536.78$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6677 Cimtec Automation, LLC 7,768.08$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6719 Cimtec Automation, LLC 967.59$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6643 CINTAS 107.00$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6678 CINTAS 321.00$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6720 CINTAS 433.71$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6770 CINTAS 693.75$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6679 CINTAS FIRE 636525 570.00$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6721 CINTAS FIRE 636525 300.00$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6771 CINTAS FIRE 636525 740.61$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6817 CINTAS FIRE 636525 1,662.51$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6818 Commercial Fire & Communications 288.00$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6644 COOL TODAY 870.10$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6819 COOL TODAY 462.50$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6680 CORONADO LAWN SERVICE OF FL 7,668.00$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6772 CORONADO LAWN SERVICE OF FL 5,792.00$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6645 CULLIGAN WATER of Sarasota 1,369.00$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6646 Cummins Power South 3,765.65$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6773 Cummins Power South 1,548.32$                                 

11/03/2023 39961 D  M CONSTRUCTION CORP 17,373.62$                               

12/01/2023 39987 D  M CONSTRUCTION CORP 21,532.77$                               

12/29/2023 40011 D  M CONSTRUCTION CORP 16,685.24$                               

11/03/2023 ACH6647 DELL MARKETING LP 43,699.10$                               

11/17/2023 39973 DESOTO AUTOMOTIVE ENTERPRISES INC 1,010.46$                                 

12/01/2023 39988 DESOTO AUTOMOTIVE ENTERPRISES INC 316.20$                                    

12/29/2023 40012 DESOTO AUTOMOTIVE ENTERPRISES INC 39,418.00$                               

11/17/2023 ACH6681 DESOTO COUNTY (V) 66,333.33$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6774 DESOTO COUNTY (V) 66,333.33$                               

11/03/2023 39963 DESOTO COUNTY BOCC 3,244.34$                                 

11/03/2023 39962 DESOTO COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 75.00$                                      

12/01/2023 39989 DESOTO COUNTY UTILITITES 550.53$                                    

12/15/2023 40003 DESOTO COUNTY UTILITITES 1,071.06$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6648 DMS-FINANCIAL MGMT SERVICES 452.03$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6722 DMS-FINANCIAL MGMT SERVICES 452.07$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6820 DMS-FINANCIAL MGMT SERVICES 452.67$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6682 DONALDSON COMPANY INC 3,576.00$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6723 DONALDSON COMPANY INC 1,038.45$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6724 Doug Morton (V) 448.96$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6725 EARTH BALANCE 4,594.51$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6821 EARTH BALANCE 3,696.41$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6775 ENDRESS+HAUSER, INC. 12,880.33$                               

11/03/2023 ACH6649 Entech Computer Services LLC 6,664.45$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6822 Entech Computer Services LLC 20,051.19$                               

11/17/2023 ACH6683 Environmental Systems Research Institute 2,881.85$                                 

12/29/2023 40013 EUROFINS EATON ANALYTICAL, LLC 1,190.00$                                 

11/03/2023 39964 FDOT 6.75$                                        

11/17/2023 39974 FDOT 2.50$                                        



Date Document Number Payee Name / Description  Amount 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY
CHECK REGISTER: NOVEMBER & DECEMBER 2023

Alphabetically by Vendor

PUBLIC FUNDS INTEREST CHECKING (PNC)

11/03/2023 ACH6650 FEDERAL EXPRESS 536.00$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6684 FEDERAL EXPRESS 155.31$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6823 FEDERAL EXPRESS 23.78$                                      

12/01/2023 ACH6726 FEL-FT MYERS WATERWORKS 339,809.76$                             

12/15/2023 ACH6776 FEL-FT MYERS WATERWORKS 251.22$                                    

12/01/2023 39990 FENDER'S TIRE & BATTERY INC 625.00$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6651 Fisher Scientific 267.17$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6685 Fisher Scientific 1,184.22$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6727 Fisher Scientific 4,252.02$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6777 Fisher Scientific 3,284.47$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6824 Fisher Scientific 448.42$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6825 Flatiron LIft Systems, LLC 1,850.00$                                 

11/27/2023 DBT112723 FLORIDA DIVISION OF RETIREMENT 75,208.19$                               

12/27/2023 DBT122724 FLORIDA DIVISION OF RETIREMENT 104,990.36$                             

11/03/2023 39965 FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 156,640.86$                             

12/01/2023 39991 FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 188,773.29$                             

12/29/2023 ACH6826 FLUID CONTROL SPECIALTIES  INC 3,787.00$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6729 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS-305 240.98$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6827 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS-305 240.98$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6728 FRONTIER-941 270.13$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6778 FRONTIER-941 270.22$                                    

12/15/2023 40004 FSAWWA 2,000.00$                                 

12/01/2023 39992 FW&PCOA 1,020.00$                                 

11/17/2023 39975 Gannett Holdings-Florida 643.50$                                    

12/29/2023 40014 Gannett Holdings-Florida 244.75$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6779 GARNEY CONSTRUCTION 33,012.61$                               

11/03/2023 ACH6652 George Pennell (V) 50.00$                                      

12/29/2023 ACH6828 GoTo Technologies USA inc 3,499.99$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6730 GRAINGER 2,778.52$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6780 GRAY MATTER SYSTEMS INC 3,736.10$                                 

12/01/2023 39993 GRAYBAR 1,652.64$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6686 Gulf Controls Company, Inc. 155.38$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6731 Gulf Controls Company, Inc. 307.93$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6781 Gulf Controls Company, Inc. 327.00$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6829 H2 ENVIRO SOLUTIONS LLC 4,800.00$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6653 Hach Company 3,863.50$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6687 Hach Company 10,617.00$                               

12/01/2023 ACH6732 Hach Company 21,926.49$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6782 Hach Company 1,800.84$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6830 Hach Company 45,992.62$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6783 HAZEN AND SAWYER 26,528.80$                               

11/03/2023 ACH6654 HDR ENGINEERING INC 2,293.75$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6831 HDR ENGINEERING INC 8,583.08$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6832 Henry Meredith 33.69$                                      

11/03/2023 ACH6655 Hilltop Securities 1,500.00$                                 

12/01/2023 39994 HOME DEPOT 479.56$                                    

12/15/2023 40005 HOME DEPOT 216.85$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6688 Hostetler Irrigation Inc 212.17$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6833 Hostetler Irrigation Inc 135.00$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6733 Hudson Pump 3,845.10$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6689 HVMI LLC 12,028.40$                               

12/01/2023 ACH6734 HVMI LLC 76,595.45$                               



Date Document Number Payee Name / Description  Amount 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY
CHECK REGISTER: NOVEMBER & DECEMBER 2023

Alphabetically by Vendor

PUBLIC FUNDS INTEREST CHECKING (PNC)

12/29/2023 ACH6834 HVMI LLC 17,181.85$                               

12/01/2023 ACH6735 IDEXX DISTRIBUTION INC 1,697.34$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6656 Jacobi Carbons Inc 70,619.20$                               

11/17/2023 ACH6690 Jacobi Carbons Inc 140,612.80$                             

12/01/2023 ACH6736 Jacobi Carbons Inc 138,846.40$                             

12/15/2023 ACH6784 Jacobi Carbons Inc 67,785.60$                               

11/17/2023 ACH6691 JANICKI ENVIRONMENTAL INC 24,040.00$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6785 JANICKI ENVIRONMENTAL INC 24,111.00$                               

11/03/2023 39966 JET AUTO SERVICE 396.06$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6692 Jim Guida (V) 277.11$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6835 Johnson Controls Security Solutions LLC 1,288.58$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6737 JOHNSON ENGINEERING INC 15,920.00$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6786 JOHNSON ENGINEERING INC 2,925.00$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6836 JOHNSON ENGINEERING INC 12,830.00$                               

11/03/2023 39967 KED GROUP INC 15,548.00$                               

11/17/2023 39976 KED GROUP INC 17,063.20$                               

12/01/2023 39995 Ken Burton Jr  Tax Collector 1,514.31$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6787 KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES INC 4,934.57$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6788 KONE Inc 984.54$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6658 Lumen - Centurylink 3363 157.77$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6693 Lumen - Centurylink 3363 157.88$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6789 Lumen - Centurylink 3363 157.66$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6657 Lumen-CenturyLink-6358 6,651.12$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6837 Lumen-CenturyLink-6358 1,656.85$                                 

12/29/2023 40021 LWR Town Center Association Inc 3,206.00$                                 

12/15/2023 40006 MANATEE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 915.00$                                    

12/01/2023 39996 Manatee County Utilities Department 282.42$                                    

12/15/2023 40009 Manatee County Utilities Department 326.65$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6694 MANSON BOLVES DONALDSON TANNER 32,173.61$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6790 MANSON BOLVES DONALDSON TANNER 56,887.50$                               

12/29/2023 ACH6838 MANSON BOLVES DONALDSON TANNER 50,262.92$                               

11/17/2023 ACH6695 Matt's Lawn Service 775.00$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6791 Matt's Lawn Service 775.00$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6738 MOCK ENGINEERING TECHNOLOGIES 2,818.00$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6739 MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO 341.64$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6792 MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO 69.70$                                      

12/15/2023 ACH6793 Natural Resources LLC 18,035.67$                               

11/03/2023 39968 NaturZone Pest Control 146.79$                                    

11/17/2023 39977 NaturZone Pest Control 83.79$                                      

12/29/2023 40015 NaturZone Pest Control 83.79$                                      

11/03/2023 ACH6659 NAVITAS CREDIT CORP 211.58$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6696 NAVITAS CREDIT CORP 211.58$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6794 NAVITAS CREDIT CORP 211.58$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6839 NAVITAS CREDIT CORP 211.58$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6795 OVIVO USA LLC 107,594.85$                             

11/03/2023 ACH6660 PALM PRINTING 473.54$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6840 Pitney Bowes- Lease 209.85$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6661 Pitney Bowes Purchase Power 200.00$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6697 PMC-STS INC 2,774.98$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6841 PMC-STS INC 4,894.01$                                 

11/24/2023 ABT112523 PNC Bank (Credit Card) 10,198.29$                               

12/25/2023 EFT122523 PNC Bank (Credit Card) 9,460.58$                                 



Date Document Number Payee Name / Description  Amount 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY
CHECK REGISTER: NOVEMBER & DECEMBER 2023

Alphabetically by Vendor

PUBLIC FUNDS INTEREST CHECKING (PNC)

11/03/2023 39969 PNC Bank N A 2,268.50$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6740 Precision Gate & Security Inc 400.00$                                    

12/15/2023 40007 PREFERRED GOVERNMENT INSURANCE TRUS 19,614.00$                               

12/01/2023 ACH6741 PRO-CHEM INC 1,101.60$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6742 Public Resources Advisory Group Inc 1,512.50$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6842 Public Resources Advisory Group Inc 687.50$                                    

11/17/2023 39978 QUALITY STARTER & ALT SER INC 272.90$                                    

11/02/2023 QuickBooks Payroll Service 124,715.87$                             

11/16/2023 QuickBooks Payroll Service 154,602.22$                             

11/30/2023 QuickBooks Payroll Service 132,302.32$                             

12/14/2023 QuickBooks Payroll Service 129,410.44$                             

12/28/2023 QuickBooks Payroll Service 124,892.13$                             

12/29/2023 ACH6843 RESPEC Company LLC 4,115.00$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6844 RING POWER CORPORATION 9,935.76$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6662 Risk Management Associates Inc 162,680.38$                             

12/29/2023 ACH6845 Risk Management Associates Inc 1,352.00$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6663 Rite Technology 1,852.51$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6846 Rite Technology 3,979.59$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6698 ROGERS PETROLEUM  INC 4,848.05$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6631 RS Americas 5,004.52$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6712 RS Americas 7.44$                                        

12/15/2023 ACH6796 RS Americas 49.60$                                      

12/29/2023 ACH6847 RS Americas 457.08$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6848 SAFETY SHOE DISTRIBUTORS, LLP 3,572.93$                                 

12/01/2023 39997 SAM'S CLUB 615.85$                                    

12/29/2023 40016 SAM'S CLUB 54.20$                                      

11/17/2023 ACH6699 SENSIDYNE LP 2,429.83$                                 

12/01/2023 39998 Sewer Viewer Inc 2,500.00$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6664 SHALINA ODEGARD 246.75$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6743 SIMS CRANE & EQUIPMENT 1,823.25$                                 

12/29/2023 40017 SMITH RANCH & GARDEN  INC 833.00$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6849 SOUTHWEST MOBILE MECHANIC 845.10$                                    

11/17/2023 39979 SPECIALTY PARTS 11.76$                                      

12/01/2023 ACH6744 STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES 87,526.75$                               

12/29/2023 ACH6850 STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES 31,356.90$                               

11/03/2023 ADBT110323 STATE OF FLORIDA DISBURSEMENT UNIT 444.75$                                    

11/17/2023 DBT11172023 STATE OF FLORIDA DISBURSEMENT UNIT 444.75$                                    

12/01/2023 DBT12123 STATE OF FLORIDA DISBURSEMENT UNIT 444.75$                                    

12/15/2023 DBT12152023 STATE OF FLORIDA DISBURSEMENT UNIT 178.39$                                    

12/29/2023 DBT12292023 STATE OF FLORIDA DISBURSEMENT UNIT 444.75$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6665 SUNSHINE ACE HARDWARE 98.89$                                      

11/17/2023 ACH6700 SUNSHINE ACE HARDWARE 250.43$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6745 SUNSHINE ACE HARDWARE 64.95$                                      

12/15/2023 ACH6797 SUNSHINE ACE HARDWARE 87.67$                                      

11/17/2023 ACH6701 SUNSHINE STATE ONE CALL OF FL INC 101.08$                                    

11/03/2023 39970 SUPER T 1,631.86$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6702 SUTTER ROOFING COMPANY OF FLORIDA 16,189.65$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6798 SUTTER ROOFING COMPANY OF FLORIDA 41,117.74$                               

12/01/2023 ACH6746 TAMPA ARMATURE WORKS  INC 145.76$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6666 Tanner Industries, Inc 6,381.19$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6703 Tanner Industries, Inc 6,377.89$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6747 Tanner Industries, Inc 6,437.21$                                 



Date Document Number Payee Name / Description  Amount 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY
CHECK REGISTER: NOVEMBER & DECEMBER 2023

Alphabetically by Vendor

PUBLIC FUNDS INTEREST CHECKING (PNC)

12/15/2023 ACH6799 Tanner Industries, Inc 6,395.47$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6851 Tanner Industries, Inc 6,392.17$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6800 TERRI BRUMFIELD 1,163.28$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6748 THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON 825.00$                                    

11/21/2023 39984 THE SUN 153.01$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6704 THERMO ELECTRON NORTH AMERICA LLC 1,271.25$                                 

12/29/2023 40018 TIRE KINGDOM-Mavis Discount Tire 99.96$                                      

11/03/2023 ACH6667 TOI TOI USA 866.96$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6705 TOI TOI USA 956.22$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6749 TOI TOI USA 433.48$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6750 TRANSCAT  INC 1,605.11$                                 

11/17/2023 39982 TRULY NOLEN  Branch 093 350.00$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6751 TRULY NOLEN BRANCH 079 318.00$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6801 TRULY NOLEN BRANCH 079 350.00$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6852 TRULY NOLEN BRANCH 079 318.00$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6706 U.S. TENT RENTAL INC 5,881.40$                                 

11/03/2023 DBT110323 United States Treasury 39,940.95$                               

11/17/2023 DBT111723 United States Treasury 54,388.40$                               

12/01/2023 DBT120123 United States Treasury 42,982.81$                               

12/15/2023 DBT121523 United States Treasury 44,989.32$                               

12/29/2023 DBT122923 United States Treasury 39,854.52$                               

11/03/2023 ACH6668 UNIVAR SOLUTIONS USA INC 107,820.46$                             

12/01/2023 ACH6752 UNIVAR SOLUTIONS USA INC 127,725.91$                             

12/15/2023 ACH6802 UNIVAR SOLUTIONS USA INC 65,573.21$                               

12/29/2023 ACH6853 UNIVAR SOLUTIONS USA INC 107,424.86$                             

11/17/2023 ACH6707 USA Bluebook 567.14$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6753 USA Bluebook 1,296.17$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6803 USA Bluebook 4,104.73$                                 

11/03/2023 DBT11032023 Valic 9,526.62$                                 

11/15/2023 DBT11172024 Valic 11,597.20$                               

12/04/2023 DBT12012023 Valic 9,536.66$                                 

12/13/2023 DBT121323 Valic 9,889.94$                                 

12/27/2023 DBT122723 Valic 9,718.89$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6708 Vanguard Cleaning Systems of SW Florida 2,400.00$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6804 Vanguard Cleaning Systems of SW Florida 2,400.00$                                 

11/03/2023 39971 VERIZON WIRELESS 92.74$                                      

12/01/2023 39999 VERIZON WIRELESS 96.16$                                      

12/29/2023 40019 VERIZON WIRELESS 100.63$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6754 VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS INC 4,627.85$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6854 VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS INC 4,379.18$                                 

11/17/2023 39983 Waste Pro Bradenton/Sarasota 195.00$                                    

12/29/2023 40020 Waste Pro Bradenton/Sarasota 190.00$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6755 WOMACK SANITATION INC 2,500.25$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6805 WOMACK SANITATION INC 885.00$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6855 Xylem Water Solutions U.S.A., Inc. 8,855.70$                                 

Total 5,444,457.42



Date Document Number Payee Name / Description  Amount 

12/01/2023 ACH6726 FEL-FT MYERS WATERWORKS 339,809.76$                             

12/01/2023 39991 FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 188,773.29$                             

11/03/2023 ACH6639 C & S CHEMICALS INC 169,503.02$                             

12/01/2023 ACH6717 C & S CHEMICALS INC 165,021.78$                             

11/03/2023 ACH6662 Risk Management Associates Inc 162,680.38$                             

11/03/2023 39965 FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 156,640.86$                             

11/16/2023 QuickBooks Payroll Service 154,602.22$                             

11/17/2023 ACH6690 Jacobi Carbons Inc 140,612.80$                             

12/01/2023 ACH6736 Jacobi Carbons Inc 138,846.40$                             

11/30/2023 QuickBooks Payroll Service 132,302.32$                             

12/14/2023 QuickBooks Payroll Service 129,410.44$                             

12/01/2023 ACH6752 UNIVAR SOLUTIONS USA INC 127,725.91$                             

12/28/2023 QuickBooks Payroll Service 124,892.13$                             

11/02/2023 QuickBooks Payroll Service 124,715.87$                             

12/15/2023 ACH6769 CHARLOTTE COUNTY BD OF COMMISSIONER 112,208.61$                             

11/17/2023 ACH6675 CHARLOTTE COUNTY BD OF COMMISSIONER 110,807.78$                             

11/03/2023 ACH6668 UNIVAR SOLUTIONS USA INC 107,820.46$                             

12/15/2023 ACH6795 OVIVO USA LLC 107,594.85$                             

12/29/2023 ACH6853 UNIVAR SOLUTIONS USA INC 107,424.86$                             

12/27/2023 DBT122724 FLORIDA DIVISION OF RETIREMENT 104,990.36$                             

11/03/2023 ACH6632 ALLIED UNIVERSAL CORP 101,334.09$                             

12/15/2023 ACH6765 C & S CHEMICALS INC 96,577.46$                               

12/01/2023 ACH6744 STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES 87,526.75$                               

12/29/2023 ACH6815 C & S CHEMICALS INC 76,784.12$                               

12/01/2023 ACH6734 HVMI LLC 76,595.45$                               

11/27/2023 DBT112723 FLORIDA DIVISION OF RETIREMENT 75,208.19$                               

11/03/2023 ACH6656 Jacobi Carbons Inc 70,619.20$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6784 Jacobi Carbons Inc 67,785.60$                               

11/17/2023 ACH6681 DESOTO COUNTY (V) 66,333.33$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6774 DESOTO COUNTY (V) 66,333.33$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6802 UNIVAR SOLUTIONS USA INC 65,573.21$                               

11/17/2023 ACH6673 C & S CHEMICALS INC 62,033.30$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6760 ALLIED UNIVERSAL CORP 58,006.52$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6790 MANSON BOLVES DONALDSON TANNER 56,887.50$                               

11/17/2023 DBT111723 United States Treasury 54,388.40$                               

12/01/2023 ACH6713 ALLIED UNIVERSAL CORP 51,235.47$                               

12/29/2023 ACH6838 MANSON BOLVES DONALDSON TANNER 50,262.92$                               

12/29/2023 ACH6830 Hach Company 45,992.62$                               

12/15/2023 DBT121523 United States Treasury 44,989.32$                               

11/03/2023 ACH6647 DELL MARKETING LP 43,699.10$                               

12/01/2023 DBT120123 United States Treasury 42,982.81$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6798 SUTTER ROOFING COMPANY OF FLORIDA 41,117.74$                               

11/03/2023 DBT110323 United States Treasury 39,940.95$                               

12/29/2023 DBT122923 United States Treasury 39,854.52$                               

12/29/2023 40012 DESOTO AUTOMOTIVE ENTERPRISES INC 39,418.00$                               

11/03/2023 ACH6638 Brown and Caldwell 34,873.01$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6779 GARNEY CONSTRUCTION 33,012.61$                               

11/17/2023 ACH6694 MANSON BOLVES DONALDSON TANNER 32,173.61$                               

12/29/2023 ACH6850 STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES 31,356.90$                               

12/29/2023 ACH6811 ALLIED UNIVERSAL CORP 28,715.83$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6783 HAZEN AND SAWYER 26,528.80$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6785 JANICKI ENVIRONMENTAL INC 24,111.00$                               

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY
CHECK REGISTER: NOVEMBER & DECEMBER 2023

By Amount Largest to Smallest

PUBLIC FUNDS INTEREST CHECKING (PNC)



Date Document Number Payee Name / Description  Amount 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY
CHECK REGISTER: NOVEMBER & DECEMBER 2023

By Amount Largest to Smallest

PUBLIC FUNDS INTEREST CHECKING (PNC)

11/17/2023 ACH6691 JANICKI ENVIRONMENTAL INC 24,040.00$                               

12/01/2023 ACH6732 Hach Company 21,926.49$                               

12/01/2023 39987 D  M CONSTRUCTION CORP 21,532.77$                               

12/29/2023 ACH6822 Entech Computer Services LLC 20,051.19$                               

12/15/2023 40007 PREFERRED GOVERNMENT INSURANCE TRUS 19,614.00$                               

11/03/2023 ACH6642 CHARLOTTE COUNTY BCC - LANDFILL 18,778.75$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6793 Natural Resources LLC 18,035.67$                               

11/03/2023 39961 D  M CONSTRUCTION CORP 17,373.62$                               

12/29/2023 ACH6834 HVMI LLC 17,181.85$                               

11/17/2023 39976 KED GROUP INC 17,063.20$                               

12/29/2023 40011 D  M CONSTRUCTION CORP 16,685.24$                               

11/17/2023 ACH6702 SUTTER ROOFING COMPANY OF FLORIDA 16,189.65$                               

12/01/2023 ACH6737 JOHNSON ENGINEERING INC 15,920.00$                               

11/03/2023 39967 KED GROUP INC 15,548.00$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6764 Brown and Caldwell 15,119.05$                               

12/15/2023 ACH6775 ENDRESS+HAUSER, INC. 12,880.33$                               

12/29/2023 ACH6836 JOHNSON ENGINEERING INC 12,830.00$                               

11/03/2023 ACH6635 ASSOC OF METROPOLITAN WATER AGENCY 12,700.00$                               

11/17/2023 ACH6689 HVMI LLC 12,028.40$                               

11/15/2023 DBT11172024 Valic 11,597.20$                               

11/17/2023 ACH6687 Hach Company 10,617.00$                               

11/24/2023 ABT112523 PNC Bank (Credit Card) 10,198.29$                               

12/29/2023 ACH6844 RING POWER CORPORATION 9,935.76$                                 

12/13/2023 DBT121323 Valic 9,889.94$                                 

12/27/2023 DBT122723 Valic 9,718.89$                                 

12/04/2023 DBT12012023 Valic 9,536.66$                                 

11/03/2023 DBT11032023 Valic 9,526.62$                                 

12/25/2023 EFT122523 PNC Bank (Credit Card) 9,460.58$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6763 BLACK & VEATCH 9,137.84$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6855 Xylem Water Solutions U.S.A., Inc. 8,855.70$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6808 AIR CENTERS-FLORIDA 8,854.47$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6831 HDR ENGINEERING INC 8,583.08$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6766 CAROLLO ENGINEERS INC 8,102.30$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6677 Cimtec Automation, LLC 7,768.08$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6680 CORONADO LAWN SERVICE OF FL 7,668.00$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6758 AIR CENTERS-FLORIDA 6,816.50$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6649 Entech Computer Services LLC 6,664.45$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6657 Lumen-CenturyLink-6358 6,651.12$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6747 Tanner Industries, Inc 6,437.21$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6799 Tanner Industries, Inc 6,395.47$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6851 Tanner Industries, Inc 6,392.17$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6666 Tanner Industries, Inc 6,381.19$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6703 Tanner Industries, Inc 6,377.89$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6806 Adobe Systems Inc 5,993.88$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6706 U.S. TENT RENTAL INC 5,881.40$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6772 CORONADO LAWN SERVICE OF FL 5,792.00$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6631 RS Americas 5,004.52$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6787 KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES INC 4,934.57$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6812 AMAZON Business 4,913.00$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6756 ADVANTAGE COMMUNICATIONS  INC 4,900.00$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6841 PMC-STS INC 4,894.01$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6698 ROGERS PETROLEUM  INC 4,848.05$                                 



Date Document Number Payee Name / Description  Amount 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY
CHECK REGISTER: NOVEMBER & DECEMBER 2023

By Amount Largest to Smallest

PUBLIC FUNDS INTEREST CHECKING (PNC)

12/29/2023 ACH6829 H2 ENVIRO SOLUTIONS LLC 4,800.00$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6636 BENCHMARK ENVIROANALYTICAL INC 4,783.00$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6754 VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS INC 4,627.85$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6725 EARTH BALANCE 4,594.51$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6854 VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS INC 4,379.18$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6727 Fisher Scientific 4,252.02$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6843 RESPEC Company LLC 4,115.00$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6803 USA Bluebook 4,104.73$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6846 Rite Technology 3,979.59$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6716 BENCHMARK ENVIROANALYTICAL INC 3,957.00$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6653 Hach Company 3,863.50$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6733 Hudson Pump 3,845.10$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6767 CED - Port Charlotte 3,805.00$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6826 FLUID CONTROL SPECIALTIES  INC 3,787.00$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6646 Cummins Power South 3,765.65$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6780 GRAY MATTER SYSTEMS INC 3,736.10$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6816 CED - Port Charlotte 3,712.89$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6821 EARTH BALANCE 3,696.41$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6682 DONALDSON COMPANY INC 3,576.00$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6848 SAFETY SHOE DISTRIBUTORS, LLP 3,572.93$                                 

12/01/2023 39986 CHARLOTTE HARBOR NTL ESTUARY PRGRM 3,500.00$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6828 GoTo Technologies USA inc 3,499.99$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6777 Fisher Scientific 3,284.47$                                 

11/03/2023 39963 DESOTO COUNTY BOCC 3,244.34$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6814 Brown and Caldwell 3,218.56$                                 

12/29/2023 40021 LWR Town Center Association Inc 3,206.00$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6637 Briggs Equipment Inc 3,061.04$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6786 JOHNSON ENGINEERING INC 2,925.00$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6683 Environmental Systems Research Institute 2,881.85$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6738 MOCK ENGINEERING TECHNOLOGIES 2,818.00$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6730 GRAINGER 2,778.52$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6697 PMC-STS INC 2,774.98$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6633 AMAZON Business 2,772.56$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6755 WOMACK SANITATION INC 2,500.25$                                 

12/01/2023 39998 Sewer Viewer Inc 2,500.00$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6699 SENSIDYNE LP 2,429.83$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6708 Vanguard Cleaning Systems of SW Florida 2,400.00$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6804 Vanguard Cleaning Systems of SW Florida 2,400.00$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6654 HDR ENGINEERING INC 2,293.75$                                 

11/03/2023 39969 PNC Bank N A 2,268.50$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6714 Apple Video & Photography Studio 2,095.00$                                 

12/15/2023 40004 FSAWWA 2,000.00$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6672 BENCHMARK ENVIROANALYTICAL INC 1,909.00$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6663 Rite Technology 1,852.51$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6825 Flatiron LIft Systems, LLC 1,850.00$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6743 SIMS CRANE & EQUIPMENT 1,823.25$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6757 AECOM TECHNICAL SERVICES INC 1,803.05$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6782 Hach Company 1,800.84$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6735 IDEXX DISTRIBUTION INC 1,697.34$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6817 CINTAS FIRE 636525 1,662.51$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6837 Lumen-CenturyLink-6358 1,656.85$                                 

12/01/2023 39993 GRAYBAR 1,652.64$                                 



Date Document Number Payee Name / Description  Amount 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY
CHECK REGISTER: NOVEMBER & DECEMBER 2023

By Amount Largest to Smallest

PUBLIC FUNDS INTEREST CHECKING (PNC)

11/17/2023 ACH6669 AMAZON Business 1,636.43$                                 

11/03/2023 39970 SUPER T 1,631.86$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6750 TRANSCAT  INC 1,605.11$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6674 CED - Port Charlotte 1,583.90$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6773 Cummins Power South 1,548.32$                                 

12/01/2023 39995 Ken Burton Jr  Tax Collector 1,514.31$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6742 Public Resources Advisory Group Inc 1,512.50$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6655 Hilltop Securities 1,500.00$                                 

11/03/2023 ACH6645 CULLIGAN WATER of Sarasota 1,369.00$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6845 Risk Management Associates Inc 1,352.00$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6753 USA Bluebook 1,296.17$                                 

12/29/2023 ACH6835 Johnson Controls Security Solutions LLC 1,288.58$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6704 THERMO ELECTRON NORTH AMERICA LLC 1,271.25$                                 

12/29/2023 40013 EUROFINS EATON ANALYTICAL, LLC 1,190.00$                                 

11/17/2023 ACH6685 Fisher Scientific 1,184.22$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6800 TERRI BRUMFIELD 1,163.28$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6741 PRO-CHEM INC 1,101.60$                                 

12/15/2023 40003 DESOTO COUNTY UTILITITES 1,071.06$                                 

12/01/2023 ACH6723 DONALDSON COMPANY INC 1,038.45$                                 

12/01/2023 39992 FW&PCOA 1,020.00$                                 

11/17/2023 39973 DESOTO AUTOMOTIVE ENTERPRISES INC 1,010.46$                                 

12/15/2023 ACH6788 KONE Inc 984.54$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6719 Cimtec Automation, LLC 967.59$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6705 TOI TOI USA 956.22$                                    

12/15/2023 40006 MANATEE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 915.00$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6762 Apex 895.33$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6805 WOMACK SANITATION INC 885.00$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6644 COOL TODAY 870.10$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6667 TOI TOI USA 866.96$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6849 SOUTHWEST MOBILE MECHANIC 845.10$                                    

12/29/2023 40017 SMITH RANCH & GARDEN  INC 833.00$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6748 THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON 825.00$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6768 CENTURYLINK 797.80$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6695 Matt's Lawn Service 775.00$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6791 Matt's Lawn Service 775.00$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6771 CINTAS FIRE 636525 740.61$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6770 CINTAS 693.75$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6842 Public Resources Advisory Group Inc 687.50$                                    

11/17/2023 39975 Gannett Holdings-Florida 643.50$                                    

12/01/2023 39990 FENDER'S TIRE & BATTERY INC 625.00$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6813 Apex 623.23$                                    

12/01/2023 39997 SAM'S CLUB 615.85$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6679 CINTAS FIRE 636525 570.00$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6707 USA Bluebook 567.14$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6809 Air Mechanical & Service Corp 558.00$                                    

12/01/2023 39989 DESOTO COUNTY UTILITITES 550.53$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6676 CHENANGO SUPPLY CO., INC. 536.78$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6650 FEDERAL EXPRESS 536.00$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6711 AIRGAS USA LLC 514.63$                                    

12/01/2023 39994 HOME DEPOT 479.56$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6660 PALM PRINTING 473.54$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6819 COOL TODAY 462.50$                                    



Date Document Number Payee Name / Description  Amount 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY
CHECK REGISTER: NOVEMBER & DECEMBER 2023

By Amount Largest to Smallest

PUBLIC FUNDS INTEREST CHECKING (PNC)

11/17/2023 ACH6671 BABE'S PLUMBING INC. & FIRE SPRINKLER 460.00$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6847 RS Americas 457.08$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6820 DMS-FINANCIAL MGMT SERVICES 452.67$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6722 DMS-FINANCIAL MGMT SERVICES 452.07$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6648 DMS-FINANCIAL MGMT SERVICES 452.03$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6759 ALFA LAVAL INC 451.09$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6724 Doug Morton (V) 448.96$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6824 Fisher Scientific 448.42$                                    

11/03/2023 ADBT110323 STATE OF FLORIDA DISBURSEMENT UNIT 444.75$                                    

11/17/2023 DBT11172023 STATE OF FLORIDA DISBURSEMENT UNIT 444.75$                                    

12/01/2023 DBT12123 STATE OF FLORIDA DISBURSEMENT UNIT 444.75$                                    

12/29/2023 DBT12292023 STATE OF FLORIDA DISBURSEMENT UNIT 444.75$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6720 CINTAS 433.71$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6749 TOI TOI USA 433.48$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6634 Apex 429.12$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6641 CENTURYLINK 401.75$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6740 Precision Gate & Security Inc 400.00$                                    

11/03/2023 39966 JET AUTO SERVICE 396.06$                                    

11/17/2023 39982 TRULY NOLEN  Branch 093 350.00$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6801 TRULY NOLEN BRANCH 079 350.00$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6640 CED - Port Charlotte 347.16$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6739 MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO 341.64$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6781 Gulf Controls Company, Inc. 327.00$                                    

12/15/2023 40009 Manatee County Utilities Department 326.65$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6678 CINTAS 321.00$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6751 TRULY NOLEN BRANCH 079 318.00$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6852 TRULY NOLEN BRANCH 079 318.00$                                    

12/01/2023 39988 DESOTO AUTOMOTIVE ENTERPRISES INC 316.20$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6731 Gulf Controls Company, Inc. 307.93$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6721 CINTAS FIRE 636525 300.00$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6818 Commercial Fire & Communications 288.00$                                    

12/01/2023 39996 Manatee County Utilities Department 282.42$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6692 Jim Guida (V) 277.11$                                    

11/17/2023 39978 QUALITY STARTER & ALT SER INC 272.90$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6718 CED - Port Charlotte 270.90$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6778 FRONTIER-941 270.22$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6728 FRONTIER-941 270.13$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6651 Fisher Scientific 267.17$                                    

12/15/2023 40008 AWWA 266.00$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6810 AIRGAS USA LLC 255.99$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6776 FEL-FT MYERS WATERWORKS 251.22$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6700 SUNSHINE ACE HARDWARE 250.43$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6664 SHALINA ODEGARD 246.75$                                    

12/29/2023 40014 Gannett Holdings-Florida 244.75$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6729 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS-305 240.98$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6827 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS-305 240.98$                                    

12/15/2023 40005 HOME DEPOT 216.85$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6688 Hostetler Irrigation Inc 212.17$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6659 NAVITAS CREDIT CORP 211.58$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6696 NAVITAS CREDIT CORP 211.58$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6794 NAVITAS CREDIT CORP 211.58$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6839 NAVITAS CREDIT CORP 211.58$                                    



Date Document Number Payee Name / Description  Amount 

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY
CHECK REGISTER: NOVEMBER & DECEMBER 2023

By Amount Largest to Smallest

PUBLIC FUNDS INTEREST CHECKING (PNC)

12/29/2023 ACH6840 Pitney Bowes- Lease 209.85$                                    

11/17/2023 39972 Braden River Utilities LLC 209.72$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6661 Pitney Bowes Purchase Power 200.00$                                    

11/17/2023 39983 Waste Pro Bradenton/Sarasota 195.00$                                    

12/29/2023 40020 Waste Pro Bradenton/Sarasota 190.00$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6715 BATTERIES PLUS BULBS #451 186.70$                                    

12/15/2023 DBT12152023 STATE OF FLORIDA DISBURSEMENT UNIT 178.39$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6670 Apex 171.28$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6761 ANN LEE (V) 164.00$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6693 Lumen - Centurylink 3363 157.88$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6658 Lumen - Centurylink 3363 157.77$                                    

12/15/2023 ACH6789 Lumen - Centurylink 3363 157.66$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6686 Gulf Controls Company, Inc. 155.38$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6684 FEDERAL EXPRESS 155.31$                                    

11/21/2023 39984 THE SUN 153.01$                                    

11/03/2023 39968 NaturZone Pest Control 146.79$                                    

12/01/2023 ACH6746 TAMPA ARMATURE WORKS  INC 145.76$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6833 Hostetler Irrigation Inc 135.00$                                    

12/15/2023 40002 Braden River Utilities LLC 134.62$                                    

12/29/2023 ACH6807 ADVANTAGE CARE INC. 120.00$                                    

11/03/2023 ACH6643 CINTAS 107.00$                                    

11/17/2023 ACH6701 SUNSHINE STATE ONE CALL OF FL INC 101.08$                                    

12/29/2023 40019 VERIZON WIRELESS 100.63$                                    

12/29/2023 40018 TIRE KINGDOM-Mavis Discount Tire 99.96$                                      

11/03/2023 ACH6665 SUNSHINE ACE HARDWARE 98.89$                                      

12/01/2023 39999 VERIZON WIRELESS 96.16$                                      

11/03/2023 39971 VERIZON WIRELESS 92.74$                                      

12/15/2023 ACH6797 SUNSHINE ACE HARDWARE 87.67$                                      

11/17/2023 39977 NaturZone Pest Control 83.79$                                      

12/29/2023 40015 NaturZone Pest Control 83.79$                                      

12/01/2023 ACH6710 ADVANTAGE CARE INC. 80.00$                                      

11/03/2023 39962 DESOTO COUNTY SHERIFF'S OFFICE 75.00$                                      

12/15/2023 ACH6792 MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO 69.70$                                      

12/01/2023 ACH6745 SUNSHINE ACE HARDWARE 64.95$                                      

12/29/2023 40016 SAM'S CLUB 54.20$                                      

11/03/2023 ACH6652 George Pennell (V) 50.00$                                      

12/15/2023 ACH6796 RS Americas 49.60$                                      

12/29/2023 ACH6832 Henry Meredith 33.69$                                      

12/29/2023 ACH6823 FEDERAL EXPRESS 23.78$                                      

12/29/2023 40010 BILL'S BOTTLED WATER SERVICE 16.50$                                      

11/17/2023 39979 SPECIALTY PARTS 11.76$                                      

12/01/2023 39985 BILL'S BOTTLED WATER SERVICE 11.25$                                      

12/01/2023 ACH6712 RS Americas 7.44$                                        

11/03/2023 39964 FDOT 6.75$                                        

11/17/2023 39974 FDOT 2.50$                                        

Total 5,444,457.42



Date Document Number Payee Name / Description  Amount 

11/03/2023 CACH286 Brown and Caldwell 613,117.41$                            

11/03/2023 CACH287 HDR ENGINEERING INC 844,407.12$                            

11/03/2023 CACH288 STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES 143,095.33$                            

11/17/2023 2798 Woodruff & Sons, Inc. 222,502.07$                            

11/17/2023 CACH289 CAROLLO ENGINEERS INC 167,448.27$                            

11/17/2023 CACH290 DMK ASSOCIATES 9,950.04$                                

11/17/2023 CACH291 Wade Trim INC 45,584.98$                              

12/01/2023 2799 TLC Diversified Inc 185,428.90$                            

12/01/2023 CACH292 CAROLLO ENGINEERS INC 278,765.02$                            

12/01/2023 CACH293 GARNEY CONSTRUCTION 625,663.65$                            

12/01/2023 CACH294 JOHNSON ENGINEERING INC 12,450.00$                              

12/15/2023 CACH295 American SpiralWeld Pipe Company LLC 74,400.00$                              

12/15/2023 CACH296 Ardurra Group (CIP) 2,900.00$                                

12/15/2023 CACH297 Brown and Caldwell 65,864.75$                              

12/15/2023 CACH298 CAROLLO ENGINEERS INC 14,348.18$                              

12/15/2023 CACH299 DESOTO COUNTY BOCC 169.71$                                   

12/19/2023 2800 Mike Coates: For Stip. Judement Cashiers Check 113,900.00$                            

12/19/2023 2801 Mike Coates: For Stip. Judement Cashiers Check 1,716.00$                                

12/29/2023 2802 TLC Diversified Inc 134,252.02$                            

12/29/2023 CACH300 Ardurra Group (CIP) 706.00$                                   

12/29/2023 CACH301 Brown and Caldwell 8,867.50$                                

12/29/2023 CACH302 CAROLLO ENGINEERS INC 242,457.73$                            

12/29/2023 CACH303 GARNEY CONSTRUCTION 850,131.79$                            

12/29/2023 CACH304 HDR ENGINEERING INC 148,146.06$                            

12/29/2023 CACH305 Manson Bolves Donaldson Tanner PA 87,215.00$                              

12/29/2023 CACH306 STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES 10,748.50$                              

Total 4,904,236.03

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY
CHECK REGISTER: NOVEMBER & DECEMBER 2023

CONSTRUCTION CHECKING (PNC)



Date Document Number Payee Name / Description  Amount 

12/15/2023 CACH295 American SpiralWeld Pipe Company LLC 74,400.00$                              

12/15/2023 CACH296 Ardurra Group (CIP) 2,900.00$                                

12/29/2023 CACH300 Ardurra Group (CIP) 706.00$                                   

11/03/2023 CACH286 Brown and Caldwell 613,117.41$                            

12/15/2023 CACH297 Brown and Caldwell 65,864.75$                              

12/29/2023 CACH301 Brown and Caldwell 8,867.50$                                

11/17/2023 CACH289 CAROLLO ENGINEERS INC 167,448.27$                            

12/01/2023 CACH292 CAROLLO ENGINEERS INC 278,765.02$                            

12/15/2023 CACH298 CAROLLO ENGINEERS INC 14,348.18$                              

12/29/2023 CACH302 CAROLLO ENGINEERS INC 242,457.73$                            

12/15/2023 CACH299 DESOTO COUNTY BOCC 169.71$                                   

11/17/2023 CACH290 DMK ASSOCIATES 9,950.04$                                

12/01/2023 CACH293 GARNEY CONSTRUCTION 625,663.65$                            

12/29/2023 CACH303 GARNEY CONSTRUCTION 850,131.79$                            

11/03/2023 CACH287 HDR ENGINEERING INC 844,407.12$                            

12/29/2023 CACH304 HDR ENGINEERING INC 148,146.06$                            

12/01/2023 CACH294 JOHNSON ENGINEERING INC 12,450.00$                              

12/29/2023 CACH305 Manson Bolves Donaldson Tanner PA 87,215.00$                              

12/19/2023 2800 Mike Coates: For Stip. Judement Cashiers Check 113,900.00$                            

12/19/2023 2801 Mike Coates: For Stip. Judement Cashiers Check 1,716.00$                                

11/03/2023 CACH288 STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES 143,095.33$                            

12/29/2023 CACH306 STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES 10,748.50$                              

12/01/2023 2799 TLC Diversified Inc 185,428.90$                            

12/29/2023 2802 TLC Diversified Inc 134,252.02$                            

11/17/2023 CACH291 Wade Trim INC 45,584.98$                              

11/17/2023 2798 Woodruff & Sons, Inc. 222,502.07$                            

Total 4,904,236.03

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY
CHECK REGISTER: NOVEMBER & DECEMBER 2023

Alphabetically by Vendor

CONSTRUCTION CHECKING (PNC)



Date Document Number Payee Name / Description  Amount 

12/29/2023 CACH303 GARNEY CONSTRUCTION 850,131.79$                            

11/03/2023 CACH287 HDR ENGINEERING INC 844,407.12$                            

12/01/2023 CACH293 GARNEY CONSTRUCTION 625,663.65$                            

11/03/2023 CACH286 Brown and Caldwell 613,117.41$                            

12/01/2023 CACH292 CAROLLO ENGINEERS INC 278,765.02$                            

12/29/2023 CACH302 CAROLLO ENGINEERS INC 242,457.73$                            

11/17/2023 2798 Woodruff & Sons, Inc. 222,502.07$                            

12/01/2023 2799 TLC Diversified Inc 185,428.90$                            

11/17/2023 CACH289 CAROLLO ENGINEERS INC 167,448.27$                            

12/29/2023 CACH304 HDR ENGINEERING INC 148,146.06$                            

11/03/2023 CACH288 STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES 143,095.33$                            

12/29/2023 2802 TLC Diversified Inc 134,252.02$                            

12/19/2023 2800 Mike Coates: For Stip. Judement Cashiers Check 113,900.00$                            

12/29/2023 CACH305 Manson Bolves Donaldson Tanner PA 87,215.00$                              

12/15/2023 CACH295 American SpiralWeld Pipe Company LLC 74,400.00$                              

12/15/2023 CACH297 Brown and Caldwell 65,864.75$                              

11/17/2023 CACH291 Wade Trim INC 45,584.98$                              

12/15/2023 CACH298 CAROLLO ENGINEERS INC 14,348.18$                              

12/01/2023 CACH294 JOHNSON ENGINEERING INC 12,450.00$                              

12/29/2023 CACH306 STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES 10,748.50$                              

11/17/2023 CACH290 DMK ASSOCIATES 9,950.04$                                

12/29/2023 CACH301 Brown and Caldwell 8,867.50$                                

12/15/2023 CACH296 Ardurra Group (CIP) 2,900.00$                                

12/19/2023 2801 Mike Coates: For Stip. Judement Cashiers Check 1,716.00$                                

12/29/2023 CACH300 Ardurra Group (CIP) 706.00$                                   

12/15/2023 CACH299 DESOTO COUNTY BOCC 169.71$                                   

Total 4,904,236.03

PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY
CHECK REGISTER: NOVEMBER & DECEMBER 2023

By Amount Largest to Smallest

CONSTRUCTION CHECKING (PNC)



PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 7, 2024 
 
 

ROUTINE STATUS REPORTS  
ITEM 3 

 
Peace River Regional Reservoir No. 3 (PR3) – Project Update 



 

Routine Status Report 3 – Peace River Regional Reservoir No. 3 (PR3) Project Update  Page 1 of 6 

ROUTINE STATUS REPORTS  
ITEM 3 

 
Project Status Report 
 
Project: Peace River Regional Reservoir No. 3 (PR3) Project Update 
 
Date: February 7, 2024 
 
Prepared by:  Terri Holcomb, PE, Director of Engineering 
 
  
Project Description 
 
The key to the use of seasonally available surface water as a reliable public water supply is the 
ability to harvest and store large volumes of water during relatively short periods of availability. 
The Peace River facility utilizes off-stream raw water reservoirs and an aquifer storage and 
recovery system to support the use of supplies skimmed from the Peace River as an alternative 
water supply, reliably meeting much of the drinking water needs in the District’s southern water 
planning area. The Peace River Reservoir No. 3 (PR3) Project will include a third off-stream raw 
water reservoir (minimum 6 BG capacity) at the Peace River site in DeSoto County, expanded 
river intake capacity, and connecting pipelines.   
 
The Reservoir No. 3 Project is supported by the Authority’s Water Use Permit (20 010420.010) 
issued February 26, 2019 which authorized increasing the maximum daily withdrawal from the 
Peace River from 120 MGD to 258 MGD to enhance the capture and storage of excess flows 
during the wet season. The increase in withdrawal will facilitate gaining additional drinking 
water supply yield from this system.  In addition, the Authority’s 2020 Master Water Supply 
Plan identified an additional 15 MGD in alternative water supply capacity development is 
available from the Peace River Facility Expansion Project, inclusive of the PR3 Project and the 
water treatment plant expansion, now called the “Surface Water Supply Expansion Project” 0. 
The Southwest Florida Water Management District is funding the Final Design and Construction 
portion of the PR3 Project in the amount of $115,700,000. 
 
Current status 
 
Work Order No. 3 ‘Peace River Regional Reservoir No. 3 (PR3) Final Design and Permitting with 
HDR Engineering, Inc. includes environmental and geotechnical site characterization; 60%, 90%, 
100% and Ready to Advertise Design Documents; Environmental Permitting efforts to secure the 
ERP and development of mitigation design documents to support the ERP.  Board Approval of 
Work Order No. 3 – Peace River Regional Reservoir No. 3 (PR3) Final Design and Permitting in 
the amount of $8,408,449 was approved at the October 4, 2023, Board Meeting. 
 
The Construction Management at Risk (CMAR) Contract for the PR3 Pumping and Conveyance 
Facilities was approved at the December 6, 2023, Board Meeting and included a Scope of Services 
for Phase 1A Services in the amount of $1,251,900.  



 

Routine Status Report 3 – Peace River Regional Reservoir No. 3 (PR3) Project Update  Page 2 of 6 

Project History Briefing 
 
Project: Peace River Regional Reservoir (PR3) Project Update 
 
Date:  February 7, 2024 
 
Prepared by: Terri Holcomb, PE, Director of Engineering 
 
 
 
The following information summarizes the historical milestones and key events to date for the 
Peace River Regional Reservoir No. 3 (PR3) Project, including Work Order No. 2 - Peace River 
Regional Reservoir (PR3) Project Preliminary Design, Permitting and Third-Party Review; Work 
Order No. 3 – Final Design and Permitting and the Phase 1A Services Package for CMAR services 
for the PR3 Pumping and Conveyance Facilities – preconstruction phase. 
 
February 2022 Board approved the Peace River Regional Reservoir (PR3) Project 

Preliminary Design, Permitting and Third-Party Review Work Order No. 
2 on February 3, 2022. 

 
March 2022 The Site Characterization Task commenced with the Geotechnical Kick-

Off meeting on March 1st.  The Wetland Delineations began on March 17th 
and continued on March 18th and again on March 28th – 30th. The first 
Monthly Progress Meeting was held on March 17th.  Geotechnical field 
investigations began on March 14th, with the equipment being mobilized to 
the Reserve.  Soil/auger borings and other geotechnical investigations will 
continue through June. 

 
April 2022 The Monthly Progress Meeting was held on April 14th.  Wetland 

delineations continued April 11th – 14th; and April 20th – 22nd. 
Geotechnical field investigations continued throughout the month of April.   

  
May 2022 The Monthly Progress Meeting was held on May 10th. The Consultant 

held a System Conveyance Workshop on May 2nd with Operations, 
Engineering, and Water Resources staff. An Environmental Permitting / 
Mitigation Strategy meeting was held virtually on May 12th.  Geotechnical 
field investigations continued through the month of May. 

 
June 2022  The Monthly Progress Meeting was held on June 9th, 2022.  Geotechnical 

and Environmental field investigations continued through the month of 
June.  A site visit to the existing intake structure was held on June 2 by the 
Consultant Team to coordinate siting and intake orientation design efforts. 

 
July 2022  The Monthly Progress Meeting was held on July 14, 2022.  15 % Design 

Drawings and Basis of Design Report was received on July 15th, 2022.  On 
July 25th, a Communications Workshop was held to review the Authority’s 



  

Routine Status Report 3 – Peace River Regional Reservoir No. 3 (PR3) Project Update  Page 3 of 6 

goals and messaging objectives for the PR3 Project.  Authority staff met 
with FWC staff in Tallahassee on July 27th to discuss the benefits of 
restoration efforts on Orange Hammock. 

 
August 2022 A 15% Design – Review Workshop was held on August 16th with 

Consultant and Authority Staff to go over comments from Authority staff 
on the conceptual design.  The Monthly Progress Meeting was held on 
August 18th via MS Teams in conjunction with a meeting on the 
conceptual, preliminary mitigation strategy.  The consultant attended a 
discussion on the preparation of presentation items for the upcoming 
Professional Staff Meeting.  The Consultant provided a 15% Cost 
Estimate for the PR3 Project on August 31st and also provided an MS 
Teams presentation on the basis of the estimates on August 31st. 

 
September 2022 The Consultant presented an update on the PR3 Project – 15% Preliminary 

Design Milestone at the Professional Staff Meeting held on September 7th 
in Sarasota County.  The Consultant provided a Communications Project 
Fact Sheet on the PR3 Project on September 12th.  The Consultant 
performed additional geotechnical work, including piezometer water 
quality testing on the PR3 site on September 15th. 

 
October 2022 The Consultant presented an update on the PR3 Project – 15% Preliminary 

Design Milestone at the Board Meeting on October 5, 2022.  The 
Consultant held a meeting on October 11th to discuss conceptual ERP 
Permitting strategy and milestones.  A 15% Design Review Workshop 
was held at the PRF on October 18th to review comments received on the 
15% Design Plans and Cost Estimate and was in conjunction with the 
Monthly Progress Meeting. On October 25th, the Consultant held meetings 
on easement acquisition and mitigation efforts.  

 
November 2022 The Consultant held a 30% Design and Conveyance Pipeline Workshop at 

the PRF on November 1st. A PR3 Cost Savings Alternative Discussion 
was held on November 9th.  The Monthly Progress Meeting was held on 
November 10th. A Preliminary Design Cost Reduction Measure 
Memorandum was received on November 16th.  

 
December 2022 On December 1st, the Consultant Team held a preparation meeting for 

FDEP pre-application meeting held on December 6th.  A Permitting 
Coordination Meeting was held with Authority staff and GC on December 
9th.  On December 12th, Authority staff met to discuss delivery methods 
for both the PR3 Project and the WTP Expansion Project.  On December 
14th – PR3 Project Manager and Authority Project Manager met to discuss 
obtaining a sub-consultant to assist with permitting agency coordination. 
There was no monthly progress meeting held in December. 

 
January 2023 The monthly progress meeting was held on January 12th.  On January 20th, 



  

Routine Status Report 3 – Peace River Regional Reservoir No. 3 (PR3) Project Update  Page 4 of 6 

The Consultant met with Green Source to develop a scope and fee for 
assistance with environmental permitting coordination. 

 
February 2023  The monthly progress meeting was held on February 15th.  A meeting was 

held on February 13th to discuss the wetland mitigation approach and 
recent field investigations.  Ongoing species surveys and geotechnical 
investigations occurred throughout the month. 

 
March 2023 The monthly progress meeting and 30% design review workshop were 

held on March 20th.  The 30% design deliverables were delivered on 
March 10th.  A follow-up meeting on wetland mitigation and permitting 
updates was held on March 14th. 

  
April 2023  The 30% Design Progress Update was presented to the Board at the April 

5th meeting. The monthly progress meeting was held in conjunction with 
the SWFWMD Third-Party Review Kick-Off meeting held on April 14th.  
A Preapplication Meeting with the Army Corp of Engineers (ACOE) was 
held on April 13th to discuss Section 404 and the ERP Permitting 
approach.   

 
May 2023  A meeting with FDEP was held on May 2nd to discuss the environmental 

permitting approach for the CDV site.  The Third-Party Review Draft 
Comments meeting was held with the SWFWMD and TPR Consultant on 
May 15th. The monthly progress meeting was held in conjunction with the 
30% Design Review Workshops.  The Reservoir Design Workshop was 
held on May 23rd, and the Pipeline Design Workshop was held on May 
24th.  

 
June 2023  A meeting was held on June 2nd to review the FDEP 404 Preapplication 

strategy. The monthly progress meeting was held on Thursday, June 8th.  
A 30% Design Review discussion was held with the SWFWMD on June 
19th.  A follow-up to the June 2nd FDEP permitting meeting was held on 
June 21st.  A meeting was held with the Consultant on June 22nd to review 
the Demand Projections Technical Memorandum. A meeting was held on 
June 30th to coordinate the Design/Permitting team for the July 12th FDEP 
404 Preapplication Meeting. 

 
July 2023  A meeting was held on July 6th to coordinate the Team for the July 12th 

FDEP 404 Preapplication Meeting. A meeting with FDEP was held on 
July 12th.  The PR3 CMAR Mandatory Pre-SOQ Meeting was held on 
Friday, July 14th. The Monthly Progress Meeting was held on July 18th. 
An ERP pre-application meeting was held with the SWFWMD on July 
31st. 

 
August 2023  ERP coordination meetings were held on August 3rd, 16th, and 30th for the 

ERP Application Submittal on September 15th. The PR3 CMAR SOQs 



  

Routine Status Report 3 – Peace River Regional Reservoir No. 3 (PR3) Project Update  Page 5 of 6 

were submitted on August 17th, and 4 Firms submitted them:  Archer 
Western, Garney, Kiewit, and PCL.  The PSEC meeting to review, rank, 
and shortlist the firms was held on August 29th – all four firms were 
recommended to proceed to the Presentation.  

 
September 2023 ERP coordination meetings were held on September 7th and September 

14th.  The PR3 CMAR SOQ PSEC presentations were given on September 
12th, with the following rankings: Archer Western, PCL, Garney, and 
Kiewit.  The staff recommendation to approve Archer Western as the 
selected CMAR Firm for the PR3 Project will go to the October 4th Board 
Meeting. The ERP Package was submitted to the SWFWMD on 
September 15th – completing the final deliverable for the Preliminary 
Design efforts.  The Monthly Progress meeting was held on September 
14th.  Work Order No. 2 – Preliminary Design and Permitting Services 
was completed. 

 
October 2023 On October 4, 2023, the Board approved Work Order No. 3 – Final 

Design and Permitting for the Project.  On October 11th, the Authority and 
Archer Western met for a scoping meeting to discuss items that the 
CMAR would need to include in their 1st Early Contractor Engagement 
Scope of Services.  On October 30th, Authority staff, consultants, and 
representatives from SWFWMD met to review the ERP package 
submitted on September 15th to the District. 

 
November 2023 On November 13, 2023, a Final Design and Permitting Project Kick-off 

meeting was held with the Consultant at the PRF. On November 14th, the 
second scoping meeting with Archer Western was held to finalize the 
CMAR Scope of Services and Fee for Package 1A of the CMAR Contract 
for the PR3 Pumping and Conveyance Facilities Project.  An ERP 
coordination discussion with SWFWMD, HDR, and the Authority was 
held on November 27th.  A PR3 CMAR Workshop with Archer Western, 
HDR, and Authority Staff was held on November 28th.  

 
December 2023 The Construction Management at Risk (CMAR) Contract for the PR3 

Pumping and Conveyance Facilities was approved at the December 6th, 
2023, Board Meeting and included a Scope of Services for Phase 1A 
Services in the amount of $1,251,900. The Monthly Progress Meeting was 
held on December 15th. A PR3 CMAR Team Leader Meeting was held on 
December 12th.  The PR3 Pump Station Design Workshop was held on 
December 15th.  The PR3 Environmental Permitting Coordination Meeting 
was held with SWFWMD, HDR and the Authority on December 15th.    

 
January 2024 The PR3 CMAR Team Leader Meeting was held on January 2nd.  A PR3 

Filling, Permitting, and Mitigation Discussion was held with the CMAR, 
HDR, and Authority staff on January 5th. A PR3 CMAR Team Leader 
Meeting was held on January 9th.  A PR3 VE/Constructability Workshop 



  

Routine Status Report 3 – Peace River Regional Reservoir No. 3 (PR3) Project Update  Page 6 of 6 

was held on January 10th.  A Civil/Reservoir Design Workshop Was held 
on January 11th.  A PR3 Permitting Meeting with HDR and Black and 
Veatch (FDEPs Consultant for the Dam Safety Review of the ERP) was 
held on January 12th. A PR3 CMAR Team Leader meeting was held on 
January 16th. A PR3 River Intake Design Discussion was held on January 
18th.  The PR3 Environmental Permitting Coordination Meeting was held 
with SWFWMD, HDR, and the Authority on January 22nd.  A PR3 CMAR 
Team Leader meeting was held on January 23rd.  A PR3 CMAR 
Scheduling Workshop was held on January 26th in conjunction with the 
HDR Team and Authority staff.  A PR3 CMAR Team Leader meeting was 
held on January 30th. 



PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 7, 2024 
 
 

ROUTINE STATUS REPORTS  
ITEM 4 

 
Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 2B Pipeline Project 



 Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 2B Pipeline Project 
February 7, 2024 

 
 

 1 of 9 

Project Status Report 
 
Project: Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 2B Pipeline Project 
   
Date:  February 7, 2024 
 
Prepared by: Mike Knowles, P.E., Project Manager 
 
  
The following information summarizes the project description and status. (see attached general 
project area figure).  
 
Project Description 
 
The Phase Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 2B Pipeline is approximately 13-miles of 42-
inch diameter pipe beginning near the western end of the existing Phase 2 Regional Interconnect 
and 36-inch diameter Charlotte County Regional Transmission Main (CCTM), near the 
intersection of Harbor Boulevard and Veterans Boulevard in Charlotte County.  As currently 
envisioned, based on the recently completed Phase 2B/2C Feasibility and Routing Study, the 
Phase 2B Pipeline will extend generally west and south, crossing the Myakka River terminating 
at or in the vicinity of the Charlotte County Utilities Gulf Cove Booster Station.  The Phase 2B 
Pipeline Project will be delivered (designed, permitted, and constructed) via Progressive Design-
Build (PDB).  The project includes metering facilities, telemetry, and other appurtenances 
appropriate to make the Phase 2B Project fully functional for transfer and delivery of finished 
water, and support a future connection with the Regional Integrated Loop Phase 2C Interconnect. 
As pointed out at the April 2022 Board Meeting, Phase 2B/2C implementation will be 
subdivided into two separate projects.   The Phase 2C Interconnect is anticipated to begin in 
2029. 
 
Progressive Design-Build Team Selection Process 
 
On June 24th, 2022, the Authority received four Statements of Qualification proposals on a 
timely basis for Progressive Design-Build Services.  The first Professional Services Evaluation 
Committee (PSEC) meeting was held on June 30th and all four Teams were shorted-listed and 
proceed to the interview stage.  One short-listed Team declined the opportunity to interview.  
PSEC interviews with presentations were held on July 14th, 2022, and the top two (2) Teams 
were recommended to the Board on August 3, 2022, for delivery of the Regional Integrated Loop 
System Phase 3C Pipeline Project and the Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 2B Pipeline 
Project.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 2B Pipeline Project 
February 7, 2024 

 
 

 2 of 9 

Current Status 
 
Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 2B Project Schedule Overview 
 
The Project will be subdivided into 2 Phases.  The schedule includes: 

 Phase 1 – Includes - Contract for Progressive Design Build Services - scope and fee.  
Scope includes 60% design, property and permitting and GMP for Phase 2 Services.  
Scope/fee and Phase 1 Services are due September 20, 2022, for consideration at the 
October 5th, Board Meeting. 

 Phase 2 – final scope and fee/GMP.  Final scope and Phase 2 GMP includes, final design, 
construction, permitting, property acquisition, testing, and final completion.  Phase 2 
GMP will be added to the Contract by Addendum and is brought to the Board for 
consideration in December 2023. 

 Phase 2B Pipeline Project substantial completion is scheduled for March 1, 2026. 
 
   

On October 5, 2022, the Board approved the Contract with Woodruff and Sons Inc. for the Phase   
Phase 2B Pipeline, and Phase 1 Design Services for 60% Design and development of the  
Guaranteed Maximum Price, in the amount of $5,067,144.81.  
 
Woodruff and Sons, Inc. submitted all insurance requirements for the Phase 2B Contract.  The 
Contract was executed by the Authority and the Notice-to-Proceed for the project was issued to 
Woodruff and Sons, Inc., November 10, 2022.  
 
Woodruff and Sons, Inc. November/December 2022 submitted Technical Memorandum No. 1 – 
Pipe Material and Size and Technical Memorandum No. 2 – Alignment and Easement including 
10% Design Plans.  Field services for the first 7-miles of the alignment from the termination of 
the Phase 2A Pipeline west along Hillsborough Blvd. to US-41. Field work including survey, 
geotechnical and subsurface utility engineering are underway.   
 
In mid-February 2023, Woodruff and Sons, Inc. submitted 30% Design Drawings for the first 7-
miles of the alignment and Technical Memorandums 3-to-6, on hydraulic analysis, water and 
road crossings, corrosion control and the Gulf Cove Booster Station. W&S anticipates 
completing the draft Basis of Design Report (30%) design in early April 2023.  
 
In April 2023, Woodruff and Sons, Inc. submitted the 30% Basis of Design Report and 30% 
Design Drawings updates to the Authority for review. On June 16, 2023, the 30% design 
package (BODR & Design Drawings) was forwarded to the District Project Manager for Third 
Party Review in accordance with the Cooperative Funding Agreement. On September 15, 2023, 
the draft 60% Design Package and GMP was submitted to the Authority and Charlotte County. 
The following Monday, SWFWMD received the draft 60% package. 
 
In November 2023, the Design-Build Team completed the 60% design package and the GMP. 
The Authority coordinated with Charlotte County to amend the Interlocal Agreement to cover 
the GMP costs. 



 Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 2B Pipeline Project 
February 7, 2024 

 
 

 3 of 9 

Project History Briefing 
 
The following information summarizes the historical milestones and events of the Regional 
Integrated Loop System Phase 2B Project.  
 
 Project History – The Board approved the Contract for Professional Services with Kimley 

Horn Associates, Inc. (KM) for the ‘Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 2B and Phase 
2C Feasibility and Routing Study’ on December 2, 2020, in the amount of $399,960.  Kimley 
Horn was issued the Notice-to-Proceed on January 6, 2021.  The Project was completed on 
time and within budget. Subsequently, the project was subdivided into two separate pipeline 
projects, the Phase 2B and Phase 2C.   
 

 April 6, 2022, Board Meeting – KH presented the recommended route for the Phase 2B 
Interconnect Pipeline (2B.1) to the Board.  The Authority stated that going forward the 
PH2B/2C project would proceed as two separate Projects, the PH2B Interconnect Pipeline 
and the PH2C Interconnect Pipeline.  The PH2B Pipeline will use a Progressive Design Build 
Delivery approach for design and construction of the project. Final construction completion 
for the Phase 2B Pipeline Project is anticipated to be March 1, 2026.  The PH2C Pipeline 
Project has been deferred until 2029 based upon projected water demands from Regional 
Customers/Members per the Authority’s Capital Improvements Project (CIP) and Capital 
Needs Assessments (CNA) planning.  The Board approved, a Motion for the Recommended 
PH2B Route, and a Motion for the Interlocal Agreement between Charlotte County and the 
Authority for the PH2B Project.  

 
 May 24, 2022 - The Authority advertised for Statements of Qualifications (SOQs) for 

Progressive Design-Build Services for the Regional Integrated Loop Phase 2B and Phase 3C 
Pipelines.  Per the Information Package, the Authority will make two awards, one for the 
Phase 2B Project and one for the Phase 3C Project. The top-rated Progressive Design-Build 
Team will select either the Phase 2B Project or the Phase 3C Project.  The second highest 
rated Team will be select the other pipeline project.   

 
 June 7, 2022 – Addendum No. 1 – Updates to Information Package - was posted for 

Progressive Design-Teams expressing interest.   
 

 June 7, 2022 – Addendum No. 2 – Response to Questions – was posted. 
 

 June 14, 2022 – Addendum No. 3 – Response to Questions (final) – was posted. 
 
 June 24, 2022 – Four Progressive Design-Build Team SOQ packages were timely received.  

Each PDB Team consists of a Prime Contractor and Prime Engineer.  Teams in alphabetical 
order include: 

o Garney Companies and Ardurra Group 
o Quality Enterprises and GradyMinor & Associates 
o Westra Construction and McKim & Creed 
o Woodruff & Sons and Kimley Horn 



 Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 2B Pipeline Project 
February 7, 2024 

 
 

 4 of 9 

 
 June 30, 2022 – The first Professional Selection Evaluation Committee (PSEC) meeting was 

held, and all four Design Build Teams were short listed.  The PSEC included 3-Authority 
representatives and one representative each, from Charlotte and Sarasota Counties.  Per 
Committee Member evaluations of SOQ Proposals: 

o Garney Companies and Ardurra Group – rated first 
o Westra Construction and McKim & Creed – rated second 
o Woodruff & Sons and Kimley Horn – rated third 
o Quality Enterprises and GradyMinor & Associates – rated four (declined presentation 

and interview) 
 

 July 14, 2022 – The second PSEC meeting was held for presentations and interviews.  
Woodruff & Sons, Inc. was recommended for the Phase 2B Regional Integrated Loop System 
Interconnect Project. 
 

 August 3, 2022 – The Board Approved the PSEC’s recommendation of Woodruff & Sons Inc., 
Design-Build Team for delivery of the Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 2B Pipeline. 
Staff began preparation of the Contract Documents on August 5th, 2022. 

 
 September – Staff continues to negotiate Contract Documents including the Agreement, 

General Conditions, Exhibits, and Phase 1 Design Services Fee for the Project.  The Regional 
Integrated Loop System Phase 2B Pipeline Project – Phase 1 Services Contract will be 
presented to Board for approval at the October 5, 2022 meeting. 

 
 October 5, 2022 – Board approved the Contract with Woodruff and Sons Inc. for the Phase 2B 

Pipeline Project and Phase 1 Design Services for the 60% Design and development of the 
Guaranteed Maximum Price in the amount of $5,067,144.81. 

 
 November 1, 2022 – Woodruff and Sons submitted final insurance requirements for the 

Contract. 
 

 November 8, 2022 – Woodruff and Sons submitted Technical Memorandum No.1  - Pipeline 
Material and size and draft 10% design drawings.  Woodruff and Sons will be collecting bids 
from Ductile Iron Pipe vendors, Steel Pipe vendors, and HDPE vendors for the Horizontal 
Directional Drill (HDPE) under the Myakka River.  After Woodruff receives bid prices, they 
will compare the cost of the material and the cost installation for each type of Pipe (ductile or 
steel) and select most cost-effective approach. 

 
 November 10, 2022 – The Authority executed the Contract and issued the Notice-to-Proceed 

for the Phase 2B Pipeline, Progressive Design-Build Project to Woodruff and Sons, Inc. 
 

 December 1, 2022 – The Authority and Kimley Horn met (virtual) with Charlotte County 
Utilities staff & Jones Edmunds to discuss the Charlotte County Hydraulic Model for the Phase 
2B Pipeline being developed. 

 



 Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 2B Pipeline Project 
February 7, 2024 

 
 

 5 of 9 

 December 21, 2022 – Tech. Memo 2 PH 2B Pipeline - Alignment & Easement Requirements 
and updated 10% Design Drawings. 

 
 January 11, 2023 – The Authority, and Woodruff and Sons met (virtual) with Charlotte County 

Public Works and the City of North Port Pump works to discuss the PH 2B pipeline along 
Hillsborough Blvd and Chancellor Blvd. and requested additional information.  

 
 January 17, 2023 – The Authority and Woodruff and Sons met (virtual) to discuss Authority 

comments on Technical Memorandums No. 1 - Pipe Material and Size and Technical 
Memorandum No. 2.  - Alignment & Easement Requirements.   

 
 January 17, 2023 – Woodruff and Sons submitted their Order of Magnitude for Owner Direct 

Purchase of pipe, gaskets, fittings, and line valves for the first 7-miles of the Phase 2B Pipeline, 
beginning at the termination of the Phase 2A Pipeline west along Hillsborough Blvd. to US41. 
They anticipate receiving vendor bid quotes by February from pipe vendors.  

 
 January 18, 2023 – The Authority and Woodruff and Sons and Kimley Horn met (virtual) with 

Charlotte County Utilities & Jones Edmunds to discuss Hydraulic Modeling.  Based on the 
meeting flow projections to the Charlotte County Gulf Cove Pumping Station (south end of 
PH 2B) were determined to be within acceptable limits and a 42-diameter Phase 2B pipeline 
could convey flows to Gulf Cove including up-to 7-interconnects to the Charlotte County water 
distribution system along the alignment of the Phase 2B primarily along Hillsborough Blvd.   

 
 February 16, 2023 – Woodruff and Sons submitted Technical Memorandums (TM), TM3 

Hydraulic Modeling, TM4 Water and significant Roadway Crossings, TM5 Pipeline and 
Corrosion Control and TM6 Gulf Cove Booster Pump Station. 

 
 February 22, 2023 – A 30% Design and ROM meeting was held with Authority and Woodruff 

and Sons staff to discuss the 30% design drawings and ROM development in preparation for 
the schedule Owner Direct Purchase meeting with Charlotte County schedule on March 2nd. 

 
 March 2, 2023 – Owner Direct Purchase (ODP) Meeting with Charlotte County to discuss 30% 

ROM Projections and not to exceed amount for Owner Direct Purchase.  Discussed project 
status (30% design), project schedule and development of the 10% design and 30% design 
drawings.  Noted that the ODP of pipeline material will save about $1.25 million in taxes.  
Based upon vendor cost estimates of pipeline materials for 56,000 lf of 42-inch steel pipe, 
adjacent pipe and appurtenances, 42-inch isolation valves, adjacent valves and appurtenances.  
Woodruff and Sons explained that the current construction schedule start on the east end of the 
project (Hillsborough Blvd.) was October-November 2023. Therefore, pipe material has to be 
ordered in late April due to a 6-month+/- lead time.  An agreed upon amount for a not-to-
exceed ODP cost for materials was $20-million and will be taken to the April 5, 2023, Board 
Meeting for Board Approval.  The meeting included Charlotte County Utilities, Authority and 
Woodruff and Sons staff. 

 



 Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 2B Pipeline Project 
February 7, 2024 

 
 

 6 of 9 

 March 3, 2023 – Army Corps of Engineering Pre-application meeting (virtual).  The meeting 
was attended by Authority, Woodruff & Sons and ACOE staff.  The purpose of the meeting 
was to discuss project design parameters, required permitting and schedules, associated with 
water body crossings, including navigable and non-navigable waters along Hillsborough Blvd. 
and Chancellor Blvd., and the pipeline crossing of the Myakka River. 

 
 March 8, 2023 - Florida Department of Environmental Protection Permitting Pre-application 

meeting (virtual).  The purpose of the meeting was to discuss project design parameters, 
required permitting and schedules. The meeting was attended by Authority, Woodruff & Sons 
and FDEP staff. 

 
 March 9, 2023 – A Workshop was held with Charlotte County and City of North Port, Utilities 

and Public Works Departments, respectively.  The purpose of the meeting was to update the 
County and City on the status of the project and to discuss and answer design questions or 
identify the person to obtain follow-up information.   

 
 March 28, 2023 – A meeting was held with the Sarasota County Parks and Land Management 

Departments to discuss the PH 2B Pipeline crossing the Myakka Islands Point Preserve and 
process to obtain easements. 

 
 April 5, 2023 – The Authority Board approved Owner Direct Purchase for Phase 2B project 

long lead items with a total estimated cost of materials, including steel pipe (raw materials and 
finished products), yard piping, line valves, flow meter and pipeline materials suitable for 
subaqueous installation under the Myakka River, for an amount not-to-exceed $20 Million.  
Woodruff and Sons will solicit bids for these items while meeting the Authority’s owner direct 
purchase policy requirements. 

 
 April 10, 2023 – W&S/KH submitted the 30% Basis of Design Report and 30% Design 

Drawing for segments 1 and 2 (east-west alignment drawings) to the Authority for review. 
Segment 3 (north-south) 30% design drawings are pending completion of field work. The 
SWFWMD 30% Design Package will be forwarded to the District in June for Third Party 
Review in accordance with the Cooperative Funding Agreement. 

 
 May 2, 2023 – An Operations meeting was held with W&S and the Authority to discuss the 

30% design of the PH2B pipeline.  Items discussed included connection of the 2B to the 
existing 2A pipeline, 2B meter assembly, horizontal directional drill (HDD) crossing of the 
Myakka River, termination of the 2B pipeline at the Charlotte County Gulf Cove Booster Pump 
Station and cathodic protection of the 2B pipeline (steel). 

 
 May 10, 2023 – A meeting was held with the City of North Port, Authority and W&S to discuss 

a potential emergency interconnect with the 2B at the City Hillsborough Booster Pump Station 
located in Charlotte County (south side of Hillsborough Blvd.).  The City currently has an 
emergency interconnect off an existing Charlotte County 12” WM at this location. The City 
suggested that an additional 2B interconnect at this location may reduce Charlotte County 



 Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 2B Pipeline Project 
February 7, 2024 

 
 

 7 of 9 

distribution line pressure fluctuations when the existing emergency interconnect is used.  The 
Authority will follow up with Charlotte County Utilities. 

 
 May 19, 2023 – A meeting was held with Charlotte County Utilities to discuss the Phase 2B 

alignment along Hillsborough Blvd. and Charlotte County’s plans to construct a future 8-inch 
diameter CCU water pipeline along Hillsborough Blvd.   

 
 June 16, 2023 – Woodruff & Sons submitted a Rough Order of Magnitude (ROM) 30% design 

cost comparison for the Phase 2B north-south (segment 3) from Chancellor Blvd. to the 
Charlotte County Gulf Cove Booster Pump Station approximately 3-miles in length.  The 
alternative A alignment includes Phase 2B installation on District and Sarasota County 
property and was estimated to be $ 14,336,600.  Alternative B includes installation in Campbell 
Street and private property and was estimated to be $19,878,000.  Both alternatives include a 
horizontal directional drill (HDD) across the Myakka River. 

 
 June 16, 2023 – The 30% Design Package was submitted to the SWFWMD Phase 2B Project 

Manager for the District’s Third Party Review (TPR) in accordance with the CFI Agreement 
23CF0004096 (Q355). 

 
 June 20, 2023 – Mike Coates (Executive Director) and Doug Manson (Authority Attorney) 

met with officials from the Florida Forest Services in Tallahassee to discuss installation of the 
north/south segment of the Phase 2B pipeline in SWFWMD/State Forest Services, Lands.  A 
follow up meeting in anticipated to be held in early July. 

 
 July 7, 2023 – The Authority met with the SWFWMD and Florida Forest Services 

representatives (virtual meeting) to discuss the installation of the Phase 2B Pipeline in State 
property.  The Florida Forest Service and SWFWMD are amicable to the installation of the 
Phase 2B pipeline within the District property north of the Myakka River.  South of the Myakka 
River the Forest Service and SWFWMD prefer the Phase 2B pipeline be installed on private 
property.  The Authority will work with Woodruff & Sons to determine the alignment for the 
horizontal directional drill subaqueous crossing of the Myakka River. 

 
 
 July 12, 2023 – A meeting has been scheduled with Sarasota County to discuss installation of 

the Phase 2B pipeline in Sarasota County property on the north side of the Myakka River.  
Attendees will include Sarasota County Parks and Utilities Departments, Woodruff & Sons 
and the Authority. 
 

 July 14, 2023 – A 60% Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) Kick Off meeting will be held with 
Woodruff & Sons, SWFWMD and the Authority. 
During this period regularly scheduled bi-weekly progress meetings were held as well as 
preparation meetings for discussions with regulatory agencies, workshops, and submittal 
review meetings with Woodruff and Sons. 
 



 Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 2B Pipeline Project 
February 7, 2024 

 
 

 8 of 9 

 August 14, 2023 – The Design-Build Team prepared a pre-60% GMP and shared the submittal 
at a coordination meeting with Charlotte County Utilities.  During this meeting, the approach 
of the County’s parallel 8-inch diameter water main and the coordination of both projects was 
discussed. 

 
 September 15, 2023 – The Design-Build team submitted the draft Guaranteed Maximum Price 

(GMP) and the draft 60% plans.  The Authority shared the draft GMP with Charlotte County 
Utilities and is preparing to share the GMP with their Board on October 10, 2023. 

 
 October 10, 2023 – The Authority presented the draft GMP to the Charlotte Board during a 

Quarterly Meeting. The Board voted to begin revisions to the Interlocal Agreement to cover 
the additional costs for the Phase 2B project and utility improvements parallel to the water 
transmission main. 
 

 November 10, 2023 – The Design-Build team submitted the final Guaranteed Maximum Price 
and the revised 60% plans. The Authority shared the GMP with Charlotte County Utilities.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 2B Pipeline Project 
February 7, 2024 

 
 

 9 of 9 

 

Regional Integrated Loop 
System 



PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 7, 2024 
 

 
ROUTINE STATUS REPORTS  

ITEM 5 
 

Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 3C Pipeline Project 



Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 3C Pipeline Project 
February 7, 2024 

Page 1 of 5 

 
Project Status Report 
 
Project: Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 3C Pipeline Project 
 
Date:  February 7, 2024 
 
Prepared by:  Ford Ritz, P.E., Project Engineer 
 
  
The following information summarizes the project description and status (see attached general 
project area figure). 
 
Project Description 
 

The Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 3C Pipeline Project (Project) includes the design and 
construction of approximately 42,500 LF of 42-inch diameter pipe, a new 10 MGD pumping 
facility (expandable to 30 MGD) located near the northern end of the Project, and one finished 
water ground storage tank (estimated 5 MG). The project includes metering facilities, chemical 
adjustment, telemetry, backup power supply, and other appurtenances as deemed appropriate to 
make the project fully functional for water transfer and delivery. The pipeline begins at the 
northern end of the existing Regional Integrated Loop Phase 3B pipeline within Sarasota County 
near State Road 72 immediately east of Cow Pen Slough Canal. The pipeline will then extend 
generally north to the approximate vicinity of the intersection of Fruitville and Lorraine Roads 
where it will terminate at a delivery location with Sarasota County utilities existing infrastructure. 
The delivery of potable water through this pipeline needs to offer a high degree of flexibility to 
enable the delivery of the required supply and facilitate a future extension/expansion of the 
regional water transmission system to support future regional supply and connectivity goals. 
 
Current Status 
 
Since the August 2, 2023, Board meeting update, Sarasota County Row-of-Way Permit has been 
approved. Based upon approval of the Sarasota County Row-of-Way Permit, the Design-Builder 
has mobilized to the site and has begun staging early procurement materials for a portion of the 
pipeline and isolation valves, and other project materials.  Construction of the Phase 3C Pipeline 
is scheduled to begin after the SWFWMD approval of the Third-Party Review, anticipated in late 
October.  Construction will begin along the project alignment (Segment 2) from the intersection 
of Bee Ridge Road and Lorraine Road north to Phillippi Creek, approximately 2.2 miles. The 
Authority has met with the District and their Third-Party Review consultant. Voluntary easement 
acquisition is on-going, and ten permanent and ten temporary easements have been Board 
approved to date.  The Phase 2 Amendment to the Contract covering final design and construction 
of the pipeline was approved by the Board on April 5, 2023, and the Amendment was executed on 
April 19, 2023.   
 
In October, the Southwest Florida Water Management District approved the Third-Party Review 
of the Phase 3C Pipeline Project 30% Design.  



Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 3C Pipeline Project 
February 7, 2024 

Page 2 of 5 

Since the December 2023 Board Meeting, Garney Construction continued Work along the project 
alignment from the intersection of Bee Ridge Road and Lorraine Road north along Lorraine to 
Phillippi Creek (Segment 2). The pipeline is being installed in Sarasota County Right-of-Way and 
required permitting has been obtained.  To date Garney has installed approximately 4,000-lf of 42-
inch diameter pipe along Lorraine Road.  Voluntary easement acquisition and condemnation is 
ongoing for other portions of the Project.   
 
Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 3C Project Schedule Overview 
 
The Project will be subdivided into 2 Phases.  The schedule includes: 
 

 Phase 1 – Includes - Contract for Progressive Design Build Services - scope and fee to 
produce a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP).  Scope includes 60% design, property and 
permitting.  Scope/fee for Phase 1 due September 20, 2022, and approved at the October 
5, 2022, Board Meeting. 

 Early Procurement Package – Initial order of long lead items by owner direct purchase 
approved at the December 7, 2022, Board Meeting. 

 Phase 2 – Final scope and fee/GMP.  Final scope and GMP includes, final design, 
construction, permitting, property acquisition, testing, and final completion.  The Phase 2 
GMP was added to the Contract by Addendum and approved by the Board on April 5, 
2023. 

 Regional Integrated Loop Phase 3C Pipeline Project substantial completion is scheduled 
for March 1, 2025. 

 
Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 3C Phase 2 Construction Overview 
 

 Garney subdivided Phase 2 Construction of the Project into three Segments, based upon 
permitting, easements and Southwest Florida Water Management District Third Party 
Review approval (30% design) to facilitate the Project schedule.  Garney plans to begin 
construction in Segment 2 followed by Segment 1 and Segment 3. 
 
 Segment 1 (4.1-miles) – terminus of the Phase 3B Pipeline at Clark Road/State 

Road 72, north along Cow Pen Slough to the intersection of Lorraine Road of Bee 
Ridge Road.  
 

 Segment 2 (2.1-miles) – Bee Ridge Road and Lorraine Road intersection to Philippi 
Creek. (future Lorraine Road expansion) 

 
 Segment 3 (1-mile) – Philippi Creek north along Cow Pen Slough/future Lorraine 

Road to Fruitville Road.  
 

 
 
 



Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 3C Pipeline Project 
February 7, 2024 

Page 3 of 5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Project History Briefing 
 
Project: Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 3C Pipeline Project  
 
Date:  February 7, 2024 

 
Prepared by: Ford Ritz, P.E., Project Engineer 
 
  
The following information summarizes the historical milestones and events of the Regional 
Integrated Loop System Phase 3C Project.  
 
History of Project Development 
 
Phase 3C Feasibility and Routing Study Solicitation for Qualifications  
 
On June 23, 2020, a request for qualifications for a feasibility and routing study was advertised. 
Eight firms submitted qualifications on time. On August 11, 2020, three firms were shortlisted, 
based on Statement of Qualification, by the Authority Professional Selection Evaluation 
Committee (PSEC) for presentations and interviews. On September 2, 2020, Wade-Trim, Inc. was 
selected by the PSEC after presentations and interviews. The PSEC selection was approved by the 
Board on September 30, 202 and the professional services contract for Wade-Trim, Inc. on the 
feasibility and routing study was approved by the Board in December of 2020. The study was 
completed, and the results accepted by the Board in April 2022. The milestones of this study are 
detailed in the June 2022 Routine Status Report, Item 6. 
 
Progressive Design-Build Solicitation for Qualifications 
 

On May 24, 2022, a request for qualifications for Progressive Design-Build Services was 
advertised. Four Design-Build Teams submitted qualifications on time.  On June 30, 2022, all four 
teams were shortlisted, based on the Statement of Qualification, by the Authority Professional 
Selection Evaluation Committee (PSEC) for presentations and interviews.  On July 14, 2022, the 
Garney Companies, Inc., Progressive Design Build Team was selected by the PSEC after 
presentations and interviews for the Phase 3C project. On August 3rd, 2022 the Board approved 
the PSEC recommendation of Garney Companies, Inc. Design-Build Team for the Regional 
Integrated Loop System Phase 3C Pipeline Project.   
 
 August 3, 2022 – The Board Approved the PSEC’s recommendation of Woodruff & Sons Inc., 

Design-Build Team for delivery of the Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 2B Pipeline. 
Staff began preparation of the Contract Documents on August 5th, 2022. 



Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 3C Pipeline Project 
February 7, 2024 

Page 4 of 5 

 September 2022 – Staff continues to negotiate Contract Documents including the Agreement, 
General Conditions, Exhibits, and Phase 1 Design Services Fee for the Project.  The Regional 
Integrated Loop System Phase 3C Pipeline Project – Phase 1 Services Contract will be 
presented to the Board for approval at the October 5, 2022, meeting. 

 December 2022 – The Board Approved the Early Procurement Package not-to-exceed $10M.  
The Design-Build Team submitted 30% Design to the Authority and SWFWMD. Subsequent 
coordination meetings were held with the Authority, Sarasota County Utilities, Sarasota 
County Public Works, City of Sarasota, Florida Power & Light, and private land owners. 

 April 2023 – The Board Approved the amendment to the progressive design build contract that 
takes the project thru final design and construction of the pipeline. 

 June 2023 – The Board Approved Phase 3C Regional Interconnect – Second Amendment to 
Resolution 20022-03 (Necessity to Construct a Transmission Pipeline and Appurtenant 
Facilities) and approved the purchase of eight permanent and eight temporary easements 
(Phase 3C Easements Package No. 1). 

 August 2023 – The Board Approved the purchase of two permanent and two temporary 
easements (Phase 3C Easements Package No. 2). 

 October 2023 – SWFWMD approved the Third-Party Review for the 30% Phase 3C Pipeline 
design on October 24, 2023, giving Garney the go ahead to begin installation of pipe.  Garney 
decided to begin construction activities in Segment 2 of the alignment since the alignment is 
in the Sarasota County Right-of-Way and all necessary permits including the FDEP 
Environmental Resource Permit have been approved. The Segment 2 alignment is from Bee 
Ridge Road north along Lorraine Road to Philippi Creek. Garney accepted delivery of 
materials including 42-inch diameter steel pipe and performed survey, locates of existing 
utilities, Right-of-Way preparation, and completed stringing the pipe along Lorraine Road. 
Finalization of permitting and easements for the entire pipeline alignment is ongoing.   

 November 2023 – Garney performed dewatering and installed approximately 1,600 linear feet 
of 42-inch steel pipeline along the east side of Lorraine Road (Segment 2).  The jack and bore 
for casing pipe with carrier pipe to cross under Palmer Road has begun.  As of early November, 
FDEP Environmental Resource Permits have been approved for the entire Project alignment.   

 December 2023 – January 2024 – To date, Garney installed approximately 4,000 linear feet of 
42-inch Steel pipeline along the east side of Lorraine Road in Sarasota County Right-of-Way 
(Segment 2).  The 60-inch diameter steel casing installation was completed and loaded with  
42-inch steel carrier pipe under Palmer Road.  The jack & bore under the Bee Ridge-Lorraine 
Road round-about is underway.  Garney has completed utility locates for pipe installation in 
Segment 1 along Cow Pen Slough (south end of project).  A second Garney pipe crew is 
scheduled to begin Work in Segment 1 in mid-February.  
 
 
 
 



Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 3C Pipeline Project 
February 7, 2024 

Page 5 of 5 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Regional Integrated 
L S t Ph 3C



PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 7, 2024 
 
 

ROUTINE STATUS REPORTS  
ITEM 6 

 
DeSoto Booster Pumping Station Project 



1 of 9 

DeSoto Booster Pump Station Modifications 
February 7, 2024 

 

 

Project Status Report 
 

Project: Desoto Booster Pump Station Modifications 
Formerly Known As – PRMRWSA Project Prairie Pump Station Acquisition and 
Modification Project 

 
Date: February 7, 2024  

 
Prepared by: Brian P. Bates, P.E., Project Engineer III 

 
 

The following information summarizes the project description and current status. (see attached 
general project area figure). 

 
Project Description 

 

The Project Prairie Pump Station Acquisition and Modification project includes the regional 
purchase of the Pump Station and Storage Facilities from DeSoto County, and modifications to 
integrate the facility into the regional transmission system. The Facility is strategically located to 
support current and future regional water supply operations. The project is co-funded by the 
SWFWMD and the State of Florida. The estimated project cost including the purchase from Desoto 
County, Design and Construction of Facility modifications is $1,275,000. This is a Capital 
Improvements Project (CIP). 

 
The Facility is located on the corner of U.S.17 and S.W. Enterprise Blvd. in DeSoto County and 
is adjacent and connected to the regional DeSoto County RTM and the bi-directional Phase 1 
Regional Interconnect Pipeline. The Phase 1 provides a plant-to-plant connection between the 
Peace River Facility, and the Punta Gorda Shell Creek Water Treatment Facility located in 
Charlotte County. 

 
Current Operations: 

 
 Regional pipelines (DeSoto RTM or Phase 1) fill the 0.5-MG finished water storage tank 

– water source either the Peace River Facility or the Shell Creek Facility. Under normal 
operational conditions water is received from Peace River. 

 
 DeSoto County trims chemical disinfection as needed and pumps water from the storage 

tank north into their distribution pipeline. 
 

Future Operation: 
 

 Increase Facility flexibility to be able to receive water from Peace River, Shell Creek or 
DeSoto County, trim and repump water, north, south, or east as needed. 

 
 Provide capabilities to bypass the storage tank and repump, or bypass the facility; as 

determined by, operations and maintenance, or emergency conditions. 



2 of 9 

DeSoto Booster Pump Station Modifications 
February 7, 2024 

 

 

 Provide other capabilities per the Project Prairie Facilities Operational Protocol. 
 

Project Scope: 
 

 Modifications to facility piping and yard piping. 
 

 Upgrades to disinfection chemical(s) storage and feed capabilities. 
 

 Upgrades to SCADA interface, including a new radio and antenna. 
 

 Evaluate existing meters and meter assemblies and make necessary modifications. 
 

Current status 
 

The Interlocal Agreement, between the Authority and Desoto County for the Acquisition of the 
Project Prairie Facilities has been executed and recorded. Additionally: 

 
 Contract for Sale Purchase of the Property has been executed 

 
 Ingress/Egress Easement for the Wastewater Lift Station (for Desoto County) has been 

executed 
 

The Authority’s Engineer-of-Record (Ardurra) was issued the Notice-to-Proceed for 
Work Order No. 1 - Design, Permitting and Construction Phase Services on March 25, 2022. 

 
The Project Bid Opening was August 17, 2022. Three Contractors submitted bids on a timely 
basis. The apparent low bidder was TLC Diversified, Inc. (TLC) at a bid price of $1,1196,000. 
Ardurra the EOR reviewed the bids forms, checked TLC references and recommends Award of 
the Construction Contract to TLC. 

 
At the October 5, 2022, Board Meeting – Board approved the TLC Construction Contract. The 
P.O. for the Work Order, under TLC’s Continuing Services Contract was executed on October 12, 
2022, and forwarded to TLC. The Notice-to-Proceed will be issued in early January 2023. 
Substantial Completion is 145 calendar days from the date of Notice-to-Proceed. Final 
Completion is 175 calendar days from the date of Notice-to-Proceed. 

 
TLC was issued the Notice-to-Proceed on January 5, 2023, and anticipates mobilizing to the site 
in July 2023. 

 
As of early May 2023, the SWFWMD FDEP grant agreement is still with District Counsel under 
review before execution. Once executed by the District, the Cooperative Funding Agreement No. 
22CF0003733 will be amended to include pass through Grant Provisions (federal funds), revised 
total cost and task budgets, and a revised agreement expiration date of March 1, 2024. 

 
September 2023, anticipate the amended SWFWMD FDEP grant agreement to be finalized over 
next several weeks. 



3 of 9 

DeSoto Booster Pump Station Modifications 
February 7, 2024 

 

 

Project History Briefing 
 

Project: Desoto Booster Pump Station Modifications 
Also Known As – PRMRWSA Project Prairie Pump Station Acquisition and 
Modification Project 

 
Date: February 7, 2024 

 
Prepared by: Brian P. Bates, P.E., Project Engineer III 

 
 

The following information summarizes the historical milestones and events of Project Prairie 
 
 October 1, 2021 – The Interlocal Agreement, Purchase and Sale Agreement, and Operational 

Protocol for the acquisition of the Facility from DeSoto County was presented to the Board. 
Proposed funding sources include $200,000 from the State of Florida, and $537,500 each from 
the Authority and SWFWMD. The total project cost is $1,275,000. 

 
 October 12, 2021 – Authority staff had a meeting to discuss the project and potential 

modification to the facility. Next steps include an internal meeting with Authority Operations 
and Maintenance staff, and meeting with DeSoto Operations staff. Upon Board approval of 
the project, a meeting with be held with the Ardurra (FKA King Engineering). Ardurra 
designed the Phase 1 Pipeline project which originally included yard piping alternates. The 
alternates were subsequently removed from the Phase 1 Pipeline final design package due to 
overall project cost uncertainty. Ardurra (Engineer of Record) is an Authority as needed 
consultant. 

 
 October 12, 2021 – The FDEP Grant Agreement (LPA0208) for $200,000 was executed by the 

State. The Grant Agreement will be included on the December 1, 2021 Board Meeting agenda 
for Board approval. 

 
 November 23, 2021 – A meeting between Authority staff and DeSoto County staff was held 

to discuss the upcoming project and operations of the Facility. In accordance with the 
acquisitional agreements between the Authority and DeSoto County, DeSoto County Utilities 
will continue to operate the Facility, subsequent to the purchase. 

 
 December 2021 – The Interlocal Agreement between the Authority and DeSoto County for the 

Acquisition of the Project Prairie Facilities, generally consisting of a 500,000-gallon ground 
storage tank and associated piping, a 5 MGD booster pump station and chemical feed system, 
yard piping and emergency generator was Board approved on December 1, 2021, and by the 
DeSoto County BOCC on December 14, 2021. The Document includes: 

 
o Interlocal Agreement providing for Authority acquisition of the Facilities for 

$748,731.53 – which will be co-funded by SWFWMD and the State of Florida. 
o Contract for the Sales and Purchase of the site property parcel by the Authority for 

$36,000 from DeSoto County. 



4 of 9 

DeSoto Booster Pump Station Modifications 
February 7, 2024 

 

 

 January 25, 2021 – Closing on the purchase/sale of the property with Desoto County was 
completed. 

 
 January 28, 2021- Authority held a scoping meeting with Ardurra (Engineer-of-Record) at 

the Project Prairie Facility, to tour the facility and discuss items to be included in Ardurra’s 
scope of work for modifications/upgrades to be included in Ardurra’s Work Order for 
Engineering Services. In general, items discussed included: 

 
o Underground repumping piping 
o Meter upgrades 
o Radio and antenna for Authority to monitor facility operations 
o SCADA/PLC Systems integration 
o Walmart fire flow pipeline – connect directly to Regional Piping 
o Chemical feed/trim facilities improvements 

 
It is anticipated that Ardurra will submit their draft scope of work in mid-March. 

 
 March 10, 2021- The SWFWMD Q248, Funding Agreement-22CF0003723 for Project 

Prairie Facilities Acquisition and Modification Project entered into. 
 

 March 25, 2022 – Ardurra was issued the Notice-to-Proceed for Work Order 1., for the 
DeSoto County Pumping Station Modification Project (DCBPS). W.O.1 lump sum cost is 
$85,300. 

 
 April 1, 2022 - PRMRWSA Staff and Ardurra Staff met with DeSoto Counties Utilities at 

the DCBPS site to discuss day-to-day operations of the Facility. DeSoto County will 
continue to operate the Facility for the Authority per the Interlocal Agreement. 

 
 April 14, 2022 – The SWFWMD Co-Funding Agreement (Q248) “Task Schedule and 

Budget Adjustment” was entered into. Construction and Engineering costs were adjusted, 
and the construction schedule was extended. The total cost for acquisition, design and 
construction of Facility Improvements did not change. 

 
 May 11, 2022 – A Teams meeting was held with Ardurra and Authority staff to discuss 

progress on the 60% design. Per discussion, the tank inlet meter will be upgraded, and the 
pump station discharge meter upgrade will most likely be included as an alternative. 
Ardurra stated that the technical specifications have been completed. 

 
 May 25, 2022 – Ardurra Instrumentation and Controls (I & C) Engineer met with Authority 

staff at the DeSoto Booster Pump Station to gather additional information and discuss 
existing operation. Discussions included how DeSoto County operates the facility 
currently, the County SCADA system and a potential new location for the radio antenna 
tower. 

 
 May 27, 2022 – Ardurra and Authority met via teams with the Operations Manager at the 

Walmart Distribution Center (Stewart Heintz) to discuss the connection and water delivery 



5 of 9 

DeSoto Booster Pump Station Modifications 
February 7, 2024 

 

 

for fire flow from the DeSoto Booster Pump Station (DBPS) to the Walmart Distribution 
Center. Mr. Heintz discuss in general how the Walmart Fire Protection system works, how 
often they test their fire protection system and the components of the fire protection system. 
Mr. Heintz stated that Walmart has no issues with the fire flow connection and water 
delivery service from DBPS. The Authority and Ardurra discussed components of the 
upcoming project with Mr. Heintz and potential schedule. 

 
 June 5, 2022 – Ardurra submitted 90% Interim Drawings and Div. 13 Instrumentation & 

Control Specifications, based on feedback from the Authority on the 60% Design Drawings 
and Specifications. 

 
 June 7, 2022 – A Design review meeting was held at the Peace River Facility. The meeting 

attended by Ardurra and Authority staff. Design elements, instrumentation and 
controls/SCADA, Contract documents/bid form, permitting and the project schedule were 
discussed. 

 
 June 10, 2022 – The Ardurra Interim 90% Design and Div. 13 Instrumentation & Control 

Specifications were forwarded to the District for review. 
 

 June 17, 2022 – The Authority staff held a conference call with Ardurra Instrumentation 
and Control staff to discuss, equipment upgrades, and coordination between the existing 
DeSoto County SCADA system and Authority SCADA system. 

 
 June 27, 2022 – Ardurra submitted 90% Design Contract Documents for the DeSoto 

County Pump Station Modifications to the Authority for review. 
 

 July 6, 2022 – The Authority forwarded review comments of 90% Design Contract 
Documents submittal to Ardurra. 

 
 July 13, 2022 – Ardurra submitted the Bidding Documents to the Authority for review. 

The Documents were forwarded to the SWFWMD. 
 

 July 18, 2022 - The Invitation to Bid was posted on the Authority Webpage by 
Procurement. Contractors in the Authority’s library of As Needed Construction 
Contractors: Water Treatment Process & Pipeline Construction, Repair & Replacement 
were invited to Bid. 

 
 July 18, 2022 – Ardurra applied for the FDEP 62-555.900 Specific Permit to Construct 

PWS Components. 
 

 August 1, 2022 – The pre-bid conference was held at the PRF followed by a site visit. 
Attendees include Authority Staff, Ardurra Staff, SWFWMD Staff and Contractors. 

 
 August 5, 2022 – Addendum 1 was posted on the Authority Webpage by Procurement. 



6 of 9 

DeSoto Booster Pump Station Modifications 
February 7, 2024 

 

 

 August 17, 2022 – Three Bids were timely submitted. The apparent low bidder was TLC 
Diversified Inc. at $1,1196,000. Other Contractor Bids included Garney at $1,500,000 and 
Kiewit at $1,432,000. 

 
 August 30, 2022 – The Notice of Intended Decision (NOID) was posted on the Authority 

webpage by Procurement. 
 

 September 8, 2022 – FDEP issued the Permit to Construct – Permit No. 78714-028-WC. 
The permit was forwarded to SWFWMD. 

 
 September 19, 2022 – Ardurra submitted the Engineers Recommendation Letter for Award 

Approval to TLC Diversified Inc. Back up included bid forms, bid tab and reference 
conformations. 

 
 October 5, 2022 – The P.O. for the Desoto Booster Pump Station Modifications Project 

Construction Contract to TLC Diversified was Board Approved. The P.O. is incorporated 
by reference to the December 1, 2022, Agreement for As Needed Water Treatment and 
Pipeline Construction, Repair & Replacement services between TLC and the Authority. 
Funding for the construction includes $220,484 from SWFWMD and $975,516 from the 
Authority system-wide benefit Capital Improvements Project (CIP). 

 
 October 19, 2022 – The executed P.O. for the Work Order under TLC’s Continuing 

Services Contract was forwarded to TLC and SWFWMD. The Notice-to-Proceed will be 
issued to TLC in January 2023. Currently TLC is working on materials submittals and 
federal funding waivers. SWFWMD and FDEP are currently finalizing the agreement for 
American Rescue Plan Act federal funds being funneled to SWFWMD via FDEP. 

 
 November 10, 2022 – The Authority sent a request to SWFWMD to extend the co-funding 

agreement expiration date for the following reasons: 
 

o impacts of hurricane Ian - TLC ongoing projects 
o hurricane impacts at the Peace River Facility 
o finalization of the agreement between FDEP and SWFWMD for federal 

funding 
 

In discussions, all parties Authority, SWFWMD, Ardurra and TLC agreed to a delay of the 
Notice-to-Proceed until early January 2023. 

 
 January 5, 2023 – The preconstruction meeting was held and attended by TLC, Ardurra, 

Authority, SWFWMD and DeSoto County, staff. TLC has been providing shop drawing 
submittals for the project. To date, TLC has sent 23 submittals to Ardurra for review. The 
Notice to Proceed was issued to TLC on January 5, 2023, the District was copied. TLC 
anticipates mobilizing to the DeSoto Booster Pump Station project site in July pending 
material availability (as soon as they have materials to begin Work). Per discussion 
SWFWMD is going to Amend the CFA (co-funding) Agreement No. 22CF0003733 to 



7 of 9 

DeSoto Booster Pump Station Modifications 
February 7, 2024 

 

 

include the full amount of the bid price and extend the co-funding expiration date to March 
1, 2024, to address potential supply chain issues. 

 
 January 12, 2023 – The Grant Agreement (federal funds) between the FDEP and 

SWFWMD, is currently with the District General Counsel for review and approval. Once 
approved and subsequently signed by the District Executive it will go to the District Board, 
for execution. The CFA amendment will follow and include pass through grant provisions, 
revised total cost and task budgets, and a revised agreement expiration of March 1, 2024. 

 
 February 15, 2023 – Ardurra (EOR) conducted a soil boring at the project radio tower 

antenna location to confirm foundation design. The report was submitted to Authority for 
review and forwarded to the Contractor on February 28, 2023. 

 
 February 21, 2023 – A meeting was held on site with Authority, TLC and Desoto County 

Utilities staff. The purpose of the meeting was to review existing Desoto County 
SCADA/I&C configurations with the TLC I&C subcontractor and review existing facilities 
and project design upgrades with TLC. 

 
 April 18, 2023 – A meeting was held on site with TLC, Authority, Ardurra (EOR) and 

DeSoto County Utilities staff. The purpose of the meeting was to discuss operations of the 
DBPS by DeSoto County Utilities, to assist TLC with development of their Construction 
Sequencing Plan. TLC submitted their Construction Sequencing Plan on April 26th and it 
is currently under review by Ardurra (EOR) and the Authority. TLC is scheduled to begin 
construction in July 2023. 

 
 May 9, 2023 - TLC has submitted 28 shop drawings to Ardurra for review to date. TLC 

anticipates mobilization for construction in July 2023. 
 

 August 2023 - Contractor flagged existing on-site pipework & began delivering pipe and 
equipment to the project. Hurricane Idalia interrupted progress. Anticipate TLC to 
continue on-site activities by the end of September. 

 
 September 13, 2023 - received updated schedule from TLC which shows Final 

Completion of project to be February 12, 2024. 
 
 September 18, 2023 - assembly, and installation of 24” ductile iron pipe has begun. 
 
 October 9, 2023 - on-site coordination meeting held with Ardurra, Authority, Walmart & 

DeSoto County staff discussing tie-in protocols.  Project sign installed. 
 
 October 11, 2023 - McKim & Creed worked on existing PLC in preparation of installing 

new Radio Telemetry Unit and inadvertently cut one neutral circuit & installed another 
line in wrong location that took out the automatic tank fill valve.  Authority Staff & 
McKim & Creed solved the problem the next day.   

 
 October 16, 2023 - 24” ductile iron pipe assembly complete and pressure tested. 
 
 October 24, 2023 - bacteriological samples passed, awaiting FDEP clearance. 



8 of 9 

DeSoto Booster Pump Station Modifications 
February 7, 2024 

 

 
 October 31 – November 14, 2023 - the City of Arcadia is performing a disinfection “free 

burn.” Tie-in of 24” DIP will occur after free burn has been completed. 
 

 November 15, 2023 – poured concrete pad for new antenna tower. 
 

 November 16, 2023 - Line-stop & tie-in of 24” DIP scheduled for November 16th. Could 
not complete 24” tie-in as an existing 12” valve would not close to isolate tie-in location. 
Need additional 12” line-stop. 

 
 December 11, 2023 - installed 12” & 16” line stops and performed 24” DIP connection to 

existing 16” PVC. 
 

 December 12, 2023 – 12” & 16” line-stops removed, backfilled connection location. 
 



9 of 9 

DeSoto Booster Pump Station Modifications 
February 7, 2024 

 

 
 

 
 



PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 7, 2024 
 
 

ROUTINE STATUS REPORTS  
ITEM 7 

 
Brackish Groundwater Reverse Osmosis Project at the Peace River Facility 



Routine Status Report 7 
Brackish Groundwater Reverse Osmosis Project at Peace River Facility 

Page 1 of 4 

 

 

Project Status Report 
 

Project: Brackish Groundwater Reverse Osmosis Project at Peace River Facility 

Date: February 7, 2024 

Prepared by: James P. Guida, P.G., Director of Water Resources and Planning 
 
 

Project Description 
 

The Authority’s Water Use Permit (WUP) for the Peace River Facility (PRF) was modified in 
October 2022 to authorize withdrawal of up to 9 MGD of brackish groundwater from wells on the 
RV Griffin Reserve, which would yield an estimated 5 MGD average annual day of finished water 
for allocation to Customers. 

 
On February 10, 2023, the Authority requested proposals from firms for the purpose of providing 
professional design, engineering, inspection and geological services for feasibility, siting, capacity, 
design, permitting and construction management for the ‘Peace River Brackish Groundwater 
Facility Project’ (Project). At the April 5, 2023, meeting the Board approved the selection of 
Carollo Engineers to conduct the preliminary design and testing for the Brackish Groundwater 
Project (Project) at the PRF. On July 7, 2023, the Board approved the Professional Services 
Contract, Scope, and Fee for Work Order No. 1 for the Project. Negotiated costs for Work Order 
No. 1 are not to exceed $5,488,750, which includes a $500,000 Owners Allowance for out-of-
scope work if authorized by the Executive Director. The Project is intended to inform the Authority 
in the selection of its next water supply development project. 

 
This work is included in the CIP portions of the Authority’s Amended FY 2023 and Tentative FY 
2024 Budgets. Funds are proposed to come initially from the $100M line of Credit with PNC Bank. 
Staff recommends these costs be included in any permanent financing that is obtained for the next 
regional water supply project. 

 
Current Status 

 

Work Order No. 1 (Preliminary Design and Testing for Peace River Brackish Groundwater Supply 
Project) with Carollo Engineering, was issued on June 8, 2023, and includes well construction, 
aquifer and groundwater quality testing, and preliminary design of: 1) raw water mains and well 
sites; 2) injection well(s); and 3) brackish groundwater treatment facilities. The Project also 
includes permitting services, development of a 30% Design Package, and an engineer’s opinion of 
probable cost. Preliminary Design and Testing for the Brackish Groundwater Project is scheduled 
for completion in March 2024. The Project is currently on schedule and on budget. 



Routine Status Report 7 
Brackish Groundwater Reverse Osmosis Project at Peace River Facility 

Page 2 of 4 

 

 

Project History Briefing 
 

Project: Brackish Groundwater Reverse Osmosis Project at Peace River Facility 

Date: December 6, 2023 

Prepared by: James P. Guida, P.G., Director of Water Resources and Planning 
 
 
 

The following information summarizes the historical milestones and key events to date for Work 
Order No. 1 - Preliminary Design and Testing for Peace River Brackish Groundwater Supply 
Project. 

 
June 2023 Board approved Work Order No. 1 for the Preliminary Design and Testing 

for Peace River Brackish Groundwater Supply Project on June 7, 2023. A 
Pre-Construction Meeting with Project hydrogeologists, engineers and the 
well drilling contractor was conducted on June 22, 2023, to facilitate Well 
construction permitting, mobilization of drilling equipment, and initiation 
of well construction to allow for brackish groundwater testing as soon as 
possible. A Project Kick-off Meeting was held with the Carollo Team on 
June 26, 2023. A Brackish Groundwater Drilling and Testing Program 
authorization request was submitted to the SWFWMD on June 28, 2023, 
and was approved by the SWFWMD on June 29, 2023. 

 
July 2023 The well drilling and testing program got underway in early July. The 

Surficial Aquifer System (SAS) test well (BW-SAS-1) was constructed on 
July 6, 2023. The 4-inch well was completed to a total depth of 40 ft below 
land surface (bls) with a screened interval of 20 to 40 ft bls. Construction of 
the Lower Arcadia Aquifer (LAA) 16-inch test well (BW-LAA-1) 
commenced on July 18, 2023. 

 
August 2023 BW-LAA-1 was completed with casing and total depths of 240 ft bls and 

350 ft bls, respectively, on August 18, 2023. Preliminary step-drawdown 
testing was conducted on the well and indicated the well can produce 
approximately 570 gpm (about 861,000 gpd). 

 
Drilling of the Upper Floridan Aquifer (UFA) test production well (BW- 
UFA-1) commenced on August 25, 2023. Surface casing installation was 
completed on August 29, 2023, to a depth of 55 ft bls. Pilot-hole drilling of 
well continues. 

 
The original configuration of the wellfield was updated to allow for 
increased production capacity, enhanced sustainability, and to allow for 
greater flexibility in well construction characteristics. A total of 15 Upper 
Floridan Aquifer (UFA) production wells are now proposed to serve as the 



Page 3 of 4 

 

 

raw water sources for the brackish groundwater Reverse Osmosis (RO) 
water treatment facility. 

 
September 2023 An Application for modification of the Authority’s  Water  Use Permit (WUP) 

was submitted on September 1, 2023, and was deemed complete on 
September 15, 2023. A step-drawdown test was completed on September 
12, 2023, and achieved a flow rate of 570 gallons per minute (gpm). Pilot- 
hole drilling of the Upper Floridan Aquifer (UFA) test production well 
(BW-UFA-1) continues with the pilot-hole depth currently at 600 feet bls. 
As of the end of September, the drilling and testing program is about 10 
days ahead of schedule. 

 
October 2023 Authority and SWFWMD staff coordinated regarding the draft permit 

during October and the permit was scheduled for SWFWMD Governing 
Board consideration at their November 14, 2023, meeting. As of 10/31/23, 
the total and cased depths of the Lower Arcadia Aquifer (LAA) test 
production well (BW-LAA-1) were 240 feet and 350 feet bls, respectively. 
A Step-Drawdown test was completed on September 12, 2023, and 
achieved a flow rate of 570 gallons per minute (gpm). Pilot-hole drilling of 
the Upper Floridan Aquifer (UFA) test production well (BW-UFA-1) 
continues with the pilot-hole depth currently at 600 feet bls. The Suwannee 
Limestone was identified at a depth of 562 feet bls. The well contractor is 
in the process of reaming the 30-inch hole to place 590 feet of 20-inch 
casing. The drilling and testing program is about 2 weeks behind schedule 
and a larger drilling rig has been mobilized to the site to accelerate the 
reaming process. 

 
Routing alternatives for the raw water transmission main (RWTM) were 
discussed and the preferred route was recommended and selected. 
Conceptual design of the RWTM, raw water wells, and various components 
of the RO brackish groundwater treatment facility continued. Finished 
water blending alternatives were discussed and the preferred siting was 
recommended and selected. Siting alternatives for the deep injection wells 
were discussed and the preferred siting was recommended and selected. 

 
November 2023   The requested modification of the Authority’s Water Use Permit (WUP)   was 

authorized by the SWFWMD Governing Board on November 14, 2023. The 
modified permit authorizes Annual Average and Peak Month withdrawals 
of 11.2 MGD (increase of 2.2 MGD) and 15 MGD (increase of 
6.0 MGD), respectively. 

 
The Suwannee Limestone was identified at a depth of 562 feet bls. The well 
contractor is currently in the process of reaming the 30-inch hole to place 
590 feet of 20-inch intermediate casing. Reaming of the hole to set the 20- 
inch casing continues and is expected to be completed by December 1, pilot- 
hole drilling into the Suwannee will continue once the intermediate casing 



Page 4 of 4 

 

 

has been installed. As of November 16, 2023, the drilling program is nearly 
4-weeks behind schedule due to drilling rig equipment failures. The 
Consultant and Well Contractor (Applied) are in the process of identifying 
means to make-up for lost time and to ensure that collection of the 
information most important to engineering design of the RO treatment 
system and production wells continues to move forward in a manner that 
will allow for achievement of 30% design prior to April 2024. 
 

December 2023 The 20-inch Intermediate casing was set to a depth of 590 feet bls and 
cemented in place. Pilot-hole drilling continued to a depth of 860 feet bls 
and the Ocala Limestone was identified via index fossil (Lepidocyclina 
Ocalana) and geophysical logging at a depth of approximately 838 feet bls. 
On December 20, 2023, a 12-hour step-drawdown test was completed on 
the nominal 10-inch Suwannee pilot-hole using three steps with flow rates 
of 278, 379 and 432 gallons per minute (gpm). The specific capacity during 
the third step (432 gpm) was calculated to be 13.82 gallons per minute per 
foot (13.82) indicating a productive permeable zone in the Suwannee 
Limestone. 
Conceptual design of the RO brackish groundwater treatment facility, raw 
water wellfield, raw water transmission main, and injection wells was 
completed and submitted on December 7th for the Authority’s review. A 
workshop was held on December 12th to discuss and review the various 
conceptual design components, and to receive initial comments from the 
Authority. Final comments on the conceptual design from the Authority 
were requested and received by December 19th. Addressing and 
incorporating the Authority’s comments was initiated. 

 
January 2024 The 7-day Suwannee Pilot-Hole Constant-Rate Test began at 9am on 

January 4, 2024 and concluded at 9am on January 11, 2024. A flow rate of 
approximately 480 gpm was maintained.  Both manual water levels and 
pressure transducer water levels were collected before, during and after the 
test. Field water quality measurements were collected 168 times (once per 
hour) during the testing. Fourteen (14) water quality laboratory samples 
were collected throughout the test including a full primary and secondary 
drinking water standards sample at the end of the test. The water quality was 
extremely stable throughout the test with specific conductance increasing 
minimally from 1709 uS/cm at the start of the test to 1,710 uS/cm at the end 
of the test. The TDS was estimated to be approximately 1,077 mg/L. 

 
Addressing and incorporating the Authority’s comments on the conceptual 
design was completed. An intermediate design plan set of the RO brackish 
groundwater treatment facility, raw water wellfield, raw water transmission 
main, and injection wells is being completed for use towards developing the 
draft opinion of probable construction cost (OPCC). Equipment quotes were 
solicited and received from vendors for use in the draft OPCC. These will 
also be submitted to the Authority for the Authority’s CMAR review/use. 
The draft OPCC has been initiated and will be submitted to the Authority in 



Page 5 of 4 

 

 

early February. Water quality data from the constant rate test for the 
Suwannee will be reviewed and interpreted for any design revisions upon 
receipt from the laboratory.   



PEACE RIVER MANASOTA REGIONAL WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 7, 2024 
 
 

ROUTINE STATUS REPORTS  
ITEM 8 

 
Peace River Basin Report 



 

 

1 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
TO:  Board Members and Mike Coates  
 
FROM: Doug Manson, Laura Donaldson, and Paria Shirzadi Heeter  
 
RE: Peace River Basin Report   
 
DATE:  January 16, 2023 
 
 

 
Mosaic Fertilizer, LLC—Ona Mine 

In October 2023, Mosaic Fertilizer, LLC (“Mosaic”) submitted an application to the Florida 

Department of Environmental Protection (“DEP”) for an environmental resource permit (“ERP”) 

modification (MMR_0169281-018) for its 2023 Ona Infills and Reclamation Redesign Project 

(“Project”) for its Ona Mine (a phosphate mine). The application requests to modify the ERP to do 

the following: increase the mine boundary and Project Area by a net 130.9 acres (adding a total  of 

178.3 acres and removing 47.4 acres); reclassify an additional 2.8 acres within the Ona Mine 

boundary and corresponding ERP area from “undisturbed” to “disturbed”; expand the surface water 

management (perimeter ditch and berm) system to encompass the expanded mine 

boundary/project area; authorize impacts to 5.02 acres of wetlands and 5.22 acres of other surface 

waters within the 2023 Ona Infills (which is a component of the Project), for which only 8.23 acres 

require mitigation; re-establish drainage patterns through mine reclamation; avoid 120.2 acres 

within the Hardee County Ona Rural Center setback area and place 100.5 acres of this avoided area 

under a conservation easement; approve a mitigation plan for the 2023 Ona Infills component of 



 

 

2 
 

the Project to offset the functional loss attributable to the additional impacts documented above; 

and revise the approved mitigation plan for the Ona Mine to reflect the mine-wide revision of the 

reclamation plan submitted in the corresponding Conceptual Reclamation Plan (no new wetland or 

surface water impacts will occur outside of the 2023 Ona Infills Parcels).  

The application states that mining of the 2023 Ona Infills will require less than one year to 

complete, and that the proposed activities to be conducted on the 2023 Ona Infills are identical to 

those currently authorized on the Ona Mine (by ERP MMR_0169281), and consist of site 

preparation, mining, sand and overburden backfill, and reclamation. The 2023 Ona Infills will be 

integrated into the existing Ona Mine’s stormwater management system, including treatment and 

discharge pursuant to the industrial wastewater (“IW”) permits issued by DEP, and the existing Ona 

Mine water recirculation system is already authorized by IW permits (Wingate IW Permit No. 

FL0032522 and Four Corners IW Permit No. FL0036412).  

On December 4, 2023, DEP issued a request for additional information (“RAI”) to Mosaic 

regarding the application. The RAI requested additional information regarding the following: the 

project acreage; the 2.8-acrea area being reclassified from undisturbed to disturbed; the proposed 

mitigation; the amount of wetland, stream and other surface water disturbances/impacts proposed; 

the maps submitted with the application; the Payne Creek plan submitted with the application (the 

RAI states that the plan is substantially different from what is currently approved and that it is not 

clear if it provides the same level of regional benefit); the revised stream report; the Infills 

mitigation plan; and its clay disposal plan/schedule.  



 

 

3 
 

Ona Mine is drained by several tributaries that flow from north to south through the site: 

Brushy Creek, Horse Creek, West Fork of Horse Creek, Hickory Creek, Oak Creek, Troublesome 

Creek and the Myakka River, many of which are tributaries to the Peace River. A portion of the Ona 

mine area also includes Horse Creek, a tributary to the Peace River. 

Mosaic Fertilizer, LLC- South Fort Meade Mine Phosphate Management Facility Permit 

On November 17, 2022, Mosaic submitted an application for a permit modification (No. 

FL0037958-024) to its existing phosphate management facility permit for its South Fort Meade 

(“SFM”) Mine. On August 17, 2023, DEP gave notice of its preparation of the permit modification 

(No. FL0037958-024) (with the draft permit modification attached). The modification adds 

additional acreage into the SFM Mine boundary. The project includes the mining of phosphate ore 

within the SFM-EE Mine boundary to extend operation of the SFM Mine beneficiation plant. 

Additionally, the project includes the construction of necessary infrastructure such as a utility 

corridor and a dragline walk path to relocate draglines from the existing SFM-ER to the SFM-EE 

mine boundary. The SFM-EE Project Area totals approximately 3,170 acres and includes 

approximately 2,203 acres to be mined. With the addition of the mining and project area for SFM-

EE, the total acreage of the SFM Mine will increase to approximately 36,309 acres. Construction of 

the SFM-EE access/utility corridor is set to begin in 2023 and mining to begin in 2025. The permit 

modification explains that: proposed mining is not expected to cause any changes or issues for the 

existing SFM Mine outfalls; there are no proposed changes in processing nor increase production 

rates; no new clay settling areas or outfalls are requested as a result of this permit modification; 



 

 

4 
 

mining and reclamation in the additional areas will not be materially different from before; and 

discharge water at the permitted outfalls will remain in compliance with existing permit limitations. 

Additionally, on May 31, 2023, DEP received a minor permit modification request (No. 

FL0037958-027) from Mosaic to allow the temporary and limited transfer of wastewater from Lake 

Branch Dairy (NPDES Permit No. FLA183075) into the mine boundary for the Mosaic SFM Mine. The 

proposed transfer of this wastewater will discharge in the north-eastern section of CSA SFM-9. On 

July 28, 2023, Mosaic submitted its response to DEP’s June 29, 2023 RAI. 

As of the date of this report, there has been no further action on this minor permit 

modification request (No. FL0037958-027) or permit modification No. FL0037958-024 (discussed 

above). The SFM Mine is located at 5880 Manley Road, Fort Meade, Florida in Polk and Hardee 

Counties, within the Peace River watershed.  

Mosaic Fertilizer, LLC- Green Bay Facility 

On May 5, 2021, DEP issued a final permit to Mosaic in response to its application (NPDES 

FL0000752-020-IW1S/RA) to DEP for a major modification of the wastewater discharge permit for 

its Green Bay Facility (the “2021 Permit”). The Green Bay Facility permanently discontinued all 

manufacturing activities and was idled in 2006, with plant closure initiated in 2012. The 2021 

Permit authorized reactivation of the then inactive lined Green Bay Lined North Gypsum Stack 

(“Lined North Gypstack”) to re-initiate or resume its use to accommodate ongoing phosphate 

manufacturing. The 2021 Permit for resuming operation of the Lined North Gypstack included 

modifications to specific operations to incorporate the transfer of phosphogypsum from the Bartow 

Facility for use at the Green Bay Facility. 



 

 

5 
 

On January 9, 2023, Mosaic submitted an application for modification of its NPDES Permit 

No. FL0000752. This permit modification application is for the Green Bay Facility Phase II gypsum 

stack extension (“GB Phase II”) (PA File No. FL0000752-024-IW1S/RA). The application explains 

that the GB Phase II extension will consist of an approximately 300-acre lined addition to the 

existing Phase I North Gypsum Stack. On February 20, 2023, DEP issued a RAI and Mosaic responded 

to the RAI on March 22, 2023. DEP deemed the application complete on April 28, 2023 and 

estimated that a draft permit would be ready on or around May 23, 2023 and a notice of intent (to 

issue or deny the permit) would be issued on or around July 5, 2023. On May 4, 2023, notice of the 

application (PA File No. FL0000752-024-IW1S/RA) was published in a newspaper of general 

circulation in Polk County. No draft permit or notice of intent has been added to the DEP online 

permit file for the Green Bay Facility for GB Phase II as of the date of this Report.  

Further, in December 2023, Mosaic submitted a renewal application to DEP for renewal of 

its NPDES permit for the Green Bay Facility (File No. FL0000752), which is currently set to expire 

on June 13, 2024. The application for the NPDES permit renewal (and its supporting information) 

totals over 800 pages and includes information regarding: surface water monitoring; groundwater 

monitoring; cut-off wall monitoring; lime treatment system; remaining closure activities; the 

passive seismic monitoring system and real time monitoring reports; the closed gypsum stack; 

outfall flow information; and biological monitoring performed by Cardno.   

Additionally, Mosaic notified DEP that between September 26 and October 2, 2023, Mosaic 

observed 33 liner tears at the Green Bay and Bartow Facilities (7 at the Green Bay Facility’s regional 

holding pond and the rest at the Bartow Facility’s North Gypsum Stack ponds and spill containment 



 

 

6 
 

area). Mosaic completed repairs of the observed liner tears between October 11 and 17, 2023, and 

on December 11, 2023, submitted a construction quality assurance report.  

The Green Bay Facility is located in Bartow, Polk County, just outside of, but near the 

boundary of, the Peace River watershed, and the Bartow Facility is located in Bartow, Polk County 

at the boundary line of the Peace River watershed. The receiving waters for some of the Bartow 

Facility project’s outfalls are located within the Peace River watershed. The topography within the 

GB Phase II areas to the east gently slope to elevations around 140 feet (NGVD) governed by the 

Sweetwater Branch and Six Mile Creek flowing easterly to the Peace River. 

Mosaic Fertilizer, LLC- South Pierce Complex  

On August 14, 2018, DEP gave notice of issuance of a NPDES permit renewal (FL0000370) 

to Mosaic for its existing South Pierce facility, which was undergoing closure at the time. The permit 

renewal allowed continuation of closure activities at the facility and the discharge of treated process 

cooling pond water, excess fresh cooling pond water, and excess stormwater via Outfall D-001 into 

Hookers Prairie and then to the South Prong of the Alafia River. Operations at the facility include 

the production of sulfuric acid and co-generation of electricity, and support operations include 

sulfur storage and lime treatment for process wastewater operations.  

On February 14, 2023, Mosaic submitted an application to DEP for renewal of its permit 

(FL0000370). In addition to renewing its permit, the application also requests the following 

changes to the permit: removal of any permit language relating to closure of the phosphogypsum 

stack as closure was completed in December of 2021 and approved by DEP in 2022; a minor change 



 

 

7 
 

to the monthly discharge monitoring report; and some changes to the groundwater monitoring 

program.  

On March 16, 2023, DEP issued a RAI to Mosaic. The RAI stated that during DEP’s 

reconnaissance inspection on March 3, 2023, a suspected liner tear was observed in an area of the 

closed stack, and requested that Mosaic provide a report/update on the condition and the expected 

timeline for completion of repairs. Finally, the RAI explained that the previous permit contained 

schedule items in a permit condition for a biological evaluation, which has been submitted but not 

approved. Since a plan has not been approved and is still under review, the RAI states that a site 

visit and meeting will need to be conducted. As of the date of this report, no RAI response (or any 

other document) has been added to the DEP online database for this permit renewal application.  

The facility is located at 7450 County Road 630, North of Cr 630, East of SR 37, in Polk County, 

and is on or near the border of the Peace River Watershed.  

Mosaic Fertilizer, LLC- New Wales Facility 

On January 31, 2023, Mosaic submitted an application to DEP to renew its NPDES permit 

(FL0036421-023) for its New Wales Facility. The permit authorizes Mosaic to discharge 

stormwater, treated process wastewater, non-process wastewater, and excess groundwater from 

production and recovery wells via existing Outfall D-006.  

The application also requests a revision of the permit for authorization to construct the 

Phase IV Gypsum Stack Extension in accordance with the Phosphogypsum Stack System 

Construction/Operation Permit Application submitted concurrent with this renewal application. 

The Phase III Gypsum Stack Extension was authorized as part of the revised permit issued on 



 

 

8 
 

October 15, 2021 as FL0036421-022 for construction of the Phase III Gypsum Stack Extension in 

conjunction with the 3-tiered Subsurface Activity Early Detection System (“SAEDS”). The Phase IV 

Extension will incorporate the same 3-tiered SAEDS as installed in the Phase III Extension. The 

proposed Phase IV Gypsum Stack Extension has a total area of 320 acres and abuts the south side 

of the Phase III portion of the South Gypsum Stack. The Phase IV Extension is comprised of: (i) a 

lined area of 226 acres for gypsum stacking; (ii) 23 acres of perimeter earthen containment dikes 

and toe roads; (iii) 45 acres of below-grade stormwater drainage ditches and access roads around 

the exterior perimeter of the ditch; and (iv) 26 acres of at-grade stormwater drainage ditches to 

route runoff from the west side of the Phase IV Extension. Of the total area of 320 acres, 35 acres 

are coincident with the existing Phase III portion of the South Gypsum Stack, resulting in a net 

change in area of 285 acres from the Phase IV Extension. The application states that a geophysical 

investigation of the Phase IV Extension identified several locations requiring further exploration 

with test borings and piezometer installations. This further exploration activity is underway, and a 

supplement to the Phase IV Gypsum Stack Extension Construction/Operation Permit Application is 

scheduled for submittal to DEP in July 2023. The application also requests a change to the Outfall D-

006 wastewater system to relocate an existing 4,100-foot-long reach of the Area A-11 to Area K-4 

drainage ditch to accommodate construction of the proposed Phase IV Gypsum Stack Extension. The 

only change requested to the groundwater monitoring requirements is to revise the inventory of 

monitoring wells in a permit condition. 

Mosaic’s April 7, 2023 response to a March 2, 2023 RAI stated that Mosaic had elected to 

withdraw the request to revise the existing permit to include authorization to construct the Phase 



 

 

9 
 

IV Gypsum Stack Extension. On May 3, 2023, DEP deemed the application complete. On November 

17, 2023, DEP issued a notice of draft permit, with the draft permit (FL0036421-023) attached.  

The New Wales Facility manufactures solid ammoniated phosphate fertilizers and animal 

feed ingredients and is located on County Road 640 West, southwest of Mulberry, Florida near the 

Hillsborough County line. The Facility, through the Phase III Gypsum Stack extension, encompasses 

2,260 acres, and will increase to 2,545 acres with the proposed Phase IV Extension. The facility has 

one outfall, designated D-006, located approximately 3 miles southeast of the facility boundary on 

the South Prong Alafia River. 

Alico, Inc.—Orange Co Excavation ERP 

On or around June of 2023, Alico, Inc. submitted an ERP application to DEP for its 79.82-acre 

Orange Co Excavation project. The application explains that the excavation project will be done in 

two phases and entails extracting sand and shell to be used on future development projects for 

public and private development. The application states that the site will produce no offsite 

discharge other than the moisture in the soil leaving the site from excavation. The estimated life of 

the mine, including reclamation, will be ten years from the start date (which will be upon issuance 

of the ERP from DEP and the excavation permit from Charlotte County). 

On November 2, 2023, Alico, Inc. submitted its response to a May 22, 2023 RAI from DEP, 

which clarifies that this site is an active mine (pursuant to the SWFWMD permit referenced below), 

and the RAI itself notes that there are no wetland or other surface waters impacts. On November 6, 

2023, notice of the application was published in a newspaper. No new documents have been added 

to DEP’s file for this application since the prior Basin Report.  



 

 

10 
 

The subject property is currently an active excavation site under SWFWMD ERP No. 33845 

(the application documents explain that before the existing mining operation started on this 

property in 2013, it was vacant pastureland). This project is located in Punta Gorda in Charlotte 

County and is within the Peace River Basin, in the Shell Creek portion of the Lower Peace River. 

Harborview Properties Neal Road LLC—Harborview Excavation  

In or around June of 2023, Harborview Properties Neal Road LLC (the “Applicant”) submitted 

an ERP application to DEP for its proposed Harborview Excavation project. The Harborview 

Excavation project consists of a project/permit area of 478.32 acres. The project will entail 

extracting sand and shell, in four phases, to be used on future development projects for public and 

private development, and the estimated life of the mine, including reclamation, will be ten years.  

On October 31, 2023, the Applicant submitted its response to a May 22, 2023 RAI from DEP, 

which includes a Revised Technical Memorandum on the analysis of potential impacts to 

environmental features due to the dewatering of the surficial aquifer system for the sand and shell 

excavation. On November 28, 2023, DEP issued another RAI to the Applicant requesting: edits and 

changes to the information provided on the application forms; additional engineering and 

hydrology information; revised and/or additional plans, maps and figures; a figure differentiating 

the project and property boundaries; and a clarification regarding the groundwater monitoring 

plan.  

The Harborview Excavation project is located southwest of the intersection of Neal Rd and 

Graham Rd in Charlotte County, within the Peace River Basin, specifically in the lower Peace River 

area.  



 

 

11 
 

Chapman Family Partnership LLLP—Chapman Irrigation Reservoir Mine 

On April 3, 2023, Chapman Family Partnership LLLP submitted an ERP application for its 

proposed Chapman Irrigation Reservoir Mine (File No. MMR_433438-01) (“Permit”). The project 

consists of an approximately 57.7-acre new sand mine in DeSoto County on a 160-acre property. On 

September 19, 2023, Chapman submitted its response to a September 6, 2023 RAI from DEP. The 

proposed excavation involves extracting fill dirt and shell material to be hauled offsite to supply 

contractors, with the proposed project area being 35.6 acres with a 20-acre excavation area. The 

maximum estimated life of the mine, including reclamation, is five years from the date of issuance 

of all required permits. The application documents state that there will be no offsite discharge.  

On November 29, 2023, DEP issued a Notice of Intent to Issue the Permit (MMR_433438-

001) (“Notice”).  The Notice states that there are no wetlands within the project or permit 

boundaries, and that the only impacts associated with the project consist of approximately 20.4 

acres of other surface water (“OSW”) impacts, consisting of historically excavated pits which will be 

ultimately connected to the newly excavated waterbody, totaling one lake approximately 42 acres 

in size. Impacts to the 20.4 acres of on-site OSW will be compensated through the creation of an 

approximately 42-acre reservoir in reclamation. 

The project is located half a mile north of the intersection of the southern boundary of DeSoto 

County and State Road 31, and within the Peace River Basin.  

Mosaic Fertilizer, LLC- Bonnie Mine Facility  

On November 17, 2023, DEP issued a NPDES renewal permit to Mosaic for its Bonnie Mine 

Facility (FL0000523) (“Bonnie Facility”). The permit authorizes the continued maintenance and 



 

 

12 
 

long-term care activities at the closed Mosaic Bonnie Facility (formerly CF Industries, Inc. – Bartow 

Operations). A significant portion of the industrial complex has been demolished including all 

former manufacturing plant areas. The closed 709-acre phosphogypsum stack system consists of 

several lined areas, a closed seepage collection ditch system, a closed process water cooling channel 

network, truck unloading station, and a closed process water cooling pond. 

The Bonnie Facility manages non-process wastewater, process wastewater (stack leachate), 

and stormwater. The facility is also authorized to receive partially treated process water by way of 

a new truck unloading station. The Bonnie Facility is located at 2501 Bonnie Mine Rd in Bartow, 

Florida, near the western boundary of the Peace River watershed.  

Estech, L.L.C—Agricola Closed Phosphogypsum Stack 

On October 30, 2023, Estech, L.L.C. (“Estech”) submitted a NPDES permit renewal application 

(No. FL0160083- 005-IW1S/NR) for its Agricola Closed Phosphogypsum Stack facility (“Facility”). 

On December 5, 2023, DEP issued a RAI to Estech requesting additional information regarding: the 

conductivity study provided; the mixing zone calculations (for the mixing zone between Hookers 

Prairie and the Estech NPDES outfall); sampling results; groundwater quality review; explanation 

of the exceedances in Radium shown by one of the well’s sampling results; flow measurements; and 

nitrogen loading levels. Estech submitted its response to the RAI on January 3, 2024.  

The application explains the nature of the business as “closed phosphogypsum stack 

monitoring and maintenance, citrus farming and cattle production.” The Facility is located in 

Agricola, FL in Polk County and is within (or near the border of) the Peace River Basin.  

 



 

 

13 
 

Astin Strawberry Property Management, LLC—Water Use Permit 

On December 19, 2023, Astin Strawberry Property Management, LLC submitted a water use 

permit (“WUP”) modification application (no. 6059.013) to the Southwest Florida Water 

Management District (“SWFWMD”). The modification requests to increase the annual average 

quantity from 1.004 mgd to 1.386 mgd (the peak month quantity decreases from 6.506 mgd to 5.288 

mgd). However, an RAI issued by SWFWMD on January 12, 2024, explains that: 

The submitted application requests the transfer of 203,000 gallons per day (gpd) 
from WUP No. 20004183 to this permit via self-relocation and the transfer of 179,000 
gpd from WUP No. 20010296 to this permit also via self-relocation. However, review 
of aerial imagery and District records indicates that the water use for WUP 20004183 
and 20010296 have changed from agricultural to landscape / recreational use……         
However, a self-relocation transfer of quantities may not include a change in 
ownership, control, Use Type category or an increase in quantities, and it is clear that 
the Use Type for WUP Nos. 20004183.009 and 20010296 are landscape / 
recreational. Therefore, the proposed transfer in quantities is considered a change in 
Use Type category and does not qualify for a Self-Relocation. 
… 
Please note that the permit applications submitted have WUP No. 20006059 receiving 
more quantities than donated. As part of a Self-Relocation or Net Benefit, quantities 
cannot increase overall, please see Self-Relocation and Net Benefit forms. Whether 
the application will proceed with an eligible self-relocation or a net benefit, submit a 
revised demand that does not include an overall increase in quantities between 
quantities donated and quantities received. 
 
The permit is for agricultural uses in Manatee County and is located in the Southern Water 

Use Caution Area and Manasota basin.   

Schroeder-Manatee Ranch, Inc.—Water Use Permit 

On December 19, 2023, Schroeder-Manatee Ranch, Inc. submitted a (“WUP”) modification 

application (no.7846.032) to SWFWMD. The application requests the combination of WUPs 

20007846.031 and 20011019.011 and the modification of the water use type associated with new 



 

 

14 
 

planned residential developments within the current WUP 20011019.031 boundary. The 

modification requests to increase the annual average quantity from 18.237 mgd to 19.696 mgd and 

the peak month quantity from 55.731 mgd to 60.057 mgd. The change in allocation is for 

supplemental irrigation quantities to irrigate an additional 675.27 acres of lawn/landscape and golf 

courses area associated with the three proposed developments. The irrigation demand will be 

supplied using a combination of reclaimed water, surface water and groundwater with a total 

annual average and peak month quantity of 1.458 mgd and 4.325 mgd, respectively. On December 

12, 2023, SWFWMD issued a RAI requesting, among other things, that the applicant complete and 

submit a Net Benefit Supplemental Form, as required by all permit applications that are requesting 

new quantities within the SWUCA. 

The permit is for landscape/recreation and agricultural uses in Manatee and Sarasota 

Counties and is located in the Most Impacted Area (“MIA”) of the Southern Water Use Caution Area 

and Manasota basin.   

Charlotte Harbor Water Association—Water Use Permit  

On October 31, 2023, SWFWMD received a WUP modification application (no. 1512.016) 

from Charlotte Harbor Water Association. The modification requests to add three raw water supply 

production wells to meet the required wellfield production and rotational capacity, and to increase 

the annual average quantity from 0.91 mgd to 1.8 mgd and the peak month quantity from 1.028 mgd 

to 2.0 mgd. The WUP modification explains that the change in quantities is required in order to meet 

the upgraded plant capacity. On November 8, 2023, SWFWMD issued a RAI requesting additional 



 

 

15 
 

information regarding the proposed demand, population projections, and per capita rates, among 

other things. No response to the RAI has been submitted as of the date of this Report.  

The permit is for public supply uses in Charlotte County and is located in the Southern Water 

Use Caution Area and Peace River basin.   

Manatee County BOCC—Water Use Permit 

On February 21, 2023, Manatee County BOCC submitted a WUP modification application (no. 

13343.005) for the implementation of Groundwater Replacement Credits at East County Field 

(“ECWF”) and Buffalo Creek Well Field (“BCWF”). The application included an Impact Analysis 

Report prepared to support the requested implementation of Groundwater Replacement Credits 

(“GWRC”). It explains that the SWFWMD rules require that if a WUP is requesting new groundwater 

withdrawals that causes impact in the Upper Floridan aquifer (“UFA”) within the MIA,  it must utilize 

a Net Benefit strategy. Both well fields, ECWF and BCWF, will utilize the Mitigation Plus Recovery 

Net Benefit strategy, which requires that new drawdown in the UFA within the MIA boundary be 

offset plus an additional 10% of the drawdown impact provided as recovery in the MIA by use of a 

mitigation method. The application states that both well fields will utilize recharge of the UFA via 

GWRC and quantity retirement as mitigation. The GWRC and quantity retirement are earned by 

Manatee County supplying reclaim water to WUPs to offset groundwater withdrawals that cause 

impact in the UFA within the MIA. Both well field sites are under the management of the Manatee 

County Utilities.  

The Manatee County permit is a consolidated WUP including all their groundwater and 

surface water sources. The current total annual average quantity and peak month quantity for the 



 

 

16 
 

entire permit is 54.836 mgd and 70.734 MGD. The current permitted quantity allotted to the ECWF 

is 15.986 mgd with 3.1 mgd of groundwater flexibility available, bringing the total allotted quantity 

to 19.086 mgd. The current permitted quantity allotted to BCWF is 3.95 mgd. The flexibility quantity 

associated with ECWF and the total allotted quantity at BCWF are available due to the net benefit 

provided by previously calculated GWRC and retirement quantities. A GWRC quantity of 4,976,083 

gallons per day (“gpd”) and retirement quantity of 380,500 gpd was used to calculate the new total 

annual average quantity associated with the BCWF. The report states that the flex quantity at the 

ECWF and total quantity at the BCWF is feasible due to recharge of the UFA within the MIA from 

GWRC and retirement quantities.   

On March 15, 2023, SWFWMD issued a RAI requesting that Manatee County:  recalculate the 

GWRC; reevaluate all associated WUPs to confirm that the total GWRC are correct; confirm the 

reclaimed water quantity that is being supplied to all associated WUPs that are being used to 

provide GWRC; and provide an estimated schedule of when WUP Nos. 20013354, 20020955, and 

20020956 will be modified to reflect the proposed reclaimed water to be provided by Manatee 

County. SWFWMD has granted multiple extensions of time to respond to the RAI (now through 

February 8, 2024). No RAI response has been submitted as of the date of this Report.  

The permit is for public supply uses and is located in Manatee County within the Most 

Impacted Area (“MIA”) of the Southern Water Use Caution Area and Manasota Basin.  

Taylor Woodrow Communities at Artisan Lakes LLC —Water Use Permit  

On June 28, 2023, Taylor Woodrow Communities at Artisan Lakes LLC (“Taylor Woodrow) 

submitted a WUP modification application (no. 3744.013) to SWFWMD. The application requests to 



 

 

17 
 

increase the irrigated acreage from 227.6-acres to 472.4-acres and explains that the additional 

irrigated acreage allocation will be met with the same irrigation methodology currently employed 

at the development. The application also requests a “temporary 5-year permit” increasing the 

annual average quantity from 0.452 mgd to 0.9209 mgd, and a peak month quantity of 3.0166 mgd. 

A change to the allocation from the UFA is also requested—to 0.459 mgd annual average quantity 

(currently permitted for 0.3861 mgd). The application explains that after 5 years or sooner, the 

development will be permanently on reclaimed water and the backup to the reclaimed use will be 

the surface water quantities only. It also states that “hydrogeologic evaluation of the requested 

allocations indicates there are negligible, temporary impacts to existing legal uses or environmental 

receptors.” On July 19, 2023, SWFWMD issued an RAI which included the following request: 

The submitted application states that the applicant is requesting that the allocation 
from the Upper Floridan aquifer be reverted to revision 20003744.008 which would 
increase Upper Floridan aquifer quantities. As you may be aware, the District has 
implemented regulations regarding water use in the Southern Water Use Caution 
Area (SWUCA)…..Applications for New Quantities that impact an MFL will not be 
approved unless a Net Benefit is provided that offsets the impact. Please indicate if 
you would like to apply for additional quantities through a Net Benefit. If you would 
like to obtain new quantities using a Net Benefit, please provide the donor permit 
number, associated quantities, and all appropriate forms….  
 
On October 18, 2023, SWFWMD granted an extension of time through January 14, 2024 to 

respond to the RAI. On November 16, 2023, Taylor Woodrow requested another 90-day extension 

to respond to the RAI.  

The WUP is for agricultural uses in Manatee County and is located within the MIA in the 

Southern Water Use Caution Area and Manasota basin. 

 


	BOARD MEETING AGENDA - February 7, 2024
	ELECTION OF OFFICERS
	CONSENT AGENDA
	1. Minutes of December 6, 2023 Board of Directors Meeting
	2. Year-End Financial Status and Semi-Annual Investment Reports for FY 2023
	TAB A - Year-End Financial Status Report for FY 2023
	TAB B - Semi-Annual Investment Report [September 30, 2023]

	3. Novation of Two Contracts from Janicki Environmental to Environmental Science Associates (ESA)
	4. Professional Services Contract for Information Technology Support and Management Services
	TAB A - Staff Memorandum, including Selection Committee Tabulation, and Notice of Intended Decision
	TAB B - Professional Services Agreement for Information Technology Support and Management Services with Entech Computer Services, LLC, including fee schedule.

	5. Phase 3C Regional Interconnect – Purchase of Pipeline Easements
	6. Phase 2B Regional Interconnect Resolution of Necessity for Pipeline Easements
	TAB A - Resolution 2024-01
	TAB B - Exhibit A

	7. Treatment Trains 7 & 8 Rehabilitation Project - Phase 1
	TAB A - Garney Companies Scope and Fee Proposal
	TAB B - Black & Veatch Scope and Fee Proposal

	8. Phase 3C Regional Interconnect Resolution of Necessity 2022-03 - Amendment 2
	TAB A - Amended Resolution No. 2022-03
	TAB B - Amended Resolution No. 2022-03 Exhibit A – Easements

	9. Operating Protocol Agreement between the Authority and the Polk Regional Water Cooperative for Water Supply Operations on the Peace River

	REGULAR AGENDA
	1. Water Supply Conditions Report
	2. FY 2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report and Independent Auditors’ Report
	TAB A - Presentation Materials
	TAB B - FY 2023 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report and Independent Auditors’ Report [DRAFT]

	3. FY 2025 Budget – Schedule and Considerations

	GENERAL COUNSEL’S REPORT
	EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
	CHAIRMAN’S REPORT
	1. Recognition of Commissioner Bill Truex Service to the Authority
	2. Recognition of Commissioner George Kruse Service to the Authority

	ROUTINE STATUS REPORTS
	1. Hydrologic Conditions Report
	2. Check Registers for November & December 2023
	3. Peace River Regional Reservoir No. 3 (PR3) – Project Update
	4. Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 2B Pipeline Project
	5. Regional Integrated Loop System Phase 3C Pipeline Project
	6. DeSoto Booster Pumping Station Project
	7. Brackish Groundwater Reverse Osmosis Project at the Peace River Facility
	8. Peace River Basin Report





